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Selected key consolidated financial data

Year ended December 31

2013 2012 (a) 201 2010 2009

Consolidated data
Revenues {b} 22135 22577 8813 20878 27132
EBITA{b) {c) 2431 3163 5860 5726 5390
Eamings attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners 1967 178 2681 2198 830
Adjusted net income {¢) 1540 1705 2952 2698 2585
Financial Net Debt {c} 11097 13419 12,027 §073 9566
Total equity 19,030 219 2070 281713 25988

of which Vivendi SA sharegwners equity 17 457 18325 19447 24 058 207
Cash flow from operations before capstat expenditures net (CFFO before capex net) 4077 5i89 8,034 8569 7799
Captal expendstures, net (capex, net) (d) {2,624} {3 976) [3 340} {3357} {2,562}
Cash {low from aperations (CFFO) (c) 1,483 1413 4504 5212 5237
Financial investments {151) 11731} (636) {1397} {3 050)
Financial divestments 3,483 204 4,701 1982 97
Dwvidends pard with respect to previous fiscal year 1,325 1245 173 1721 1633 (e)
Per share data
Weighted average number of shares cutsiandtng {{) 13306 12989 12814 12738 12447
Adusted net income per share {f] 116 13 238 FAY 108
Number of shares putstanding at the end of the penod (excluding treasury shares) (f) 13396 13225 12874 12787 12703
Equity per share atinbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners {f) 1303 1396 1511 1881 1733
Dividends per share pard with respect to previous fiscal year 100 100 140 140 140

In nullions of euros, number of shares in millions, data per share n euros

a As from the second quarter of 2013, in compliance with IFRS 5 {Non-current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations), as a
result of the plans to sell Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group {please refer to Section 11), Activision Blizzard and Marog
Telecom group have been reported in the 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Statement of Eamings and Statement of Cash Flows as
discontinued operations (please refer to Section 1 1.3 3 of this Financial Report and to Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2013} On October 11, 2013, Vivend: deconsolidated Activision Blizzard pursuant to the sale of 88% of
its interest In addition, the contnbution of Maroc Telecom group to each line of Vivendi’s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as of December 31, 2013 has been grouped under the lines "Assets of discontinued businesses” and “Liabilities associated with assets
of discontinued businesses”

Morecver, data published with respect to fiscal year 2012 has been adjusted following the application of amended |AS 19 (Employee
Benefits), whose application 1s mandatory in the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with retrospective effect from
January 1, 2012 {please refer to Note 1 to the Conschdated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013}

These adjustments are presented in Appendix 1 to the Financiat Report and in Note 33 to the Conselidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2013

Data presented with respect to fiscal years from 2009 to 2011 corresponds to historical data and has not been adjusted

b Ananalysis of revenues and EBITA by operating segment in 2013 and 2012 1s presented in Section 4 1 of this Financial Report and in
Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013

¢ Vivendi considers that the non-GAAP measures of EBITA, Adjusted net income, Finantial Net Debt, and Cash flow from operations
(CFFO) are relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance Each of these indicators 1s defined in the appropriate
section of this Financial Report or in 1ts Appendix These indicators should be considered in addition to, and not as a substitute for,
other GAAP measures of operating and financial performance as disclosed in the Consolidated Financial Statements and the related
notes, or as descrbed in this Financial Report 1t should be noted that other companies may define and calculate these indicators
differently from Vivend: thereby affecting comparability

d  Relates to cash used for capial expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets

e The dividend distribution with respect to fiscal year 2008 totalled €1,639 milhen, of which £904 million was paid n shares (with no
impact on cash) and €735 million was paid in cash

f  The number of shares, adjusted net income per share, and the equity per share, attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners have been
adjusted for all periods previously published in order to reflect the dilution anising from the grant to each shareowner on May 9, 2012 of
one bonus share for each 30 shares held, in accordance with IAS 33 (Earnings Per Share)
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Nota

In accordance with European Commission Regulation (EC) 80972004 (Article 28) which sets out the disclosure obligations for issuers of secunties
listed on a regulated market within the European Union {implementing Directive 2003/71/EC, the Prospectus Regulation™}, the following ttems are
incorporated by reference

« 2012 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors” Report presented in pages 168 to 319 of the "Document de Référence™ No D 13-0170, filed on March 18, 2013 with the
French Autonité des Marchés Financiers {(AMF), and in pages 168 to 319 of the English translation of this “Document de Reference”, and

e 2011 Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2011, prepared under IFRS and the related
Statutory Auditors’ Report presented in pages 130 to 266 of the “Document de Référence™ No 0 12-0175, filed on March 18, 2012 with the
French Autonté des Marchés Financiers {AMF), and in pages 128 to 264 of the English transtation of this “Document de Reférence”
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I - 2013 Financial Report

Preliminary comments

(n February 19, 2014, during a meeting held at the headguarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Annual Financial
Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 Hawving considered the Audit Committee’s
recommendation given at its meeting held on February 18, 2014, the Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 21, 2014, reviewed
the Annual Financial Report and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, as approved by the
Management Board on February 18, 2014

The Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 have been audited and certified by the Statutory Auditors
with no qualified opinion The Statutory Auditors’ Report on the Consolidated Financial Statements 15 included in the preamble to the
Financial Statements

1 Significant events

1.1 Significant events in 2013

1.1.1  Ongoing strategic review

As publicly announced to sharehalders on several occasians in 2012 and 2013, Vivendr's Management Board and Supervisory Board are
carrying out a review of the group’s strategic development In 2013, Vivend: sold most of its interest in Activision Blizzard and entered into a
definitive agreement with Etisalat to sell its interest in Maroc Telecom The group has decided to focus on its media and content activities,
which hold leading positions and are taking advantage of the growing digital market It has strengthened its presence in Canal+ France, now
fully owned Vivend: is also reshaping SFR The operator has begun to benefit from 1is transformation plan, by re-taking the commercial lead
and by reducing costs SFR has also entered nte an agreement to share part of its mobile network with Bouygues Telecom, allowing 1t to
offer better coverage and strengthened service quality to its customers Based on this, the group aims to position the future Vivend: as a
dynamic player in media and content With SFR, 1t intends to participate 1n the reorganization of the telecommunication sector in France,
exploring actively all potential opportunities

During the second half of 2013, the group reached important strategic milestones

« on October 11, 2013, Vivend: comgleted the sale of 88% of its interest in Activision Blizzard for $8 2 billion (or €6 billion), in cash
In addition, Vivendi retained 83 million Activision Blizzard shares, representing 11 9% of Activision Blizzard's outstanding share
capital, which are subject to a staggered 15-month Jock-up period,

+ on November 4, 2013, Vivend) entered into a definitive agreement with Etisalat for the sale of Vivend's 53% interest in Maroc
Telecom group for €4 2 billion 1n cash, including a €310 million dividend distribution with respect to f:scal year 2012, according to
the financial terms known to date Completion of this transaction 1s contingent upon the satisfaction of certain closing conditions,
including receipt of required regulatory approvals in Morocco and the countries in which Maroc Telecom group operates, as well
as finalization of the shareholders’ agreement between Etisalat and the Kingdom of Morocco This transaction 1s expected to be
completed during the first months of 2014, and

+ on November 5, 2013, Vivend: acquired Lagardere Group’s 20% interest in Canal+ France for €1,020 mitlion in cash

As a result of the sale of Activision Blizzard, Vivend! has begun to sigmificantly reduce its debt dunng the fourth quarter of 2013 by
implementing a US dollar and euro bond repurchase program in an aggregate amount of €3 billion, thus gaining greater financial flexibihty
(please refer to Section 5)

1.1.2 Planned demerger of the group

On November 26, 2013, Vivendi's Superwsory Board approved the group’s planned demerger to form two separate compames {1} a new
international media group based in France, with very strong pesitions in music {as the worldwide teader), in European cinema, in pay-TV in
France, Africa, Vietnam, and Poland, and in the Interet and associated services in Brazil, and () SFR The decision to implement this project
coutd be taken in the near future and, if approprate, submitted te the General Shareholders” Meeting for approval on June 24, 2014

Vivend: considers that the conditions for the application of IFRS 5 to the proposed demerger in the 2013 Financial Statements are not met
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1.1.3 Sales of Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group

1131 Activision Blizzard

On October 11, 2013, Vivend: campleted the sale of 88% of its interest in Activision Blizzard, or 600 64 million shares priced at $13 60 per
share, for $8,169 million (€6,044 million) in cash

The key terms of this sale are as follows

« through the acquisition of a Vivendi subsidiary, Activision Blizzard repurchased 428 68 million shares at $13 60 per share for a cash
congideration of $5,830 milhion,

+ concomitantly, Vivendi sold 171 97 million Activision Blizzard shares at $13 60 per share for a cash consideration of $2,339 million
to an investor group {ASAC Il LP) led by Mr Robert Kotick, Activision Blizzard's Chief Executive Officer, and Mr Brian Kelly, the
Chairman of the Board of Directors ASAC Il LP owns approximately 24 7% of the cutstanding share capital {following the
repurchase of 428 68 mullion shares by Activision Blhizzard),

s pursuant to the simultaneous closings of both sales on October 11, 2013, Vivend: retained 83 million Activision Blizzard shares
representing 11 9% of Activision Blizzard's outstanding share caital {following the repurchase of 428 68 million shares by
Activision Blizzard) Vivend:'s remaining ownership interest 15 subject to a staggered 5-month lock-up period as described in Note
7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 The sale proceeds from the remaining
ownership interest are estimated at a tota! of $1,129 million (€832 million), assuming the hypothesis of $1360 per share and at
$1.480 million (€1,078 mullion), assuming the hypothesis of Activision Blizzard's share price on December 31, 2013 of $17 83 per
share, and

» the agreement governing the transaction includes certam continuing commitments given by the parties (please refer to Note 7 to
the Consolhdated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013)

Deconsolidation of Activision Blizzard as from October 11, 2013

As from October 11, 2013, as a result of the sale of 600 64 mitlion shares of, or a 53 46% interest n Actrwision Blizzard, Vivend lost control
of and deconsolidated Activision Blizzard In the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, the remaining
83 millien Activision Blizzard shares have been recorded as assets held for sale, subject to the staggered lock-up period

Capital gain on divestiture

From an accounting perspective and 1n accordance with IFRS, Vivend: is considered to have sold 100% of 1ts interest m Activision Blizzard
following the loss of control of this subsidiary The gain on sale has been determimed as the difference between the value of 100% of the
Activision Blizzard shares owned by Vivend at a price of $13 60 per share {less costs to sell) (66,851 miltion) and the value of Activision
Blizzard’s net assets attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners, as recorded in Vivend''s Consolidated Financial Statements at the date of the
loss of control {€4,491 millicn) Moreover, in accordance with IFRS, foreign currency translation adjustments atiributable to Vivendi SA
shareowners (n relation to Activision Blizzard have been reclassified to profit or loss, 1 e, a gain of €555 million Thus the total capital gain
on the divestiture which amounted to €2,315 mullion with no tax impact, has been recognized in the Consolidated Statements under the line
“Earnings from discontinued operations”

1132 Maroc Telecom group

On November 4, 2013, Vivend! entered into a defimtive agreement with Etisalat, with whom exclusive negotiations had begun on July 22,
2013, regarding the sale of Vivend:’s 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group The key terms of this agreement known to date are as follows
e the agreement values the interest in Maroc Telecom group at MAD 92 6 per share or sale proceeds to Vivend of approximately
€4 2 hilhon 1n cash, including a €310 mullion dividend distribution with respect to fiscal year 2012, according to the financial terms
known to date Taking into account Maroc Telecom group's net debt, the transaction reflects a proportional enterprise value of
€4 5 bilhon for Vivendi's interest, equal to an EBITDA multiple of § 2x, and
o the completion of this transaction 1s contingent upon the satisfaction of certain closing conditions, including receipt of required
regulatory approvals in Morocco and the countries in which Maroc Telecom group operates, as well as finalization of the
shareholders” agreement between Etisalat and the Kingdom of Morocco This transaction is expected to be completed during the
first months of 2014

1133 Accounting implications in the Consolidated Financial Statements

As from the second quarter of 2013, and in compliance with [FRS 5 taking into account the anticipated closing dates of the effective sales,
Actrvision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported n Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings, Statement of Cash Flows,
and Statement of Financial Position as discontinued operations
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In practice, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported as follows

s their contribution, until the effective sale, if any, to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings (before non-
controlling interests) has been grouped under the hine "Earmings from discontmued operations™ Therr share of net income has
been excluded from Vivend!'s adjusted net income, and

e their contnbution, until the effective sale, if any, to each line of Vivend's Consol:dated Statement of Cash Flows has been grouped
under the Iine “Cash flows from discontinued operations” Therr cash flow from operations (CFFQ), cash flow from operations
before capital expenditures, net (CFFO before capex, net), and cash flow from operations after interest and income taxes {CFAIT)
have been excluded from Vivendi's CFFQ, CFFO before capex, net, and CFAIT

In accordance with [FRS 5, these adjustments have been applied to all periods presented in the Consolidated Financial Statements (2013 and
2012) to ensure consistency of information

Moreover, the contribution of Maroc Telecom group to each line of Vivend:'s Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as of December
31, 2013 has been grouped under the lines "assets of discontinued businesses” and “liabilities associated with assets of discontinued
businesses” Its Financial Net Debt was excluded from Vivendi's Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2013

Please refer to Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013

1.1.4 Acquisition of Lagardére group’s non-controlling interest in Canal+ France

On November 5, 2013, Vivend: acquired Lagardére Group's 20% interest in Canal+ France, for €1,020 million in cash In accordance with IFRS 10,
Vivend recorded this transaction as an acquisition of a non-controlling interest The difference between the consideration paid and the carrying
value of the acquired non-controlhing interest was recorded as a deduction from equity attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners (€636 mithion) In
addition, Vivend: and Lagardére Group have settled all disputes between them {please refer to Note 28 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013) Thereafter, Canal+ France S A was merged with and into Canal+ Group S A, pursuant
to a simphfied merger, with retroactive effect to January 1, 2013

115 Completion of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by Vivendi and Universal Music Group
{UMG)

As a reminder, on September 28, 2012 Vivendi and UMG completed the acquisition of 100% of the recorded music business of EMI Group
Global Limited (EMI Recorded Music) EM! Recorded Music has been fully consolidated since that date The purchase price, n enterprise
value, amounted to £1,130 millon {€1,404 mliion) The authonzation by the European Commission was notably conditional upon the
divestment of the Parlophone, Now, and Mute labels In accordance with IFRS 5, Vivendi reported these assets as assets held for sale at
market value (less costs to sell), in the Statements of Financial Position, until completion of the sale

On February 7, 2013, Vivendi and UMG announced that they had entered into an agreement for the sale of Parlophone Label Group to
Warner Music Group for an enterprise value of £487 miflion to be paid incash Follawing the approval by the European Commission on May
15, 2013, the sale of Parlophone Labe! Group was completed on July 1, 2013 and Vivend recewed consideration of £501 million
(€591 milhen), including the provisional estimated contractual prce adjustments {(£14 million)

Moreover, the divestments of Sanctuary, Now, and Mute were completed

The aggregate amount of divestments made in compliance with the conditions imposed by the regulatory authorities in connection with the
acquisition of EMI Recorded Music was £543 million, less costs to sell {approximately €679 million, including €39 million i gains on foreign
exchange hedging and a consideration of €19 million remaining payable as of December 31, 2013)

1.1.6 Agreement to share a part of SFR's mobile access networks

On January 31, 2014, SFR and Bouygues Telecom entered into a strategic agreement to share a part of their mobile access netwarks, foliowing a
pertod of negotiations announced 1n July 2013 They will roll out a new shared network n an area covering 57% of the French population This
agreement will enable both operatars to improve their mobile coverage and generate significant savings over time

The agreement 1s based an two principles
» thecreation of a joint company, to manage the shared base station assets, and
s entry by the operators into @ RAN-sharing service agreement covening 2G, 3G, and 4G services in the shared area

This network-sharning agreement i1s simar to numerous arrangements already existing 10 other European countries Each operator will retain
its own innovation capacity as well as complete commercial and pricing independence

The network-sharing agreement took effect upon the signing of the agreement and the shared network is expected to be completed by the
end of 2017

From an accounting perspective, this agreement had no impact on the accounts for fiscal year 2013
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1.1.7 Acquisitions hy Canal+ Group
Acquisition of a 51% nterest in Mediaserv

On July 12, 2013, Canal+ Overseas entered into an agreement with Loret Group to acquire a 51% majority interest in Medraserv, an

overseas telecom operator On February 10, 2014, the French Competition Authonty appraved this acquisition, which was completed on
February 13, 2014

Acquisition of a 60% interest in Red Production Company

On December 5, 2013, Studiocanal acquired a 60% majonity interest in Red Production Company, a British company which produces
television senes

Acquisition of an additional interest in N-Vision

On November 30, 2012, Canal+ Group acquired a 40% interest in N-Vision, which indirectly holds a 52% interest in TVN On December 18,
2013, n accordance with the shareholders’ agreement, [Tl exercised 1ts put option to sefl to Canal+ Group a 9% interest in N-Vision's share
capital and voting nights for €62 million, paid in cash in February 2014 Canal+ Group's ownership interest in N-Visian thus increased to 49%

1.1.8 Financial Net Debt change

For a detailed description of the new financings set up 1n 2013 as well as the redemptions fallowing the closing of the Activision Blizzard sale,
please refer to Section 5 For & detalled description of the matunities of the bonds and bank credit facilties as of December 31, 2013, please
refer to Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013

1.2 Significant events since December 31, 2013

The significant events that have occurred since December 31, 2013 were as follows

s onJanuary 14, 2014, Canal+ Group won the exclusive broadcasting nghts to the national French Rugby Championship "TOP 14” for
five seasons (2014-2015 to 2018-2019) These nights relate to all of the TOP 14 matches, across all media and all territories,

e onJanuary 31, 2014, SFR and Bouygues Telecom entered into a strategic agreement to share a part of their mabile access
networks, and

+ onFebruary 13, 2014, Vivend: entered into exclusive negotiations with Belgacom to acquire 100% of 1ts subsidiary Telindus France
Group, a leader on the French markets of telecommunication integration and networks Once signed, the transaction will be
submitted to the French competition authonty approval
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2 Earnings analysis

Prelimnnary comments:
As from the second quarter of 2013, i complrance with IFRS 5, Activision Bhizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported i Vivendr's
Consohdated Statement of Earmings as discontinued opsrations In practice. income and charges from these two businesses have been
reported as follows
- ther contrbution untl the effective divestiture, |f any, to each hne of Vivendr's Consolidated Statement of Earnings {before non-
controliing interests) has been grouped under the line “Earnings from discontinued operations”,
- mnaccordance with IFRS 5, these adiustments have been applied to all perrods presented te ensure consistency of information, and
- thew share of net income has been excluded from Vivendi's adjusted net income
On October 11, 2013, Vivend) deconsolidated Activision Blizzard pursuant to the sale of 88% of its interest

Moreover, data published with respect to fiscal year 2012 has been adiusted following the application of amended (AS 19, whose
apphcation 1s mandatory m the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with retrospective effect from January 1, 2012
{please refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013)

These adjustments are presented i Appendix 1 to this Financial Report and in Note 33 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2013

2.1 Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Adjusted Statement of

Earnings
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS ADJUSTED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
Year ended Decernber 31 Year ended December 31
2013 2012 {a) 2013 2042 {a)
Revenues 22135 22517 2135 22571 Revenues
Cost of revenues {12.988) {12 672) {12 988) {12672) Cost of revenues
Margin from operations 9,147 9,905 9147 9905 Margin from operations
Selling general and admunistrative expenses excluding Sellng general and adrministrative expenses excluding
amortizatton of intangible assets acquired through business amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations {6443 {6 469) {6443} 16 469) combinations
Restructunng charges and other operating charges and Restructuring charges and other operating charges and
ncame (21) {223) zny (273} ncome
Amartization of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations {462} {436)
Impairment losses on Intangible assets acqured through
business combinations (2431 {760)
Reserve accrual related to the Liberty Media Corporation
lizigation in the United States 1945)
Other ncome 88 19
(Other charges {57 {236)
EBIT (435) 805 243 3163 EBMA
Income from equity affiltates {33) {38) 3 {38) Income from equity affiliates
Interest 528) {54) {528) {544 Interest
Income from investments 67 7 E7 7 Incoma from mvestments
COther financial income 51 7
Other financial charges [56%) {204}
Earnings from ¢ontinuing operations before provision (1,439} 1,939 2588 Adjusted earmings from continuing operations befors
for income taxes provision for incoma taxes
Prowision for income taxes 417) {604) (282} {766} Prowisian for income 1axes
Earmings from conttnutng operations (1,856) (541)
Earruings from discontinued operations 4639 1505
Earnings 2m9 964 1,657 1822  Adjusted nat income before non-controlling intarests
Of which Of which
Earrungs attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners 1,967 m 1,540 1,705 Adpusted net incomes
Non-controlling nterests 12 785 17 117  Non-controlling interests
Earnings atinbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners per
share - basic (in euros) 148 014 116 131 Adjusted net incoms per share - hasic [in euros)
Earnings attributable to Vivend: SA sharsowners per
share - diluted (in suros) 137 014 115 131 Adjusted net income per share - diluted {in suros)

In mullions of euros, except per share amounts

a Data published with respect to fiscal year 2012 has been adjusted following the application of IFRS 5 and amended {AS 19 {please refer
to the preliminary comments above)
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2.2 Eamings review

Adjusted net income analysis

Adjusted net income was €1,540 million {or €1 16 per share?), compared to €1,705 million {or €1 31 per share} in 2012 This €165 million
decrease (-9 7%} resulted pnimarnily from

*  a €730 million decrease in EBITA to a total of €2,433 million {compared to £3,163 million in 2012} This change manly reftected the
decline in the performances of SFR (-€527 mullion), GVT (-€83 million, primarily due to the decline in value of the Brazilian Real),
Canal+ Group {-€52 million, including the increase In transition costs related to D8/D17 and “n” for -€39 million), and Universal
Music Group {-€15 million, including the ncrease n restructunng charges for -€35 milhion and integration costs related to EM!
Recorded Music for -€8 million) Moreover, this change included the costs related to the launch of Watchever in Germany
{-E66 milhion),
a €5 million increase attributable to the change in income from equity affiliates,
a €16 mullion decrease 0 interest,
a €60 mullion increase in income from investments, and
a €484 million decrease in income tax expense, manly reflecting the impact of the decline in the group’s business segments’
taxable tncome (+€199 million), prmarly due to SFR, the favorable impact of certain nen-recurning items {+€149 million), and the
increase in the current tax savings related to Vivend) SA’s tax group System {(+€50 million, primanly due to Canal+ Group

Breakdown of the main items from the Statement of Earnings

Revenues were €22,135 miilion, compared to €22,577 million in 2012 (-2 0%, or +0 2% at constant currency) For a breakdown of revenues
by husiness segment, please refer to Section 4 of this Financial Report

Costs of revenues amounted to €17,988 million, compared to €12,672 million in 2012, 4 €316 mullion increase {+2 5%)
Margin from operations decreased by £758 million, to €9,147 million, compared to €3,905 million in 20124-7 7%)

Selling, general and administrative expenses, excluding the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
amounted to €6,443 million, compared to €6,469 million in 2012, a €26 million decrease (-0 4%)

Depreciation and amortization of tangible and intangible assets are included either in the cost of revenues or in selfling, general and
administrative expenses Depreciation and amortization, excluding amertization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations,
amounted to €2,207 millon {compared to €2,079 million in 2012), an additional €128 miltion charge (+6 2%} This change manly resulted from the
increase in the depreciation of telecommunication network assets of SFR and GVT

Restructuring charges and other operating charges and income amounted to a net charge of €271 milhon, compared to a net charge
of €273 mtlhon i 2092 In 2013, restructuring charges were €208 million {compared to €273 mullion 1n 2012) and included €114 million
incurred by UMG {compared to €79 million 10 2012} and €93 million incurred by SFR {compared to €187 million in 2012) In 2013, transition
costs incurred by Canal+ Group and UMEG amounted to €50 million {of which €43 million related to “n™ and €7 million related to D8/D17,
compared to €11 million in 2012} and €27 rmllion {compared to €19 mution in 2012}, respectively Moreover, in 2012, other operating charges
included the €66 million fine ardered against SFR by the French Competition Authanity in December 2012

EBITA was €2,433 mullion, compared to €3,163 million in 2012, a €730 million decrease (-23 1%, or -20 6% at constant currency) For a
breakdown of EBITA by business segment, please refer to Section 4 of this Financial Report

Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations was €462 million, compared to €436 million in 2012, a
€26 mllion increase (+6 0%}, mainly related to the amortization of music nghts and catalogs acquired by Universal Music Group from EMI
Recorded Music on September 28, 2012

Impairment losses on intangible assets acquired through business comhinations amounted to £2,437 million, compared to
€760 million 1n 2012 In 2013, they reflected the impairment of SFR’s goodwill (€2,431 mullion) In 2012, they related to the impairment of
Canal+ France’s goodw!ll {E665 million) and certain goodwall and music catalogs of Universal Music Group (€94 million)

As of December 31, 2012, based on the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012 in relation to the Liberty Media Corporatian Iitigation in the
United States, which was confirmed by the court in New York on January 9, 2013 and entered into the record by the judge on January 17,
2013, Vivendi accrued a reserve for the full amount of the judgment (€945 million), representing €765 million in damages and £180 million in
pre-judgment interest covenng the penod from December 16, 2001 to January 17, 2013, at the rate of one-year U S Treasury notes As of
December 31, 2013, this €345 million reserve as well as the €100 mullion reserve recognized at year-end 2010 in relation to the Securities

? For the detats of adiusted net income per share please refer to Appendix 1 to this Financial Report
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Class Action in the United States were unchanged Please refer to Note 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2013

Other income amounted to €88 milton, compared to €19 milhon 1n 2012 In 2013, 1t notably included the gain related to Universal Music
Group's 2 8% interest dilution 1n Yevo (€18 million)

Other charges amounted to €57 million, compared to €236 million 1n 2012 In 2012, they mainly included the €119 million imparrment loss
on Canal+ Group's interest m N-ision in Poland and €63 milhon n acquisiben costs (EMI Recorded Music, and the strategic partnership in
Poland}

EBIT was a €435 million foss, compared to @ €805 million gain in 2042, an unfaverable change of €1,240 million, mainly reflecting the
decrease in 2013 EBITA {-€730 milhon), as well as the impairment of SFR's goodwill (E2,431 million) as of December 31, 2013, partially
offset by the reserve accrual in relation to the Liberty Media Corporation litigation in the United States (€945 medhion) and the impairment of
Canal+ France’s goodwill {€665 milhion) as of December 31, 2012

Income from equity affiliates was a £33 million charge, compared to a €38 million charge 1n 2012

Interest was an expense of €528 million, compared to €544 million n 2012, a €16 million decrease (-2 9%)

In 2013, nterest expense on borrowings amounted to €553 miflion, compared to €572 million in 2012 This change was mainly attributable
to the decrease in the average interest rate on borrowings to 338% (compared to 346% n 2012} and to the stability in the average
cutstanding borrowings of €163 billion 1n 2013 {compared to €165billion in 2012} Indeed, the impact on the average outstanding
borrowings of the sales of Activision Blizzard on October 11, 2013 (€6 billion} and of Parlophone Label Group on July 1, 2013 {€0 7 billion),
was offset by the impact of the acquisitions of EMI Recorded Music on September 28, 2012 {€1 4 billion) and of Lagardére’s interest in
Canal+ France on November 5, 2013 (€1 billion)

Interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents amounted to €25 million, compared to €28 million in 2012, a €3 mikion decrease

Income fram investments amounted to €67 mullion, compared to €7 million in 2012 It tncluded interest and dividends received from
unconsolidated companies, notably including a €54 million dividend recerved by UMG from Beats in 2013

Qther financial charges and income amounted to a net charge of €510 million, compared to a net charge of €167 million in 2012 They
mainly included premiums and costs related to the early bond redemptions made during the fourth quarter of 2013 following the sale of the
majonty of Vivendi's interest in Activision Blizzard {-€207 million) as well as the -€186 million foreign exchange loss {compared to a
€76 million foreign exchange loss in 2012 an GVT's intercompany euro loan from Vivend:. due to the decline 1n value of the Brazilan Real
Please refer to Note 5 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013

Income taxes reported to adjusted net income was a net charge of €282 million, compared to a net charge of €766 million in 2012, a
€484 million decrease This change mainly reflected the impact of the decline in the group's business segments’ taxable income
{+£199 million), pnmarily due to SFR, the favarable impact of certain non-recurring items {+£149 million), which reflected the change, during
the period, in the assessment of risks related to previous years” income taxes, and the increase in current tax savings related to Vivendi SA’s
tax group System {+€50 million), primanly related to Canal+ Group The effective tax rate reported to adjusted net income was 14 3%,
compared to 29 2% n 2012 Excluding the favorable impact of certain non-recurmng items, the effective tax rate on adjusted net income was
20 8% in 2013 {compared to 28 3% in 2012}

In addition, provision for income taxes was a net charge of €417 million, compared to a net charge of €604 million 1n 2012, a £187 million
decrease in addition to the factors explaining the decrease in income taxes reported to adjusted net income, this change reflected the
additional contribution of 3% an Vivendi SA's dividend for fiscal year 2012 (€40 million) as well as the change in deferred tax savings related
to Vivend SA's tax group System, which was a €161 mullion charge in 2013 (compared to a €48 million charge 1n 2012}

Earnings from discontinued operations (before non-controlling interests) amounted to €4,635 mullion, compared to €1,505 muliion in
2012 In 2013, 1t included the capital gamn on the divestiture of Actiwsion Blizzard on October 11, 2013 (€2,915 million) and the change in
value, since that date, of the 83 mithon Activision Blizzard shares still owned by Vivend: as of December 31, 2013 (gain of €245 million)
Moreover, earnings from discontinued operations included Activision Blizzard's earmings until the effective date of divestiture (€692 rmllion,
compared to €873 million in 2012), as well as Maroc Telecom group’s earnings (€783 mullion i 2013, compared to €632 milion in 2012) In
2013, these earnings also took nto account the discontinuation of the amortization of tangible and intangible assets of these two
businesses since July 1, 2013, in accardance with accounting standards (+£270 million impact in 2013}

Please refer to Note 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013

Earnings attnbutable to non-controlling interests amounted to €812 million, compared to €785 multion in 2012, a €27 million increase
{+34%) It pnmanly included Marec Tetecom group's non-controlling nterests {€435 million in 2013, compared to €335 million 1n 2012} and
Activision Blizzard’s non-controlling interests (€269 milfton from January 1, 2013 to October 11, 2013, compared to €337 mullion in 2012)

Adjusted net income attributable to non-controlling interests amounted to €117 milhion, unchanged compared to December 31, 2012,
and pnmarly included Lagardére’s non-controlling interest in Canal+ Group until November 5, 2013
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In 2013, earmings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners amounted to £1,967 millson {cr €1 48 per share), compared to €179 million
(or €0 14 per share} in 2012, a €1,788 million increase This change mainly reflected in 2013, the capital gain an the divestiture of Activision
Blizzard (€2,915 million), partially offset by the impairment of SFR's goodwill (-€2,431 million), and 1n 2012, the reserve accrual in relation to
the Liberty Media Corporation litigation 1n the Umited States (-€345 million} and the impairment of Canal+ France's goodwill (€665 million)

The reconciliation of earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners to adjusted net income 1s further described in Appendix 1
to this Financial Report In 2013, this reconciliation primanly ncluded the capital gain on the divestiture of Activiston Blizzard
(+£2,915 million), the change In value of the 83 million shares in Actvision Blizzard still owned by Vivend: as of December 31, 2013 (gan of
€245 milhon), Activision Blizzard's earnings until October 11, 2013 (+€423 million, after non-controlling interests} and Maroc Telecom group's
sarnings 1 2013 (+€348 million, after non-controlling interests), offset by the imparment of SFR's goodwill (-€2,431 million), the
amortization and impairment of intang:ble assets acquired through business combinations {-£320 million, after taxes), as well as other
financial charges, net (-€510 million) In 2012, this reconciliation pnimanly ncluded earmings from Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom
group (+€833 million, after non-controlling interests), the reserve accrual in relation to the Liberty Media Corporation litigation in the United
States {-€945 million), the impairment of Canal+ France’s goodwill {-€665 million), and amortization and 'mpairment losses on intangible
assets acquired through business combinations (-€388 million, after taxes}

3 Cash flow from operations analysis

Preliminary comments

« Vwvend: considers that the non-GAAP measures cash flow from operations (CFFO) cash flow from operations before capital
expenditures (CFFC before capex. net) and cash flow from operations after interest and taxes (CFAIT) are relevant indicators of the
group’s operating and financial performance These indicators should be considered m addrtion to, and not as substitutes for, other
GAAP measures as reported in Vivendi's Cash Flow Statement, contained in the group’s Consahidated Financial Statements

e As from the second quarter of 2013, in comphance with IFRS 5 Actiwision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in
Vivendi's Consohdated Statement of Cash Flows as discontinued operations In practice, cash flows from these two businesses have
been reported as follows

- thewr contribution until the effective sale, if any, to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been
grauped under the line “Cash flows from discontinued operations”,
in accordance with IFRS 5, these adpustments have been appled to all penods presented to ensure consistency of
information, and
thewr cash flow from operations (CFFO), cash flow from operations before capital expentitures net (CFFO before capex, net),
and cash flow from operations after interest and income taxes (CFAIT) have been excluded from Vivendr's CFFO, CFFO before
capex, net, and CFAIT

In 2013, cash flow from operations (CFFQ) generated by business segments was €1,453 million {compared to €1,213 million 1n 2012}, an
improvement of €240 million (+198%) In 2012, capia! expenditures notably included the acquisition by SFR of 4G mobile spectrum for
€1,065 milkon Excluding this impact, CFFQ decreased by €825 million (-36 2%)

In 2013, cash flow from operations before capital expend:tures {CFFC before capex, net) generated by business segments amounted to
€4,077 millon {compared to €5,183 mullion 1n 2012), a €1,112 million decrease This change reflected a decrease in EBITDA after changes n
net working capital {-€999 millton), primarily related to SFR's decrease It also reflected the increase in restructuring charges paid by SFR
(+€150 million) and UMG {+€25 million), partially offset by the dividends paid by Beats to UMG (€54 million)

In 2013, capital expenditures, net amounted ta €2,624 million {compared to €3,976 milhon in 2012), a €1,352 million decrease, notably
attributable to the acquisition by SFR in January 2012 of 4G mobile spectrum for €1,065 million Excluding this impact, capital expenditures,
net decreased by €287 million

Cash payments for financial activities amounted to €877 million {compared to €640 million n 2012), a €237 million increase This change
was primanly due to the premiums paid (€182 miliion) and foreign exchange losses incurred {€34 million) in relation to the early redemption
of bonds (euro-denormnated and US dollar-denominated bonds}) for an aggregate amount of €3 illion, following the sale of 88% of its
interest 10 Activision Bhzzard on October 11, 2013 In 2012, cash payments for financral actvities notably included a €78 million foreign
exchange loss attributable to the redemption in Aprii 2012 of a $700 million bond Mareover, cash payments for financial activities included
interest paid, net of €528 millien {compared to €544 million (n 2012}, a £16 mitlion decrease

Income taxes paid amounted to €197 million {compared to €353 million 1n 2012), a €156 million decrease, reflecting the decrease in the
amount of income tax installments paid by the group’s entities {-€431 million), partially offset by lower refunds recerved as part of Vivend!'s
SA’s tax group System {€201 million receved in 2013, compared to €530 million recewved in 2012) In 2013, the amount of taxes paid
included the new additional contribution of 3% on the dividend paid by Vivendi SA (€40 million)

Therefore, in 2013, cash flow from operations after interest and income taxes paid (CFAIT) amounted to €379 million {compared to
€220 million 1n 2012}, a €159 million increase
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{nmithions of euros)

Revenues

Operating expenses excluding depregiation and amortization

EBITDA

Restructunng charges pad

Content investments net

of which film and television nights net at Canal+ Group

Acquisition of film and television righits
Consumption of film and television rights

of which sports nghts aet at Canal+ Group
Acquisition of sports nights
Consumption of sperts nghts

of which payments 1o artists and repertoire owners net at UMG
Payments te artists and repertorre owngrs
Receupmant of advances and other movements

Neutralization of change n provissons included in EBITDA

Other cash operating items excluded from EBITDA

QOther changes in net working capital

Net cash provided by operating activities hefore income tax pard
Dmidends receved from equity affiliates

Dwidends receved from unconsolidated companies

Cash flow trom operations, belore capital expenditures, net {CFFO hefore capex, net

Caprtal expenditures net {capex net)
of which GUT
SFRig)
Cash flow from pperations (CFFO)
Interest paid net
Other cash items related to financial activities
of which gans/Alosses) on curreney transactions

feas and premium on borrowings issued/redesmed and early unwinding of hedging

denvative instruments
Financial sctivities cash payments

Payment recered from the French State Treasury as part of the Vivendi SA 5 French Tax Group

and Consolidated Global Prafit Tax Systems
Other taxes paid
Income tax (paidyreceived, nat

h flow from tions ait; Il n tox pend {CFAIT.

na not apphcable

{b)

tc}
()
{d)

(e}

U]

fc}
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Year ended December 31

M3 2012 {a} € Change % Change
22135 2517 -442 0%
[17 207 {17 027} -180 11%
4928 5550 £22 112%
{262} {114) 168 125
{148} (145} -3 2%
{869) {760} 109 143%
743 703 +40 +5 7%
{125) 57} £2 x22
{714) {654} -0 92%
759 672 +87 +123%
45 18 +27 x25
{599) {847} +48 +74%
561 503 42 7 0%
136} 44 +6 +136%
{90 144} +54 +375%
{80) (31} -49 x28
{308) 69 -377 na
4,020 5,185 1,165 -72 5%
3 3 -
54 1 +53 x50
4017 5,189 -5,112 -2 A%
(2 624) {3 976} +1,352 +340%
{769) {947} +178 +188%
{1 610) {2 736} +1,126 +41 2%
1,453 1,213 +240 +19 8%
(528) (544) +16 42 9%
{349) {96) 253 x36
{143) {50) a3 x28
{194) {9/ -185 x216
{877 {540) -237 37 0%
2N 536 -335% 62 5%
1398} (889} +491 455 2%
{137) 1353 +156 +42%
ars 220 +159 +12.3%
— ] me—

a Data published with respect to fiscal year 2012 has been adjusted following the application of [FRS 5 (please refer to the preliminary

comments above) and amended IAS 19

b EBITDA, a non-GAAP measure, 1s described in Section 4 of this Financial Report

¢ As presented in net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 1n the Financial Net Debt changes table {please refer

to Section 53}

d As presented in net cash provided by/{used for} investing actvities of continuing operations in the Financial Net Debt changes table

{please refer to Section 5 3}

e Relates to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets as presented in

the investing activities of continuing operattons in the Financial Net Debt changes table (please refer to Section 5 3)

f As presented in net cash provided by/{used for} financing activities of continuing operations in the Financial Net Debt changes table

{please refer to Section 5 3}

g In2012, SFR's capital expenditures notably included the acquisition of 4G spectrum for €1,065 million in January 2012
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4 Business segment performance analysis

Preliminary comments:

. Vivend: Management evaluates the performance of Vivendi’s busingss segments and allocates the necessary resources to them based
on certain operating performance mdicators, notably the non-GAAP measures EBITA {Adusted Earnings Before Interest and Income
Taxes) and EBITDA (Earnings Before Interest, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization)

the difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
combnations, the impairment of goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business combinations, and EBIT's “other
charges™ and “other income” as defined in Note 12 3 to the Consolidated Financral Statements for the year ended December
31, 2013, and

as defined by Vivendi, EBITDA 15 calculated as EBITA as presented in the Adjusted Statement of Earnings before depreciation
and amartization of tangible and intangible assets, restructunng charges, gams/losses] on the sale of tangible and intangible
assets, and other non-recurring ttems (as presented in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings by operating segment - Please
refer to Note 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013)

Moreover, 1t should be noted that other companies may define and calculate EBITA and EBITDA differently from Vivendl, thereby
affecting comparability

e As from the second quarter of 2013, in compliance with IFRS 5, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in
Vivend:'s Consolidated Statement of Earnings as discontinued operations In practice, income and charges from these two businesses

have be

en reported as follows

thewr contribution until the effective sale, if any. to each line of Vivend's Consolidated Statement of Earnings (before non-
controfling interests) has been grouped under the hine “Earnings from discontinued operations”,

in accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been applied to all periods presented fo ensure consistency of information,
and

their share of net income has been excluded from Vivendi's adjusted net income

o [ata presented below also takes into account the consolidation of the following entities as from the indicated dates

at Canal+ Group D8 and D17 (September 27, 2012} and "n” {November 30, 2012}, and
at Universal Music Group EMI Recorded Music (September 28, 2012)

»  Moreaver, as of January 1, 2013, Vivendi apphed, with retraspective effect from January 1. 2012, amended IAS 19, whose application
is mandatory in the European Unron beginning on or after January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1 to the Consohdated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013) As a result, the 2012 financial Statements, notably FBITA, were adjusted in
accordance with the new standard

Please refer to Appendix 1 of tius Financial Beport for a presentation of the adjustments made to praviously published data
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flow from operations by business

Year ended December 31,

% Change at
{n mdhons of euros) 2013 2012 % Change constant rate
Revenues
Canal+ Group 53N 5013 +59% +#62%
Urniversal Music Group 4,886 4544 +75% +128%
GVT 1,709 1716 -04% +131%
QOther 72 66 +91% +137%
Eimination of intersegment transactions (7 (26) na na
Media & Content 11,961 11,313 +57% +101%
SFR 10,199 11,288 9 6% -96%
Elimination of intersegment transactions related to SFR (25) (24) na na
Total Vivend: 22,135 22577 -2.0% +0.2%
EBITA
Canal+ Group 611 663 -7 8% -79%
Unuversal Music Group 511 526 -29% +14%
GVvT 405 488 -17 0% -57%
Other {80) {14) Xx57 x56
Holding & Corporate 87} {100) +130% +127%
Media & Content 1,360 1563 -130% -80%
SFR 1,073 1,600 -32 9% -32 9%
Total Vivendi 2433 3,163 -23 1% -20 6%
Year ended December 31,
{in millions of euros) 2013 2012 % Change
Cash flow from aperations, before capital expanditures, net (CFFQ before capax, net)
Canal+ Group 689 7086 -24%
Universal Music Group 611 528 +157%
GvT 678 621 +92%
Other (72} (2) x360
Holding & Corporate {89) {93) +4 3%
Media & Content 1817 1,760 +32%
SFR 2,260 3,429 -341%
Total Vivend: 4,077 5189 -21 4%
Cash flow from operations {CFFO)
Canal+ Group 478 476 +0 4%
Universal Music Group 585 472 +239%
GvT {on {326) +721%
Other {80} (8) x100
Holding & Corporate {83} (94) +53%
Media & Content 803 520 +54 4%
SFR 650 693 -62%
Total Vivend: 1.453 1.213 +198%

na notapplicable
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421 Canal+ Group

Year ended December 31

% Change at
(in mithons of euros except for margins} 2013 2012 % Change constant rate
Pay-TV in Mainland france 3044 3593 -14% -1 4%
International Pay-TV (a) 1122 890 +26 1% +27 1%
Free-to-air TV in France (b} 172 64 x27 x27
Studiocanat 473 466 +15% +2'9%
Tota! Revenues 5311 5013 +59% +6.2%
EBITDA 905 940 3% -36%
EBITA 61 663 -18% -79%
Transition costs {50) {11
EBITA excluding transition costs 661 674 -19% -2 0%
Cash flow from operations {CFFQ) 478 476 +04%
Cash flow from operatians (CFFO) excluding transition costs 528 499 +58%
Subscrptions (in thousands)
Pay-TV i Manland France (c) 9534 9719 -185
International Pay-TV 5137 4735 +402
Total Canal+ Group 14,671 14,454 +217
Individual subscribers {in thousands)
Pay-TV in Mainland France 6,091 6117 -25
Internatianal Pay TV 4352 4077 +275
Total Canal+ Group 10,443 10,194 +249
Churn per individual subscriber with commitment {Mainland France} 149% 138% +11pt
Net ARPU 1n euros per individual subscriber with commitment {Mainland France} 442 32 +23%

a Relates to pay-TV operations in French overseas territories, Africa, Vietham, and Poland (whose "n” platform has been consolidated

since November 30, 2012)

b Includes the free-to-air channels D8 and D17, consolidated since September 27, 2012, as well as >Télé and advertising activities

outside of the group’s scope

¢ Includes individual and collective subscriptions with commitment and without commitment (Canal, CanalSat and Canal Play}
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Revenues and EBITA

Canal+ Group's revenues werz €5,311 million, a 59% increase (-0 5% at constant permeter and currencyl year-on-year This growth was
primarily driven by the development of pay-TV operations outside of France, notably in Africa and Poland, and by the acquisition and
successful re-launch of the free-to-air channels 08 and D17

At the end of December 2013, Canal+ Group reached 10 4 million individual subscribers (+249.000 year-en-year) for a total of 14 7 million
subscriptions This growth was due to strong performance in overseas countries, where total individua! subscribers reached 4 4 million
{+275,000 compared to year-end 2012} In manland France, total individual subseribers remamed almost stable at 6 1 million despite a
challenging economic and competitive environment Net average revenue per individual subsenber in mamland France continued to grow,
reaching €44 2, compared to €43 2 1n 2012

Free-to-air TV operations strongly contributed to revenue growth, thanks to the integration of D8 and D17 In December 2013, these channels
had aggregated an audience share of 4 7%, including 3 4% for D8, which only a year after its re-launch, regularly ranks as the fifth national
channel in France

Studiocanal's revenues increased due to the development of TV sates and international nghts (in particular *"Non-Stop® by Jaume Collet-Serra
and "Hunger Games 2° in Germany) In 2013, Studiocanal supported major productions including the Coen brothers’ film “Inside Llewyn
Davis”, winner of the Grand Prix du Jury at Cannes in 2013, and the series "Crossing Lings”, which 1s notably broadcast in the United States,
Canada, France, and Italy In arder to strengthen its position in TV senes production, Studiocanal acquired 60% of the British company Red in
2013

Excluding transition costs related to D8, D17 and the new operations in Poland, Canal+ Group’s EBITA was €661 million, down 1 9%
compared to 2012 This change was due to lower advertising revenues on pay-TV channels and higher programming costs due to an
increase In exclusive content Including costs related to the integration of D8, D17 and the new operations in Poland, EBITA was
€611 million D8 and D17 achieved breakeven in the fourth quarter of 2013

On January 14, 2014, the French rugby league (LNR} awarded Canal+ Group exclusive broadcasting nights for the TOP 14 French rugby
championship for five new seasons {2014/2015 to 2018/2019) These nights cover all TOP 14 games, across all platforms and in a!l terrntories
They complete the portfolio of major sports nghts already owned by Canal+ Group, in part:cutar the best French and European football {two
live games on every Ligue 1, match day and the top pick on every Champions League day, and the full English Premier League) and the Formula
1 world championship

Moreover, the quality of Onginal Creations, in the heart of Canal+ programming, has been recognized agatn In 2013, the series “les
Revenants” was given the best drama series award at the International Emmy Awards and “Maison Close” receved the award for best
French senes at the Television Festival of Monte-Carlo

Cash flow from operations (CFFQ)

Canal+ Group's cash flow from operations amounted to €478 million, compared to €476 million in 2012 The unfavorable change in EBITDA
after changes in net working capital and the transition costs paid were offset by the decrease in content investments, net (notably at
Studiocanal) and capital expenditures, nat
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Year ended December 31,

% Change at

{in mithons of euras except for margins} m3 2012 % Change constant rate

Physical sales 1,665 1,756 52% 1 1%

Digital sales 1705 1,365 +24 9% +30 1%

License and other 622 561 +10 9% +15 5%
Recorded music 3,992 3682 {a) +8 4% +14 1%
Music publishing 655 661 -09% +3 0%
Merchandising and other 273 235 +16 2% +20 3%
Elimination of intersegment transactions {34} (33) na na
Total Revenues 4,886 4544 +15% +12 8%
EBITDA 4 675 +58% +10 9%
EBITA 511 526 {a) -2 9% +14%
Restructuring and integration costs (141} {98) -43 9%
EBITA excluding restructuring and integration costs 652 624 +4 5% +9 5%
Cash flow from operations {CFFO) 585 472 +23 9%
Recorded music revenues by geographical area
Europe 40% 40%
North America 40% 3%
hsia 12% 15%
Rest of the world 8% 8%

100% 100%
Recorded music' sales of physical and digital albums and DVDs, in mithons of units

Artist - Title 2013 Artist - Title 2012
Eminem - The Marshall Mathers LP 2 38 Taylor Swift - Red 51
Katy Perry - Prism 29 Justin Bieber - Believe 29
Imagine Dragons - Night Visions 24 Lana Del Rey - Born To Die 27
Lady GaGa - Artpop 23  Hod Stewart - Merry Christmas, Baby 26
Drake - Nothing Was The Same 21 Rihanna - Unapologetic 23
Luke Bryan - Crash My Party 18 Maroon 5 - Overexposed 22
Stromae - Racine Carrée 18 Emel Sande - Our Version of Events 20
Robbie Williams - Swing Both Ways 16 Madonna - MDNA 17
Justin Bieber - Believe 16  Gotye - Making Mirrors 17
Lorde - Pure Heroine 15  Lonel Richie - Tuskegee 15
Total 218 Total 247

na not applicable

a Inchudes revenues and EBITA of EMI Recorded Music {retained businesses) consolidated since September 28, 2012
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Revenues and EBITA

Universal Music Group {UMG} revenues were £4,886 million, up 12 8% at constant currency compared to 2012 (+7 5% at actual currency) At
constant currency, excluding EMI recorded music, revenues were in ine with the prior year, as the decline in physical sales was offset by
the growth i digital and other revenues, with subscription and streaming revenue increasing by approximately 75% over the prior year For
the first time in 2013, yearly digital sales exceeded physical sales

Recorded music best sellers for 2013 included Eminem, Katy Perry, Imagine Dragons, Lady Gaga, Drake, Rabin Thicke as well as French-
language artist, Stromae The company’s commercial and creative success set many records over the course of the year, including UMG
becoming the first company tc achieve all ten of the Top 10 songs en the U S charts and nine of the Top 10 albums inthe U S In addition,
UMG signed new agreements with leading labels including Disney Music Group, Glassnote Entertainment and Roc Nation, as well legendary
artists including Nesl Dramond, Queen, The Rolling Stones and Frank Sinatra

UMG's EBITA of €511 million was up 1 4% at constant currency (-2 9% at actual currency) compared to 2012 Excluding restructuring and
(ntegration costs, and at constant currency, EBITA was up 9 5% compared to 2012, due to revenue growth and cost management efforts

UMG achieved this performance despite a very difficult industry emvironment in Japan, the warld's second largest music market

The company's mtegration of EM| temains on track to deliver the previously disclosed synergies of mare than £100 mullion by the end of
2014

Cash flow from operations (CFFQ)

UMG's cash flow from operations amounted to €585 million {compared to €472 mdllion 1 2012), a €113 million increase compared to 2012
This included UMG's operating performances (EBITDA after changes in net working capital increased by €117 mitlion), the exceptional
dividends received by UMG from Beats (€54 million) and property disposals (€27 million)
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423 GVT
Year ended December 31,
% Change at
{in millions of euros. except for margins) 2013 2012 {a) % Change constant rate
Telecoms 1,387 1,434 36% +9 4%
Pay-TV 174 83 x21 x24
Retail and SME 1,556 1517 +2 6% +16 4%
Corporate and wholesale 153 199 -23 1% -12 3%
Total Revenues 1,709 1,716 -0 4% +131%
EBITDA 707 740 -4 5% +87%
EBITDA margin rate (%) 414% 431% -17pt
EBITA 405 488 -17 0% 57%
Capital expenditures, net {capex net) 769 947 -18 8%
Gash flow from operations {CFFQ) (91} {326) +121%
Year ended December 31,
2013 2012 (a} % Change
Revenues {IFRS, in millions of BRL)
Retall and SME 4427 3,804 +16 4%
Corporate and wholesale 435 436 -12 3%
Total 4862 4,300 +H31%
Number of covered cities 150 139 +11
Retail and SME
Revenue Generating Umts [in thousands)
Voice 3934 3489 +12 8%
Broadband Internet 2,621 2,239 +17 1%
Proportion of offers = 10 Mbps 86% 80% +5 pts
Total Telecorns 6,555 5,728 +14 4%
Pay-TV 643 406 +58 4%
Total 7198 6.134 +173%
Net New Additions {in thousands)
Voice 445 660 -326%
Broadband Internet 382 515 -25 8%
Total Telecoms 827 1,175 -296%
Pay-TV 237 374 -36 6%
Total 1,064 1549 NI
ARPU {BRL/month)
Voice 586 635 -17%
Broadband Internet 492 515 -4 5%
Pay-TV 787 772 +19%

a In 2013, GVT changed the presentation of revenues due to a new segmentation, some Corporate chents were re-classified as SME
during the third quarter of 2013 2012 amounts were amended to ensure censistency of information presented
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Revenues and EBITA

GVT's revenues increased by 13 1% at constant currency (-0 4% at actual currency) compared to 2012, reaching €1,709 million This
performance was achieved in a highly competitive environment and a strong slowdown in the Brazilian economy At year-end 2013, GVT
services covered 150 cities, compared to 139 cities one year earlier

GVT's pay-TV service performed well and generated revenues of €174 million, around 10% of GVT's revenues The number of subscribers
reached about 643,000 at the end of 2013 {+58 4% yeai-on-year), representing a 24 6% penetration rate among GVT's bioadband customer
base In addition to hybrid technology {satellite and IPTV}, GVT Jaunched an offer providing pay-TV service via satellite only

The quality of the GVT offers continued to receive several accolades The company was ranked by Info Exame magazine as the operator
dehvering the best broadband service in Brazil for the fifth consecutive year It also offers the highest average broadband speed to s
customers {13 4 Mbps, compared to the Brazilian average of 2 7 Mbps), according the Akamai Institute

GVT's EBITDA reached €707 million, an 8 7% increase at constant currency (-4 5% at actual currency) compared to 2012 EBITDA margin
reached 81 4%, which s the highest margin in the Brazilian telecom operators market

GVT's EBITA was €405 million, a 5 7% decrease at constant currency (-17 0% at actual currency) compared to 2012 This change was due to
increased depreciation expenses attnibuted to the development of pay-TV and continued high capital expenditure to suppart its growth

In 2013, EBITDA-Capex was close to breakeven for the full year, and became positive in the second half of the year thanks to a strong
performance in the telecom activities
Cash flow from aperations (CFFO)

GVT's cash flow from operations amounted to -€91 millien (compared to -€326 mullion in 2012}, a €235 milion increase This change
reflected the growth m EBITDA after changes in net working capital (+652 million) as well as a decrease n capital expenditures
{€769 million, compared to €947 million 1n 2012) Cash flow from operations before capital expenditures {CFFQ before capex, net) increased
by 9 2% in 2013, to €678 million
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424 SR
{in millions of euros, except for margins) Year ended December 31,
2013 2012 % Change
Retail 6,873 7974 -138%
B2B 1,789 181 -4 4%
Whalesale and other {a) 1537 1443 +8 5%
Total Revenues 10,199 11,288 -9 6%
EBITDA 2,766 3299 -16 2%
EBITA 1,073 1,609 -32.9%
Restrycturing costs (93) {187) +50 3%
EBITA excluding restructuring costs 1,166 1,787 -34 8%
Capital exgenditures, net {capex net} (b) 1610 2,736 -1.2%
of which acquisttions of mobile spectrum - 1,065 -100 0%
capital expenditurgs, net excluding acquisitions of mobile spectrum 1610 1,671 -37%
Cash flow from operations {CFF0) 650 693 62%
of wihich acquisitions of mobile spectrum - {1065) +100 0%
cash flow from operations excluding acquisitions of mobile spectrum 650 1,758 43 0%
SFR Grou
Number of Mobile customers {in thousands) {(c} 21,354 20,6490 +32%
Acquisition cost (in millons of euros) 430 497 -67
Retention cost {in millions of euros) 541 634 -93
Number of Internet customers (In thousands) 5257 5,075 +36%
Retail market (d
Number of Mobile customers {in thousands} {c) 14,555 15,057 -33%
Number of Mobile postpaid customers {in thousands} (c} 11381 11,194 +17%
Smartphone penetration (in % of customers) 64% 51% +13 pts
12-month rofhing Mobile ARPU {in euros/month) 241 283 -150%
Number of Broadband Intemet customers (in thousands} {d) 5209 5,039 +3 4%
12-month rolling Broadband Internet ARPU (in euros/month) 325 333 -2 6%

a Relates to wholesale operators, SRR {a SFR subsidiary in Beunion Island) as well as the ehmination of inter-company flows

b Relates to net cash cutflows in relation to acqwsitions and disposals of tangible and intangible assets

¢ The customer base as of December 31, 2013 includes the Retail billing system migration in the fourth quarter of 2013 of 92,000 inactive
customers pursuant to a technical purge {no impact on revenues} The customer base as of December 31, 2017 relates to published data

{befare the techrical purge)

¢ Relates to the Metropolitan market, excluding SRR
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Revenues and EBITA

SFR's revenues were €10,199 miflion, a 96% decrease compared to 2012, due to the impact of price cuts i response to the competitive
environment and to tanff cuts imposed by the requlators® Excluding the impact of the tanff cuts imposed by the regulators, revenues
decreased by 7 2%

In 2013, SFR's total mobile customer base increased by 756,000 net additions since December 31, 2012 and reached 21 354 miliion* At the
end of December 2013, the broadband Internet residential customer base increased by 182,000 net additions to 5 257 mullion

Retail® revenues amounted to €6,873 millon, down 13 8% compared to 2012

Within the Mobile Retail market’, SFR's postpaid customer base increased by 279,000* net additions 1n 2013 At the end of December, SFR's
postpaid mobile customer base reached 11 381 mullion, a 2 5%* increase compared to end December 2012 In the Retall Postpaid customer
market, in the fourth quarter, SFR recorded 1ts best net sales performance since the fourth quarter of 2011, and its best December in three
years SFR's total (postpaid and prepaid) Mobile Retait customer base reached 14 555 million® Mabile Internet usage continued to improve,
with 64% of SFR Retail customers equipped with a smartphone (51% at end December 2012)

One year after having launched 4G, SFR covers more than 40% of the population representing 1,200 cities, with more than 1 miflion
customers at year-end SFR also covers over 70% of the population n Dual Carrier

Within the Fixed Retail market®, the broadband Internet residential customer base in mainland France reached 5 209 million at the end of
December 2013, with 170,000 net adcitions since December 31, 2012, and an acceleration of fiber recruitments The “Multi-Pack de SFR”
offer attracted 2 355 million subscnbers at the end of December 2013, representing 45% of the broadband Internet customer base

In a challenging macroeconomic environment, B2B® revenues amounted to €1,789 million, down 4 4%

On February 13, 2014, Vivend: announced 1t had entered into exclusive negotiations with Belgacom Group to acquire 100% of the shares of
Telindus France Group Tehindus Group 1 a leader on the French market of telecommunication integration and operations of ICT ({Information
and Commurication Technologes) infrastructures, and the fust Cisco distnbutor i France Telindus France would further strengthen Vivendy's
Telecoms division, sitting alongside the SFR group SFR will thus substantially expand its presence on the related market of
telecommunicatron integration and will provide new services to 1ts corporate customers in addition to those offered by the SFR Business
Team

Wholesale and other’ revenues amounted to €1,537 million, a 6 5% increase year-on-year, mainly due to growth on Wholesale actvity
SFR's EBITDA amounted to €2,766 million, a 16 2% decrease compared to 2012 (excluding non-recurnng rtems®, EBITDA decreased by 16 5%)

SFR continues to implement its transformation plan Since the end of 2011, operating expenditures, both fixed and vanable, have decreased
by more than €1 billion {excluding non-recurmng 1tems®)

Cash flow from operations (CFFO)

SFR’s cash flow from operations amounted to €650 million, a 6 2% decrease compared to 2012 In 2012, 1t notably included the impact of
the acquisition of mobile spectrum for €1,065 mullion Excluding this impact, cash flow from operations amounted to €1,108 million {-63 0%),
primarily due to the decrease in EBITDA after changes in net working capital {-€992 milhon) and the increase in restructuring chaiges pa:d
{-€150 million)

# Tanff cuts imposed by regulatory decision

1} 33% decrease m mobile voice termination regulated price on July 1 2012 and a further 20% decrease on January 1 2013

1} 33% decrease m SMS termmation regulated price on July 1, 2012,

i) Roamung tarif cuts on July 1, 2002 and on July 1, 2013 and

1) 50% decrease n fixed voice termmation requlated price on July 1 2012 and a further 47% decrease on January 1, 2013

* Followang a Retail biifing system migration 92,000 nactive customars were excluded from the final customer base (no mpact on revenues)
* Metropolitan market all brands combmed

& Metropolitan market, SFR Business Team brand

? Mainly Wholesale ravenues SRR (SFR s subsichary in La Réunion) revenugs, and elimunation of intersegment aperalions

8 +£51 miflion m the third quarter of 2012 and -€66 mitlhan n the fourth quarter of 2012
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425 Other operations of the group

Year ended December 31,

(in millions of euros} 2013 2012

Other operations 72 66

Elmination of intersegment transactions {42) {50)

Total Revenues 30 16

EBITA {80) (14)

Cash flow from operations (CFFQ) {80) (8)
Revenues and EBITA

Revenues from other operations of the group amounted to €72 mithan, a €6 million increase It included revenues from Digitrck (€13 million
compared to €11 million in 2012), See Tickets {€31 million compared to £33 million 1n 2012), Watchever (€12 million, compared to €8 million
in 2012}, and Wengo (€16 rullion, compared to £13 million in 2012}

EBITA from other operations of the group amounted to -€80 million, compared to -€14 million in 2012

Cash flow from operations {CFF0)

Cash flow from operations from other operations of the group amounted to -€80 million, compared to -€8 mullion 1n 2012 This change was
mainly related to the change in EBITA

426 Holding & Corporate

Year ended December 31,
{rn millions of euros} 2013 2012
EBITA (87) {100)
Cash flow from gperations (CFFO) (89) {94)

EBITA

Holding & Corporate’s EBITA was -€87 million (compared to -€100 millon in 2012), a €13 million increase, primarnly related to the decrease
in charges related to litigation 1n 2013

Cash flow from operations {CFFO)

Hotding & Corporate’s cash flow from operations amounted to -EB9 million, compared to -€34 million in 2012 The change was mainly
attributable to the change in EBITA
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5 Treasury and capital resources

Preliminary comments.

. Vivend' considers Financial Net Debt, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant indicator in measuning Vivendr's indebtedness Financral Net
Debt 1s calculated as the sum of long-term and short-ferm borrowings and other long-term and short-term financial habilities as reported
on the Consoldated Statement of Financial Position, less cash and cash equivalents as reported on the Consolidated Statement of
Financral Position as well as dervative financial wnstruments in assets, cash deposits backing borrowings, and certain cash management
financial assets {included in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position under “financial assets™) Financial Net Debt should be
considered n addition to, and not as a substitute for, other GAAP measures reported on the Consoiidated Statement of Financial Position,
as well as other measures of indebtedness reported in accordance with GAAP Vivendi Management uses Financial Net Debt for reporting
and planning purposes, as well as to comply with certain debt covenants of Vivend)

e Inaddition, cash and cash equivalents are not fully avaiiable for debt repayments since they are used for several purposes, mncluding but
not imited o, acqursitrons of businesses, capital expenditures, dividends, contractual obligations and working capital

.1 Summary of Vivendi’s exposure to credit and liquidity risks

As part of the strategic review undertaken by the Supervisory Board and Management Board, Vivend announced 1n July 2013 1ts plans to
sell 1ts interests in Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom, and in November 2013, the group’s planned demerger to form two separate
companies {1} @ media group and (i} SFR, subject to information and consultation procedures with the relevant French employee
representative bodies and approval by the relevant regulatory authorities, as well as, if appropriate, its approval by the General
Shareholders’ Meeting In the meantime, Vivend: has pursued its financing policy in relation to expinng bank credit facilities or bonds Thus,
Vivend early refinanced a €1 5 billion bank credit facility, maturing in May 2014 with a new bank credit facility for the same amount,
maturing in March 2018, and 1ssued a new €750 million bond, with a coupon of 2 375%, which early refinances the €894 million residual
amount bond 1ssued in January 2009 with a coupon of 7 75%, maturing in January 2014

On QOctober 11, 2013, Vivend: completed the sale of 88% of Jis interest in Activision Blizzard for $8 2 billion (€6 billion) 1n cash Vivendi used cash
on hand to early redeem maost of 1ts US dollar-denominated bonds, as we!l as a portion of its euro-denominated honds, having the shortest
maturity, for an aggregate amount of €3 billion {including $2 1 billion and €1 5 billon), either through a tender offer in October 2013 and a
make-whole redemption in November 2013 In addition, Vivend: used the available balance to redeem drawn bank credit facilities These
transactions were as follows

e 77% redemption of three US dollar-denaminated bonds, following a tender offer
- $458 milon redeemed on the $700 mill:on bond, maturing in Apnl 2018,
- $541 mithon redeemed on the $800 million bond, maturing in April 2022, and
- $555 million redeemed on the $650 million bond, maturing in January 2018

«  early full redemption of one US dollar-denominated bond and two euro-denominated bonds
- $550 milhon, maturing in Apnl 2015,
- €500 milhion, maturing (n November 2015, and
- €1,000 million, maturing n July 2015

In October 2013, Vivend: also redeemed, upon its contractual maturity date, a €700 million bond, refinanced in December 2012, by a bond for
the same amount, maturing in January 2020, and cancelled SFR's £1 2 billion bank credit facility

Moreaver, on November 5, 2013, Vivendi acquired the 20% non-contralling interest in Canal+ France held by Lagardére for €1,020 mutlion, in
cash

Finally, on November 26, 2013, the Supervisory Board approved the group’s planned demerger to form two separate entities (I} a media group
and {n} SFR Subject to information and consultation procedures with the relevant French employee representative badies and approval by
the relevant regulatory authorities, 1t could be submitted, If appropniate, to the General Shareholders’ Meeting for approval on June 24,
2014 The potential impacts of this demerger on the group’s financing structure will become effective if and when a final decision to
implement such a transaction s taken
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As of February 19, 2014, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivendi's Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2013

*»  Vivend SA had available confirmed credit facilities in the aggregate amount of €7,140 million, of which £600 million was drawn
Given the amount of commercial paper issued at that date, and hacked to bank credit facilities for £4,143 million, these facitities
were avallable for an aggregate amount of €2,397 mullion, and

bonds amounted to €6 9 billion, following the redemption in January 2014 upon its contractual matunty, of the bond issued in
January 2009, with a 7 75% coupaon, for €894 million

Moreover, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for €975 million was 1ssued in connection with Vivend's appeal against the Liberty Media
judgment This off-balance sheet financial commitment has no impact on Vivendi's net debt

Contractual agreements in relation to credit facilities and letters of credit granted to Vivendi SA (notably the letter of credit issued in
connection with the appeal against the Liberty Media judgment) do not include provisions that tie the conditions of the loan to its financial
strength ratings from rating agencies They contain customary provisions related to events of default and, at the end of each half-year,
Vivend SA is notably required to comply with a financial covenant (please refer to Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the
year ended December 31, 2013} The credit facilities granted to group companies other than Vivendi SA are intended to finance either the
general needs of the borrowing subsidiary or a specific project

After taking into account the proceeds from the sale of the 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group (€4 2 billion) expected during the first
months of 2114, Vivendi’s adjusted Financial Net Debt would be approximately €6 9 billion [compared to €11 1 billion as of December 31,
2013 and €13 4 billion as of December 31, 2012)

Cash and cash Borrewings and other  Impact on Financial Net
equivalents financial items {a) Debt
{in mulhons of euros}
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2012 (3.894) 172313 13419
Qutflows/{intlows) related to continuing operateons
Oparating actities 3823) - (3823}
Investing actwities {785) 76 (685}
Financing activities 7702 (4 598) 3104
Foreign currency translation adjustments of continuing operations 48 [167) (119)
Outflows/{inflows) related to continuing operations 3,162 {4,689) {1,527)
OutflowsAtnflows} related to discontinued operations {705) 224 (481}
Reclassification of Financeal Net Debt from discontinued operations as of December 31 2013 396 {710 (314)
Change related to discontinued operations {309) {486} {795)
Financial Net Debt as of December 31,2013 {1,041) 12,138 11,007
Expected proceeds from the sale of the 53% interest in Maroc Telecom grgup (b {4 187)
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2013 adjusted for the sale of Maroc Telecom Group 6,910
Expected proceeds from the sale of the remaining awnership interest in Activision Blizzard (c) {1 078)
Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2013 adjusted for transactions in progress 5,832

a “Other financial items” include commitments to purchase non-controlling interests, derivative financial instruments (assets and
liabilities), and cash deposits backed to borrowings

b Assuming the hypothesis that the sale of the 53% interest in Maroc Telecom group 1s completed during the first months of 2014
according to the financial terms known to date

¢ Following the sale of B8% of its interest in Activision Blizzard on October 11, 2013, Vivend retained 83 million Actiwision Blizzard
shares This remaining ownership interest I1s subject to a staggered 15-month lock-up period, which 15 described in Note 7 to the
Consohdated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 Praceeds from the sale of these remaining shares are
estimated at an aggregate amount of $1,480 million (€1,078 mulhon), on the basis of $17 83 per share, Activision Blizzard's share price
on December 31, 2013

Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2013

As from June 30, 2013, in compliance with IFRS 5, Activision Blizzard and Maroe Telecom group have been reported untit their effective sale,
in Vivend's Consolidated Statement of Financial Position as discentinued businesses

In practice, as of December 31, 2013, Maroc Telecom group's assets and habilities have been grouped under the specific lines “assets of
discontinued businesses” and “liabilities asseciated with assets of discontinued businesses” As of December 31, 2013, this accounting
reclassification resulted in a €314 million decrease in Vivend's Financial Net Debt, which related to Maroc Telecom group’s Financial Net
Debt as of that date
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As of December 31, 2013

Vivendi's Financial Net Debt, in IFRS, amounted to €11,097 million Borrowings and other financ:al liabilities amounted to
£12.138 million {compared to €17,313 million as of December 31, 2012), a €5,175 million decrease This change was due to the
impact of the sale of Activision Blizzard {£6,044 million}, net of divested cash (€3,349 million), and of Parlophone (€693 mullion),
offset by the acquisition of Lagardére’s non-controlling interest in Canal+ France {€1,020 millien),

the group’s bond debt amounted to €7,827 million {compared to €10,888 million as of December 31, 2012} This €3,067 mullion
decrease was related 1o the early rediemption of bonds {$2 1 bdlion and €1 5 ihon) i the fourth quarter of 2013 following the sale
of Activision Blizzard The bond debt represented 64 1% of the borrowings 1n the group’s Statement of Financial Position {compared
to 61 5% as of December 31, 2012),

the total amount of the group’s confirmed credit factitres amounted to €7.629 millien (compared to €9,039 million as of
December 31, 2012) The group’s aggregate amount of credit facilities neither drawn nor backed by cemmercial paper amounted to
€3,648 million {compared to £€3,361 million as of December 31, 2012),

Vivendi SA’s total confirmed credit facilities amounted to €7,140 million {unchanged compared to December 31, 2012} and included
€2,600 million 1n available swinglines All these credit facilitres have a maturity greater than one year These cred:t facilities were
drawn for €1,655 million as of December 31, 2013 Considenng the €1,906 million commercial paper 1ssued as of that date and
backed to bank credit facilities, these facilities were avallable up to a maximum amount of €3,579 million, and

the “economic” average term of the group’s debt was 4 2 years as of December 31, 2013 (compared to 4 4 years as of
December 31, 2012}

52 Financial Net Debt changes

As of December 31, 2013, Vivend:'s Financial Net Debt amounted to €11,097 million {compared to €13,419 million as of December 31, 2012),
a €2,322 million decrease

This change notably reflected

proceeds received on October 11, 2013 with respect to the sale of Vivend!'s interest in Activision Blizzard (€6,044 million), net of
divested cash (€3,349 million),

the cash provided by aperating activities of continuing operations® (€3,823 million),
the proceeds from the sale by UMG of Parlophone and other labels (€699 mullion),

the capital increase subscribed for by employees in connection with Vivend: SA's employee stock purchase plan in July 2013
(€149 million}, and

the accounting reclassification of Maroc Telecom group’s Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2013{€314 miflion),

partially offset by

cash payments related to capital expenditures of conttnuing operations® (€2,624 mithion, of which €1,610 million for SFR and
€769 millran for GVT),

cash payments related to dividends paid to Vivendi SA shareawners {€1,325 million),
the acquisition of Lagardére’s non-controlling nterest in Canal+ France (€1,020 milhon), and

cash payments related to financial actwities (€877 mullion, of which £528 mullion of interest paid and £182 million of premium paid
as part of the early redemption ¢f bonds, denominated in US dollars and in euros)

¥ Continung operatians refate to Canal+ Group, Universal Music Group GVT SFR, other operations of the group as well as Holding & Corporate
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Refer to Notes to the
Consoldated
Financiat Statements

December 31 2013

December 31,2012

Tuesday February 25, 2014

{tn millians of evros)

Borrowangs and other financial habilities 23
of wiich long-term fb)
short-term {b)

Derwative financial instruments in assets {c} 24

Cash deposits backing borrowings (c)
Cash management financial assets {c) {d)

Cash and cash equivatents (b} 18
ofwhich Activision Blizzard
Financial Net Debt

na not applicable

{al

12,266 17,757
8,737 12 667
3529 5090
(126) {137y
(2) ]

na {301}
12138 17,313
(1041} (3834}
na {2.965)
11,087 13419

a In comphance with IFRS 5, Vivend's Financial Net Debt as of December 31, 2013 no longer includes the Financial Net Debt of Maroc

Telecom group, recognized &s a discontinued operatian

b  Aspresented in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Pasition

¢ Included in the Financial Assets items of the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

d As of December 31, 2012, included Activision Blizzard's US treasuries and government agency securities, with @ matunity exceeding

three months

53 Analysis of Financial Net Debt changes

{in milhons of euros)

EBIT

Adjustments

Content investments net

Gross cash provided by operating activities before income tax pad
Cther changes In net working capital

Neat cash provided by operating activities before income tax paid
tncome tax paid net

Npot cash provided by operating actwities of contmuing operations
Net cash provided by operating actnitves of discontinued operations
QOperating sctivities

Financial investmants
Purchases of consohdated companies after acquired cash
Investments n equity affilsates
Increase In financial assets
Total inancisl investments
Financial divestments
Proceeds from sales of consohdated companies after divested cash
of which proceeds from the sale of the 88% ownerstip wterest in Actwision Bhzzard
divested cash of Activision Blizzard

Disposal of equity afhliates
Decrease in financial assets
of which proceseds from the sales of Parlophone and other labels by UMG

Total nancial divestments
Finencial investment actitias

Drvidends received from equity affiliates

Drvidends received from unconsalidated companies
Not investing activities excluding capital expenditures and proceeds
trom sales of property, plant, equipment and imangible sssets

Canutal expenditures

Praceeds from sales of property plant equipment and intangible assets
Capital expsndituras net
Nat cash provided by/{used for} invasting activities of continuing operations
Net cash provided by/{used for} investing activities of discontinued aperations
Invashng actvitiee

Year ended December 31 2013

Refer to
saction Impact on cash and Impact on borrowings Impact on Financial
cash equrvalents and other financial tems Net Debt
2z 435 - 435
(4911) 4911)
148 148
14.328) - 4,328}
308 - 308
3 (& tz0} . i4.020)
k| 197 197
(3323} - (3.823)
(1,417} - {1.47)
15240) - {5240}
43 15 58
2 2
108 {2) 104
151 13 164
{2748) 63 (2 685)
1 {6 544) {6 044)
J 266 £3 3348
{2 758) 53 {7 655)
8} @
727) {727}
1 f639) - 1699}
13,483 (3,420)
33321 76 (3.2
3 3)
34 (54}
{3389} 76 (3313)
2674 2674
{50} - 150
3 24524 - 2,624
{765) % (689)
1952 11.467) 485
1187 1391) 204)

Please refer to the next page for the end of this table
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{an millions of euros}
Ti with sh ners
Net proceeds from 1ssuance of common shares in connection with Vivends SA's share based compengation plans
of which caprtal ingrease subscribed by employees in connection with the stock purchase plan
exercise 6f stock options by exscutive management and employees
[Sales)/purchases of Vivend) SA s treasury shares
Dwvidends paid by Vivend) SA (€1 per share)
(Other 1ransactians with shareowners
of which acquisition of Lagadére Group s non-conirolling interest in Canal France
Dwidends paud by consolidated companies ta ther non controliing interests

Total transachons with shareowners

Transactions on borrowings and other financial liabilties
Setttrg up of long term bomowings and intrease in other long term financial habilitres
of which bank credit factiities
bonds
Principal payments on long term borrowings and decrease in other long tem financial habiites
of wiuch bank credit facilities
Pringipal payments on short term borrowings
of which bonds
commercial paper
Other changes in short term borrowangs and other financial liabilihes
Non eash transactions
Interest paid net
Qther cash 1tems related to financial activities
Total tr on bror 9= and other financial habilitres
Net cash provided by/{used for} financing activities of continuing operations
Net cash provided by/lused for) financing activities of discontinued operations
Financing activities
Foreign cumrency translatien adjustments of continuing operations
Foreign currency transkation adjustmants of discontinued cperations
Reclassification of Financial Net Oebt from discontinued operations

Change in Finangial Net Dabt

5.4 Changes in financings

Tuesday February 25, 2014

Continued from previous page

Year enced December 31 2013

Referto
saction Impact on cash and Impact on borrowangs Impact on Financia!
cashequvalents  and other financial items Net Debt
() 195)
{149) - fi49)
{45} 48)
1 1325 1325
1046 146
1020 1,020
i kY
z213 - 2213
54 {2491) 2491
{1 655) 1 655 -
{750) 750
54 1623 1 az3}
1894 {1894}
5211 (5211)
3736 {3736 .
1349 {1 348) .
81 k]l .
14 14
3 528 528
3 349 g
5459 9,598] 297
7,702 (4 598) 3104
(1.284} 1,69 42
6413 12.502) 3516
48 ~(i67) e
“ {5) 19
5 {7} 14
2.853 {5,175) 2,322}

Financings put nto place

¢  OnMarch 28, 2013, Vivend) completed the early refinancing of a €1 5 billion bank credit facility maturing in May 2014 by entering
Into & new bank credit facility for the same amount with a five-year maturity

e OnJuly 9, 2013, Vivend: issued a £750 milhon bond, matuning in January 2019, with a 2 375% coupon, and an effective rate of
251% Ths transaction enabled the refinancing of the band issued wn January 2009, with a 7 76% coupon redeemed in Januaty

2014

Redemptions

o 72% redemption of three US dollar-denominated bands, following a tender offer, in October 2013
- $459 million redeemed on the $700 million band, maturing in Apnl 2018,

- $541 million redeemed on the $800 million bond, maturing in Apnl 2022 and

- $555 milhon redeemed on the $650 million bond, maturing in January 2018

s early full redemption of one US dollar-denominated bond and two euro-denominated bonds, :n November 2013

- $550 million, maturing in April 2015,
- €500 milion, maturing in November 2015, and
- £1,000 million, matuning 1n July 2015

s  redemption in October 2013, upon its contractual maturity, of a €700 million bond, refinanced in December 2012, by a bond for the

same amount, matunng in January 2020, and
«  cancellation of SFR's €1 2 billion bank credit facility in October 2013

For a detalled analysis of the bonds and bank credit facilities as of December 31, 2013 (please refer to Note 23 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013}
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6 Forward looking statements

Cautionary note

This Financial Report contains forward-looking statements with respect to Vivend!'s financial condition, results of operations, business, strategy,
plans, and outlook of Vivends, including the impact of certain transactions Although Vivendi believes that such forward-looking statements are
based on reasonable assumptions, such statements are nct guarantees of future performance Actual results may differ matenally from the
forward-looking statements as a result of a number of nisks and uncertainties, many of which are outside Vivendi's contral, including, but not
limited to, the risks related to antitrust and other regulatory approvals as well as any other approvals which may be required in connection with
certain transactions and the nisks described in the documents of the group filed with the Autorité des Marchés Financiers {AMF) {the French
securities regutator), which are also available in English on Vivendi's website (www vivendi com) Accordingly, we caution you against relying on
forward looking statements These forward-looking statements are made as of the date of this Financial Report Vivendi disclaims any intention
or obhgation to provide, update or revise any forward-looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise

7 Other Disclaimers

Unsponsored ADRs

Vivend: does not sponsor an American Depositary Receipt (ADR) facility in respect of its shares Any ADR facility currently in existence 1s
“unsponsored” and has no ties whatsoever to Vivends Vivend! disclaims any liabrlity in sespect of any such facihty

Translation

This Financial Report 1s an English transfation of the French version of the report and 1s provided for informatienal purposes only This translation
15 quahfied n its entirety by the French version, which 1s avallable on the company’s website (www vivendi com) In the event of any
inconsistencies between the French version of this Financial Report and the English translation, the French version will prevarl
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Il - Appendices to the Financial Report Unaudited
supplementary financial data

1. EBITA (Adjusted Eamings Before Interest and Income Taxes) and adjusted net
income

Vivend: considers EBITA {Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Income Taxes) and adjusted net mcome. non-GAAP measures, to be relevant
indicators of the group's operatng and financial performance Vivendi Management uses EBITA and adjusted net income because they
illustrate the underlying performance of continuing operations more effectively by excluding most non-recurring and ron-operating 1tems
EBITA and adusted net income are defined in Note 12 3 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013

Adjustment of comparative information

As from the second quarter of 2013, in compliance with IFRS 5, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in Vivendi's
Consolidated Statement of Earnings as discontinued operations In practice, :ncome and charges from these two businesses have been
reported as follows
- therr contnbution until the effective sale, if any, to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings (before non-
controlling interests) has been grouped under the hne "Earnings from discontinued operations”, and
- thewr share of net income has been excluded from Vivendi's adjusted net income

Moreover, as of January 1, 2013, Vivend: applied, with retrospective effect from January 1, 2012, amended IAS 19, whaose application (s
mandatory in the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for
the year ended December 31, 2013)

As a result, the 2012 Financial Statements and the first quarter of 2013 Financial Statements were adjusted, as the case may be, as
presented below
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2012
Thiee months Three manths S manths ended enLZEZ;:S:Zer
{in millions of euros except per share amounts) ended March 31 ended June 30, June 30 30
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) (as previously
published) 1,621 1316 2937 1394
Beclassifications related to the apphication of IFRS 5 for Activision Blizzard 3% 177 -572 182
Reclassifications related to the apphication of IFRS 5 for Maroc Telecorn Group m 190 463 - 266
Adjustments related to the application of amended 1AS 19
Selling general and admimstrative expenses 7 +2 +4 +2
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxas (EBITA} {restated) 955 951 1,906 943
Adjusted net income (as previously published) 83 106 1,529 665
Reclassifications related to the application of IFAS S -217 134 406 194
Adjustments related to the application of amended [AS 19
Seliing general and admitustrative expenses +7 +2 +4 +2
Prowiston for incoma taxes -
Adjusted net income {restated) 553 578 1,127 473
Adjusted net income per share {as greviously pubhished) 0.64 055 119 05
Adjusted net income per share {restated) 043 045 0.88 036
M2 2013
Nine months Threes months Year ended Thres months
ended September  ended December Decermber 31 ded March 31
{in millions of euros except per share amounts) 30, 3, cember ended Marc
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes {EBITA) {as previously
published) 431 052 5283 1,384
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS % for Actvision Blizzard 754 3895 1149 442
Reclassifications related to the applicaton of IFRS 5 for Maroc Telecom Group 729 259 988 273
Adjustments related to the application of amended 1AS 19
Selling general and administrative expenses 6 + 11 +17 na
Adjusted earmngs before interest and income taxes (EBITA) (restated) 78 309 3163 629
Adjusted net income {as previously published) 2194 356 2,550 672
ReclassHications retated to the application of IFRS S - 600 259 859 - 306
Adjustments related to the application of amended 1AS 19
Selling, general and administralive expenses +6 + 1 17 na
Provisien for ncome taxes 3 -3 aa
Adjusted net sncome (restated) 1,600 105 1,705 366
Adjusted net iIncome per share {as previously published) 170 027 196 .51
Adjusted net income per share {restated} 124 o008 13 028

na not applicable

Reconciliation of earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners to adjusted net income

Year ended Oecember 31
(in millions of euros) 2013 2012
Earmings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners (a) 1967 179
Adjustments
Amoruzation of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 462 438
Impairment tosses on intangible assets acquired through business combinations (a} 2437 760
Reserve accrual related to the Liberty Media Corparation litigation in the United States (a} - 945
Other income (a) (88) {19}
QOther charges (a) 57 236
Other fimancial income {a) {51 13
Other financial charges (a) 561 204
Earnings from discontinued operations (a) {4 635} (1,505)
of wihich capital gam on the dvestiture of Activision Bhzzard 2915 -
Change n deferred tax asset related to Vivend: SA’s French Tax Group and to the
Consolidated Glabal Profit Tax Systems 161 48
Nan-recurnng items related to provision for iIncome taxes 194 (25)
Prowision for income taxes on adjustments {220 {185)
Non-controlhng interests on adjustments 635 668
Adjusted net income 1580 1.)05

a  Asreported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings
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Adjusted net income per share

Year ended December 31

2013 2012
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Adjusted net income {(in milhons of euros) 1,540 1540 1705 1705
Number of shares {in m:llions})

Weghted average number of shares outstanding {a} 1,3308 1,3306 12989 12989
Potential dilutive effects related to share based compensaton (b) - 47 35
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 13306 13353 1,2989 13024
Adjusted net mcome per share {in euros) 116 115 LR (k)

a2  Net of treasury shares [please refer to Note 19 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013)

b Does not include accretive instruments as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 which could potentially become dilutive The
balance of common shares in connection with Vivend SA’s share based compensation plan 1s presented in Note 2222 to the
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013

2. Revenues and EBITA by business segment - 2013 and 2012 quarterly data

Preliminary comments

o As from the second quarter of 2013, in complhance with IFRS 5, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in
Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earrings as discontinued operations In practice, income and charges from these two businesses
have been reported as follows
- ther contnbution untif ther effective sale, if any, to each line of Vivendi's Consoldated Statement of Earmings {before non-

controlling interests) has been grouped under the line “Earnings from discontinued operations”,
- maccordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been applied to all periods presented to ensure cansistency of information, and
- thewr share of net icome has been excluded from Vivendr's adjusted net income

» Data presented below also takes inte account the consolidation of the following entities as from the indicated dates
at Canal+ Group DB and D17 (September 27, 2012) and “n” (November 30, 2012} and
- atUnwversal Music Group EMI Recorded Music (September 28, 2012)

»  Moreover, as of January 1, 2013, Vivend: applied, with retrospective effect from January 1, 2012, amended IAS 19, whose apphcation
ts mandatory i the European Umon beginming on or after January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1 to the Consohdated Financial
Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013) As a result, the 2012 Financial Statements, notably EBITA, were adjusted m
accordance with the new standard

Please refer to Appendix 1 of this Financial Report for a presentation of the adjustments made on the data previously published
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(in midlions of euros)
Revenues
Canal+ Group
Unwversal Music Group
GVT
Dther
Elimination of intersegment transactions
Media & Content

SFR
Elimination of intersegment transactions related to SFR

Total Vivendi

EBITA
Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
GVT
Other
Holding & Corporate
Media & Content

SFR
Total Vivendi

{in mtlions of euros)
Revenues
Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
GVT
Qther
Elimination of intersegment transactions
Media & Content

SFR
Elimination of intersegment transactions related to SFR

Total Vivendi

EBITA
Canal+ Group
Universal Music Group
GVT
QOther
Holding & Corporate
Media & Content

SFR
Total Vivendi

Tuesday Febiuary 25,2014

213
st Quarter ended 2nd Quarier ended  3rd Quarter ended  4th Quarter ended
March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31

1,286 1,314 1,291 1,454

1,09 1,145 1,162 1,488

438 446 413 412

16 17 18 21
{5) {3) {5 (4)

2.826 2919 2,845 33

2,594 2514 2,508 2,583
(5} {6) {) (9}

5415 5,427 5348 5.945
183 247 217 {36)

55 88 12 256

a9 a7 102 107

(14} (23) (21) (22)

{22} {25} (14} (26)

Ki#)| 384 396 21

328 378 334 33

629 762 730 312

2012
1st Quartes ended  2nd Quarterended 3rd Quarter ended  4th Quarter ended
March 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 3

1,232 1,238 1177 1,366

961 961 981 1641

432 421 429 434

15 15 17 19
(B} 1) ) {B)

2,634 2,626 2,599 3,454

2.927 2,834 2,747 2,780

{5) (8 (7 (4}

5,556 5,452 5339 6230

236 247 239 (59)

68 g8 82 788

116 107 118 147

{3) {2) {3} {6}

(23) {41) (25) o

394 399 411 359

561 552 537 (50

955 951 948 309
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Il - Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2013

Statutory Auditors” report on the Consolidated Financial Statements

To the Shareholders,

In compliance with the assignment entrusted to us by vour Annual General Sharehalders’ Meetings, we hareby repart to you for the year
ended December 31, 2013 an

e the audit of the accompanying Conselidated Financial Statements of Vivendi, hereinafter referred to as "the Company”,
o the justification of our assessments, and
s the specific verifications required by law

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been approved by your Management Board Our role is to express an apinien on the financial
statements, based cn our audit

I Opinion on the Consolidated Financial Statements

We conducted our audit in accordance with professional standards applicable in France, those standards require that we plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Consolidated Financial Statements are free of material misstaterent An audit
involves performing proecedures, using sampling techmques or other metheds of selection, to ebtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the Consolidated Financial Statements An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made, as well as the overall presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion

In our opinion, the Consolidated Financial Statements give a true and far view of the assets and liabilities and of the results of its
operations for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union

1l Justification of our assessments

In aceordance with the requirements of Article L 823-9 of the French Commercial Code {Code de Commerce) relating to the justification of
our assessments, we draw your attention to the following matters

In connection with our assessment of the accounting principles applied by your Company

e« Note 136 to theConsolidated Financial Statements describes the applicable critenia for classification and accounting for
discontinued operations or assets held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5 We verified the correct application of this accounting
principle and we ensured that Notes 2 1 and 7 to the Consolidated Financial Statements provide appropriate disclosures with
respect to management’s position as of December 31, 2013

s At each financial year end, your Company systematically performs impairment tests of goodwifl and assets with indefinite useful
lives, and also assesses whether there 1s any indication of impairment of other tangible and intangible assets, according to the
methods described in Note 1357 to the Consohidated Financial Statements We examined the methods used to perform these
impairment tests, as well as the main assumptions and estimates, and ensured that Notes 1357 and 10 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements provide appropniate disclosures thereon

« Note 139 to the Consolidated Financial Statements describes the accounting principles applicable to deferred tax and note 138
describes the methods used to assess and recognize provisions We verrfied the correct application of these accounting principles
and also examined the assumptions underlying the positions as of December 31, 2013 We ensured Note 6 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements gives appropnate information on tax assets and habilittes and on your company's tax positions

e Notes 138 and 28 to the Consolidated Financial Statements desgnbe the methods used ta assess and recognize provisions for
litigation We examined the methods used within your group to identfy, calculate, and determine the accounting for such
litigation We also examined the assumptions and data underlying the estimates made by the Company As stated in Note 13 1 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements, facts and circumstances may lead te changes 1n estimates and assumptions which could
have an impact upon the reported amount of pravisigns
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Our assessments were made as part of our audit of the Consohdated Financial Statements taken as a whole, and therefore contnibuted to
the opinion we fermed which 1s expressed In the first part of this report
]] Specific verifications

We have also venfied, in accordance with professional standard applicable in France, the mformation provided in the group management
report, as required by law

We have no matters to report as its fair presentation and 1ts conformity with the Consclidated Financial Statements

Panis-La Défense, February 25, 2014

The Statutory Auditors
KPMG Audit ERNST & YOUNG ET AUTRES
Département de KPMG S A
Frederic Quélin Jean-Yves Jégourel
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Consolidated Statement of Earnings

Revenues
Cost of revenues
Selling, general and admimstrative expenses
Restructuring charges and other operating charges and income
Impairment losses en ntangible assets acquired through business combinatians
Reserve accrual related to the Liberty Media Corporation htigation in the United States
Other income
Other charges
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT)
Income from equity affiliates
Interest
Income from investments
Other financial income
Other financial charges
Earnings from continuing operations hefore proviston for income taxes
Provision for Income taxes
Earnings from continuing operations
Earnings from discontinued operations
Earnings
Of which
Earnings attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners
of which earnings from continuing operations attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners

earnings from discontinued operations attrbutable to Vivend! SA shareowners

Non-controlling interests
of which earnings from continuing operations
earnings from discontinued operations

Earmngs from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - basic
Earmings fram continuing operations attributable to Vivend) SA shareowners per share - diluted
Earnmings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - basic
Earnings from discontinued operations attributable to Vivend! SA shareowners per share - diluted

Earnings attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - basic
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share - diluted

In millions of euros, except per share amounts, in euros

Note

62

0 00 ;o

o o
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Year ended December 31,

2013 2012 {a)
2,135 2577
{12,988) 12,672)

(6,905) {6,905)
(271) (273)
{2.437) {760)
- (945)
88 19
(57) {236)
{435) 805
(33) {38)
{528} {544)
67 7
51 37
{561} (204)
(1,439) 63
{417) {604}
{1,856} {541)
4635 1,505
2 954
1,967 179
(1,964) (654)
3931 833
812 785
108 13
704 672
{147) {0 50)
i147) {0 50)
295 064
294 064
148 014
147 014

a As from the second quarter of 2013, in compliance with IFRS 5 {Non-current Assets Hetd for Sale and Discontinued Operations},
Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings with respect to fisca! years
2013 and 2012 as discontinued operations {please refer to Note 7) On October 11, 2013, Vivendi deconsolidated Activision Blizzard

pursuant to the sale of 88% of its interest

In addition, data published with respect to fiscal year 2012 was adjusted following the impacts related to the application of amended
IAS 19 {Employee Benefits), whose application 1s mandatory in the European Union as of January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1)

These adjustments are presented in Note 33

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year ended December 31,

{in mullions of euros) Note 2013 2012 {a)
Earnings 2,718 964
Actuanial gains/(losses) related to employee defined benefit plans, net (23} {61}
ltems not reclassified to profit or loss (23) {61)
Foreign currency translation adjustments (1,429 (605)
Unrealized gains/{losses), net 58 103
Other impacts, net 15 -
ltems to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss {1,356} (502}
Charges and income directly recognized in equity 9 {1,378} (563}
Total comprehensive income 1,400 an
of which

Total comprehensive income attributabte to Vivend: SA shareowners 789 {362)
Total comprehensive income attributable to non-controlling interests 611 763

a  As of January 1, 2013, Vivendi apphed, with retrospecuve effect as from January 1, 2012, amended 1AS 19 {Empioyee Benefits) and
IAS 1 {Presentation of Financial Statements Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income), each of whose application 1s
mandatory (n the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1) As a result, the 2012 Financial
Statements were adjusted in accordance with the new standards [please refer to Note 33}

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

{in millions of euros) Note December 31, 2013 Decemb{:Sl,zmz January[;)st 2012

ASSETS
Goodwll 10 17.147 24 656 25,029
Non-current contant assets ik 2,623 3327 2,485
Qther intangible assets 12 4 308 5,190 4,329
Property plant and equipment 13 7,54 9926 900
Investments in equity affiliates 15 445 388 135
Non-current financial assets 16 654 488 379
Deferred tax assets 6 733 1,445 1,447
Non-current assets 33,450 45,420 42,805
Inventories 17 330 738 805
Current tax receivables 6 627 819 542
Current content assets 1 1,149 1044 1,066
Trade accaunts recevable and other 17 4,898 6,587 6730
Current financial assets 16 45 364 478
Cash and cash equivalents 18 1041 3894 3,304
8.090 13,446 12,925
Assets held for sale 2.7 1078 667 -
Assets of discontinued businesses 7 6,562 . -
Current assets 15.730 14113 12,925
TOTAL ASSETS 49,180 59,533 55,730
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Share captal 7.368 7,282 6,860
Additional paid-in capital 8 381 82N 8,225
Treasury shares {1} {25} (28)
Retained earnings and other 1,709 2,797 4,795
Vivend: SA shareowners' equity 17.457 18325 19352
Non-controlling interesis 1,573 2,966 25619
Total equity 19 19,030 pAF.t)) nmnm
Non-current provisions 20 2,904 3258 1,679
Long-term barrowings and other financial liabilities 3 8,737 12 667 12409
Deferred tax habilities 6 680 991 728
Other non-current liabilities 17 75 1,002 864
Non-current habilities 13,078 17918 15,680
Current provisions 20 519 M 596
Short-term borrowtngs and other financial liabilittes 23 3,529 5,090 33M
Trade accounts payable and cther 17 10,416 14196 13,987
Current tax payables 6 79 Kra| 205
14,643 20318 18,079
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale - 6 -
Liabhties assocrated with assets of discontinued businesses 7 2419 - -
Current lialnlities 17,072 20,324 18,079
Total habilities 30,150 38,242 33,758
TOTAL EQUITY AND UABILITIES 49,180 59,533 55,730

a  Asof January 1, 2013, Vivend: applied, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012, amended IAS 19 {Employee Benefits), whose
application 1s mandatory in the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1) As a result, the 2012
Financial Statements were adjusted in accordance with the new standard {please refer to Note 33)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

‘fear ended December 31

(n melhons of euros) Note 2013 2012 (a}

Operating activities
EBIT 3 {435} 805
Adjustments 25 491 4,456
Content investments net {148) {145)
Gross cash providad by operating activibes before income tax pard 4323 5118
Other changes in net working capnal 17 {308) _69
Not cash providad by operating activitias before incoms tex paid 4020 5185
income tax paid, net 63 (197) {353}
Net cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 3823 4832
Net cash provided by operating ectivitias of discontinwed operatians 7 1417 2274
Net cash provided hy operating activities 5240 1106

Investing actwities
Capial expenditutes 3 {2 674} {3999
Purchases of consaldated companies after acquired cash 2 {43) (1,374)
Investments in equity affilates 15 (2) [322)
Increase in finangial assets 16 {106) {35)
Investments (2825} {5,730)
Proceeds from sales of property plant, equipment and miangible assets 3 50 23
Proceeds from sales of consclidated companies after divested cash 7 2,748 13
Disposal of equity affiliates 15 8 [l
Decrease in financial assets 16 727 180
Divestrturas 3533 227
Divdends received from equity affihates 3 3
Dmdends receved fram uncansohidated companies ilo_ 1
Net cash provided by/{used for) nvesting activities of continuing aperations 765 (5499}
Net cash providad by/{used for) imvasting activities of discontinued operations 7 {1952) {543}
Net cash prowided by/lused for} investing activities (1.187) (6.042)

Financing activities
Net proceeds from 1ssuance of cammon shares 1n connection with Vivendh SA's share-based

compensation plans 2 135 (K
Sales/lpurchases) of Vivend) SA s treasury shares - {18)
Dwidends paid by Vivend) SA to its shareowners 19 (1325) {1245)
Other transactions with shareowners 2 {1046} 1
Dwadends paid by consolidated companies to their non cantrolling interests (37) {33)
Transactiens with shareowners {2213} {1,166}
Setuing up of long term bormrowings and increase in other long term financial hiabilities 23 249 5833
Principad payment an long-term borrowsngs and decrease in ather long term financial hablimes 23 {1,923) a211)
Principal payment on short term barrewings 23 {5.211) (2 494}
Other changes in shart term borrowings and other financial hiabilibes 23 A 2,808
Interest paid net 5 {528} {544}
Other cash items related to financial actvities {343) (96)
Fransactions on borrowings and other financied habities {5.489} 129
Net cash provided by/{used for) financing activities of continuing operstions {7.702) 130
Net cash provided by/f{used for) financing activities of discontinued operations 7 1.284 (557)
Net cash prowided byflused for) financing activittes (6418) {427}
Foreign currency transtation adjustments of continuing operations (48) {29}
Fareign currency translation adjustments of discontinued operations 7 {44) {18}
Change i cash and cash equivalents {2,457} 590
Reclassification of discontinued operations' cash and cash equivalents 7 {396) -

Cash and cash equivalents —_
At beginning of the period 18 3894 3304
At end of the period 18 1041 31894

a  As from the second quarter of 2013, in cempliance with IFRS 5, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in the
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows with respect to fiscal years 2013 and 2012 as discontinued operations {please refer to Note 7)
On October 11, 2013, Vivend deconsolidated Activision Blizzard pursuant to the sale of 88% of its interest In addition, data published
with respect to fiscal year 2012 has been adjusted following the wnpacts related to the application of amended I1AS 19, whose
application 1s mandatary in the European Union as of January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1) These adjustments are presented in Note
33
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Consohdated Statements of Changes in Equity

Yasr anded December 31, 2013

Tuesday 25 Febuary 2014

Caprta! Retumad sarnimgs snd sther
Common shares Forexn currency
Nunbder of shares Shaca [ Treszury Suttotal .Rmu‘d‘) Nn':;:::: trangiation Subtotal Tots) oquey
[m milions of euros except nmber of shaves) Kate{  Iin thousandst capal ol g g adyrstments
BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31 2012 AS PUBLISHED 1321 967 1282 [¥]] [£:7] 15528 $an 126 {8}
___Attricisbie fo Vivend: SA sharsowners 1321562 i [ ¥l 25) | 1552 3659 129 61
Altributable te man-contralliog wtknesty 242 [F] 182 230 297
Aeetments (eiated t the sgpl o of amendad 155 19 wrth effect.net o meome tazes s 6 I
10 Vvendk SA sh g 143 149
[ iling interes1a 5 5 |
[BALANCE AS OF JANUARY 01 2013 RESTATED (o 1,320,367 T ¥ (S 1550 3% ] Ty 575 A
Attriboiabie tv Vivend: SA sharvowsars 1321962 a2 . zs) 1558 252 Lro] 8%51) 27 1835
Atinbatabls (s son-costrolliag ictemsty 287 [i]) = 2554 2568
[ ™ Vrvead: SA ] ] ] EJ 2] 2% 17296] (145%)
Drvidencis pad by Vivends SAIST par share} 18 11329 1325 {1325
Tamtal increase retated to Vivends S s share-based cempensation plans ¥y 15648 B Al] u rit) el A 249
of wiuah Vnvendh Employes Stock Purchase Flans (uly 25 20131 12.286 & 8 49 g
Chasges iz Vrvend: SA dtip i erest o K3 that de ROTraailt i & loxd of oodtrol S8} ) =)
«of which atqueion of Group § non-controlling mtensst m Canal+ France i (35} 536} 1626)
THANGES (N EQUITY ATrnlnuusﬁ ;n VIVENDI S SHAREOWNERS TA] 15600 ] [0 M F22] [ {10 11657
™ Tling tRiwrests 7] T8 | F tunl
ol which dvidands paid by subSiianes To non-Contmliing Interests (431} 31 X))
Changes tn non-centreliing wtecasts that resalt 1 2 gin/ivss) of controf ham) 1.275 .27y
of which sais of the 38% ownership mieres n Actvion Blazad 7 1272} am {172y
Changas i da ol resslt 1z Aloas) ef eontral ¥ (200 1300}
ot which 2eqursrtion of Lagadére Group s non-tontrolling interest im Canals France Fi %3] {331 1387)]
CHANGES IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO NOH-CONTAOLUNG INTERESTS (8 12,004 {2,000 12.000)]
Emrmags F¥7] e 2778
and moome firsetly L m = i1 & 3 {1.379)]
TOTAL COMPRENENSIVE INCOME (C) 2,771 ] [1AZ8) [ 1,500
TOTAL GHANGES OVER THE PERTOD (AvB1C] [ & " 2] 2 K] E] L ] | i
Attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowiers 15648 86 1 Fi 220 75 56 1219 11085} fasd)
Altnbutabla to non controthing intarasts 11 785) 2 210/ 11393 11.393)
BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31 2013 X0 138 s 0] 1519 ¥:] ™ 213 3 | 19an|
Atribatable v Vivoad: SA sharsewvery [E=TIT) 154 ] 7] 15748 ] us (2.080] Ty | 17457
Aztribctable Is noo coentroliey wtervats 632 i/l {58 57 1572

E] As of January 1 2013 Vivendi applied with retrospective effect as from January 1 2012 emended IAS 19 {(Employee Benefits] whose applicatson 1s mandatory in the Eurapean Union beginning an or
after January 1 2013 (please refez to Note 1) As a result, the 2012 Financial Staternents were adyusted m accordance with the new standard

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Gensolidated Financial Statements
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Year ended December 31, 2012

Tugsday 25 February 2014

Capial Retwinsd suramaa and sther
(ammon shares Addwsanal Foreign cumency
Nomberal shares | Share Fad 1x:;"’ Subiowa) | Peamed - Netunrsalzed " Subioial | T8V 08
fin medlaong of puros except number of shares} i thousands) capital capital = * adjusiments
[BALANCE AS OF DECEMBER 31 2611 _AS PUBLISHED LM7263 5860 15 G?]- 15,057 T n [i2]] 1na non
Attribatable to Vivasd: SA sharsowners TH7%3 5,560 2225 28) 15.057 4647 ) 7] 4390 19447
Attrihutabla to non-coatreliing Hterssty 2453 7 2623 2523
[Adpstrnents related to the apphication of amended 1AS 19 with retrospectiva sffact net of incoma Laxes EE] £ ﬁ
A g to Vivendi SA sharsowners % 3 35,
Artbutable to non-coniroling niérests [] 4 4]
|BAI.AIICE AS OF JANUARY #1 2012 RESTATED (s} 141263 (] 8225 28] 15,061 5,995 =] 104} 64 AN
to Vivand SA sharmowners LMT263 [x 225 [Fol 15,087 A 546 2 zr 4205 19352
| Anrbotebie to non-controifing roterests 2443 170 2519 2619
[ Conibattens by doeing t Vivends SA i 68 [~ — 7 7] Tzl 71201 730,
Capital increase refated Lo Drect8 and Direct Star ecquisition {Szptember 71 2012} 2235 123 13 36 336
Vmend) SA s stock repurchasa program "8 [:3} il
Dwidends paid by Vivendi SA (€1 per share} {1245 {1 245) {124
Grant of one bonus share for sach 30 shares held (May 9 2012 41575 229 229)
Caputal mereasa related 1o Vivendi SA s shara based compansation plzng 12768 0 B2 il 153 LE} 48 197
of wineh Vivend: Employes Stock Purchase Plans {Jufy 13 2012} 12288 87 2] 27 127
Changes 1o Yovend: $A 3 ownarshup misrast in its subsidiacces that do not reswit in a loss of controi 55 65 &5
of which Actsion Blizard & stock repurchasa program 10 {1 {1
Gan cn the dilution of Canals Group s interest by 24% in Cytra+ fdllowang the creation of nes 14 114 4
CHANGES [N EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO WIVENDI SA SHAREOWNERS (A) TE533 [ 46 3 (] (1136} 11138} {685)|
ZontrIbIont BY/drtibatons [0 ROR-COOTing Taterasts [ 43T, Taa1]]
of which dividends paid by subsidhanes © non controlling intarests {481} 1481} 481
Ehanges 1a non-coatrolimg mierests thal result in & geinfiosa) of control 133 fx<] o)
of which IT| Netw&on nan-cortrolling interests 131 13 i3l
Changas in non-coaroling mvierests that do nef result i 8 gainfiioss) of controi o8 (1)) i68)
of which Actwsion Bluzard s stock repurthase program 1131 1131 {131
CHANGES IN EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON CONTROLLING INTERESTS (B} [LI] 1516} [
Earmings = 7] W |
£harges and inoorme directly recognired da aguity (69} 153 {505) 1563) ]
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (C) (5] 193 {605} M (3]
TOTAL CHANGES G¥E THE PERIOD [A+B+L] 1] [ ] 3 5] X ] fous] [l ]
Atibutable to Vivendi 54 shargowners 76559 422 45 3 47 i1 arz 106 5871 {7 438) 11 027)]
Atiibutable to non-controllng wterests 365 3 {181 347 37
[BALANCE AS OF DECFMBER 71 2012_RESTATED (s} 1321967 T 2 ) [ET [ Trea) = T
Adtyibutabie 18 Vivendr SA skarvownsra 1aniwr | 7am 8271 =] | 1554 3,529 129 1863} 2797 =]
Altributsbie o non comroifing intaragts 1 | Zn7 2] 15z 2965 2965

8 Asof Jsnvary 1 2013 Vivend: apphed with retrospective effect as from January 1 2012 amended 1AS 18 {Emplayee Benefits} whose application 15 mandatory in the European Unton beginning on or
after January 1 2013 {please refer to Note 1) As a result, the 2012 Financial Statements were adjusted in accordance with the new standard

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the Consohdated Financial Statements

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2013

Vivend: /45



Tuesday, February 25, 2014

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Vivend 15 a hmited liability company {sociéte ancnyme) incorporated under French law, subject to French commercial company law and, in
particutar, the French Commercial Code (Code de commerce) Vivend was incorporated on December 18, 1987, for a term of 99 years expining
on December 17, 2088, except in the event of an early dissolution or unless the term s extended Its registered office 1s located at 42 avenue
de Friedland - 75008 Pans (France} Vivend 1s histed on Euronext Pans (Compartment A)

Vivend: operates a number of companies that are leaders in content, media, and telecommunication Canal+ Group 1s the French leader in pay-
TV and 1s also present in francophone Afnean countries, Poland, and Vietnam, its subsidiary Studiocanal, s a leading European player in the
production, acquisition, distribution and, sale of films Universal Music Group, the world's leader in music, recently strengthened and
dversified itself through the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music GVT 1s the leading Brazilian alternative operator In addition, Vivend: controls
SFR, the leading alternative telecommunications operator in France

On October 11, 2013 Vivend) deconsolidated Activision Blizzard pursuant to the sale of 88% of its interest Moreover, as a result of the plans
to sell Maroc Telecom group, 1t has been reported in Vivendi’s Consolidated Statement of Earnings as a discontinued operation, in accordance
with FRS 5

The Consolidated Financ:al Statements reflect the financial and accounting situaton of Vivend: and its subsidiaries (the "group”} together
with interests in equity affiliates Amounts are reported in euros and all values are rounded to the nearest million

On February 19, 2014, duning a meeting held at the headquarters of the company, the Management Board approved the Financial Report and
the Consclidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 Having considered the Audit Committee’s recommendation
given at its meeting held on February 18, 2014, the Supervisory Board, at its meeting held on February 21, 2014, reviewed the Financial Report
and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, as approved by the Management Board on
February 19, 2014

On June 24, 2014, the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013 will be submitted for approval at Vivendr's
Annual General Shareholders’ meeting

Note 1 Accounting policies and valuation methods

1.1  Compliance with accounting standards

The 2013 Consolidated Financial Statements of Vivendi SA have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS] as endorsed by the European Union {EU), and in accordance with IFRS published by the International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) with mandatory application as of December 31, 2013

Vivend! applied new standards and amendments to its Consolidated Financial Statement for the year ended December 31, 2013, the most
significant of which concern

« presentation of other items 1n the consolidated statement of comprehensive incame,

= employee benefit plans, and

« principles of consolidation

1.1.1 Presentation of Financial Statements

Amendments to |AS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements Fresentation of ltems of Other Comprehensive Income, as published by the 1ASB
on June 16, 2011, were endorsed by the EU on Jung 5, 2012 and published in the EU Official Journal on June 6, 2012 These amendments
mandatonly apply to penods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012 They relate to the
presentation of items of other comprehensive income {denominated “Charges and income directly recognized in equity” in the Consolidated
Statement of Comprehensive Income}, which are henceforth grouped according to whether or not they are recycled in the Statement of
Earnings

112 Employee benefit plans

Amendments to 1AS 19 (Employee Benefits} as published by the 'ASB on June 16, 2011, were endorsed by the EU on June 5, 2012, and
published n the EU Official Journal on June 6, 2012 These amendments mandatonly apply to penods beginning on or after January 1, 2013,
with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012
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The main impacts of these amendments for Vivends are

» elimination of the “corndor methed™ relating to the recognition through profit and loss for the year of actuarial gains and losses on
defined employee benefit plans thus, actuanial gains and losses not yet recognized as of December 31, 2011 were recorded against
consolidated equity as of January 1, 2012,

+ as from January 1, 2012, actuanal gains and losses are immediately recognized in other comprehensive income in the Statement of
Comprehensive Income, and will no longer be recycled in profit and loss As a consequence, the Consolidated Financial Statements
for the year ended December 31, 2012 were ad)usted to reflect the cancellation of the recognition of actuanal gains and losses in
selhing, admmistiative and general expenses, and the recording of actuanal gains and losses generated n 2012 wn iiems of other
comprehensive Income not reclassified to profit and loss,

e as from January 1, 2012, past service costs resulting from plan amendments or curtalments are immediately recognized in profit
and loss, as selling, admnistrative and genesal expenses, unvested rights being no longer spread over the vesting penod As a
consequence, past service costs not yet recognized as of December 31, 2011 were recorded against consolidated equity as of
January 1, 2012, and the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 were adjusted to reflect the
cancellation of the recognition of past service costs in selling, administrative and general expenses, and

» expected return on plan assets s calculated using the discount rate retained for the valuation of the benefit obfigation

Due to the retrospective application of the amendments to |AS 13 {Emgloyee Benefits), the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year
ended December 31, 2012 were adjusted for comparnison purposes A detalled descrption of these adjustments 1s presented in Note 33

Please note that accounting policies and valuation methods related to employee benefit plans are presented n their entirety in Note 1 3 8

113 Principles of censolidation

New standards relating to the principles of consohdation IFRS 10 - Censolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 - Jomnt Arrangements, IFRS 12
- Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities, |AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements, and 1AS 28 - favestments in Assoctates and Jont Ventures,
as published by the IASB on May 12, 2011, were endorsed by the EU on December 11, 2012 and published in the EU Official Journal on
December 29, 2012 These standards mandatonly apply to penods beginning on or after January 1, 2014 However, Vivend: elected to early
apply them to the intenm Financial Statements for the year 2013 and, retrospectively, as of January 1, 2012 The apphcation of these
standards had no material impact on Vivendi's financial statements

New principles of consolidation introduced by these new standards are presented in Note 132

114 Other

New standard IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement, relating to the defimtion of the concept of fair velue in terms of measurement and
disclosures, as 1ssued by the IASB on May 12, 2011, was endorsed by the EU on December 11, 2012 and published in the EU Official Journal
on December 29, 2012 IFRS 13 applies prospectively and mandatonly to peniods beginning on or after January 1, 2013 There has been no
significant impact on Vivendi's valuation methods, or an the information disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, pursuant to 1ts
application

Amendments to vanious IFRS included in the Annual Improvements to IFRSs 2009-2011 Cycle as published by the IASB on May 2012, were
endorsed by the EU on March 27, 2013 and published in the EU Official Journal on March 28, 2013 These amendments mandatonly apply to
periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, retrospectwely fram January 1, 2012 Their application has had no significant impact on
Vivendi's financial statements

1.2 Presentation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

121 Consolidated Statement of Earmings

The main line items presented in Vivendi’s Consolidated Statement of Earnings are revenues, income from equety affiliates, interest, provision
for incomes taxes, earnings from discontinued or held for sale operations, and earnings The Consolidated Statement of Earnings presents a
subtotal for Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBIT} equal to the difference between charges and income {excluding those financing activities,
equity affiliates, discontinued or held for sale operations, and income taxes)

The charges and income related to financing activities consist of interest, income from investments, as well as other financial charges and
ncome as defimed in paragraph 1 2 3 and presented in Note 5

1.22 Consohdated Statement of Cash Flows
Net cash provided from operating activities

Net cash provided from operating activities 15 calculated using the indirect method based on EBIT EBIT is adjusted for non-cash items and
changes n net working capital Net cash provided from operating activities excludes the cash impact of financial charges and income and net
changes in working caprtal related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
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Net cash used for investing activities

Net cash used for investing activites includes changes in net working capital related to property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets
as well as cash from investments (particutarly dividends received from equity afftliates) it also includes any cash flows anising from the gain
or loss of contral of subsidiaries

Net cash used for financing activities

Net cash used for financing activities includes net interest paid an borrowings, cash and cash equivalents, bank overdrafts, as well as the
cash impact of other 1tems related to financing activities such as premiums from the early redemption of borrowings and the settlement of
derwative instruments It also includes cash flows from changes in ownership interests 1n a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control
{including increases in ownership interests)

123 Operating performance of each operating segment and of the group

Yivend considers Adjusted Earnings Before Interest and Tax (EBITA), Adjusted net income {ANI), and Cash Flow From Operations {CFFQ), non-
GAAP measures, to be relevant indicators of the group’s operating and financial performance

EBITA

Vivend: considers EBITA, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the performance of its operating segments as reported in
the segment data The method used n calculating EBITA excludes the accounting smpact of the amortization of intangible assets acquired
through business combinatians, impairment lasses on goadwall and other intangbles acquired through business combinations, and other
icome and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners This enables Vivend: to measure and
compare the operating performance of operating segments regardless of whether their performance 1s driven by the operating segment’s
organic growth or acquisitions

The difference between EBITA and EBIT consists of the amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations, impairment
losses on goodwill and other intangibles acquired through business comhinations, as well as other financial iIncome and charges related to
financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners that are included in EBIT The charges and income related to financial
investing transactions include gains and losses recognized in business combinations, capial gains or losses related to divestitures or the
depreciation of equity affiliates and other financial investments, as well as gains or losses incuired from the gain or loss of control In a
business

Adjusted net income

Vivend) considers adjusted net income, a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and financral
performance Vivend: Management uses adjusted net income because 1t better ilustrates the underlying performance of continuing operations
by excluding most nan-recurning and non-operating items Adjusted net income includes the following items

e EBITA{*,

e income from equity affiliates (*} (**),

& interest (*}(**), corresponding to interest expense on borrowings net of interest income earned on cash and cash equivalents,

+ income from investments {*) {**}, including dividends and interest recerved from unconsolidated companies, and

e taxes and non-controlling interests related to these items

It does not include the following items

¢ amortization of intangibles acquired through business combinations (**] as well as impawrment losses on goadwiil and ather
intangibles acquired through business combinations {*} (**),

e other income and charges related to financial investing transactions and to transactions with shareowners {*), as defined above,

e other financial charges and income (*) {**), equal to the profit and loss refated to the change in value of financial assets and the
termination or change n value of f:nancral liabihties, which pnmarnly include changes in fair value of denvative instruments,
premiums from the early redemption of borrowings, the early unwinding of derivative instruments, the cost of issuing or canceliing
credit facilities, the cash impact of foreign exchange transactions (other than those related to operating actvities, included in the
EBIT), as well as the effect of undiscounting assets and habilities, and the financial components of employee benefits (interest cost
and expected return on plan assets),

e earnings from discontinued operaticns {*) {**), and
provisions for income taxes and adjustments attnbutable to non-controlling interests and non-recurnng tax items (notably the
changes in deferred tax assets pursuant to Vivendi SA’s tax group and the Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems, and the reversal
of tax liabiities relating to risks extinguished over the perod)

(*) ftems as presented in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings, {**) ftems as reported by each operating segment
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Cash Flow From Operations (CFFO)

Vivend considers cash flow from operattons (CFFO), a non-GAAP measure, to be a relevant measure to assess the group’s operating and
financial perfarmance The CFFO includes net cash provided by operating activities, befare income tax paid, as presented in the Statement of
Cash Flows, as well as divrdends received from equity affiliates and unconsolidated companies It also includes capital expend itures, net that
relate to cash used for capital expenditures, net of proceeds from sales of property plant and equipment, and intangible assets

The difference between CFFO and net cash prowided by operating activities, before income tax consists of dividends receved from equity
affiliates and unconsolidated companies and capital expenditures, net, which are included in net cash used for investing activities and of
income tax paid, net, which are excluded from CFFQ

124 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

Assets and liabilities that are expected to be realized, or intended for sale or consumption, within the entity’s normal operating cycle
{generally 12 months), are recorded as current assets or liabiliies If their matunty exceeds this period, they are recorded as non-current
assets or liabihties Moreover, certain reclassifications have been made to the 2012 and 2011 Consolidated Financial Statements to conform
to the presentation of the 2013 and 2012 Consoldated Financial Statements

1.3  Principles governing the preparation of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Pursuant to IFRS principles, the Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on a histonical cost basis, with the exception of certain
assets and labilities detailed below

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the financial statements of Vivend and its subsidiaries after eliminating intragroup 1tems and
transactions Vivend: has a December 31 year-end Subsidianes that do not have a December 31 year-end prepare intenim financial
statements at that date, except when their year-end falls within the three months prior to December 31

Acauired subsidiaries are included in the Consolidated Financial Statements of the group as of the date of acquisition

131 Use of estimates

The preparation of Consolidated Financial Statements in compliance with IFRS requires the group management to make certain estimates and
assumptions that they consider reasonable and realistic Even though these estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed by Vivendi
Management based, 1n particular, on past or anticipated achievements, facts and circumstances may lead to changes m these estimates and
assumptions which could impact the reported amount of group assets, liabilities, equity or earnings

The ma:n estimates and assumptions relate to the measurement of

s revenue estimates of provisians for returns and price guarantees, and rewards as part of loyalty programs deducted from certain
revenue items (please refer to Note 1 3 4),

+ prowsions risk estimates, performed on an individual basis, noting that the occurrence of events during the course of pracedures
may lead to a sk reassessment at any time {please refer to Notes 13 B and 20,

» employee benefits assumptions are updated annually, such as the probability of employees remaining within the group until
retirement, expected changes in future compensation, the discount rate and inflation rate (please refer to Notes 1 38 and 21),

s share-based compensation assumptions are updated annually, such as the estimated term, volatiity and the estimated dvidend
yield {please refer 1o Notes 13 10 and 22),
certarn financial instruments fair value estimates (please refer to Notes 1358, 13 7 and 24),
deferred taxes estimates concerning the recognition of deferred tax assets are updated annually with factors such as expected tax
rates and future tax results of the group [please refer to Notes 1 39 and B),

» goodwill and other intangible assets valuation methods adopted for the identification of intangible assets acquired through
bus:ness combinations (please refer to Notes 1352 and 2),

« goodwll, intangible assets with indefinite useful Ives and assets in progress assumptions are updated annually relating to
impairment tests performed on each of the group’s cash-generating units {CGUs), future cash flows and discount rates {please refer
to Notes 1357, 10, 12, and 13}, and

* UMG content assets estimates of the future performance of beneficranes who were granted advances are recognized In the
Statement of Financial Position (please refer to Notes 135 3 and 11)
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132 Pnnciples of consolidation
A list of Vivendi's majar subsidianes, joint ventures and associated entities 1s presented 1n Note 29
Consohdation

All companies 1n which Vivend: has a controlling interest, namely those in which it has the power to govern financial and operational policies
to obtain benefits from thetr operations, are fully consolidated

The new medel of control, introduced by IFRS 10 superseding 1AS 27 revised - Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements, and
interpretation SIC 12 - Consolidation - Special Purpese Entities, 1s based on the following thee cntena 1o be fulfiied simultaneously to
conchude that the parent company exercises control

¢ a parent company has power over a subsidiary when the parent company has existing nights that give 1t the current atulity to direct
the relevant activities of the subsidiary, 1 e, the activities that significantly affect the subsidiary’s returns Power may anse from
existing or potential voting rights, or contractual agreements Voting rights must be substantial, » e , they shalt be exercisable at any
time. without linutation particularly during decision making related to sigmficant actvities The assessment of the exercise of power
depends on the nature of the subsidiary’s relevant activities, the intemal decision-making process, and the allocation of nights
among the subsidiary’s other shareowners,

=  the parent company Is exposed, or has nghts, to vaniable returns from its involvement with the subsidiary which may vary as a result
of the subsidiary’s performance The concept of returns 1s broadly defined and includes, among others, dividends and other
distnbutions of economic benefits, changes in the value of the investment in the subsidiary, economies of scale, and business
synergres, and

» the parent company has the abiity to use its power 10 affect the returns Power without any impact on returns does not qualify as
control

Consolidated Financiai Statements of a group are presented as 1f the group was a single economic entity with two categories of owners the
owners of the parent company on the one hand (Vivendi SA shareowners) and the owners of non-controlling interests on the other A non-
controlling interest 1s defined as the interest in a subsidiary that 1s not attributable, directly or indirectly, to a parent As a result, changes to a
parent company’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in a loss of cantrol only impact equity, as contral does not change
within the economic entity Hence, in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a consolidated entity after January 1, 2009,
Vivendi recognizes the difference between the acquisition price and the carrying value of nan-controlling interests acquired as a change in
equity attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners Conversely, any acquisiticn of control achieved in stages or a lass of control gives rise to profit
or loss n the statement of earnings

Accounting for joint arrangements

IFRS 11, which supersedes IAS 31 — Financral Reporting of Interests i Joint Ventures, and nterpretation SIC 13 - Jomntly Controfled Entities -
Non-monetary Cantributions by Venturers, establishes principles for financial reporting by parties to a joint arrangement

In a joint arrangement, parties are bound by a contractual arrangement, giving these parties joint control of the arrangement An entity that is
a party to an arrangement shall assess whether the contractual arrangement gives all the parties or a group of the parties, control of the
arrangement collectively Once it has been established that all the parties or a group of the parties colfectively control the arrangement, joint
control exists only when decisions ahout the relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties that collectwely control the
arrangement

Jont arrangements are classified into two categones

» Jont operations these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the
assets, and abligations for the habilities, relating to the arrangement Those parties are called joint operators A joint operator shall
recognize 100% of wholly-owned assets/liabilities, expenses/revenues of the joint operation, and its share of any of those items
held jointly, and

« Joint ventures these are joint arrangements whereby the parties that have joint control of the arrangement have nghts to the net
assets of the arrangement Those parties are called joint venturers Each jomt venturer shall recognize its interest in a joint venture
as an investment, and shall account for that investment using the equity method in accordance with IAS 28 (please refer below)

The elimination of proportionate consohidation for joint ventures has no ympact on Vivend:, which already accounted for under the equity
method companies that were jaintly controlled by Vivendi, directly or indirectly, and a limited number of other shareholders under the terms of
a contractual arrangement

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2013 Vivendi /50




Tuesday, February 25 2014

Equity accounting
Entities over which Vivend: exercises significant influence as well as joint ventures are accounted for under the equity methed

Significant snfluence 1s presumed to exist when Vivendi holds, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of voting nights in an entity unless 1t can be
clearly demonstrated that Vivend: daes not exercise significant influence Significant influence can be evidenced through other critena, such
as representation on the board of directors or the entity’s equivalent governing body, participation in policy-making processes, matenal
transactions with the entity or the interchange of managenal personnel

133 Foreign currency translation

The Consolidated Financial Statements are presented in millions of euros The functional currency of Vivendi SA and the presentation currency
of the group 15 the euro

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded in the functional currency of the entity at the exchange rate prevailing at the date of the
transaction At the closing date, forergn currency monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the entity's functional currency at the
exchange rate prevailing on that date All foreign currency differences are expensed, with the exception of differences resulting from
borrowings 1n foreign currencies which constitute a hedge of the net investment in a foreign entity These differences are allocated directly to
charges and income directly recognized n equity until the divestiture of the net investment

Financial statements denominated in a foreign currency

Except in cases of significant exchange rate fluctuation, financial statements of subsidiaries, joint ventures or other associated entities for
which the functional currency 1s not the euro are translated into euros as follows the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position 1s
translated at the exchange rate at the end of the period, and the Consolidated Statement of Earnings and the Consolidated Statement of Cash
Flow are translated using average monthly exchange rates for the period The resulting transtation gains and losses are recorded as foreign
currency transiation differences 1n charges and income directly recognized 1n equity In accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: elected to reverse the
accumulated foreign currency translation differences against retaned earnings as of January 1, 2004 These foreign currency translation
differences resulted from the translation into euro of the financial statements of subsidiaries having foreign currencies as therr functional
currencies Consequently, these adjustments are not applied to earmings on the subsequent divestiture of subsidianies, joint ventures or
assaciates, whose functional currency (s not the euro

1.34 Revenues from operations and associated costs

Revenues from aperations are recorded when 1t 1s probable that future economic benefits will be obtained by the group and when they can be
reliably measured Revenues are reported net of discounts

1341 Canal+ Group

Pay and free-to-air television

Revenues from television subscription services for terrestnal, satellite or cable pay-television platforms are recognized over the service penod,
net of gratuities granted Revenues from advertising are recognized over the period dunng which advertising commercials are broadcasted
Reverwes from ancillary services (such as mnteractive or videc-an-demand services) are recognized when the serice 1s rendered Subscriber
management and acquisition costs, as well as television distnibution costs, are included in selling, general and administrative expenses

Equipment rentals

IFRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease, apphies to equipment for which a nght of use is granted Equipment lease
revenues are generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease agreement

Film and television programming

Theatrical revenues are recognized as the films are screened Revenues from film distnbution and from wdeo and television or pay television
licensing agreements are recognized when the films and television programs are available for telecast and a!l other conditions of sale have
been met Home video product revenues, less a provision for estimated returns (please refer to Note 13 4 4) and rebates, are recognized upon
stipment and availability of the product for retail sale Amortization of film and telewision capitalized and acquisition costs, theatrical print
costs, home video mventory costs and television, and home wvideo marketing costs are included m costs of revenues
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1342 Umversal Music Group (UMG)
Recorded music

Revenues from the physical sale of recorded music, net of a provision for estimated retuins (please refer to Note 134 5) and rebates, are
recognized upon shpment 1o third part:es, at the smpping point for products sold free on board {FOB) and on delivery for products sold free on
destination

Revenues from the digital sale of recorded music, for which UMG has sufficient, accurate, and reliable data from certain distributors, are
recognized based on their estimate at the end of the month in which those sales were made to the final customer In the absence of such
data, revenues are recognized upon nobfication by the distribution platform {on-line or mobile music distributar} to UMG of a sale to the final
customer

Music publishing

Revenues from the third-party use of copyrights on musical compositions owned or administered by UMG are recognized when royalty
statements are received and collectability 15 assured

Costs of revenues

Costs of revenues include manufacturing and distnbution costs, reyalty and copyright expenses, artists’ costs, recording costs, and direct
overheads Selling, general and administrative expenses primanly include marketing and advertising expenses, selling costs, provisions for
doubtful recewables and indirect overheads

1343 GVT, SFR, and Marec Telecom group

Separable components of bundled offers

Hevenues from telephone packages are recognized as multiple-component sales in accordance with 1AS 18 Revenues from the sale of
telecommunication eguipment (mobile phones and other equipment), net of discounts granted to customers through the distribution channel,
are recognized upon activation of the line Revenues from telephone subscriptions are recagnized on a straight-line basis over the subscription
contract period Revenues from incomuing and cutgaing traffic are recogmzed when the service 1s rendered

Customer acquisition and loyalty costs for mobile phones, principally consisting of rebates on the sale of equipment to customers through
distributors, are recognized as a deduction from revenues Customer acquisition and loyalty costs consisting of premiums not related to the
sale of equipment as part of telephone packages and commissions paid to distnbutors are recognized as selling and general expenses

Equipment rentals

IFRIC 4 - Determining Whether an Arrangement Contains a Lease applies to equipment far which a nght of use 1s granted Equipment lease
revenues are generally recognized on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease agreement

Content sales

Sales of services provided to customers managed on behalf of content providers (mainly premium rate numbers) are either accounted for
gross, or net of the content providers’ fees when the provider 1s responsible for the content and for setting the price payable by subscribers

Custom contracts

Service access and instaliation costs invoiced primanly to the operator’s clients on the nstallation of services such as a broadband
connection, bandwidth service or IP cannection are recognized over the expected duration of the contractual relationship and the supply of the
primary service

Access to telecommunication infrasiructure 1s provided to clients pursuant to vanous types of contracts lease arrangements, hosting
contracts or Indefeasible Right of Use {IRU} agreements IRU agreements, which are specific to the telecommunication sector, confer an
exclusive and irrevacable right to use an asset {cables, fiber optic or bandwidth) during a (generally lengthy) defined period withaut a transfer
of ownerstup of the asset Revenue generated by leases, hosting contracts in the Netcenters and IRU agieements 1s recognized over the
duration of the corresponding contract, except in the case of a finance lease whereby the equipment 1s considered as a sale on credit

In the case of {RU agreements and certain lease or service contracts, services are paid in advance the first year Where the contract 1s not
guahfied as a finance lease, these non-refundable advance payments are recorded as deferred income and recognized ratably over the
contract term The deferral period 1s thus between 10 and 25 years for !RU agreements and betwsen 1 and 25 years for leases or service
contracts
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Costs of revenuves

Costs of revenues comprise purchasing costs {including puichases of mobile phones), interconnection and access costs, network, and
equipment costs Setling, general and administrative expenses notably include commercial costs relating to marketing and customer care
expenses

1344 Other

Provisions for estimated returns and price guarantees are deducted from sales of products to customers through distnibutors They are
estimated based on past sales statistics and they take into account the economic environment and product sales forecast to final customers

The recognition of awards associated with loyalty programs in the form of free or discounted goods or services are recorded according
to IFRIC 13 Loyalty programs of SFR [valid untl the third quarter of 2012), Marac Telecom, and Canal+ Group grant to existing customers
awards in the form of free services, according to the length of the relationship with the customer and/or loyalty points for subsequent
conversion Into either handset renewal subsidies, or free services IFRIC 13 - Interpretation 1s based upon the principle of measuring loyalty
awards by reference to their fair value Fair value 1s defined as the excess price over the sales incentive that would be granted to any new
customer and, should any such excess price exist, would result in defernng the recognition of the revenue associated with the subscription in
the amount of such excess price

Selhing, general and admimstrative expenses pnmanly include satanes and employee benghts, rent, consulting and service fees,
Insurance costs, travel and entertainment expenses, administrative department costs, provisions for receivables and other operating
expenses

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred

Slotting fees and cooperative advertising expenses are recorded as a reduction in revenues However, cooperative advertising at UMG
I1$ treated as a marketing expense and expensed when its expected benefit1s individualized and can be estimated

135 Assets
1351 Capitalized financial interest

Until December 31, 2008, Vivend: did not capitalize financial interest incurred during the construction and acquisition penod of intangible
assets, and property, plant and equipment Since January 1, 2009, according to amended IAS 23 - Borrowing Costs, this interest 1s included i
the cost of qualifying assets Vivendi apples this amendment to qualifying assets for which the commencement date for capitalization of
costs 1s January 1, 2009 onwards

1.35.2 Goodwill and business combinations

Business combinations from January 1, 2009

Business combtnations are recorded using the acquisition method Under this method, upon the imittal consolidation of an entity over which
the group has acquired exclusive control

+ the dentifiable assets acquired and the habilities assumed are recognized at their fair value on the acquisition date, and
+ non-controlling Interests are measured either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s propartionate share of the acquiree’s
net (denufiable assets This option 1s avarlable on a transaction-by-transaction basis

0On the acquisition date, goodwill 15 inttially measured as the difference between
{1) the fair value of the consideration transferred, plus the amount of non-controlling interests in the acquiree and, 10 a business
combination achieved In stages, the acquisition-date fair value of the previously held equity interest in the acquiree, and
() the net farr value of the identifiable assets and liabilities assumed on the acquisition date

The measurement of non-controlling interests at fair value results n an increase in goodwili up to the extent attnbutable to these interests,
thereby leading to the recognition of a “full gaodwill” The purchase price allocation shall be performed witin 12 months after the acquisition
date If goodwall 15 negative, 1t 1s recognized in the Statement of Earings Subsequent to the acquisiion date, goodwill 1s measured at its
initial amount less recorded accumulated impairment losses (please refer to Note 1 3 5 7 below)
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In addition, the following principles are applied to business combinations

= on the acquisition date, to the extent possible, goodwill 1s allocated to each cash-generating unit likely to benefit from the business
combination,
e contingent cansideration i a business combination 15 recorded at fair value on the acquisition date, and any subsequent adjustment
occurning after the purchase price allocation period 1s recognized in the Statements of Earnings,
acquisition-related costs are recognized as expenses when ncurred,
in the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, Vivends recognizes the difference between the acquisition
price and the carrying value of non-controlling Interests acquired as a change in equity attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners, and
« goodwll is not amortized

Business combinations prior to January 1, 2008

Pursuant to IFRS 1, Vivend: elected not to restate business combinations that occurred prior to January 1, 2004 IFRS 3, as published by the
IASB in March 2004, retaned the acquisition method However, its provisions differed from those of the rewised standard on the mam
following 1tems

= monty interests were measured at their proportionate share of the acquiree’s net identifiable assets as there was no option of
measurement at fair value,

» contingent consideration was recognized in the cost of acquisition only (f the payment was likely to occur and the amounts could be
reliably measured,
transaction costs that were directly attributable to the acquisition formed part of acquisition costs, and
In the event of the acquisition of an additional interest in a subsidiary, the difference between the acquisition cost and the carrying
value of minority interests acquired was recognized as goodwill

1353 Content assets

Canal+ Group
Film, television ar sports broadcasting rights

When entering into contracts for the acquisition of film, television or sports broadcasting nghts, the nghis acquied are classified as
contractual commitments They are recorded in the Statement of Financial Position and classified as content assets as follows

» film and television broadcasting nights are recognized at their acquisition cost, when the program 1s available for screening and are
expensed aver their broadcasting period,

= sports hroadcasting nights are recognized at their acquisition cost, at the opening of the broadcasting penod of the related sports
season or upon the first payment and are expensed as they are broadcast, and

» expensing of film, televtsion or sports broadcasting nghts 1s included i cost of revenues

Theatnical film and television nights produced or acquired to be sold

Theatrical film and telewision nights produced or acquired before their imitial exiibition, to be sold, are recorded as a content asset at
capitalized cost (matnly direct production and overhead costs} or at their acquisition cost  Theatrical film and telewision nights are amortized
and other related costs are expensed, pursuant to the estimated revenue method (1e, based on the ratio of the current penod's gross
revenues to estimated total gross revenues from all sources on an individual production basis} Vivend: considers that amartization pursuant to
the estimated revenue method reflects the rate at which the entity plans to consume the future economic benefits related to the asset
Accumnulated amortization under this rate 1s, far this activity, generally not lower than the charge that would be obtained under the straight-
line amortization method If, however, the accumulated amortization weuld be lower than this charge, a mimimum straight-ine amortization
would be calculated over a maximum 12-year pertod, which corresponds to the typical screening period of each film

Where appropriate, esbmated losses in value are provided in full against earnings for the period 1n which the fesses are estimated, on an
individual product basis

Film and television rights catalogs

Catalogs are compnised of film nghts acquired for a second television exhibitton, or produced or acquired film and television nights that are
sold after their first television screening (1 e, after thewr first broadeast on a free terrestnal channel} They are recognized as an asset at therr
acquisitton or transfer cost and amortized as groups of films, or individually, based respectively on the estimated revenue method
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UMG

Music publishing nghts and catalegs include music catalogs, artists’ contracts and pubhishing nghts, acquired through business combinations,
amortized 1n selting, general and administrative expenses over a period not exceeding 15 years

Royalty advances to artists, songwriters, and co-publishers are capitalized as an asset when their current popularity and past performances
provide a reasonable basis to conclude that the probable future recoupment of such royalty advances aganst eamings otherwise payable to
them 1s reasonably assured Royalty advances are recognized as an expense as subsequent royalties are earned by the artist, songwriter or
co-publisher Any portion of capitalized royalty advarces not deemed to be recoverable against future royalties 1s expensed during the period
in which the loss becomes evident These expenses are recorded in cost of revenues

Royalties earned by artists, songwniters, and co-publishers are recognized as an expense in the penod duning which the sale of the product
oceurs, less a provision for estimated returns

1354 Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed when incurred Development expenses are capitalized when the feasibility and, \n particular, profitability of the
project can reasonably be considered certain

Cost of internal use software

Direct internal and external costs incurred for the development of computer software for mternal use, including website development costs,
are capitalized during the application development stage Application development stage costs generally include software configuration,
coding, nstallation and testing Costs of significant upgrades and enhancements resulting n additional functionality are also capitalized
These capitalized costs, mainly recognized at SFR, are amortized over 4 years Maintenance and minor upgrade and enhancement costs are
expensed as incurred

1355 Otherintangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are recorded at cost, and intangible assets acquired in connection with a business combination are
recorded at therr fair value at the acquisition date The historical cost model 1s applied to intangible assets after they have been recognized
Assets with an indefinite useful life are not amortized but are all subject to an annual imparrment test Amortization 1s acerued for assets with
a finite useful life Useful life 1s reviewed at the end of each reporting period

Other mtangible assets include trade names, customer bases and heenses Music catalogs, trade names, substnbers’ bases and market
shares generated internally are not recognized as intangible assets

GVT, SFR, and Maroc Telecom group

Licenses ta operate telecom networks are recorded at historical cost based upon the discounted value of deferred payments and amortized on
a straight-line basis from their effective service start date over their estmated usefu! life unti! matunty Licenses to operate in France are
recognized in the amount of the fixed, upfront fee paid upon the granting of the license The vanable fee, which cannot be reliably determined
{equal to 1% of the revenues generated by the actvity In the case of the telecommunication licenses in France), 15 recorded as an expense
when incurred

1356 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at histoncal cost less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses Historical cost includes
the acquisition cost or production cost, the costs directly attributable to transporting an asset to its physical location and preparing 1t for use
In operations, the estimated costs for the demolition and the collection of property, plant and equipment, and the rehabilitation of the physical
location resulting from the incurred obligation

When property, plant and equipment include significant components with different useful lives, they are recorded and amortized separately
Amortization 1s computed using the straight-line method based on the estimated useful hfe of the assets Useful life 15 reviewed at the end of
each reporting penod
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Property, plant and equipment mainly consist of the network equipment of telecommunications actwities, each part of which is amortized
generally over 1 to 50 years The useful lives of the main components are as follows

butldings aver 8 to 25 years,
fiber optic equipment 50 years,
pylons over 15 to 20 years,
radio and transmission equipment over 3 to 10 years,
switch centers B years, and

» servers and hardware over 1to 8 years
Assets financed by finance lease contracts are capitalized at the lower of the fair value of future minimum lease paymenits and of the market
value and the related debt is recorded as “Borrowings and other financial liabibties” In general, these assets are amortized on a staight-hne
basis over their estimated useful life, corresponding to the duration applicable to property, plant and equipment from the same category
Amortization expenses on assets acquired under such leases are included in amortization expenses

After initial recognition, the cost model (s applied to property, plant and equipment

Vivend: has elected not to apply the option available under IFRS 1, invelving the remeasurement of certain property, plant and equipment at
their fair value as of January 1, 2004

On January 1, 2004, in accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend decided to apply IFRIC Interpretation 4 - Determining whether an arrangement
contains a lease, which currently mainly applies to commercial supply agreements for the Canal+ Group and GVT sateliite capacity and for
GVT, SFR, and Maroc Telecom group telecommunications services

e Indefeasible Right of Use {IRU) agreements confer an exclusive and irrevocable night to use an asset during a defined period IRU
agreements are leases which convey a specific nght of use for a defined portion of the underlying asset in the form of dedicated
fibers or wavelengths IRU agreements are capitalized «f the agreement period covers the major part of the usefu! life of the
underlying asset IRU contract costs are capitalized and amortized over the contract term, and

+  Some iRU contracts are commercial service agreements that do not convey a night to use a specific asset, contract costs under these
agreements are consequently expensed as operationa! costs for the period

1357 Asset impairment

Each time events or changes in the ecanomic environment indicate a current nisk of impairment of goodwall, other intangible assets, property,
plant and equipment, and assets in progress, Vivend re-examines the value of these assets In addition, goodwill, other intangible assets with
an indefimte useful life, and intangible assets in progress are all subject to an annual impairment test undertaken in the fourth quarter of each
fiscal year, with some exceptions This test 1s performed to compare the recoverable amount of each Cash Generating Unit (CGU} or, if
necessary, groups of CGU to the carrying value of the correspending assets {including goodwili) A Cash Generating Unit 1s the smallest
identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows fram other assets or groups of
assets The Vivend group operates through different communication businesses Each business offers different products and services that are
marketed through different channels CGUs are independently defined at each business level, corresponding to the group operating segments
Vivendi CGUs and groups of CGUs are presented in Note 10

The recoverable amount 15 determined as the higher of erther [1} the value n use, or {11} the faw value ({less costs to sell) as described
hereafter, for each individual asset if the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely ndependent of other assets or groups of
assets, the recoverable amount (s determined for the group of assets In particular, an impairment test of goodwill 1s performed by Vivend) for
each CGU or group of CGUs, depending on the level at which Vivendi Management measures return on operations

The value in use of each asset or group of assets 1s determined as the discounted value of future cash flows (discounted cash flow method
{DCF) by using cash flow projections consistent with the budget of the following year and the most recent forecasts prepared by the aperating
segments

Applied discount rates are determined by reference to avalable external sources of information, usually based on financial nstitutions’
benchmarks, and reflect the current assessment by Vivend: of the time value of money and risks specific to each asset or group of assets

Perpetual growth rates used for the evaluation of CGUs are those used to prepare budgets for each CGU or graup of CGUs, and beyond the
period covered, are consistent with growth rates estmated by the business by extrapolating growth rates used in the budgets, without
exceeding the long-term average growth rate for the markets in which the group operates

The fair value {less costs to sell} 1s the price that would be recewved fram the sale of an asset or group of assets in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, less costs to sell These values are determined on the basis of market data {stack
market prices or compansen with simiar listed companies, with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent transactions) or
on discontmued future cash flows in the absence of reliable data

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2013 Vivend: /56




Tuesday February 25, 2014

If the recoverable amount Is lower than the carrying value of an asset or group of assets, an impawrment loss equal to the difference 1s
recogmzed i EBIT In the case of a group of assets, this impairment loss 1s recorded first against goodwill

The impairment fosses recognized in respect of property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets (other than goodwill) may be reversed In
a later period if the recaverable amount becomes greater than the carrying value, within the hmit of impairment losses previously recogmized
Impairment losses recognized 1n respect of goodwill cannot be reversed at a later date

1358 Financial assets

Financial assets consist of financial assets measured at fair value and financial assets recognized at amortized cost Financial assets are
imitially recognized at the fair value corresponding, in general, to the consideration paid, for which the best evidence 1s the acqwisition cost
{including associated acquisition costs, If any)

Financial assets at fair value

Financial assets at fair value include avallable-for-sale securities, denvative financial instruments with a positive value {please refer to
Note 13 7) and other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss Most of these financial assets are actively traded in
organized public markets, their far value being calculated by reference to the published market price at penod end For financial assets for
which there exists no published market price in an active market, fair value 1s then estmated As a last resort, the group values financial
assets at historical cost, less any impairment losses, when a reliable estimate of fair value cannot be made using valuation techniques in the
absence of an active market

Avallable-for-sale secunties consist of unconsolidated interests and other secunties not qualifying for classification in the other financial
asset categonies described below Unrealized gans and losses on available-for-sale securities are recognized 1n charges and income directly
recognized In equity untl the financial asset 1s sold, collected or removed from the Statement of Financial Pasition in another way, or until
there 18 objective evidence that the investment 15 impaired, at which time the accumulated gain or loss previously reported in charges and
income directly recognized in equity 1s expensed in other financial charges and income

Other financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss mainly consist of assets held for trading which Vivend: intends to sell in
the near future (pnmarly marketable secunties}) Unrealized gains and losses on these assets are recognized in other financial charges and
Income

Financial assets at amortized cost

Financial assets at amortized cost consist of loans and receivables {primanly loans to affiliates and associates, current account advances to
equity affiliates and unconsolidated interests, cash deposits, secuntized loans and recevables, and other loans and receivables, and debtors)
and held-to-matunty investments {financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed matunity} At the end of each perod, these
assets are measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method If there 1s objective evidence that an impairment loss has been
incurred, the amount of this loss, measured as the difference between the financial asset’s carrying value and its recoverable amount {equal
to the present value of estimated future cash flaws discounted at the financial asset’s initial effective interest rate), 1s recognized in profit or
loss Impairment losses may be reversed If the recoverable amount of the asset subsequently increases in the future

1359 Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or net realizable vafue Cost comprises purchase costs, production costs and other supply and
packaging costs They are usually computed at the weighted average cost method Net realizable value 15 the estimated selling price i the
normal course of business, less estimated completion costs and seliing costs

13510 Trade account receivables

Trade accounts recewable are initially recognized at far value, which generally equals the nominal value Provisions for impairment of
receivables are specifically evaluated in each business unit, generally using a default percentage based on the unpad amounts during one
reference penod related to revenues for this same period Thus, for the group’s businesses which are based partly or fully on subscription
{Canal+ Group, GVT, and SFR), the depreciation rate of trade account receivables 15 assessed on the bas:s of historica! account receivables
from former customers, pnmarly on a statistical basis In addition, account receivables fram customers subject to insolvency proceedings or
customers with whom Vivendr 1s involved 1n litigation or a dispute are generally impaired in full

13511 Cash and cash equivalents

The “cash and cash equivalents” category consists of cash n banks, manetary UCITS, which satisfy AMF positian No 2011-13, and other
highly hquid investments with imitial matunties of generally three months or less Investments in secunities, investments with initial matunties
of more than three months without the possibihty of early termination and bank accounts subject to restrictions (blocked accounts), other than
restnctions due to regulations specific to a country or activity sector (e g, exchange contrals), are not classified as cash equivalents but as
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financial assets Moreover, the histonical performance of the investments 1s monitored regularly to confirm their cash equivalents accounting
classification

136 Assets held for sale and discontinued operations

A non-current asset or a group of assets and liabilities 15 held for sale when its carrying value may be recovered principally through its
divestiture and not by its continued utilization To meet this definition, the asset must be available for immediate sale and the divestiture must
be highly probable These assets and habilities are recognized as assets held for sale and habilities associated with assets held for sale,
without offset The related assets recorded as assets held for sale are valued at the lowest value between the fair value (net of divestiture
fees} and the carrying value, or cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and are no longer depreciated

An operation |5 qualified as discontinued when 1t represents a separate major line of business and the critena for classification as an asset
held for sale have been met or when Vivend| has sold the asset Discontinued operations are reported on a single Iine of the Statement of
Earnings for the periods reported, compnising the earnings after tax of discontinued eperations until divestiture and the gain or loss after tax
on sale or fair value measurement, less costs to divest the assets and liabilities of the discontinued operations In addition, cash flows
generated by discontinued operations are reported on a separate line of the Statement of Consalidated Cash Flows for the relevant penods

Accounting principles and valuation methods applicahle specifically to Actvision Blizzard (video games), a business divested
in 2013

Revenue and related costs

The major portion of Activision Blizzard revenue 15 generated by the sale of boxes for video games, net of a provision for estimated returns and
price guarantees as well as rebates, If any Regarding video games with significant online functionality or Massively Multiplayer Online Role
Playing Games, revenues are recorded ratably over the estimated relationship period with the customer, usually and respectively beginning in
the month following the shipment or upon activation of the subscription The estimated relationship period with the customer over which
revenues are recagnized currently ranges fram a mmmum of five months to a maxmum of less than a year Costs of sales associated with
revenues from the sale of boxes for video games with significant online functionality are recorded ratably according to the same method as for
revenues

Content assets

Licensing activities and internally developed franchises are recognized as contents assets at their acquisition cost or development cost and
are amortized over therr estimated useful life on the basis of the rate at which the related econamic benefits are consumed This genarally
leads to an amortization period of 3 to 10 years for licenses, and 11 to 12 years for franchises

Cost of software for rental, sale or commercialization

Software development costs (videa games) are capitalized when, notably, the technical feasibility of the software is established and they are
deemed recoverable These costs are mainly generated by Activision Blizzard as part of the games development process and are amortized
using the estimated revenue method (1 e, based on the ratio of the current penod's gross revenues to estimated total gross revenues) for a
awven product, which generally leads to the amortization of costs over a maximum perod of 6 months commencing on a product’s release
date Non-capitalized software development costs are immediately recorded as research and development costs

13.7 Financial liabilities
Long-term and short-term borrowings and other financial hiabilities include

e bonds and credit facilities, as well as vanous other borrowings {including commercial paper and debt related to finance leases} and
related accrued interest,
obligations ansing 1n respect of commitments to purchase non-controlling interests,
bank overdrafts, and
the negative value of other dervative financial instruments Derivatives with positive values are recorded as financial assets in the
Statement of Financial Position

Borrowings

All borrowings are initially accounted for at fair value net of transaction costs directly attnbutable to the harrowing Borrowings bearing
interest are subsequently valued at amortized cost, applying the effective interest method The effective interest rate is the internal yield rate
that exactly discounts future cash flows over the term of the borrowing In addition, where the borrowing compnses an embedded derivative
{e g, an exchangeable bond) or an equity instrument {e g, a convertible bend), the amortized cost 1s calculated for the debt component only,
after separation of the embedded derivative or equity instrument In the event aof @ change i expected future cash flows {e g, redemption
garlier than ynitially expected), the amortized cost 1s adjusted against earnings to reflect the vatue of the new expected cash flows, discounted
at the inimial effective intergst rate
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Commitments to purchase non-cantrelling interests

Vivend has granted commitments to purchase non-controlling interests to certain shareowners of its fully consolidated subsidianes These
purchase commitments may be optional {e g . put eptrons) or firm {e g , forward purchase contracts)

The following accounting treatment has been adopted for commitments granted on or after January 1, 2009

* upon initiat recogrition, the commitment to purchase non-controlling interests (s recognized as a financial liability for the present
value of the purchase consideration under the put optton or forward purchase contract, mainly offset through the book vatue of non-
controlling interests and the remaining balance through equity attributable to Vivend: SA shareowners,

»  subsequent changes in the value of the commitment are recognized as a financial liability by an adjustment to equity attributable to
Vivendi SA shareowners, and

= upon matunity of the commetment, if the non-controlfing interests are not purchased, the entnes previously recogmzed are reversed,
if the non-controlling nterests are purchased, the amount recognized in financial liabilties 1s reversed, offset by the cash outflow
relating to the purchase of the non-controlling interests

Dernvative financial instroments

Vivendi uses denivative financial instruments to manage and reduce its exposure to fluctuatons in interest rates, and foreign currency
exchange rates All instruments are either listed on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties These
instruments include interest rate and currency swaps, and forward exchange contracts All these derivative financial instruments are used for
hedging purposes

When these contracts qualify as hedges for accounting purpeses, gains and losses ansing on these contracts are offset in earnings against
the gains and losses relating to the hedged item When the denvatwve financial instrument hedges exposures to fluctuations in the fair value
of an asset or a liability recognized in the Statement of Financial Pesition or of a firm commitment which 1s not recogrized in the Statement of
Financial Position, 1t 1s a fair value hedge The instrument Is remeasured at faw value i eamings, with the gains or losses ansmg on
remeasurement of the hedged portion of the hedged item offset on the same line of the Statement of Earnings, or, as part of a forecasted
transaction relating to a non-financial asset or liability, at the initial cost of the asset or hability When the denvative financial instrument
hedges cash flows, 1t 1s a cash flow hedge The hedging instrument 15 remeasured at fair value and the portion of the gain or loss that 15
determined 10 be an effective hedge s recogmzed through charges and income directly recogmized 1n equity, whereas its meffective portion 1s
recognized (n earnings, or, as part of a forecasted transaction on a non-financial asset or hability, they are recognized at the initial cost of the
asset or habiity When the hedged 1tem 15 realized, accumulated gains and losses recognized in equity are released to the Statement of
Earnings and recorded on the same line as the hedged item When the dervative financial instrument hedges a net investment in a foreign
operation, it 1s recognized In the same way as a cash flow hedge Dervative financial instruments which do net qualfy as a hedge for
accounting purposes are remeasured at fair value and resufting gains and losses are recognized directly in earnings, without remeasurement
of the underlying instrument

Furthermore, income and expenses relating to foreign currency instruments used to hedge highly probable budget exposures and firm
commitments contracted pursuant to the acquisition of editonal content nghts (ineluding sports, audiovisual and film nights) are recogmized in
EBIT Inall other cases, gans and losses arising on the fair value remeasurement of instruments are recognized in other financial charges and
INCOME

1.3.8 Other habhihities
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when, at the end of the reporting perrod, Vivendi has a legal obligation {legal, regulatory or contractual) or a
constructive obligation, as a result of past events, and 1t 1s probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be
required to setile the obligation and the obligation can be reliably estimated Where the effect of the time value of money 1s matenal,
provisions are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time vatue of
money 1f no reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation, no provision 1s recorded and a disclosure 1s made n the Notes to
the Consolidated Financial Statements

Employee henefit plans

In accordance with the laws and practices of each country in which it operates, Vivend! participates in, or maintains, employee benefit plans
providing retirement pensions, post-retirement health care, life insurance and post-employment benefits to eligible employees, farmer
employees, retirees and such of their beneficiares who meet the required conditions Retirement pensions are provided for substantially all
employees through defined contribution plans, which are mtegrated with local social secunty and mult-employer plans, or defined benefit
plans, which are generally managed via group penston plans The plan funding poltcy implemented by the group 1s consistent with applicable
government funding requirements and regulations
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Defined contribution plans
Contributions to defined contribution and multi-emptoyer plans are expensed during the year
Defined benefit plans

Defined benefit plans may be funded by investments in varnigus instruments such as insurance contracts or equity and debt investment
securities, excluding Vivend shares or debt instruments

Pension expenses and defined benefit obligations are calculated by independent actuaries using the projected umit credit method This method
15 based on annually updated assumptions, which include the probability of employees remaining with Vivend: until retrement, expected
changes in future compensation and an appropriate discount rate for each country n which Vivend: maintains a pension plan The
assumptions adopted in 2012 and 2013, and the means of determining these assumptions, are presented in Note 21 A provision 1s recorded in
the Statement of Financial Position equal to the difference between the actuar:al value of the related benefits (actuanal liability) and the fair
value of any associated plan assets, and includes past service cost and actuanal gains and {osses

The cost of defined benefit plans consists of 3 components recognized as follows

» the service cost 15 ncluded 1n selling, general and administrative expenses It compnises current service cost, past service cost
resulting from a plan amendment or a curtallment, immediately recogmized in profit and loss, and gains and |osses on settlement,

« the financial component, recorded in other financial charges and ncome, consists of the undiscounting of the obligation, less the
expected return on plan assets determmed using the discount rate retained for the valuatron of the benefit obligation, and

o the remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability (asset), recogmized in items of ather comprehensive income not reclass:fied
to profit and loss, mainly consist of actuanal gains and losses, 1 & changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation and
plan assets resulting from changes in actuarial assumptions and experience adjustments {representing the differences between the
expected effect of some actuarial assumptions applied to previous valuations and the effective effect)

Where the value of plan assets exceeds benefit obligations, a financial asset 1s recognized up to the present value of future refunds and the
expected reduction in future contnbutions

Some other post-employment benefits, such as hfe insurance and medical coverage {mainly in the United States) are subject to provisions
which are assessed through an actuanal computation comparable to the method used for pension provisions

On January 1, 2004, 1n accordance with IFRS 1, Vivend: decided to record unrecognized actuanal gains and losses against consolidated equity

139 Deferred taxes

Differences existing at closing between the tax base value of assets and labilities and therr carrying value in the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position give rise to temporary differences Pursuant to the hiability method, these temporary differences result in the accounting of

e deferred tax assets, when the tax base value I1s greater than the carrying value {expected future tax saving), and

= deferred tax liabilities, when the tax base value 15 lower than the carrying value (expected future tax expense)

Deferred tax assets and labilities are measured at the expected tax rates for the year during which the asset will be realized or the hability
settled, based on tax rates {and tax regulations} enacted or substantially enacted by the closing date They are reviewed at the end of each
year, in ine with any changes in applicable tax rates

Deferred tax assets are recogmized for all deductble temporary differences, tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, insofar as it 1s
probable that a taxable profit will be available, or when a current tax liability exists to make use of these deductible temporary differences,
tax loss carry-forwards and unused tax credits, except where the deferred tax assat associated with the deductible temparary difference s
generated by initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction which 1s not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date,
does not impact earnings, Nor tax income or loss

For deductible temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
assets are recorded to the extent that it 1s probable that the temporary difference will reverse in the foreseeable future and that a taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary difference can be utiized

The carrying value of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each closing date, and revalued or reduced to the extent that it 1s more or less
probable that a taxable profit will be available to allow the deferred tax asset to be utiized When assessing the probability of a taxable profit
being avallable, account 18 taken, pnmanly, of prior years' results, forecasted future resuits, non-recurring items untikely to oceur 1n the future
and the tax strategy As such, the assessment of the group’s ability to utilize tax losses carried forward 15 to a large extent judgment-based If
the future taxable results of the group proved to differ significantly from those expected, the group would be required to increase or decrease
the carrying value of deferred tax assets with a potentially matenal impact on the Statement of Financial Position and Statement of Earnings
of the group
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Deferred tax habilities are recognized for all taxable temparary differences, except where the deferred tax hability results from goodwill or
nitial recogmition of an asset or liability in a transaction which 15 not a business combination, and that, at the transaction date, does not
impact earnings, nor tax (ncame or loss

For taxable temporary differences resulting from investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and other associated entities, deferred tax
habilities are recorded except to the extent that both of the following conditions are satisfied the parent, investor or venturer s able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference and 1t 1s probable that the temporary difference will not be reversed in the
foreseeable future

Current tax and deferred tax shall be charged or credited directly to equity, and not earnings, if the tax relates to items that are credited or
charged directly to equity

1.310 Share-based compensation

With the aim of aligning the interests of its executive management and employees with its shareholders’ interests by providing them with an
additionat incentive to improve the company’s performance and increase its share price on a long-term basis, Vivendi maintains several share-
based compensation plans (share purchase plans, performance share plans, and bonus share plans) or other equity instruments based on the
value of the Vivend share price {stock options), which are settled either in equity instruments or 1 cash Grants under these plans are
approved by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board In addition, the definitive grant of stock options and performance shares 1s
contingent upon the achievement of specific performance objectives fixed by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board Moreover, all
granted plans are conditional upon active empioyment at the vesting date

In addit:on, Universal Music Group maintans Equity Long-Term Incentive Plans Under these plans, certain key executives are awarded equity
umts, which are settled in cash These equity units are phantom stock units whose value 1s intended to reflect the value of Universal Music
Group

Please refer to Note 22 for details of the features of these plans

Share-based compensation 1s recognized as a personnel cost at the faw value of the equity instruments granted This expense is spread over
the vesting perod, 1e 3 years for stock option plans and 2 years for performance shares and bonus share plans at Vivendi, other than in
specific cases

Vivend use a binomial model to assess the far value of such instruments This method relies on assumptions updated at the valuation date
such as the computed volatility of the relevant shares, the discount rate corresponding to the nisk-free interest rate, the expected dividend
yield, and the probability of relevant managers and employees remaining employed within the group until the exercise of their nghts

However, depending on whether the equity instruments granted are equity-settled or cash-settled, the valuation and recagnition of the
expense will differ

Equrty-settled instruments
« the expected term of the option granted s deemed to be the mid-point between the vesting date and the end of the contractual
term,
» the value of the instruments granted 15 estimated and fixed at grant date, and
» the expense 15 recognized wath a corresponding ingrease in equity

Cash-settled instruments

» the expected term of the instruments granted s deemed to be equal to one-half of the residual contractual term of the instrument
far vested rights, and to the average of the residual vesting period at the remeasurement date and the residual contractual term of
the instrument for unvested nghts,

e the value of instruments granted 1s initially estimated at grant date and 1s then re-estimated at each reporting date until the
payment date and the expense 1s adjusted pro rata taking into account the vested rights at each such reporting date,

¢ the expense Is recogmized as a provision, and

« moreaver, as plans settled in cash are pnmanly denominated in US dollars, the value fluctuates based on the EUR/USD exchange
rate

Share-hased compensation cost 1s allocated to each operating segment, pro rata the number of equity mstruments ar equivalent instruments
granted to their managers and employees

The dilutive effect of stock options and performance shares settled in equity through the 1ssuance of Vivend: shares which are in the pracess
of vesting 15 reflected in the calculation of diluted earnings per share

In accerdance with IFRS 1, Vivend: elected ta retrospectvely apply IFRS 2 as of January 1, 2004 Consequently, all share-based compensation
plans for which nights remained to be vested as of January 1, 2004 were accounted for in accordance with IFRS 2
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14 Related parties

Group-related parties are those companies over which the group exercises exclusive control, joint control or significant influence,
shareholders exercising joint control over group joint ventures, non-controlling interests exercrsing significant influence over group
subsidiaries, corporate officers, group management and directors and companies over which the fattar exercise exclusive control, joint contral,
or sigmficant influence

The transactions realized with subsidiaries over which the group exercises a contrel are eliminated in the ntersegment operations [a list of
the principal consolidated subsidianes 1s presented 1n Note 29} Moreover, commercial relationships among subsidiaries of the group,
aggregated n operating segments, are conducted on an arm's length basis undes terms and conditions siular to those which would be
offered by third parties The operating costs of Vivend: SA’s headquarters in Pans and of its New York City office, after the allocation of a
partion of these costs to each of the group’s businesses, are included in the Holding and Corporate operating segment (Please refer to Note 3
for a detatled description of the transactions between the parent company and the subsidiaries of the group, aggregated by operating
segments)

15 Contractual obligations and contingent assets and liabilities

Once a year, Vivend, and its subsidiaries prepare detalled reports on all material contractual obligations, commercial and finangial
commitments and contingent obligations, for which they are sointly and severally liable These detailed reports are updated by the refevant
departments and reviewed by semor management on a regular basis To ensure completeness, accuracy and consistency of these reports,
some dedicated internal control procedures are performed, including (but not imited to) the review of
» minutes of meetings of the shareholders, Management Board, Supervisory Board and committegs of the Supervisory Board in
respect of matters such as contracts, htigation, and authorization of asset acquisitions or divestitures,
pledges and guarantees with banks and financial institutions,
pending litigation, claims {in dispute) and environmental matters as well as related assessments for unrecorded contingencies with
internal and/or external legal counsels,
tax examiner’s reports and, If applicable, notices of reassessments and tax expense analyses for prior years,
insurance coverage for unrecorded contingencies with the risk management department and insurance agents and brokers with
whom the group contracted,
e related-party transactions for guarantees and other given or received commitments, and more generally
s major contracts and agreements

1.6 New IFRS standards and IFRIC interpretations that have been published but are not yet effective

The \FRS standards that have been published by the 1ASB, which are not yet eifective but which have been applied in anticipation are detailed
inNote 11

Among other IFRS accounting standards and IFRIC interpretations issued by the IASB/IFRIC at the date of approval of these Consolidated
Financial Statements, but which are not yet effective, and for which Vivend: has not elected for an earlier application and which may have an
impact on Vivend include maily IFRIC 21 interpretatron Levies, 1ssued by IFRIC on May 20, 2013, which applies mandatonly from January 1,
2014 IFRIC 21 addresses the accounting for a hability to pay a levy that is imposed by governments on entities in accordance with legislation
{re. laws and/or regulations), except for income tax and value-added taxes Applying this interpretation would lead to modifying, where
necessary, the determination of the obligating event that tniggers the recognition of the liafility

Vivend 15 currently assessing the potential impact on the Statement of Comprehensive income, the Statement of Financial Positien, the
Statement of Cash Flows, and the content of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements in applying this interpretation

Financial Report and Audrited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31,2013 Vivend: /62




Tuesday, February 25, 2014
Note 2 Major changes in the scope of consolidation

Ongoing strategic review

As publicly announced to shareholders on several occasions in 2012 and 2013, Vivendi's Management Board and Supervisory Board are
carrying out a review of the group’s strategic development In 2013, Vivendi sold most of 1ts interest in Activision Blizzard and entered into a
defimtive agreement with Etisalat to sell its interest in Maroc Telecom The group has decided to focus on its media and content activities,
which hold leading positions and are taking advantage of the growing digital market It has strengthened its presence in Canal+ France, now
fully owned Vivendi 15 also reshaping SFR The operator has begun to benefit from its transformation plan, by re-taking the commercial lead
and by reducing costs SFR has also entered into an agreement to share part of its mobile netwark with Bouygues Telecom, allowing 1t to offer
better coverage and strengthened service quality to its customers Based on this, the group aims to position the future Vivend: as a dynamic
player in media and content With SFR, 1t intends to participate in the recrgamization of the telecommunication sector in France, exploning
actively all potential opportunities

During the second half of 2013, the group reached important strategic milestones

+ onOctober 11, 2013, Vivendi completed the sale of 88% of its interest in Actviston Blizzard for $8 2 bullion {or €6 billion), 10 cash In
addition, Vivendi retained 83 million Activision Blizzard shares, representing 11 9% of Actvision Blizzard's outstanding share
capital, which are subject to a staggered 15-month tock-up penod,

+ on November 4, 2013, Vivendi entered into a definitive agreement with Etisalat for the sale of Vivendi's 53% interest in Maroc
Telecom group for €4 2 billion in cash, including a £310 million dividend distnbution with respect to fiscal year 2012, according to
the financial terms known to date Completion of this transaction 1s contingent upon the satisfaction of certain closing conditions,
including receipt of required regulatory approvals in Morocco and the countnes in which Maroc Telecom group operates, as well as
finahzation of the shareholders” agreement between Etisalat and the Kingdom of Morocco This transaction 15 expected to be
completed during the first months of 2014 {please refer to Note 7}, and

« on November b, 2013, Vivend: acquired Lagardére Group’s 20% snterest in Canal+ France for €1,020 million in cash

As a result of the sale of Activision Blizzard, Vivendi has begun to significantly reduce its debt dunng the fourth quarter of 2013 by
implementing & US dollar and euro bond repurchase program in an aggregate amount of €3 billron, thus gaining greater financial flexibilty
(please refer to Note 24)

2.1 Planned demerger of the group

On November 26, 2013, Vivend''s Superviscry Board approved the group's planned demerger to form two separate companies (1) a new
international media group based in France, with very strong positions in mustc {as the worldwide leader), in European cinema, n pay-TV In
France, Africa, Vietnam, and Poland, and in the Internet and associated services in Brazil, and (1) SFR The decision to implement this project
could be taken in the near future and, If appropriate, submitted to the General Shareholders' Meeting for approval on June 24, 2014

Vivend considers that the conditions for the application of IFRS 5 to the proposed demerger in the 2013 Financial Statements are not met

2.2 Acquisition of Lagardére group’s non-controlling interest in Canal+ France

On November 5, 2013, Vivend: acquired Lagardére Group's 20% interest in Canal+ France, for €1,020 million in cash In accordance with IFRS
10, Vivend: recorded this transaction as an acquisition of a non-controlling interest The difference between the consideration paid and the
carrying value of acquired non-controlling interest was recorded as a deduction from eguity attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners
{-€636 mullion) In addition, Vivend: and Lagardare Group have settled all disputes between them [please refer to Note 28) Thereafter, Canal+
France S A was merged with and into Canal+ Group S A . pursuant to a simphfied merger, with retroactive effect to January 1, 2013

2.3 Completion of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by Vivendi and Universal Music Group (UMG)

As a reminder, an September 28, 2012 Vivendr and UMG completed the acquisition of 100% of the recorded music business of EMI Group
Global Limited (EMI Recorded Music) EMI Recorded Music has been fully consolidated since that date The purchase price, in enterprise
value, amounted to £1,130 million {€1,404 million} The authonzation by the European Commission was notably conditional upon the
divestment of the Parlophene, Now, and Mute labefs In accordance with IFRS 5, Vivend: reported these assets as assets held for sale at
market value [less costs to sell), in the Statements of Financial Position, until completion of the sale

On February 7, 2013, Vivend and UMG announced that they had entered into an agreement for the sale of Parlophone Labe! Group to Warner
Mustic Group for an enterprise value of £487 million to be paid in cash Foliowing the approval by the European Commission on May 15, 2013,
the sale of Parlophone Label Group was completed on July 1, 2013 and Vivends received a consideration of £501 mithon (€52 mithon),
including the provisional estimated contractual price adjustments (£14 mullion}

Moreover, the divestments of Sanctuary, Now, and Mute were completed
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The aggregate amount of divestments made in compliance with the conditions rmposed by the regulatory authorities in connection with the
acquisition of EMI Recorded Music was £543 million, less costs to sell (approximately €679 million, including €39 millien 10 gains on foreign
exchange hedging and a consideration in the amount of £19 million remaining payable as of December 31, 2013}

Finalization of the purchase price allocation

UMG finalized the purchase price allocation of EMI Recarded Music within a 12-month period as requued by accounting standards the
purchase pnice, using the fair value of assets acquired and habilities incurred or assumed, was based on analyses and appraisals prepared by
UMG with the assistance of third-party appraisers, when appropriate The major acquired assets were the music catalogs, amortized over a
period of 15 years and artist contracts, amortized over a period of 10 years

In 2013, goadwill was adjusted by €57 million and the final goadwail amount of EMI Recorded Music amaunted to €358 million, following the
finalization of the purchase pnce allocation as presented below

(n malhions of euros) September 28, 2012
Canrying value of EMI Recorded Music's assets and hiabihties acquired by Vivendi (A) {333)
Fair value ad)ustments of EMI Recorded Music's acquired assets and liabvlities incurred or assumed

Music rnights and catalog 1,046

Deferred income tax, net (321}

Other {18)
Total {B) 707
Fair value of EMI Recorded Music's acquired assets and hiabilities incurred or assumed {C=A+B) 374
Fair value of EMi Recorded Music's assets and labilities sold 672
Goodwill 358
Purchase price of 100% of EMI Recorded Music 1.404

24 Strategic partnership among the Canal+ Group, [T, and TVN in Poland
On MNovember 30, 2012, Canal+ Group, ITl, and TVN finalized the combinatian of their Polish Pay-TV platforms

Acquisition of ITI Neovision “n”

Following the merger of Canal+ Cyfrowy {Canal+ Group's Cyfra+ platform} with ITI Neovision {TVN's "n” platform), Canal+ Group holds a 51%
mterest 1 the new structure “nc+” (compared to a previous 75% interest wn Canal+ Cyfrowy) As Canal+ Group has the majonty on the
Supervisory Board and the power to govern the financial and operating policies of "n”, the fatter has been fully consolidated by Canal+ Group
since November 30, 2012

The purchase price for the 100% nterest (n “n” amounted to €268 million The goodwill of “n” was valued according to the full goodwll
method Canal+ Group finalized the purchase price allocation within @ 12-maonth period as required by accounting standards the purchase
price consists of the fair value of the assets acquired and the liabilities incurred or assumed on the basis of analysis and estimates undertaken
by Canal+ Group, with the assistance of third-party appraisers, when appropnate The main assets acquired were a subscriber base valued at
€33 million, amortized over a penod of 8 years, the brand, valued at €18 million, and tax losses carried forward of €69 millign In 2013,
goodwill was adjusted by -€75 million and the final goodwill of *n* amounted ta €138 milion

Acquisition of an interest in N-Vision

On November 30, 2012, Canal+ Group acquired a 40% interest in N-Vision, which indirectly holds a 52% interest in TVN On December 18,
2013, in accordance with the shareholders’ agreement, [Tl exercised its put option to sell to Canal+ Group a 9% interest in N-Vision's share
capital and voting nghts for £62 milhion, paid in cash in February 2014 Canal+ Group's ownership interest in N-Viston thus increased to 49%
(please refer to Note 27)

25 Other changes in the scope of consolidation

Acquisition of a 60% interest in Red Production Company

On December 5, 2013, Studiocanal acquired a 60% majority interest in Red Production Company, a British company which produces television
series
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26 Transactions underway as of December 31, 2013

Agreement to share a part of SFR's mobile access networks

On January 31, 2014, SFR and Bouygues Telecom entered into a strategic agreement to share a part of their mobile access networks, following a
period of negotiations announced 1n July 2013 They will roll out a new shared network in an area covenng 57% of the French population This
agreement will enable both operators to imprave their mobile coverage and generate significant savings over time

The agreement is based on two pnnciples
« the creation of a joint company, to manage the shared base station assets, and
* entry by the operatars into a RAN-sharing service agreement covering 2G, 3G, and 4G services in the shared area

This network-shaning agreement s similar to numerous arrangements already existing n other European countries Each operator will retain
its own innovation capacity as well as complete commercial and pricing independence

The network-sharing agreement took effect upen the signing of the agreement and the shared network 1s expected to be compieted by the end
of 2017

From an accounting perspective, this agreement had no impact on the accounts for fiscal year 2013

Acquisition of a 51% interest in Mediaserv by Canal+ Group

On July 12, 2013, Canal+ Overseas entered :nto an agreement with Loret Group to acquire a 51% majonity interest in Mediaserv, an overseas

telecom operator On February 10, 2014, the French Competition Authority approved this acquisition which was completed on February 13,
2014
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Note 3 Segment data

3.1 Operating segment data

The Vivendi group comanises several businesses that are teaders in the worlds of content, media, and telecommunications Fach business
offers different products and services that are marketed through different channels Given the umique customer base, technology, marketing
and distnbution requirements of each of these businesses, they are managed separately and represent the base of the internal reporting of
the group The Vivendi group has the following four main businesses

. Canal+ Groap. publishing and distribution of premium and thematic pay-TV channels as well as free-to-arr channels i metropolitan
France, Poland, francophone Africa, French overseas termitonies and Vietnam as well as cinema film production and distribution in
Europe,

»  Universal Music Group sale of recorded music, including that of EMI Recorded Music since September 78, 2012, {physical and
digital media), exploitation of music publishing nghts as well as artist services and merchandising,

e  GVT. aBrazilian fixed telecommunication and broadband Internet operator as wefl as a Brazilian pay-TV provider, and

«  SFR. a telecommunication operator {mobile, broadband Intemet, and fixed telecommunications) in France
Vivend Management evaluates the performance of these operating segments and allocates necessary resources to them based on certain
gperating indicators {segment earnings and cash flow from operations) Segment earnings relate to the EBITA of each business segment
Additionally, segment data is prepared according to the following principles

+ the operating segment "Other operations™ includes operatens peripheral to the group, notably, See Tickets (a British ticketing
company), Digitick ({the French leader in web ticketing), Wengo (the French leader in expert adwisory services by phone), and
Watchever {sale of digital content on the Internet, mainly in Germany},

«  the operating segment "Holding & Carporate” includes the cost of Vivendi SA’s headquarters in Panis and of its New York City
office, after the allocation of a portion of these costs to each of the businesses,

e |ntersegment commercial relations are corducted on an arm's length basis on terms and conditions similar to those which would be
offered by third parties, and

s the operating segments presented hereunder are strictly identical to the information given to Vivend!’s Management Board

In addition, Vivendi's interests in Activision Blizzard and Maroe Telecam group, discontinued businesses as of December 31, 2013 {please
refer to Note 7), are no longer reported in segment data as a result of the application of IFRS 5 {Non-current Assets Held for Sale and
Discontinued Operations)
- the 2012 Consolidated Statement of Earmings and 2012 Consclidated Statement of Cash Flows were adjusted to ensure consistency
of information, and
- Maroc Telecom group’s assets and liabibities were reclassified as unallocated assets as of December 31, 2013

Moreover, as of January 1, 2013, Vivend: applied, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012, amended IAS 19 (Employee Benefits),
whose application 1s mandatory in the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1)

For a detailed description of the adjustments made to the previcusly published Financial Statements, please refer to Note 33

As of December 31, 2013, Vivend alsa presented data categorized according to five geographic regians, consisting of 1ts four mawn geographue
markets (France, Rest of Europe, United States, and Brazil), as well as the rest of the world
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Consolidated Statements of Eamings
Yoar anded December 31 2013

{in milhons of evros}
Extemnal revenues

Intersegment revenues
Ravenues

Operating expenses excluding amortization and depreciaton as well as

charges related to share based compensation plans

Charges refated to share based compensation pians

EBITDA

Restructuring charges

Gains/{losses) on sales of tangible and intangible assets

Dther non-recurring nems

Depreciation of tangible assets

Amoruzanen of intangible assets excluding those acquireg through
business combinations

Adjusted eamings before isterest and income taxes {EBITA}
Amortizaten of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations

Impairment losses en intangible assets acquired through business
combinations

Other income

DOther chamges

Earnings bafora interest and incomo taxos (EBIT)

Income from equity affiliates

Interest

Income from investments

Other fingncial income

Other financial charges

Prowision for income taxes

Eamings from distontinued operations

Eam:ngs

Of winch

Eamings stinbitabla to Vivend: SA shareowners
Non-cantrolling interests
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Universal DOther Holding &
Canal+ Group Music Group GVT SFR aperations Corporate Ehminations  Total Vivands
5300 4882 1709 10174 0 - 1%
1 4 25 2 142)

5311 4886 1,109 10195 12 - &2) 22,135
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{50) {26) 2 m 5 - {74)
(156) {69) (281) {932) 2) (i} {1441)
{80) [21) {663} (2} 166y
11 511 405 1573 {80} {87} - 2,433
7 341} (46} (66) 2 {462}

[5) 2431) {1) (2437

89

157}

{435}

33

(528)

67

51

{567)
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FX L]
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Yaar gnded December 31 2012

{n mhans of euras)

External revenues

Intersegment revenues

Rovenues

Operating expenses excluding amort:zation and depreciation as well as
charges related to share based compensation plans

Charges related to share based compensation plans

EBITDA

Restrectunng chames

GainsAlosses} on sales of tangible and ntangible assets

Other non-recurmng items

Depreciation of tangible assets

Amortization of intangtble assets excluding those acquired through
business combinatiens

Adjusted earnings beforp interest and income taxes (EBITA)
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business
combinations

Impairment losses on intangibia assets acquired through business
combinations

Reserve accrual related to the Liberty Media Corporation lingation in the
Umted States

Other income

Other charges

E before and taxes (EBIT)
Income from equity affilates

Interest

Income from nvestments

Other financial income

Other financial chargas

Prowision for income taxes

Eamings from discontinued operations

Earnings

Of which

Earmings attnhutable to Vivend) SA shareowners
Non-controlling intarests
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Universal

Other Hedding &

Czna% Group Music Grovp GVT SFR operations Corpoate Elmingtions  Tota) Vivend:
4997 4538 1716 11264 62 - 22517

16 i 24 [ (50}
5013 4544 1,716 11,288 66 - {50} 257y
(4 061} (3854) {374 17 957} {73 (87) S0 {16 956)
12) 119) 12} 132) {1 19) [tAl]
540 33 780 3,29 [t 196) - 5550
{19 (187} 4] 1273
5| {1 i 9
12 118) 4 {26)
175) 152) 229 {868} 2) n {1327
(83) 122) {643} {4 - {752)
526 488 1,600 {14} {100} - 3163
{8) {306) (54) (66} ] [436)
(665) (34) {1] (760)
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Consolidated Statements of Financial Position

s el wio S S M i LA

(in millions of euros)
Dacembar 31 2013
Segment assats (a) 7500 4256 467 18304 251 154 391739

incl invastments in equity affthates 220 74 152 446
Unallocated assets {b) 1004
Tota) Assets 49 180
Segmant habdities f¢) 2631 2600 548 3699 78 5141 14 596
Unallocated habilites (d) 15454
Total Liabilities 30150
Ingreasa in tangiblg and intangble assets 713 54 776 1665 ] 17 zn7
Capital expenditures nat (capex net) () mn 26 769 1610 2| 2624
Decemhor 31 2012
Segment assets {a) 731 BB49 4199 5085 20776 5008 3% 185 52708

incl investments in equity affiliates 166 8 138 368
Unallocated assets {b} 6 B25
Total Assets 59,533
Segment hiabilities f¢) 2930 3587 1991 680 4085 16% 61 4152 19167
Unallocated liabiliues (d) 19075
Total Linblities 38242
Increase in tangible and mtangible asssts ax] 63 996 2785 [ 1 4064
Capital expenchtures net icapex netlie) 230 56 947 2736 B 1 3976

Additsanal aperating segment data is presented in Note 10 "Goodwili™ Ngte 11 “Conten: assets and commitments™ and Note 14 “Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operations”

a  Segment assets include goodwill content assets other intangible assets property pfantand equipment Investments in equity affiliates financial assets nveniornies and trade account recevables and
other

b Unallocated assets include deferred tax assets current 1ax receivables cash and cash equivalents as wall as assets held for sale As of December 31 2013 they also included Maroc Telecom group §
assets of discontinued businesses for €6 562 million and the remaiming 83 million Actision Blizzard shares held by Vivendi valued at €1 078 million {please refer to Nota 7)

¢ Segment hiabilities include prowisions other non-current leabilities end trade accounts payable

d  Unallpcated habihiues include borrowangs and other financial iabihties deferred tax liabiiies current tax payables as well as liabilities related to assets held for sale As of December 31 2013 they
also meluded Maroc Telecom group 5 hiabilities associated with assets of discontinued businesses for €2 429 milon {please refer to Note 7}

e Ralates to cash used for capital expenditures net of proceeds from sales of property plant and equipment, and intangible assets
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32 Geographic information

Revenues are broken down by the customers’ location

(in mutlions of euros)

Revenues
France
Rest of Europe
United States
Brazil

Rest of the World

(in millions of euras)

Segment assets
France
Rest of Europe
United States
Morocco
Brazil

Rest of the World

Year ended Degember 31,

2013 2012

14,662 66% 15,664 65%
2,465 1% 2,204 10%
1,883 9% 1,594 7%
1,776 8% 1,776 8%
1,348 6% 1,339 6%
22135 100% 22577 100%

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
24,950 64% 27,539 52%
2483 6% 2,666 5%
6,549 17% 10,815 21%
- - 4347 8%
4725 12% 5127 10%
432 1% 2,214 4%
39,139 100% 52,708 160%

Tuesday February 25 2014

In 2013 and 2012, acquisitions of tangible and intangible assets were mainly realized in France by Canal+ Group and SFR and in Brazil by

GVT

Note 4

Breakdown of revenues and cost of revenues

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) 2013 2012
Product sales, net 5,543 5228
Services revenues 16,564 17.285
Other 28 54
Revenues 22,135 22,517
Cost of products sold, net {3629) {3.592)
Cost of service revenues {9,367 {9,092}
Other 8 12
Cost of revenues {12,988} (12672)
Personnel costs and average employee numbers
Year ended December 31
{in mithons of euros except number of employees) Note 2013 2012
Annual average number of full-time equivalent employees (in thousands} 461 431
Salaries 1,978 1748
Socal secunty and other employment charges 624 585
Capnahzed personne! costs (176 {169}
Wages and expenses 2,426 2,164
Share-based compensation plans 221 58 N
Employee benefit plans 21 4 45
Other 156 199
Personnel costs 2,686 2419
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Additional information on pperating expenses
Advertising costs amounted to €611 million 1n 2013 (compared to €587 million in 2012)

Expenses recorded in the Statement of Earnings, with respect to service contracts related to satellite transponders amounted to €113 muthon
in 2013 {compared to €101 milhon 1n 2012) \

Net expense recorded n the Statement of Earnings, with respect to operating leases amounted to £504 milhon in 2013 (compared to
€492 million 1n 2012)

Amoertization and depreciation of intangible and tangrble assets

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) Nate 2013 2012
Amoruzation {excleding intangible assets acquired through business combinations) 2,207 2,079
of which property plant and equipment 13 1441 1327
content assets " 7z 27
other intangible assets 2 744 725
Amortization of intangible assets acquired through business combinations 462 436
of which content assats 11 339 301
other intangible assels 12 123 135
Impairment losses on mntangible assets acquwred through business combinations {al 10-4% 2437 750
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets 5,106 3.275

a  Manly relates to the impairment of SFR's goodwill {2,431 million} in 2013 and the impairment of Canal+ France’s goodwill
(€665 million} and certain goodwill and music catalogs of Universal Music Group (€94 mithion) in 2012

Other income and other charges

Year ended December 31,

{in mdlions of euros) 2013 2012
Capital gain on the divestiture of businesses 3 5
Capital gain on financial investments 37 7
Other 48 7

Other income 88 19

Downside adjustment on the divestiture of businesses - (3)
Downside adjustment on financial investments (31 {153}
af which impairment of Canal+ Group's N-Vision equity affihate - {119
Other (26 {80)
of which acquisition costs {8) {63)
Other charges (57) (236}

Net total 3 (217}

Financiat Report and Audited Consehdated Frnancial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2013 Vivend /71




Tuesday, February 25 2014

Note b Financial charges and income

Interest
Year ended December 31,
(i milltons of euros) 2013 2012
{Charge}/Income
Interest expense on borrowings (553) (572)
Interest income from cash and cash equivalents 25 28
Interest (528) {544)
Fees and prermums on borrowings and credit faciiities issued/redeemed and early unwinding
of hedging derwvative instruments {207) (15)
{735) {559}

Other financial income and charges

Year ended December 31

{in mithons of euros) Note 2013 2012
Expected return on plan assets related to employee benefit plans 212 13 13
Foreign exchange gain 38

of which GVT's euro borrowing to Vivend: SA 24 38
Change n value of dervative instruments - 23
Other - 1

Other financial incoms 51 kY
Effect of undiscounting habihties {a) [28) {31}
Interest cost related to employee benefit plans nz {33) (36}
Fees and premiums on borrowings and credit facilities issued/redeemed and early unwinding of
hedging dernivative instruments (207} {15}
Foreign exchange loss (270 {103)

of which GVT's euro borrowing to Vivendh SA 24 {224 {76}
Change n value of derivative instruments (1} -
Other (22) (19}

Other financial charges (561} {204

Net total (510} (167)

a  In accordance with accounting standards, when the effect of the time value of money I1s material, assets and liabilities are initially
recorded on the Statement of Financial Position 1 an amount corresponding to the present value of the expected revenues and
expenses At the end of each subsequent period, the present value of such assets and liabilities 1s adjusted to account for the passage
of tme As of December 31, 2013 and 2012, these adjustments only appled to habilities (mainly trade accounts payable and
provisions)
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Note 6 Income taxes

6.1

French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems

Vivendi SA benefits from the French Tax Group System and considers that it benefited, until December 31, 2017 inclusive, from the
Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, as authorized under Article 209 quinguies of the French Tax Code Therefore, since January 1, 2012,
Vivendi only benefits from the French Tax Group System

Under the French Tax Group System, Vivendi 1s entitled to consolidate 1ts own tax profits and losses with the tax profits and losses
of subsidianes that are at least 95% owned directly or indirectly, and that are located in France for 2013, thes applied to Umiversal
Music in France, SFR, and Canal+ Group

Until December 31, 2011, the Consclidated Global Profit Tax System entitled Vivendi to consolidate 1ts own tax profits and losses
with the tax profits and losses of subsidiaries that are at least 50% owned directly or indirectly, and that are located in France or
abroad, 1 e, besides the French companies that are at least 95% owned directly or indirectly by Vivendi Actwision Bhzzard,
Universal Music Group, Maroc Telecom, GVT, Canal+ France and its subsidiaries, as well as Société d'Edition de Canal Plus
{SECP} As a reminder, as of May 19, 2008, Vivend: applied to the French Ministry of Finance for the renewal of 1ts authonization to
use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System and an authonization was granted by an order dated March 13, 2009, for a three-
year period beginning with the taxable year 2009 and ending with the taxable year 2011

In addition, as a reminder, on July B, 2011, Vivend: lodged an appeal with the Ministry of Finance in relation to the renewal of its
authornization to use the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System for a 3-year period, from January 1, 2012 to December 31, 2014
The changes in French Tax Law in 2011 terminated the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System as of September 6, 2011 and capped
the deduction for tax losses carred forward at 60% of taxable income Since 2012, the deduction for tax losses carried forward 1s
capped at 50% of taxable income and the deductibility of interest is imited to 85% of financial charges, net (75% as from January
1, 2014)

The impact of the French Tax Group and Consolidated Global Profit Tax Systems on the valuation of Vivendi's tax attributes (tax losses and
tax credits carried forward) are as follows

as Vivend: considers that its entitlement to use the Conschidated Global Profit Tax System was effective until the end of the
authorization granted by the French Ministry of Finance, including fiscal year ending December 31, 2011, on November 30, 2012,
Vivend filed for a refund of £366 million with respect to the tax saving for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011 However, this
fiscal position s being challenged and in its Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, Vivend: accrued a
€366 millon provision for the associated risk, unchanged as of December 31, 2013 (please refer to Note 6 6),

moreaver, considering that the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System permitted tax credits to be carried forward upon the matunty
of the authorization on December 31, 2011, Vivend: requested a refund of the taxes due, under the French Tax Group System for
the year ended December 31, 2012, excluding social contributions and exceptional contributions, or €208 million, brought to
€220 million, when filing the tax return with respect to fiscal year ended December 31, 2012 This fiscal position may be
challenged and in 1ts Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2012, Vivendi accrued a €208 million provision for the
associated risk, brought to €220 million as of December 31, 2013 {please refer to Note 6 6, belows),

given the foregoing, as of December 31, 2012, Vivend: recorded tax attnbutes representing potential tax savings In the aggregate
amount cf €1,553 milhon {compared to €2,013 milhon as of December 31, 2011) On Fetruary 19, 2014, the date of the
Management Board meeting that approved the Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, the 2013 tax results
of the subsidianies within the scope of Vivendi SA’s French Tax Group System were determined by estimating, and as a result, the
amount of tax attributes as of December 31, 2013 could not be determined with certainty,

taking (nto account the impact of the estimated 2013 tax results and before the impact of the consequences of the ongomng tax
audits (please refer to Note 6 6} on the amount of tax attributes, Vivend: SA expects to achieve €1,527 million in tax savings from
tax attnbutes {undiscounted value based on the current iIncome tax rate of 38 00%!}, and

as of December 31, 2013, Vivendi SA valued its tax attributes under the French Tax Group System on the basis of ane year's
forecast results, taken from the following year's budget On this Dasis, Vivendi would achieve tax savings from the French Tax
Group System in an amount of €163 million {undiscounted value based on the current income tax rate of 38 00%)
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6.2 Provision for income taxes

fin mithons of euros)
{Charge)/Income
Current
Use of tax losses and tax credits
Tax savings related to Vivendr SA's French Tax Group System and to the
Consolidated Global Profit Tax System
Tax savings related to the US tax group
Adjustments to prior year's tax expense
Consideration of nsks related to previous years' income taxes
Other income taxes items

Deferred
Impact of Vivendi SA's French Tax Group System and of the Consolidated Giobal
Profit Tax System
Impact of the US tax group
Other changes in deferred tax assets
Impact of the change(s} In tax rates
Reversal of tax liabilities relating to risks extinguished over the period
Other deferred tax income/{expenses)

Provision for income taxes

Tuesday, February 25, 2014

Year ended December 31,

6.3 Provision for income taxes and income tax paid by geographic region

{in millions of euros)
{Charge)/Income
Current
France
United States
Brazil
Other junsdictions

Deferred
France
United States
Brazl
Other junsdictions

Provision for income taxes

Income tax {paid}/collected
France
United States
Brazil
Other junsdichions
Income tax paid

Note 2013 2012
61 415 381
25 20
(22) {10)
127 (22)
{715) {991)
{170) (622)
61 {161) (48}
(9 7
4] 1
12 -
{1130) 58
(247) 18
(417) (604}
Year ended December 31,
2013 2012
{83) {510)
8 {12)
{65) (88)
{30) (12}
(170} (622}
(282} {38)
(46} 20
K} (12)
50 48
(247) 18
(417) (604}
(22) {187}
(8) {10}
(104} {74)
{63) {82)
(197) {353)
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6.4 Effective tax rate

{in millions of euros, except %}
Earnings {before non-controlling interests)
Elmination

Income from equity affiliates

Earnings from discontinued operations

Provisien for income taxes

Earnings from continming operations before provision for income taxes
French statutory tax rate

Theoretical pravision for income taxes based on French statutory tax rate

Reconciliatien of the theoretical and effective provision for income taxes
Permanent differences
of which  other differences from tax rates
impacts of the changes in tax rates

Changes in deferred tax assets related to Vivendi SA's French Tax Group System
and to the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System

Other tax losses and tax credits
of which  use of current lpsses of the period
use of unrecognized losses and tax credits
unrecogmized losses

Other temporary differences
of which reserve accrual regarding the Liberty Madha Corporation litigation m the United States

Adjustments to prior year's tax expense
of which  constderation of nsks related to previous years' ncome taxes

Capital gain or loss on the divestiture of or downside adjustments on financial
investments or businesses
of which  impairment of SFR goodwilf
impairment of Canal+ France goodwill
impairment of Canal+ Group's N-Vision equity affiliate

Other

Effective provision for income taxes
Effective tax rate

6.5 Deferred tax assets and liabilities

Changes in deferred tax assets/(habilities), net

Tuesday, February 25, 2014

Year ended December 31,

{in mithons of euros)

Opening balance of deferred tax assets/{liabihties}
Prowision for income taxes (b}
Charges and income directly recorded in equity {c}
Business combinations
Divestitures in progress or completed
Changes in foresgn currency transtation adjustments and other

Closing balance of deferred tax assets/{liabulities)

2013 2012

27719 964
33 38
{4,635) {1,505)
417 604
{1,406) (14|
3800% 3610%
534 (36}
117 (152)

g {3)

41 !
{161) (48}
(211) 228

. 4

- 262

21y {38
ni (341)
341 {341)
124 (9}
139 {22}
(926) {313}

{924) -

- {240)

{43)

23 67
{77 {604)
-29 7% 598 0%

Year ended December 31,
2013 2012 {a}

15 9
(437} {8)
- 18
163 (278)
(206} -
79 3
53 454

a  Vivend applied from January 1, 2012, with retrospective effect from January 1, 2012, amended IAS 19 (Employee Benefits), whose
apphication 1$ mandatory in the European Union beginming on or after January 1, 2013 {please refer to Note 1) As a result, the 2012
Financial Statements were adjusted in accordance with the new standard {please refer to Note 33}
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b Includes income/{charge} related to Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group taxes in accordance with IFRS 5, these amounts
were reclassified to the line "Earmings from discontinued operations” in the 2013 and 2012 Consolidated Statement of Earnings

c Includes -€43 mullion recognized in other items of charges and income directly recognized in equity for the year ended
December 31, 2013, compared to +£22 miilion in 2012 {please refer to Note 9)

Components of deferred tax assets and habilites

{1n millions of euras) December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 (a)

Deferred tax assets
Deferred taxes gross

Tax attributes (b} 2623 2639
of which Vivend 5A fc) 1,527 1,567
US tax graup (d} 364 623
Temporary differences {8) 1,073 1,795
Netting (501) (366)
Deferred taxes, gross 3195 4,068
Deferred taxes, unrecognized
Tax attributes {b} (2,271} {2,138)
of which Vivend: 5A (¢} {1.364) {1,243}
US tax group {d) {364) {623}
Temporary differences [e) (191) (485)
Deferred taxes, unrecognized {2,462) {2,623)
Recorded deferred tax assets 733 1,435
Deferred tax liabihities
Purchase accounting asset revaluations {f) 591 901
Other 580 456
Netting (501} (366)
Recorded deferred tax habilies 680 M
Deferred tax assets/{hahilities), net 53 454

a Vivend: applied from January 1, 2013, with retrospective effect from January 1, 2012 amended I1AS 19 {Employee Benefits), whose
application 1s mandatory in the European Union beginning an or after January 1, 2013 {please refer to Note 1) As a result, the 2012
Financial Statements were adjusted in accardance with the new standard {please refer to Note 33)

b The amounts of tax attnbutes, as reported in this table, were estimated at the end of the relevant fiscal years In junsdictions which
are materal to Vivendi, mainly France and the United States, tax returns are filed at the latest on May 15 and September 15 of the
following year, respectively Thus, the amounts of tax attnbutes reported in this table and the amounts reported to the tax authorities
may differ significantly, and if necessary, may be adjusted at the end of the following year in the table above

t Relates to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attributes by Vivendi SA as head of the French Tax Group, representing
£€1,553 million as of December 31, 2012 (please refer to Note 6 1), of which £815 mitlion related to tax losses and £738 million related
to tax credits, after taking into account the estimated impact {-€26 million} of 2013 transactions {taxable income and use or expiration
of tax credits), but prior to taking into account the consequences of ongoing tax audits (please refer to Note 6 6 below)

in France, tax losses can be carred forward indefinitely and tax credits can be carned forward for a penod of up to 5-years In 2013,
£188 million tax credits matured as of December 31, 2013

d Relates to deferred tax assets recognizable in respect of tax attributes by Universal Music Group Inc 1n the United States as head of
the US tax group, representing $892 mitlion as of December 31 2012, after taking into account the estimated impact {-$393 million) of
2013 transactions [taxable income, capital losses, and tax credits that expired, capital losses and tax credits generated, as well as the
divestiture of Activision Blizzard), but pnor to taking into account the consequences of ongoing tax audits (please refer to Note 6 6)

As a reminder, with respect to the divestiture of Activision Blizzard and in accordance with U S tax rules, Vivend: allocated to the
acquirer a fraction of the tax attributes that 1t previously deferred tax losses were estimated at more than $700 million In addition,
the Universal Music Group Inc replaced the Vivend) Holding | Corp as head of the Tax Group System in the United States

In the United States, tax losses can be camed forward for a period of up to 20-years and tax credits can be carried forward for a period
of up to 10-years No tax credit will mature prior to December 31, 2022 and no tax credit matured as of December 31, 2013
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e Manly relates to the deferred tax assets related to non-deducted prowisions upon recognition, including provisions relating to
employee benefit plans, and share-based compensation plans

f These tax liabiities, generated by asset revaluations following the purchase price allocation of companies are terminated upon the
amortization or divestiture of the underlymg asset and generate no current tax charge

6.6 Tax audits

The fiscal year ended December 31, 2013 and prior years are open to tax audits by the respective tax authonties in the junsdictions in which
Vivend has or had operations Vanous tax authorities have proposed adjustments to the taxable income reported for prior years It 1s not
possible, at this stage of the current tax audits, to accurately assess the impact that could result from an unfavorable outcome of certain of
these audits Vivendi Management believes that these tax audits will not have a material and unfavorable impact on the financial position or
hquidity of the group

Regard:ng Vivendi SA, in respect of the Consolidated Global Profit Tax System, the consolidated incorne reparted for fiscal years 2006, 2007,
and 2008 s under audit by the French tax authorities This tax audit started n January 2010 r addition, wn January 2011, the French tax
authorities began a tax audit on the consolidated income reported for fiscal year 2009 and in February 2013, the French tax authoniies began
a tax audit on the consolidated income reported for fiscal year 2010 Finally, Vivend SA’s tax group System for the years 2011 and 2012
group 1s under audit since July 2013 Vivend: Management believes that 1t has serious legal means to defend the positions 1t has chosen for
the determination of the taxable income of the fiscal years under audit In any event, a provision for the impact of the Consolidated Global
Profit Tax System 1n 2011 has been accrued (€366 midlhon), as well as a prevision for the impact in relation to the use of tax credits in 2012
{€220 million} Moreover, the tax attributes recognized by Vivend) SA wath respect to the fiscal years under audit, representing tax savings of
£1.527 milion as of December 31, 2013, were recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position for €163 million only {please
refer to Notes 6 1 and 6 5)

Regarding Vivendi's US tax group, the fiscal years ending December 31, 2005, 2008, and 2007 were under a tax audit The consequences of
this tax audit did not matenally impact the amount of tax attributes Vivendi's US tax group 15 under a tax audit for the fiscal years ending
December 31, 2008, 2009, and 2010 This tax audit started (n February 2012

Finally, regarding Marac Telecom, the fiscal years ending December 31, 2005, 2006 2007, and 2008 were under a tax audit This tax audit 1s
now closed following the execution of a Memorandum Agreement on December 19, 2013, effective as of December 31, 2013

Note 7 Discontinued operations

As from the second quarter of 2013, and in compliance with IFAS 5 taking nto account the anticipated closing dates of the current sales,
Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings and Statement of Cash
Flows, as discontinued operations

in practice, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported as follows
» therr contributicn, until thewr effective sale, to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Staterment of Earnings (before non-controlling
interests has been grouped under the line “Earnings from discontinued operations”, and
o ther contribution, until their effective sale, to each [ine of Vivendi’s Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been grouped
under the line "Cash flows from discontinued operations”
In accordance with IFRS &, these adjustments have been applied to all periods reported in the Consolidated Financial Statements (2013 and
2012) to ensure consistency of information

On Cetober 11, 2013, Vivend: deconsolidated Activision Blizzard pursuant to the sale of 88% of its interest

Moreover, the contribution of Maroc Telecom group to each line of Vivend's Consolidated Statement of Fnancial Pasition as of December
31, 2013 has been grouped under the lines "Assets of discontinued businesses” and “Liabilities associated with assets of discontinued
businesses”
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1.1  Sale of Activision Blizzard

On QOctober 11, 2013, Vivend| completed the sale of 88% of its interest in Activision Blizzard, or 600 64 muflion shares priced at $13 60 per
share, for $8,169 milhon {€6,044 milion} in cash

The key terms of this sale are as follows

» through the acquisition of a Vivend: subsidiary, Activision Blizzard repurchased 428 68 milion shares at $13 60 per share for a
cash consideration of $5,830 million,

« concom:tantly, Vivendi sold 171 97 milhon Activision Blizzard shares at $13 60 per share for a cash consideration of $2,339 million
to an investor group {ASAC Il LP) led by Mr Robert Kotick, Activision Blizzard's Chief Executive Officer, and Mr Brian Kelly, the
Chairman of the Board of Directors ASAC Il LP owns approximately 24 7% of the outstanding share capital {following the
repurchase of 428 68 million shares by Activision Blizzard),

e pursuant to the simultaneous closings of both sales on October 11, 2013, Vivend: retained 83 million Activision Blizzard shares,
representing 11 9% of Activision Blizzard's outstanding share capital [following the repurchase of 428 68 million shares by
Activision Blizzard) Vivend's remaining ownership 1s subject to a staggered 15-month lock-up pened as descnibed below The sale
proceeds from the remaining ownership are estimated at a total of $1,129 million {€832 million], assuming the hypothesis
of $13 60 per share and at $1,480 million (€1,078 million), assuming the hypothesis of Actvision Blizzard's share price on
December 31, 2013 of $17 83 per share, and

» the agreements gaverning the transaction include certain continuing commitments given by the parties

Deconsolidation of Activision Blizzard as fram Qctober 11, 2013

Ag from October 11, 2013, as a result of the sale of 600 64 million shares of, or a 53 46% interest 1n Activision Blizzard, Vivend: lost contrel
of and deconsolidated Activision Blizzard In the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013, the remaining
83 million Activiston Blizzard shares have been recorded as assets held for sale, subject to the staggered lock-up penod This interest 1s
revalued at the basis of stock market price and the current EUR/USD exchange rate at each reporting date {or €1,078 millian as of December
31, 2013} and the unrealized gams or losses on such investments has been recogmized 1n “Earmings from discontinued operations” {or
€245 million as of December 31, 2013)

Capital gain on divestiture

From an accounting perspective and in accordance with IFRS, Vivend! 1s considered to have sold 100% of its interest in Activision Biizzard
following the loss of control of this subsidiary The gain on sale was determined as the difference between the value of 100% of Activision
Blizzard shares owned by Vivend: at a price of $13 60 per share {net of costs to sell) (66,851 million) and the value of Actvision Blizzard's net
assets attnbutable to Vivendi SA shargowners, as recorded in Vivend's Consolidated Statements at the date of the loss of control
(€4.491 million} Moreover, in accordance with IFRS, foreign currency translation adjustments attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners in
refation to Activision Blizzard were reclassified to profit or loss, 1 e, @ gain of €555 million Therefore, the total capital gain on divestiture,
which amounted to €2,915 million, with no tax impact, has been recognized in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings under the line
“Earnings from discontinued operations”

Commitments given in connection with the sale of Activision Blizzard

As part of the sale of 88% of Vivend's interest :n Activision Blizzard which was completed on October 11, 2013 {the “Closing Date"),
Vivendi, ASAC Il LP, and Activision Blizzard gave certain reciprocal commitments customary for this type of transaction {representations,
warranties, and covenants} Vivend), ASAC Il LP, and Activision Blizzard undertook to indemnify each other against any losses stemming from
any breach of their respective commitments Such indemnification 1s unlimited as to time and amount

In addition, Vivend: has agreed to indemnify Activision Blizzard with respect to any tax or other habilities of Amber Holding Subsidiary Co
{*Amber"), the Vivend subsidiary acquired by Activision Bhzzard, relating to periods preceding the Closing Date Such indemnification 1s
unhimited as to time and amount Tax attnbutes {manly net operating loss) held by Amber and assumed by Actwision Blizzard were
estimated at more than $700 million, whith represent a potential future tax benefit of approximately $245 million Vivend agreed to
indemnify Activision Blizzard, under certain circumstances, with respect to these tax attributes, subject to a cap of $200 million hmited to
taxable years ending on or prior to December 31, 2016

Finally, the 83 mullion Activision Blizzard shares Vivend: retained are subject to a two-tiered iock-up provision
e duning the 180 day period following the Closing Date (1 e, until Apnl 8, 2014), Vivendi cannot sell, transfer, hedge or otherwise
dispose of any Activision Blizzard shares directly or indirectly,
« during the 90 day period following the expiry of this first lock-up perod {1 e, from April 10 through July 9, 2014), Vivend: can sell
Activision Blizzard shares provided they constitute no more than the lesser of 50% of Vivend''s 83 mullion remaining shares and
9% of the outstanding shares of Activision Blizzard, and
+ following this 90 day sale window, Vivend 1s subject to another 180 day lock-up provision {1e, from July 10, 2014 through
January 7, 2015)
Thereafter, Vivendi may sell its remaining Activision Blizzard shares without restriction
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Activision Blizzard has agreed 1o file a registration statement prior to each sale window to enable Vivendi 1o sell the Activision Blizzard
shares in a public offering

Prior to any sale of Activision Blizzard shares by Vivend: in a market offering that occurs prior to the second anniversary of the Closing Date
{October 11, 2015}, Vivend: must notify Activision Blizzard of its intention to sell shares and Activision Blizzard may, at its election, offer to
purchase some or all of the shares that Vivendi intends to sell in such market offering Vivendi may accept or decline such offer at its sole
discretion

ASAC Il LP 15 also subject to a lock-up pravision of 180 days following the Closing Date {i e , until Apni 9, 2014}, provided that 1t may sell its
Activision Blizzard shares so long as the net preceeds from such sales are used to pay amounts under 1ts loans

FAR Statement of Earnings

Given the deconsohdation of Activision Blizzard on October 11, 2013, the line “"Earnings from discontinued operations™ takes into account
Activision Blizzard until that date The capital gain on divestiture from the sale of Activision Blizzard as well as the change in the value of the
remaining 83 millien Activision Blizzard shares were recorded under the Iing “Earnings from discontinued eperations™ for €2,915 million and
£245 mullien, respectively

Activiston Bhizzard Year ended December 31
{in millions of euros} 2013 2012
Revenues 2,328 3768
EBITDA 989 1315
Adjusted earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) 895 1,149
Earnings before nterest and income taxes (EBIT) 891 1128
Earnings befare provistan for incame 1axes B46 1,131
Provision for ncome taxes [154) {258)
Activision Blizzard's earnings 692 m
Caprtal gain on the divestiture of Actwision Blizzard 2915
Change in value of the remaining interest in Actwision Blizzard 245
Earmings from discontinued operations 3,852 873
Of which attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners 3,583 536
non-controlling Interests 269 3

712 Statement of Cash Flows

Given the deconsolidation of Activision Blizzard on October 11, 2013, the 2013 Statement of Cash Flows included Activision Blizzard until
that date

Activision Blizzard Year ended December 31
{in millions of euros) 2013 2012
Operating activities
Gross cash provided by operating actimities before income tax paid 807 1,220
Net cash provided by Actvision Blizzard's operating activities 307 1,037
Investing activities

Capital expenditures net (44) {57}

Change in financial assets net {1479} {35}
Net cash provided by/{used for} Activision Bhizzard's investing activities {1,523} {92}
Financing activities

Dividends paid to ngn-controlling interests (66} (62)

Stock repurchase program - (241}

Other 1,720 15
Net cash provided by/(used for) Actiwision Blizzard's financing activities

1,654 (288}

exclyding diwidends paid to Vivends

Dividends paid to Vivend: {98} {94)
Net cash provided by/lused for} Activision Blizzard's financing activities 1,556 {382)
Foreagn currency ranstation adpustments 143) i22)
Change 1n Actvision Blizzard's cash and cash eguivalents 297 54
Activisien Blizzard's cash and cash equivalents

At beginning of the perod 2,989 2,048

At end of the penod 3286 (a) 2,989

a  Relates to the balance of net divested cash on October 11, 2013 1t was recognized as a deduction from the amount received in cash
with respect to the sale as an investing activity in Vivend's Conschidated Statement of Cash Flows
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72 Plan to sell Maroc Telecom group

On November 4, 2013, Vivend: entered into a definitive agreement with Etisalat, with whom exclusive negotiations had begun on July 22,
2013, regarding the sale of Vivend's 53% nterest in Maroc Telecom group The key terms of this agreement known to date are as follows

the agreement values the interest in Marac Telecom group at MAD 92 6 per share or sale proceeds to Vivend) of approximately
€4 7 bilhon in cash, including a €310 million dividend distnbution with respect to fiscal year 2012, according to the financial terms
known to date Taking into account Maroc Telecom group's net debt, the transaction reflects a proportional enterpnise value of
£4 5 bullion for Vivendy's interest, equal to an EBITDA multiple of 6 2x, and

« the completion of this transaction is contingent upon the satisfaction of certain clesing conditions, including receipt of required
requlatory approvals in Morocco and the countries in which Maroc Telecom group operates, as well as finalization of the
shareholders’ agreement between Etisalat and the Kingdom of Marocco This transaction 1s expected to be completed duning the
first months of 2014

721 Statement of Earnings
Maroc Telecom Group Year ended December 31,
(in millions of euros) 2013 2012
Revenues 2,559 2,689
EBITDA 1,453 1,506
Ad)justed earnings before interest and income taxes (EBITA) 1,215 geats}
Earnings before interest and income taxes {EBIT} 1,202 962
Earnings before provision for income taxes 1,169 933
Provision for ncome taxes {386} {301}
Earnings from discontinued operations 783 632
Of which attributable to Vivend! SA shareowners 348 297
non-controlling interests 435 335
722  Statement of Financial Position

Maroc Telecom Group
{in millions of euros)

December 31,2013

Goodwill 2,397
Property, plant and equipment 2,468
Trade accounts receivable and other 845
Cash and cash equivalents 396
Other 463
Assets of discontinued businesses 6,562
Borrowings and other financial Liabilities 710
Trade accounts payable and other 1541
Other 178
Liabilities associated with assets of discontinued husinesses 2429

4133

Equity

As of December 31, 2013

equity attrbutable to Maroc Telecom group’s non-controlling interests was €1,176 million, and

other comprehensive income related to Maroc Telecom group included foreign currency translatien adjustments attrbutable to
Vivend! SA shareowners of €30 million, related to an unrealized foreign exchange loss attnibutable to the decline in value of the
Moroccan dirham since 2001, which will be recycled to earnings from the sale of Maroc Telecom group upon completion of the
sale
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Off-balance sheet commitments

As of December 31, 2013, Maroc Telecom group’s commitments were €635 melhion {cormpared to €316 million as of December 31, 2G12) On
January 16, 2013, Maroc Telecom and the Moroccan State entered into & fourth capital expenditure agreement for the period between 2013
and 2015 As of December 31, 2013, the amount of the remaining capital expenditure obligation was €591 millien

Moreaver, commitments from Maroc Telecom and its subsidianes include other commercial commitments and contracts entered into

relating to operations such as lease contracts for satellite transponders and bank guarantees, which are for individually non-significant
amounts

723 Statement of Cash Flows

Maroc Telecom Group Year ended December 31
{in millions of euros) 2013 2012
Dperating activities
Gross cash provided by operating actwties before income tax paid 1448 1442
Nat cash provided by Maroc Telecom group's operating activities 1.10 1,237
Investing activities

Capital expenditures net {434) (457)

Other 5 6
Net cash provided by/{used for) Maroc Telecom group’s investing activities (429) {451}
Financing activities

Dwadends paid to nen controling interests (328) {388}

Transactions on borrowings and cther financial liabifities {42) 119
Net cash provided by/{used for) Maroc Telecom group's financing activities excluding
dividends paid to Vivendi {370} {269)

Dnadends pard to Vivendi - (430}
Net cash provided by/{used for) Maroc Telecom group's financing activities {370) (759)
Forexgn currency translation adjustments {1} 3
Change in Maroc Telecom group's cash and cash equivalents 310 30
Maroc Telecom group’s cash and cash equivalents

Atbeginning of the penod 86 56

Atend of the penod 396 (a) 86

a Includes a €310 million dividend distnibution with respect to 2012 fiscal year
Note 8 Earnings per share
Year ended December 31,
2013 2012
Basic Diluted Basic Diluted

Earnings {in millions of euros)
Earmings from continuing operations attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners {1964) {1 984) {654) {654}
Earnings from discontinued operations attnbutable to Vivend) SA shareowners 393 3978 (a) 833 830 {a)
Earnings attributable to Vivends SA shareowners 1 967 1,964 (a) 179 176 (a)
Number of shares {in millions}
Weighted average number of shares outstanding (b} 13306 13306 12939 12989
Potential dilutive effects related to share-based compensatton (c) - 47 - 15
Adjusted weighted average number of shares 13306 13353 12989 13024
Earnmngs per share {in euros)
Earnings from continuing operations attributable to Vivend SA shareowners per share {147} {147} 10 50} {050}
Earnings from discontinued operations attnbutable to Vivend SA shareowners per share 295 294 064 064
Earnings attributable to Vivendi SA shareowners per share 128 147 D14 014

a Only includes the potential dilutive effect refated to stock option plans and restricted stock nights of Activision Blizzard for a non-
matenal amount

b Netof treasury shares (please refer to Note 19)

¢ Does not include accretive instruments as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 which could potentrally become dilutive The
balance of common shares 1n connection with Vivend) SA’s share-based compensation plans is presented in Note 22 2 2
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Note 9 Charges and income directly recognized in equity

{1 millions of euros}

Actuanal gams/{losses) related to employee defined benefit plans
tems not reclassified to profit or loss

Foreign currency translation adjustments

of which changes i foreign currency translation adjustments relating to discontinued operations
transferred to profit or loss as part of the sale of Actmviston Bhizzard

Unrealized gains/{losses)
of which Cash flow hedge instruments
Valuation gamns/{losses| taken to equity
Transfarred to profit or loss of the period
Net investment hedge nstruments
Valuation gams/losses) taken to equity
Transferred to profit or loss of the period
Hedging instruments

Valuation gams/{iosses) taken to equity
Transferred to profit or loss of the penod
Assets avallable for sale

Other impacts
Items to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Charges and income directly recognized in equity

{in muthons of euros)

Actuanal gains/losses) related to employee defined benefit plans
Items not reclassified to profit or loss

Foreagn cusrency translation adjustments

of which changes i foreign currency translatton adhustments relating to discontinued operations

Unreahzed gansAlosses)
of which Cash flow hedge instruments
Valuation gams/{losses) taken to equity
Transferred to profit or loss of the penad
Net investment hedge istruments
Valuation gamsAlosses) taken to equrty
Transtferred to profit or loss of the period
Hedging instruments

Valuation gams/{losses) taken to equity
Transferred to profit or loss of the pengd
Assets available for sale

{tems to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss

Charges and income directly recognized in equity

Year ended December 31 2013

Note Gross Tax Net

21 (22} 1] {23)
{z2) n {23)
{1429) - 11,429
{117 - 17
7 {555) - {555)
99 4} 58
24 2 1 3
18 - 18
{14) 1 13
24 (24) {24}
15 - 15
{39 - {39)
22) 1 20
iZ0 {42) 78
! - !
16 121 {42} 79
16 {1} 15
{1.314) {42) {1,356)
(1.336) (43) {1,379)

Year ended December 31 2012 (a}

Note Gross Tax Net

N {82) 2 {61
(82) 21 81)
(605) - {605}
{113 {113}
102 1 103
24 22 1 23
41 i 42
{18 - {19
24 17 - 17
17 - 17
39 1 40
5] - 55
8 - 8
16 83 63
{503} 1 (502}
{585} 74 {563)

a  Asof January 1, 2013, Vivend: applied, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012, amended tAS 19 (Employee Benefits) and
IAS 1 (Presentation of Financial Statements Presentation of Items of Other Comprehensive Income), each of whose application 1s
mandatery in the European Umian beginning on or after January 1, 2013 {please refer to Note 1) As a result, the 2012 Financial
Statements were adjusted i accordance with the new standards {please refer to Note 33)
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Changes in goodwill

Note 10 Goodwill

{in millions of euros} December 31,2013 December 31, 2012
Goodwill, gross 31,539 37340
Impairment losses {14,392) {13,284}
Goodwill 17147 24,656

Tuesday, February 25, 2014

Changes in foreign

Dec;r:;::; 3t Imparrment losses Business combinations Dlves;tz;i:e?;gress currency translation Dem;rg]h: it
adjustments and other
[in emlltons of eurcs)
Canal+ Group 4513 - (48) {3} 4454
of which Canal+ France 3635 - 3535
Studiocanal 207 k' {1) 236
Da/m7 310 1) - 309
ne+ 230 {75) {8) iz} 153
Umversal Music Group 4138 {5) 64 {b) 5 {102} 4100
GVT 2008 - (330} 1678
SFR 9153 243) - - 6722
Other operations 184 2z 1} 185
Actvision Blizzard 2256 - (2 208} {47) -
Maroc Telecom Group 2407 (23%2) {15}
Total 74,65 12436) 20 5% 39) 7047
December 31 Divestitures in progress Changes i foreign December 31
Impairment losses Business combinations currency translation
20m or completed diustmertts and ath 2012
{in milions of euros) aojustments anc ather
Canal+ Group 4548 1665 537 )] 4513
of which Canal+ France 4309 {665 - {5 3635
Studiocanal 192 - 14 1 207
087 - - 10 (o} - 310
nc+ 25 - 213 fal 18 230
Unwersal Music Group 4114 (85) {d} 304 (o) (32) (163) 4138
GvT 2222 - {216} 2006
SFR 9152 - 1 91583
Other operations 1M {1 7 7 184
Acivision Blizzard 2309 - {54) 27%%
Maroc Telecom Group 2413 {6) 2407
Total 75,029 511 (ZEN &) T439) 2465
Relates to goodwill attributable to the acquisition of “n” an November 30, 2012 As of December 31, 2012, the provisional goodwili

was estimated at €213 mithon in 2013, goodwil! was adjusted by -€75 million and the final goodwill of “n” was €138 m

ion {please

refer to Note 2}

Mainly relates to goodwill attnbutable to the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music on September 28, 2012 As of December 31, 2012, the
provisional goodwill was estimated at €301 million In 2013, goodwill was adjusted by €57 milhon and the final goodwiil of EMI

Recorded Music amounted to £358 milhon {please refer to Note 2}

Relates to goodwill attributable to the acquisition of D8 and D17 on September 27, 2012

Relates to impairment losses related to certain music catalogs of Universal Music Group

Fingneial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2013

Vivend: /83




Tuesday, February 25 2014

Goodwill impairment test

In 2013, Vivend: tested the value of goodwill allocated to its cash-generating units (CGUs) ar groups of CGU applying valuation methods
consistent with previous years Vivendi ensured that the recoverable amount of CGU or groups of CGU exceeded therr carrying value
{including goodwill) The recoverable amount 1s determined as the higher of the value in use determined by the discounted value of future
cash flows {discounted cash flow method {DCF)) and the fair value (less costs to sell), determined on the basis of market data (stock market
prices, comparable histed companies, comparison with the value attributed to similar assets or companies in recent transactions) For a
description of the methods used for the impairment test, please refer to Note 1357

Presentation of CGU or groups of CGUs tested

Operating Segments Cash Generating Units (CGU) CGU or groups of CGU tested
Pay-TV in Metropalitan France Canals France
Canah+ Overseas
Canal+ Group Free-to-air TV (a} Free to-air TV (a)
Studhocanal Studiocanal
Other entities (Other entities
Recorded musec (including EM! (b))
Unwversal Music Group Artist services and merchandising Universal Music Group
Music publishing
GVT GVT GVT
SFR SFR SFR

a  Asof December 31, 2012, no goodwill impairment test regarding Canal+ Group's Free-to-air TV was undertaken given that the date of
acquisition of D8/017 was close to the closing date, and considering that no tnggering event had occurred between those dates

b As of December 31, 2012, no goodwill impairment test regarding EMI Recorded Music was undertaken given that the date of
acquisition of EMI Recorded Music by UMG (please refer to Note 2 3} was close to the closing date, and considening that no triggering
event had occurred between those dates In 2013, EMI Recorded Music's operations were integrated with UMG’s recorded music
operations Consequently, as of December 31, 2013, Vivend undertook a goodwill impairment test regarding UMG, including hencefarth
EMI Recorded Music’s goodwill

During the fourth guarter of 2013, Vivend: performed such test on each cash generating umit {CGU} or groups of CGU on the basis of
valuations of recoverable amounts determined with the assistance of third-party appraisers for SFR, Canal+ france, and Universal Music
Group, and internal valuations notably for GVT, Studiocanal, and Free-to-air TV As a result, Vivend: Management concluded that, except in
the case of SFR, the recoverable amount of each CGU or groups of CGU tested exceeded their carrying value as of December 31, 2013

e SFR as of December 31, 2013, Vivendi examined the value of SFR's goodwill SFR's recoverable amount was determined upon the
basis of the usual valuation methods, n particular the value in use, based upon the DCF method The most recent cash flow
forecasts, and financial assumptions approved by the Management of the group were used and were updated to take nto account
the strong 1mpact on revenues of the new tanff policies decided by SFR in a competitive environment, partially offset by cost
savings which were consistent with expectations under SFR's transformation plan, while maintaining high capital expenditures,
notably due to SFR's acceleration of very-high speed mobile network investments As a result, Vivendr's Management concluded
that SFR’s recoverable amount was below its carrying value as of December 31, 2013 and decided to record a goodwill impairment
loss of €2.431 million {please refer to tables below}

As a reminder, as of December 31, 2012, Vivend: examined the value of SFR's goodwiil, upon the basis of the usual valuation
methods, and concluded that SFR's recoverable amount, based upon the DCF methed, despite its decline, exceeded 1ts carrying
value at that date

e Canal+ France as of December 31, 2013, Vivendi examined the value of Canal+ France’s goodwill, using the usual valuation
methods and concluded that Canal+ France’s recoverable amount, based upon the DCF method, using the most recent cash flow
forecasts approved by the Management of the group. exceeded Its carrying value at that date As a reminder, since November 5,
2013, Vivend: holds a 100% interest in Canal+ France pursuant to the acquisition of Lagardére Group's 20% interest in Canal+
France for €1,020 million, 1n cash In accordance with IFRS 10, this transaction was recognized as the acquisition of a non-
controlling interest and the difference between the consideration paid and the carrying value of the acquired non-controlling
Interest was recorded as a deduction from equity attnbutable to Vivendi SA shareowners {please refer to Note 2 2)

As a reminder, as of December 31, 2012, Canal+ France's recoverable amount was determined upon the basis of the value in use
based on the OCF method, using the most recent cash flow forecasts approved by the Management of the group as well as
financial assumptions consistent with previous years {please refer to the table below) As a result, considering primanly the
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expected Impact on revenues (n Metropolrtan France of the increase in the VAT rate from 7% to 10% as of January 1, 2014 and, to
a lesser extent, the adverse changes in the macro-economic and competitive environment since the second half of 2012, Vivend
Management concleded that Canal+ France's recoverabte amount was below its carrying value as of December 31, 2012, and
consequently recorded an impairment loss of £665 million

Prasentation of key assumptions used for the determination of recoverable amounts

The value in use of each CGU or groups of CGU 15 determined as the discounted value of future cash flows by using cash flow projections
consistent with the 2014 budget and the most recent forecasts prepared by the operating segments These forecasts are prepared for each
operating segment on the basis of the financial targets as well as the following main key assumptions discount rate, perpetual growth rate,
and EBITA as defined in Note 12 3, capital expenditures, competitive environment, regulatory environment, technological development and
level of commercial expenses The recoverable amount for each CGU or groups of CGU was determined based on 1ts value n use m
accordance with the main key assumptions presented below

v Method DI Rete {0} Perp Growth Rats

Qperating CGY or groups of CGU tested 21 2 2013 am2 203 2012
Canai+ France DCF & comparables model OCF 830% 9 00% 150% 150%
Canal+ Group Free to air TV DCF ng 950% na 200% na

Studrocanal OCF OCF 900% 9 00% 000% 000% |
Universal Music Group Unwversal Music Group _ DCF & comparables model | DCF B comparables model 915% 975% 100% ¥ 00%
GVT {b) GVT DCF DCF 1124% 10 9% 400% 400%
SFR SFR OCF & comparables model | DCF & comparables model 730% 730% 050% 050%
Actmision DCF sinck market price & 10 50% £00%
comparables model

Acuvision Blizrard Bluzzrd o DC;:;:':;::::E‘;:::IB & fe 10 50% feh 400%
Distribution DCF & comparables mode! 13 0% -4 00%
Maroc Telecom Stock market price na na
Onatel DCF 14 40% 300%
Maroc Teletom Group Gabon Telecom (d} DCF {di 12 70% {dl 300%
Maunel DCF 17 40% 300%
Satelma DCF 14 60% 300%

na not applicable

DCF Discounted Cash Flows

a The determination of recoverable amounts using a post-tax discount rate applied to post-tax cash flows provides recoverable amounts
consistent with the ones that would have been obtained using a pre-tax discount rate applied to pre-tax cash flows

b In2012, the annual goodwll impairment test on GVT was performed during the second quarter

¢ Interest in Activision Blizzard was sold on October 11, 2013 {please refer to Note 7)

d  Considenng the current plan to sell Maroc Telecom group, and in accordance with IFRS 5, Marac Telecom group has been considered as an
asset held for sale since the second quarter of 2013
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December 31 2013

Discount rate Perpetual growth iate Discounted cash flows

Increase in the discount rate Decrease in the perpetual growth rate Decrease in the discounted cash flows
Appled in order for the recoverable amount Applied In order for the recoverable amount 1 order for the recoverable amount
rate to be equal to the carrying amount rate to be equal to the carryng amount to be equal to the camying amount
(in %) {tn number of points) {in %} {in number of points) {in %)

Canal+ Group
Canal+ Franca 830% +023pt 1 50% 032pt %
Free 10-atr TV 950% +184pt 200% 274pts 21%
Studiocanal 900% +2 19pts 000% 353ots 21%
Universal Music Group 915% +2 25 pts 100% 298 pts 22%
GVT {a} 11 24% +126pt 4 00% 257 pts 0%
SFR (b} 730% (b} 050% {b) {h}

December 31 2012

Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Disgounted cash flows
increase (n the discount rate Decrease in the perpetual growth rate Decrease in the discounted cash flows
Appled in order for the recoverable amount Apphed inorcer for the recoverabla amount in order for the recoverable amount
rate to he aqual to the carrying amount rate tbe equal te the carrying amount 10 be equal to the carmying amount
[1n %) {in number of points) {in %) {in number of points) {tn %)
Canal+ Group

Canai+ Franca {c} 900% {c) 150% (c} ]
Studiacanal 900% +323pts 000% 955 pts 28%
Universal Music Group 925% +2 98 pts 100% 491 pts 25%
SFR 7 30% +0 68 pt 050% 121pt -10%
GVT {a) 1091% +2 51 pts 400% §25pts 36%
Maroc Telecom Group i) {d) (d} (d) i)

Actrvision Blizard
Activision 10 50% +978 pts 400% 415 pts 58%
Blezzard 10 50% +1019pts 400% 2520 pts -63%

a In2012, the annual goodwill impairment test on GVT was performed in the secend quarter

b Inrelation to the recognition of a goodwsll impairment loss on SFR as of December 31, 2013, please refer below for a sensitivity analysis,
which presents the {increase)/decrease in impairment generated by a 25 point change in the discount rate and in the perpetual growth
rate assumptions, and a 2% change in the cash flow assumptions with each of these assumptions being taken separately for the

goodwill impairment test

Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Cash flows
Increase by Decrease by Increase by Decrease by Increase by Decrease by
{in mulltons of euros) 25 pts 25 pts 25 pts 25pts 2% 2%
December 31 2013 {509} 549 286 (266) 243 (243)

¢ In relation to the recogmtion of a goedwiil impairment loss on Canal+ France as of December 31, 2012, please refer below for a
sensitivity analysis, which presents the (increase)/decrease in impairment generated by a 25 point change in the discount rate and i
the perpetual growth rate assumptions, and a 2% change in the cash flow assumptions with each of these assumptions being taken

separately for the goodwill impairment test

Discount rate Perpetual growth rate Cash flows
Increase by Decrease by Increase by Decrease hy Increase by Decrease by
{in mullions of euros) 25 pts 25pts 25 pts 25pts 2% 2%
' Dacember 31 2012 {133 142 105 {98} 77 an

d  As of December 31, 2012, Maroc Telecom was valued based on its stock market price
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Note 11

11.1 Content assets

{in mittions of euros)

Content assets and commitments

Tuesday, February 25, 2014

December 31, 2013

Accumulated amortization

Content assets, gross
and impairment losses

Content assets

Film and television costs 5,678 (4,875) 803
Sports rights 380 - 380
Music catalogs and publishing nghts 6,992 {5,032} 1,960
Advances ta artists and repertaire owners 621 - 621
Merchandising contracts and artists services 25 {17) 8
Intemally developed franchises and other games content assets - - -
Games advances - - -
Content assets 13,696 (9,924) 3772
Deduction of current content assets {1,176} 27 {1,149}
Non-current content assets 12,520 (9,897) 2623
December 31, 2012
Accumulated amortization
Content assets, gross Content assets
and impairment losses
{in mifhions of eurgs)
Film and television costs 5.522 (4,756) 766
Sports rights 3 - kxyl
Music catalogs and publishing nights 1222 (4.871) 2,351
Advances to artists and repertoire owners 618 - 618
Merchandising contracts and artists services 25 (15) 10
Internally developed franchises and ather games content assets 493 {331} 162
Games advances 133 - 133
Content assets 14,344 {9,973) 431
Deduction of current content assets (1,118} 14 {1,044)
Non-current content assets 13,226 {9,899) 3327
Changes in main content assets
Year ended December 31
{in mhions of euros) 2013 02
Opening balance 43N 3,551
Amortization of content assets excluding those acquired through business combinations (81} (122) {a)
Amortization of content assets acquired through business combinations (344} (324) {a)
Impaiment losses on content assets acquired through busmess combinations (9 {b}
Increase 2,485 2585
Decrease (2,332) (2.252)
Busmness combinations 3 1077 (c)
Divestitures in progress or completed {347) {21)
Changes in foreign currency translation adjustments and other 7 {114}
Glosing balance 3,m 431

a  Relates to the amortization of content assets as reported in the 2012 Financiat Report These amounts have not been adusted for the
impact of the apphcation of IFRS 5 on the consolidated tncome statement -€85 million and -€23 million, respectively. were
reclassified to the line “Earmings from discontinued operations” for 2012

b Relates to the impairment of certain UMG music catalogs

¢ Pnmanly relates to the music catalogs acquired from EMI Recorded Music on September 28, 2012 {please refer to Note 2 3}
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11.2 Contractual content commitments

Commitments given recorded in the Statement of Financial Position content habilities

Content habilities are mainly part of Trade accounts payable and other” or part of "Other non-current lrabilities™ whether they are current or
non-current, as applicable {please refer to Note 17)

Minimum future payments as of flecember 31 2013 Total minimum futyre
Total (e in payments as of
{in millons of eurgs) 2014 20152018 After 2018 December 31 2012
Film and television rights (a) 208 208 189
Sports rights 402 402 374
Music royalties to arhists and repertoire owners 1614 1598 16 1579
Creative talent, employment agreements and others 1 kT 72 2 119
Games royatites . . ; 22
Gontent lakilities 2,335 2245 2 2,283
Off balance sheet commitments given/{received)
Minimum future payments as of December 31 2013 Total mimmum future
Total Due in payments as of
{in milirons of eurps) 204 2015 2018 After 2018 December 31, 2012
Film and television nghts (a) 2383 1219 1151 13 2590
Sports nghts {b) 1350 668 682 1715
Creative talent employment agreements and athers [c) 754 356 355 43 959
Given commitments 4,487 2243 2,188 56 5264
Film and television rights {a} {179} 18} (61) - 14)
Sports rights (10} " {3 - 12}
Creative talent empleyment agreements and others {c} not avalable
Other - - i199)
Recewved commitments {189) 125) {64 - {325)
Total net 4,298 2118 2424 5 3339
a Mainly includes contracts valid over several years for the broadcast of film and TV productions {mainly exclusmity contracts with major
US studios, as well as the license agreement entered into on March 29, 2013 regarding the entire HBO new senes, for 5 years, as of
May 2013} and pre-purchase contracts in the french movie industry, Studiocanal film production and co-preduction commitments
{given and received) and broadcasting nghts of CanalSat and “nc+” multichannel digital TV packages They are recorded as content
assets when the broadcast 1s available for mtial release As of December 31, 2013, provisions recorded relating to these
commitments amounted to €71 million, compared to €86 million as of December 31, 2012
[n addition, this amount does not include commitments in relation to channel nght contracts, ISP {internet Service Provider) royalties
and non-exclusive distribution of channels, under which nerther Canal+ Group nor GVT granted minimum guarantees The vanable
amount of these commitments cannot be rehably determined and 15 not reported n the Statement of Financial Position or in
commitments and 15 instead recorded as an expense for the period 1n which it was incurred Based on the estimation of the future
subscniber number at Canal+ Group commitments i relation to channel right contracts would have increased by a net amount of
€354 miflion as of December 31, 2013, compared to €288 million as of December 31, 2012
Moreover, according to the agreement entered into with cinema professional organizations on December 18, 2009, Soc:été d’Edition
de Canal Plus (SECP} 1s required to invest, every year for a five-year period (2010-2014), 12 5% of its annual revenues in the financing
of European films With respect to audiovisual. in accordance with the agreements with preducers and authors' arganizations, Canal+
France Is reguired to invest a percentage of its revenues In the financing of hentage work every year
Agreements with cinema organizations and with producers and authors’ orgarizations are not recorded as off balance sheet
commitments as the future estmate of these commitments cannot be reliably determined
b Notably includes broadcasting rights for the French professional Soccer League 1 awarded to Canal+ Group for the 2014-2015 and
2015-2016 seasons The pnce paid by Canal+ Group represents €427 million per season, of a remaining total of €854 milhon as of
December 31, 2013, compared tc €1 281 million as of December 31, 2012 Moreover, the broadcasting rights also includes the English
Premier League for the 2014-2015 and 2015-2016 seasons, renewed n January 2013 and the Formula 1 World Championship awarded
in February 2013 These commitments will be recognized in the Statement of Financial Position either upon the start of every season or
upon imtial signrficant payment
C Pnimarily relates to UMG which routinely commits to artists and other parties to pay agreed amounts upon delivery of content or other

products (“Creative talent and employment agreements™} Until the artist or the other party has debivered his or her content or the
repayment of an advance, UMG discloses its obligation as an off-balance sheet given commitment While the artist or the other party
15 obligated to deliver a content or other product to UMG (these arrangements are generally exclusive), this counterpart cannot be
reliably determined and, thus, 1s not reported in received commitments
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Note 12

{in milhons of euros)

Software
Telecom licenses
Customer bases
Trade names
Other

{in mullions of euros)

Software
Telecom licenses
Customer bases
Trade names
Other

Other intangible assets
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December 31, 2013

Qther intangible assets,

Accumulated amartization

Other intangible assets

qross and impairmant losses
5,158 (3,906} 1,252
2,505 {620} 1,885
956 {811} 145
167 {51} 116
1,825 (917} 908
10,611 {6,305} 4,306

December 31, 2012

Other intangible assets,

Accumulated amortization

Other intangible assets

qross and )impairment losses
5447 (4,035) 1412
2,969 (B11) 2,149
962 {725) 237
462 (53) 409
2,110 {1,127) 983
11,991 (6.751) 5190

Software includes acquired software, net for €404 milhion as of December 31, 2013 {€592 million as of December 31, 2012}, amortized over
4-years as well as SFR's internally developed software
Other intangible assets notably include indefeasible nghts of ese {IRU) and other long-term cccupational nghts, net for €297 million as of
December 31, 2013 (€295 million as of December 31, 2012)

Changes in other intangible assets

{in mithons of eurps)

Opening balance
Depreciation
Acquisitions

Increase related to internal developments

Divestitures/Decrease
Business combinations

Divestitures in progress or completed

Changes (n foreign curmency translation adjustments

Other
Closing balance

Year ended December 31,

2013 202
5,190 4,329
{924) {979) {a)
a77 1545 (b)
264 294
{4) 14)
33 38
{678) -
{37) {52)
{15] 19
4,306 5,180

a Relates to the depreciation of other intangible assets as published :n the 2012 Financial Report This amount was not adjusted for the
impact of the application of IFRS 5 on the Consalidated Income Statement {please refer below)

b Includes the acquisition by SFR of 4G spectrum {very-high-speed Internet - LTE) for €1 065 million 1n 2012

Depreciation of other intangible assets from continuing operations (pnmanly Canal+ Group, GVT, and SFR) was recognized as cost of
revenues and in selling, general and administrative expenses (-€744 millvon in 2013 and -€725 million 1n 2012) It mainly consists of SFR's
telecomn licenses |-€117 million i 2013, compared to -€73 mithon 1n 2012}, internally developed software [ £232 miliion in 2013, compared to
-€218 million 1n 2012), and acquired software (-€181 million in 2013, compared to -€192 milhon 1n 2012)

Depreciation of other intangible assets of discontinued businesses was recognized as earmings from discontinued operations for -€57 mllion
in 2013 {compared to -E119 million in 2012}

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Vivend: /89



Note 13

{in mishons of euros)

Land

Buildings

Equipment and machinery
Construction-in-progress
Other

{in millions of euros)

Land

Burldings

Equipment and machinery
Construction-in-progress
Other

Property, plant and equipment
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December 31, 2013

Property, plant and
BQUIDMENt, grass

Accumulated
depreciation and
impairment losses

Property, plant and equipment

82 (2) 80
3052 (1 718) 1334
8768 (4 704) 4064

353 - 353
4 306 {2 596) 1710
16,561 {9,020} 754

December 31 2012

Property plant and
equipment, gross

Accumutated
depreciation and
impairment losses

Property, plant and equipment

42 {2 240
3707 (2.143) 1 564
13939 (8,071 5868
375 - 375

4 637 (2 758) 1879
22,900 {12,974) 9,926

As of December 31, 2013, other property, plant and equipment, net, notably mcluded set-top boxes, for €873 mullion, compared to
€374 million as of December 31, 2012 In addtion, property, plant and equipment financed pursuant to finance leases amounted to

€44 million, compared to €58 million as of December 31, 2012

Changes in property, plant and equipment

Year ended December 31

{sn riihons of auros) 2013

Opening balance

Depreciation

Acquisttions/increase

Divestitures/Decrease

Busingss combinations

Divestitures in progress or completed

Changes n foreign currency translation adjustments
Other

Closing balance

012

9,926 9,001
{1851} (1,743} {a)

2,448 2769

{115) (39)

(40 170

(2 381) -

{a4a) 1232)

{2) -

7541 9,926

a Relates to the depreciation of property, plant and equipment as published in the 2012 Financial Repert This amount was not adjusted
for the impact of the application of IFRS 5 on the Consolidated Income Statement (see below)

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment (pnimanly Canal+ Group, UMG, GVT, and SFR} was recognized as cost of revenues and in
seliing, general and admmistraiive expenses for -€1,441 mithon i 2013 and -€1327 milion 1 2092 1t mainly consists of buildings
{-€126 mithion in 2013, compared to -€124 million 1n 2012} and equipment and machinery (-€852 million in 2013, compared to -€752 millign

in 2012}

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment of discontinued businesses was recognized as earnings from discontinued operations It
mainly consists of Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group for -€45 mill:on and -€365 million, respectively in 2013 (compared to

-£70 mullion and -€346 milhon, respectively in 2012)
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Note 14 Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operations

December 31 2013

Maroc Telecom

SFR GVT Group Total
{in malhions of euros)
Other intangible assets, net
Software 1153 55 - 1,208
Telecom licenses 1,885 {a) - . 1885
Customer bases 88 A - 107
Trade names - 97 - 97
Other 807 1t - 818
3,931 184 - 4115
Property, plant and aquipment, net
Land 76 - . 76
Buildings 1286 15 - 1,30
Equipment and machinery 2078 1904 - 3.982
Construction-in-progress 304 . - 304
Other 788 358 - 1146
4532 2217 - 6,809
Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operations, net 8.463 2,461 - 10,924
December 31 2012
SR VT Maroc Telecom Total
{in milhons of euros) Group
Cther intangible assets, net
Software 1112 56 182 1,350
Telecom licenses 2,002 (a) - 147 2149
Customer bases 152 72 2 226
Trade names - 17 1 118
Other 816 13 50 879
4,082 258 382 4,12
Property, plant and equipment, net
Land 97 - 13 228
Builldings 1,182 16 315 1,513
Equipment and machinery 2117 1885 1747 5,749
Construction-in-pragress 314 - - 314
Other 758 334 97 1189
4,463 2,235 2290 8,993
Intangible and tangible assets of telecom operations, net 8.550 2493 2,672 13,715

a  SFR holds licenses for 1ts networks and for the supply of its telecommunications services in France, for a 15-year period for GSM
{between March 2006 and March 2021} and a 20-year period for both UMTS (between August 2001 and August 2021) and LTE (between
January 2012 and January 2032), with the following financial conditions
s for the GSM license, an annual payment over 15 years comprised of a (1) fixed portion in an amount of £25 multion for each year

{capitalized over the percd based on a present value of €278 mullion in 2006} and {) a vanable pertion equal to 1% of the yearly
revenues generated by this activity,

¢ for the UMTS license, the fixed amount paid in 2001 (€619 million) was recarded as an intangible asset and the vanable part of
the fee 15 equal to 1% of the yearly revenues generated by this activwity Moreover, as part of this license, SFR acquired new
spectrum for €300 millien in June 2010, over a 20-year period, and

e for the LTE hicenses, the fixed amounts pard n October 2011 (€150 mill:on} and January 2012 (€1,065 milfion), respectively, were
recorded as intangible assets at the grant date of spectrum brand published in the “Journal Officiel” in October 2011 and January
2012, and the vaniable portion of the fee 1s equal to 1% of the yearly revenues generated by this actvity
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The vanable portions of the fees that cannot be reliably determined are not recorded in the Statement of Financial Position They are
recorded as an expense, when ncurred

SFR’s network coverage commitments related to telecommunication licenses

e (n November 30, 2009, the “Autonté de Régulation des Communications Electromiques et des Postes” or “Arcep” (the French
Telecemmunications Regulatory Agency) addressed a notice to SFR regarding rts compliance in relation to the UMTS network
coverage of the French metropolitan population 99 3% by December 31, 2013 As of December 31, 2013, SFR met its network
coverage comnutments

e As part of the grant of the first band of LTE spectrum in October 2011, SFR has committed to ensure a specific coverage rate for
the French metropolitan population 25% by October 11, 2015, 60% by Octaber 11, 2019, and 75% by October 11, 2023

e As part of the grant of the second band of LTE spectrum in January 2012, SFR has committed to comply with the following
obligations

{1}

fu)
n

(v)

Note 15

{in mdligns of euros)

N-Viston
Numergy

VEVO

La Poste Telecom
Other

na not apphcable

SFR 1s required to provide the following very high-speed mobile network coverage

- coverage of 98% of the French metropolitan population by January 2024 and 99 6% by January 2027
- coverage (n the prionty zone {approximately 18% of the french metropolitan population and 63% of the terntory)
within this zone, SFR 1s required to cover 40% of the population by January 2017 and 90% of the population by

January 2022,

- coverage chligations at a departmental level SFR has to cover 90% of the population of each French department by

January 2024, and 95% of the population of each French department by January 2027,

SFR and Bouygues Tetecom have a mutual network shanng or spectrum pooling obligation in the prierity zone,

SFR has an obfigation to offer national roaming to Free Mobile within the prionty zone upon building of its own 2 6 GHz
network covering at least 25% of the French population prowided that it has not entered into a national roaming

agreement with another operater, and

SFR has a joint coverage obligation with the other 800 MHz license holders to cover the hot-spots that have been
identified by the French admimstration within the framework of the "white zones” program {beyond 98% of the

population} within 15 years

Investments in equity affiliates

Votng interest

Value of equity affibates

Note  December 31, 2013 December 31 2012 December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
2 49% (a) 40% 215 162
47% 7% 95 104
47% 50% 58 59

49% 49% -
na na 78 63
[TT3 388

a  OnDecember 18, 2013, IT) exercised its put option to selt a 9% interest in N-Vision to Canal+ Group Canal+ Group’s ownership interest
thus increased to 49% {please refer to Note 27)
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Note 16 Financial assets

{in millions of euros) December 31,2013 December 31, 2012 (a)
Cash management financial assets {b} - 301

Other loans and recevables 206 196
Derwative financial instruments 126 137
Available for-sale sacurities (c) 360 197
Cash deposits backing borrowings 2 ]
Other financial assets 5 15
Financial assets 699 852

Deduction of current financial assets (45) (364)
Non-current financial assets 654 488

a  Asof January 1, 2013, Vivend: applied, with retrospective effect as from January 1, 2012, amended 1AS 19 (Employee Benefits), whose
application 1s mandatory in the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 {please refer to Note 1) As a result, the 2012
Financial Statements were adjusted in accordance with the new standards (please refer to Note 33)

b Pnmanly related to US treasunes and government agency securities with a maturity exceeding three months held by Actwision Blizzard
($387 mullion as of December 31, 2012)

¢ Avalable-for-sale secunties notably included securities held by UMG n Beats and Spotify for €161 million and €143 million,
respectively (€70 million and €84 million as of December 31, 2012) In 2013, the fair values of these secunities were reassessed with
the entry of new investors to ther capital
They did not include publicly quoted secunities as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012 and were not the subject of any
significant impairment with respect to fiscal years 2013 and 2012

Note 17  Net working capital

Changes in net working captal

Changes in
December 31 Changes in Business Drvestitures in foreign currency December 31
operating working progress o Other [b)
2012 combinations translation 03
{in melions of euros) capial 2 completed adjustments
—adjustments __

Inventones 738 120 {3) {376} [£] 330
Trade accounts recewvable and other 6587 {8} {192} {1 419} {79) g 4098
Working capital assets 1325 28) (195} {1,795} 89) 9 5228
Teade accounts payable and other 141% 1252} {8 (3506} 1211} 197 10416
Other non current hiabilities 1002 184) 17 12) {23} {143) 757
Working capntal Liabilities 15,198 (336} 9 (3518} {24} 54 111
Networking capital {1.913) 308 {204} 1,123 16 {45} {5,945)

Changes in Divestitures in Changes in

December 31 operating workin Business fonlesS O foreign currency Other (b) December 31
M peraung g comiunations prog translatton e 2012

{in mullions of euras) capial el completed adjustments
Inventories 805 160) 29 - 12 0] 738
Trade accounts recevable and ather 6730 {231 284 {26) {84} {26} 6587
Working capital assets 1.535 [ET) n {26) (%} {30) 1325
Trade accounts payabte and ather 13987 (307 579 (16) (125] 78 14196
Cther non-cumrent liabiliies 864 26 56 {19) 75 1002
Working capital liabilitres 14,851 (281} 635 {16) (14) 153 15,138
Net working capital {1,316} {30} 322) (10) [ {183} {7.873)

a  Excludes content investments made by UMG, Canal+ Group, and Activision Blizzard In 2012, related to amounts as published in the
2012 Annuaf Report, does not include the adjustments from the impact of the apphcation of IFRS 5 on the Consolidated Cash Flow
Statement

b Mainly includes the change in net warking capital relating to content investments, capital expenditures, and other investments
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Trade accounts receivable and other

(in millions of eures) December 31, 2013 December 31 2012
Trade accounts receivable 3,625 5,458
Trade accounts receivable write-offs {755) (1,315)
Trade accounts recewvahle, net 2810 4,143
Other 2,028 2,444
Trade accounts receivable and other 4,898 6,587

Vivend: does not consider there to be a sigmificant nisk of non-recovery of non-impaired past due receivables Vivendi's trade recervables do
not represent a significant concentration of credit nsk due to 1ts broad customer base, the broad vanety of customers and markets, as well
as the subscniption-based business model of most of its business segments (Canal+ Group, GVT, and SFR) and as the geographic diversity of

its business operations (please refer to Note 3 2) Please also refer to Note 13510 for a description of the method used to evaluate trade
account recevable provisions

Trade accounts payable and other

{in rithons of euros) Note  December 31,2013 December 31, 2012

Trade accounts payable 5454 6578
Music royalties to artists and repertoire owners 12 1,598 1477
Game deferred revenues . 1751
Prepaid telecommunication revenues 524 87
Other 2840 4073
Trade accounts payable and other 10,416 14,196

QOther non-current liabilities

{in millions of euros) Note  Detcember 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Liabilities related to SFR GSM license (a) 14 136 154
Prepaid revenues from indefeasible nghts of use {IRU) and other long-term

occupational nghts (b) 309 340
Non-current content habilities 112 a0 180
Other {¢) 222 328
Other non-current habilites 157 1,002

a Relates to the discounted value of the hability The nominal value amounted to €181 million as of December 31, 2013, compared to
€206 million as of December 31, 2012

b Relates to deferred revenues associated with indefeasible nght of use (IRU) agreements, leases or services contracts

¢ Notably includes the lang-term partion (€63 million) of capital subscribed by Numergy, not yet released

Note 18  Cash and cash equivalents

{in milhions of euros) December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Cash 525 920
Cash equivalents 516 2,972
of which UCITS 45 2,699
certificates of deposnt and term deposits 470 275
Cash and cash equivalents 1,041 3,894

As of December 31, 2012, cash and cash equivalents notably included Activision Blizzard's cash (E2,983 million) invested, if any, in money
market funds with initial matunty dates not exceeding 90 days
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Note 19  Equity

Share capital of Vivendi SA

{in thousands) December 31 2013 December 31 2012
Common shares putstanding {nominal value €55 per share} 1,339,610 1,323,962
Treasury shares (51) (1461)
Voting nghts 1,339,559 1,322,501

As of December 31, 2013, Vivend) held 51 thousand treasury shares, representing a non significant part of its share capital These shares are
backed to the hedging of performance share plans The market value of the portfolio amounted to less than €1 million as of December 31,
2013

In addition, as of December 31, 2013, approximately 52 8 mitlion stock options were cutstanding, representing a maximum nominal share
capital increase of €291 mullion {18 , 3 94%)

Non-controlling interests

{in millhions of euros) Detember 31, 2013 December 31, 2012

Canal+ Group {a} 368 692
Activision Blizzard {b) - 1,183
Maroc Telecom Group (c} 1,176 1067
Other 29 24
Total 1573 2,966

a  Asof December 31, 2012, included Lagardére Group’s 20% interest in Canal+ France for €308 million Vivend: acquired this ownership
interest on Novernber 5, 2013 for €1,020 mullion, in cash {please refer to Note 2)

b OnOctober 11, 2013, Vivend: deconsolidated Activision Blizzard pursuant to the sale of 88% of its interest As of December 31, 2013,
Vivendi's remaining 83 million Activision Blizzard shares were recorded as "Assets available for sale” {please refer to Note 7)

¢ On November 4, 2013, Vivendi and Etisalat entered into a definitive agreement for the sale of Vivend's 53% interest in Maroc
Telecom group {please refer to Note 7)

Distributions to shareowners of Vivend) SA

Dividend paid by Vivendi SA with respect to fiscal year 2012

At the Annual General Shareholders’ Meeting of April 30, 2013, Vivendi's shareholders approved the distribution of a dividend of €1 per
share, representing a total distribution of €1,325 million, paid in cash on May 17, 2013 by withdrawal fram reserves, following the coupon
detachment on May 14, 2013 The additional contribution of 3% on dividends was recorded as a tax charge (€40 million) in the consolidated
garnings at the time of the payment of the dividend by Vivend on May 17, 2013

Bonus shares granted to Vivend: SA shareowners

At its meeting held on February 29, 2012, following the Supervisory Board's recommendation, Vivendi's Management Board decided to grant
to (ts shareowness one bonus share per 30 shares hefd This transaction resulted in the issuance on May 9, 2012, by a €229 mullion
withdrawal from additional paid-in capital, of 41 6 million new shares with a nominal value of €55 each and entitlement as from
January 1,2012
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Divestituras changes in

December 31 Business farergn currency December 31
Note 201212} Addtion Uulzation Raversal combingtions  translation adjustments 2013
{in mithons of euras) ana ather
Employes benafits (b} 75 23 {56) 116) 10 12} 674
Restruciuring costs {c) 258 199 [256) W} {5} (39) 156
Liigations {d} 28 1357 143 158) (a1} 13 135) 1379
Losses on onerpus contracts 143 13 {62} n} 35 128
Contingent latules due 1o disposal (e} 274 24 3 3 24
Cost of dismantling and restonng sites {f) 81 {4) () 75
Osher (g} 7 389 99 111) [245) 34 79} 1087 (h
Provisions 3.869 a0 (547) 1307) 87 {158} 3L52='
Deduction of current prowisions 7] @) 237 £ 7 g 1619)
Non-current provisions 3258 203 {310} 11) 80 {150} 2.904
Divesutures changes in
January 01 2012 Business foretgn currency December 31
Note {a) Addition Utihzzuon feversal combirations wranslation adjustmeants 2012 (a)
{in milhons of euras) and other
Employea banefits (b} 617 43 (78) (34) 80 07 715
Restructunng costs {c) 48 322 154) 52 0 2498
Ligations (d) 28 479 1015 (54) 082) 4 (5] 1357
Losses on cnergus coatracts 237 19 {104} [1]v] 1 143
Contingent hiatulities due to dispasal {el 274 43 7 !
Cost of dismanthing and restoring sites () 70 1 3 15 83
Other {g) 173 748 {107) 1631 29 9 1389
Provizions 2265 2148 {500} (189} 145 100 3,969
Deduction of current provisions {586) {316) 91 139 12} {27) {711)
Non-current provisions 1,679 1,832 {209) 150 133 73 3.258

As of January 1, 2013, Vivend: applied, with retrospective effect as from Janvary 1, 2012, amended 1AS 19 (Employee Benefits),
whose application 1s mandatory in the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 (please refer to Note 1) As a result, the
2012 Financial Statements were adjusted in accordance with the new standards (please refer to Note 33)

Includes employee deferred compensation as well as prowisions for defined employee benefit plans (€619 million as of December
31, 2013 and €662 mllion as of December 31, 2012, please refer to Note 21 2), but excludes employee termmation reserves recorded
under restructuning costs

Mainly refates to provisions for restructuring at UMG (€67 million as of December 31, 2013 and €78 million as of December 31, 2012)
and SFR (€85 million as of December 31, 2013 and €170 million as of December 31, 2012)

As of December 31, 2012 and 2012, notably includes the reserve accrual in refation to the Liberty Media Corporation litigation and the
securtties class action in the Umted States for €945 milhon and €100 mullion, respectively (please refer to Note 28}

Certan commitments given in relation to divestitures are the subject of provisions These provisions are not significant and the
amount is not disclosed because such disclosure could be prejudicial to Vivends

GVT and SFR are required to dismantte and restore each telephony antenna site following termination of a site lease, without
renewal

Notably includes provisions for fiscal and legal litigation for which the amount s not detalled because such disclosure could be
prejudicial to Yivend

Notably includes the reserve accruals related to the impacts of the Consolidated Giobal Profit Tax System in 2011 (€366 milhion), as
well as the impact related to the use of tax credits in 2012 (€220 milion) please refer to Note 6
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Note 21 Employee benefits

21.1 Analysis of expenses related to employee benefit plans

The following table provides information about the cost of employee benefit plans excluding 1ts financial component The total cost of
defined benefit plans 1s set forth in Note 21 2 2 below

Year ended December 31,

{in millions of euros) Note 2013 2012

Employee defined contribution plans 50 46
Employes defined benefit plans 2122 (8) nm
Employee henefit plans 46 45

21.2 Employee defined benefit plans

21.21  Assumptions used in the evaluation and sensitivity analysis
Discount rate, expected return on plan assets, and rate of compensation increase

The assumptions underlying the valuation of defined benefit plans were made in compliance with the accounting policies presented in
Note 138 and have been applied consistently for several years Demographic assumptions (including notably the rate of compensation
increase) are company specific Financial assumptions (notably the discount rate} are determined by independent actuaries and other
independent adwisors and reviewed by Vivendr's Finance Department The discount rate 1s thus determined for each country by reference to
yvields on notes 1ssued by investment grade companies having a credit rating of AA and matunties dentical to that of the valued plans,
generally based on relevant rate indices The discount rates selected are thus used, at year-end, to determine the best estimate by Vivendi’s
Finance Department of expected trends i future payments from the first benefit payments

In accordance with amended IAS 19, the expected return on plan assets Is estimated using the discount rate used to value the obligations of
the previous year

In weighted average

Pension benefits Post-retirement benefits

2013 2012 2013 2012
Discount rate (a) 36% 36% 45% 36%
Rate of compensation ncrease 20% 20% 29% 31%
Duration of the benefit obligation {in years) 142 142 100 105

a A 50 basis point increase (or a 50 basis point decrease, respectively} in the 2013 discount rate would have led to a decrease of
€2 million 1n pre-tax expense (or an increase of €1 million, respectively) and would have led to a decrease in the obligations of pension
and post-retirement benefits of €60 million {or an increase of €64 million, respectively)

Assumptions used m accovnting for the pension benefits, by country

United States United Kingdom Germany France
2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Discount rate 450% 350% 450% 4 25% 300% 325% 300% 325%
Rate of compensation increase {weighted average) na na 500% 450% 200% 200% 336% 301%

na not applicable

Assumptions used in accounting for post-retirement benefits, by country

United States Canada
2013 2012 2013 2012
Discount rate 450% 350% 450% 4 00%
Rate of compensation Increase 350% 350% na na

na not applicable
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Allocation of pension plan assets

December 31, 2013 (a} December 31, 2012 (a)

Equity secunties 4% 6%
Debt securities 48% 57%
Diversified funds 8% 16%
Insurance contracts 5% 5%
Real estate 1% 1%
Cash and ather 14% 15%
Total 100% 100%

a  Pension plan assets are mainly financial assets actively traded in organized financial markets

Pension plan assets which were not transferred have a limited exposure to stock market fluctuations These assets do not include occupied
buildings or assets used by Yivend: nor shares or debt instruments of Vivendi

Cost evolution of post-retirement benefits

For the purpose of measuring post-retirement benefits, Vivendi assumed the annual growth in the per capita cost of covered health care
benefits would slow down from 7 3% for categones under 65 years old and 65 years old and aver in 2013, to 4 5% in 2022 for these
categones In 2013, a one-percentage-point increase in the assumed cost evolution rates would have increased post-retirement benefit
obhgations by €10 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 million Conversely, a one-percentage-point decrease in the assumed cost evolution
rates would have decreased post-retirement benefit ebhigations by €8 million and the pre-tax expense by €1 million

2122  Analysis of the expense recorded and of the amount of benefits paid

Pension benefits Post retrement benefits Total

{in millions of euros) 203 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Current service cost i3 18 - 19 18
Past service cost [a) (7 200 - (+7) {20}
{Gains} / losses on settlements {7} - - n

Qther 1 1 - 1 1
impact on selling, administrative and general expenses {4} {n - @ {1}
Interest cost 27 23 6 7 13 36
Expected return on plan assets (13) {13} - {13) {13}
Impact on other financial charges and mcome 14 16 6 7 20 23
Net benefit cost recogmzed in profit and loss 10 15 6 7 16 73

a  The recorded past service cost mainly relates to the effect of decreases in relation to the restructuring at SFR (impact in 2013}, as well
as the change of part of the group's management team since the end of June 2012

In 2013, benefits paid amounted te {1} €35 milon {compared to €29 milhon in 2012) with respect to pensions, of which €8 million {compared
to €7 million in 2012) was paid by pension funds, and (1) €10 million (compared to €12 million 1n 2012) was paid with respect to post-
retirement benefits
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2123  Analysis of net benefit obligations with respect to pensions and post-retirement benehts

Changes in value of benefit obligations, fair value of plan assets, and funded status

Employee defined benefit plans
Year ended December 31 2013

Benefit obhigation Fairvalue of plan Net
assets {provisions)/assets
recorded in the
Statement of
Financial Position
{in milans of euros) Note iA) {B) (BHA)
Opening balance 1,020 367 (653}
Current service cost 21 (21}
Past service cast (18) 18
(Gains)/losses on settlements (29) (22} 7
Other 1 {1)
Impact on selhing, administrative and ganeral expanses 3
interest cost 35 (39}
Expected return on plan assets 13 13
Impact on other financial charges and income z2)
Net benefit cost recognized n profit and loss (19)
Expenence gas/{losses) (a) 12 m o M3
Actwanal gans/{iosses) refated 1o thanges n demograpiic assumphions yi {2)
Actuanal gains/{losses) related to changes in financial assumptions 5 {5)
Adjustment related to asset ceiling -
Actuanal gains/{losses) recogmzed m other comprehensive income {20}
Coniributions by plan participants i 1
Contributions by emplayers 46 46
Benefits paid from the fund 19} (9} -
Benefits paid by the employer {36) (36}
Business combinations (b) 12 g {3}
Dwvestitures of businesses -
Transfers -
(ther {of which fareign currency translation adjustments) (20) {12} 8
Reclassification to assets held for sale {31) kil
Closing balance 966 35 {610)
of which wholly or partly funded benefits 487
wholly unfunded benefits [c} 479
of which assets related to employee benefit plans 9
provisions for employee benefit plans fd) 20 {619}
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{in mllons of euros)
Balance as of December 31, 2011 - as published

Unrecognized actuanial losses/{gains) reported in consolidated retained earmings

Balance as of January 1, 2012
Current service cost
Past service cost
{Gainsl/losses on settlements
Other
Impact on selling, admmnistrative and general expenses
Interest cost
Expected retum on plan assets
Impact on other financial charges and income
Net henehit cost recogmzed in profit and loss
Expenience gains/{losses) (a)
Actuanial gains/{losses) related to changes in demographic assumptians
Actuanial gains/{losses) related to changes in financial assumptions
Adjustment related to asset cerling
Actuanal gains/{losses) recognized i other comprehensive income
Contnibutions by plan participants
Contributtons by employers
Benefits paid from the fund
Benefits paid by the employer
Business combinations {b)
Divestitures of businesses
Transfers
Other {of which foreign currency translation adjustments)
Reclassification to assets held for sale
Closing balance
of which wholly or partly funded benefits
whofly unfunded benefits (c}
of which assets related to employee benefit plans
provisions for employse benefit plans (d)

Tuesday February 25, 2014

Employee defined benefit plans
Year ended December 31 2012

Benefit chhigation Fair value of plan Net
assets {provisions}/assets
recorded in the
Statement of
Financial Pasition
Note (Al (B} (Bi-{Al

(428)
{126}
826 271 {554)
19 {19
(21} 21
1 1)

1
38 {38)

13 13
125)
(24)

(15) 13 28
n 1
m (11
{82)

1 1 -

2 61 63

(7 7 -
(34) (34) -
m 51 {60)
(7) (3 4
1,020 367 (653)

533
487

g
20 {662}

a Includes the smpact on the benefit obligation resulting from the difference between benefits estimated at the previous year-end and
benefits paid during the year, and the difference between the expected return on plan assets at the previous year end and the actual

return on plan assets during the year

b Relates to the impact of the acquisition on September 28, 2012 of EMI Recarded Music on the vatue of the obligations, plan assets,

and underfunded obligation

In accordance with local laws and practices, certain plans are not covered by pension funds As of December 31, 2013 and December

31, 2012, they pnincipally comprise supplementary pension plans in the United States, pension plans in Germany and post-retirement

beneht plans in the United States
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Benefit obligation, fair value of plan assets, and funded status detailed by country

{in milligns of euros}

Banefit obligation
US companies

UK companies
German companies
French companies
Other

Fair value of plan assets
US companies

UK compamies

German tompames

French companies

Other

Underfunded obligation
US companies

UK companies

German companies

French compames

Other

Tuesday, February 25, 2014

Penston benefits {a} Post retirement benefits {b} Total
December 31 Dacember 31 December 31
2043 2012 7013 2012 2013 2012

107 118 120 144 227 262
233 5 1 - 234 15
190 183 190 183
233 216 233 218
57 115 15 19 82 134
&30 857 136 163 966 1,020
48 53 48 53
201 188 m 188
3 3 3 3
65 &7 65 67
39 56 39 56
156 367 356 367
{59) [68) (120 (144) {179) {209}
(32) {37) n 133) (37)
(187) [180) - {187} {180}
{168) {149) - (158) {14g)
{28) {59) {15) [19) 143) {78)
{474) {490} (136} (153} {610} (653

a  Noemployee defined benefit plan individually exceeded 10% of the total value of the obligations and of the underfunded obhgation of

these plans

b Maly relates to medical coverage (hospitalization, surgery, doctor visits, drug prescnptions) post-retirement and Ife insurance
benefits for certain employees and retirees wn the United States In accordance with the current regulation in relation to the funding
policy of this type of plan, the plan 1s not funded The main nisks for the group relate to changes in discount rates as well as the
increase :n costs of benefits (please refer to the sensitivity analysis described 1n Note 21 2 1)

2124 Benefits estimation and future payments

For 2014, hedge fund coninbutrons and beneht payments to retirees by Viventh are estimated at €44 mithon in respect of pensions, of which
€24 million to pension funds and €11 million to post-retirement benefits

Estimates of future benefit payments to beneficiares by the relevant pension funds or by Vivend: (in nominal value) are as follows

{in millions of euros)

2014
2019
2016
2017
2018
2019-2023

Pension benefits

Post-retirement

benefits

a1
25
3
33
30

77

1
10
"
10
10
49

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Vivend /101



Tuesday, February 25, 2014

Note 22 Share-based compensation plans

22.1 Impact on the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

{in millions of euros} Year ended December 31,
Charge/{income) Note 2013 2012
Stock options, performance shares and bonus shares 29 29
Emplaoyee stock purchase plans 23 33
Stock Appreciation Rights {SAR} 1 -
Vivendi stock instruments 222 53 62
UMG equity unit plan 223 5 9
Charge/{Incame} related to share-based compensation plans 3 58 n
Equity-settled instruments 52 67
Cash-settled instruments [ g

22.2 Plans granted by Vivendi
2221 Information on plans granted by Vivend:

Vivend: has granted several share-based compensation plans to employees of the group

Ouring 2012, Vivend: granted stock aption and performance share plans, wherever the fiscal residence of the beneficianes and bonus share
plan for employees of all the group's French subsidiaries

in 2013, the Supervisory Board decided, upon the recommendation of the Management Board and General Management and the advice of
the Human Resources Comrmuttee, that all grants would be made in the form of performance shares, wherever the fiscal residence of the
beneficiaries

In addition 1n 2013 and 2012, Vivend: granted stock purchase plans to its employees and retirees (employee stock purchase and leveraged
plans}

The accounting methods applied te value and recognize these granted plans are described in Note 1310 More specifically, the risk-free
interest rate apphed 15 the rate of French “Obligations Assimitables du Trésor” (QAT] wath a matunity corresponding to the expected term of
the instrument at the valuation date, and the expected dividend yield at grant date 1s based on Vivend's dwvidend distribution policy

As a reminder, the volatility applied in valuing the stock aption plans granted by Vivendi in 2012 was calculated as the weighted average of
(a) 75% of the historical volatility of Vivends shares computed on a 6 5-year penod and (b} 25% of the imphed volatility based on Vivend: put
and call options traded on a hquid market with a matunity of 6 months or more

Equity-settled instruments

The definitive grant of equity-settied instruments, excluding the 2012 bonus share plan, (s subject to the satsfaction of performance
condiiens  Such performance conditions include an external indicator, thus following AFEP and MEDEF recommendations The objectives
underlying the performance conditions are determined by the Supervisory Board upon proposal by the Human Resources Committee

The value of the equity-settled instruments 1s estimated and set at grant date For the main 2013 and 2012 performance share, stock option
and bonus share plans, the applied assumptions were as follows

2013 2012
Grant date February 22, July 16, (a) Apnl 17
Data at grant date
Optian strike price {in euros) (b} na na 1363
Share price {in euros} 14,91 15,75 12,53
Expected volatility na na 27%
Expected dividend yield 671% 635% 7,98%
Perfarmance condrtions achievement rate {c) 100% na 100%

na not applicable

a Vivend granted 50 bonus shares to the employees of ali the group's French subsidiaries {see below)
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b In accordance with legal requirements, the number and strike price of stock options, as well as the number of performance shares in
connection with outstanding plans, were adjusted to take nto account the impact, for the beneficianes of the following distnibutions
{please refer to Note 19} by a withdrawal from reserves

e onMay9, 2012 grant to each shareowner of one bonus share per 30 shares held, and

e onMay 17,2013 dividend distnibution with respect to fiscal year 2012
These adjustments have no impact on share-based compensation expense related to the relevant stock option and performance share
plans

¢ The objectives underlying the perfarmance conditions are assessed on a two-year period The definitive grant is effective upon the
satisfaction of the following performance conditions
» nternal indicators (70%} for corporate head office, group EBITA margin and for each subsidiary, its EBITA margin, as a functian
of the cumulative income from fiscal years 2013 and 2014 (compared to the EBITA margin in 2012 and 2013 for the whole group,
including corporate head office and 1ts subsidiaries related to plans granted in 2012), and
o external indicators (30%) performance of Vivend's share price over two years, according to the Dow Jones Stoxx Tefecom
index (70%} and according to the Media index compnised of a pre-established panel (30%)

The defimtive grant of stock options and performance shares of Apnl 17, 2012 became effective as of December 31, 2013 The
acquisition of these instruments 1s conditienal upon active employment at the vesting date

Performance share plans

Performance shares granted in 2013 and 2012 will vest at the end of a two-year period The compensation cost 1s therefore recognized on a
straight-line basis over the vesting period Performance shares are available at the end of a four-year penod from the date of grant
However, as the shares granted are ordinary shares of the same class as existing shares making up the share capital of Vivend: SA,
employee shareholders are entitled to the dividends and voting nghts attached ta these shares from the end of the two-year vesting period
The recognized compensation cost corresponds to the value of the equity instruments received by the beneficiary, and 1s equal to the
difference between the fair value of the shares to be received and the discounted value of dividends that were not recerved over the vesting
period

On February 22, 2013, 2573 thousand performance shares were granted, compared to 1,818 thousand granted on April 17, 2012 After
taking into accoent a discount for non-transferability of 8 3% of the share price on February 22, 2013 (7 1% on Apnil 17, 2012), the fair value
of each granted performance share was €11 79, compared to €3 80 per share on Aprl 17, 2012 corresponding to a global fair value of
€30 million {compared to €18 million in 2012)

Stock option plans

Stock optians granted (n 2012 wikl vest at the end of a three-year peniod and expire at the end of a ten-year peniod (with a 6 5 year expected
term) and the compensation cast determined at grant date 15 recognized on a straight-line basis over the vesting peniod In 2013, Vivend: did
not grant any stock options On Apnil 17, 2012, 2514 thousand stock options were granted After taking into account a 2 35% nisk-free
interest rate, the fair value of each option granted was €0 95, corresponding ta a global fair value of €2 million

50 bonus share pian

On July 16, 2012, Vivend: granted a 50 bonus share plan per employee of all the group’s French subsidianies These shares will be 1ssued at
the end of a two-year period, 1e, July 17, 2014, subject to the employee being in active employment at this date and withaut any
perfermance conditions The campensation cost 15 therefore recognized on a straight-line basis over this period The shares will only be
available after another two-year period However, as the shares granted are ordinary shares of the same class as existing shares making up
the share capital of Vivend: SA, employee shareholders will be entitled to the dividend and voting rghts relating to these shares from the
end of the two year vesting perniod

On July 16, 2012, 729 thousand bonus shares were granted After taking into account a discount for non-transferability of 9 3% of the share
price on July 16, 2012, the fair value of each granted bonus share was €12 40, a total of €3 million

Employee stock purchase and leveraged plans

Vivend! also mainta:ns share purchase plans {stock purchase and leveraged plans] that allow substantially all of its employees and retirees
to purchase Vivend shares through capital increases reserved to them These shares, which are subject to certain sale or transfer
restrictions, may be purchased by employees with a maximum discount of 20% on the average opening market price for Vivendi shares
durning the 20 trading days preceding the date of approval of the share capital increase by the Management Board {purchase date} The
difference between the subscription price of the shares and the share price on the date of grant {corresponding to the subscription period
closing date) represents the benefit granted to the beneficiaries Furthermore, Vivend: applies a discount for non-transferability in respect of
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the restrictions on the sale or transfer of the shares during a five-year period, which 1s deducted from the beneht granted to the employees
The value of the stock purchase plans granted 1s estmated and fixed at the grant date

For the employee stock purchase and leveraged plans subscribed in 20113 and 2012, the applied valuation assumptions were as follows

2013 2012
Grant date June 28 June 25
Subscription price {in euros) 1210 1031
Data at grant date
Share price (In euros) 14 55 1357
Discount to face value 16 82% 24 02%
Expected dividend yield 687% 7371%
Risk-free interest rate 119% 137%
S-year interest rate in fine 6 08% 651%
Repo rate 036% 0 36%

Under the emplayee stock purchase plans, 2,055 thousand shares were subscribed (n 2013 (2,108 thousand shares subscribed in 2012)
After taking into account & 15 2% discount for non-transferability to the share price on the grant date {15 3% in 2012), the fair value per
subscribed share was €0 24 on June 28, 2013, compared to €1 18 per subscrnibed share on June 25, 2012

Under the leveraged plans, virtually all employees and retirees of Vivend) and its French and foreign subsidiaries were entitled to
subscribe for Vivends shares through a reserved share capital increase, while obtaning a discounted subscription price, and to ultimately
receive the capital gain {calculated pursuant to the terms and cenditions of the plan} corresponding to 10 shares for one subscribed share A
financial institution mandated by Vivend: hedges this transaction

In 2013, 9,758 thousand shares were subscribed under the leveraged plan {compared to 9,845 subscribed shares in 2012} After taking into
account @ 15% discount for non-transferability measured after the leveraged mpact (unchanged compared to 2012}, the fair value per
subscribed share on June 28, 2013 was €2 23, compared to €3 05 per subscribed share on June 25, 2012

In 2013, the charge recognized with respect o employee stock purchase and leveraged plans amounted to €23 million {compared to
£33 mitlion 1n 2012)

Stock purchase and leveraged plans resufted 1n a capital increase (including 1ssue premium} totaling €149 million on July 25, 2013, and
€127 million on July 19, 2012

Cash-settled instruments

In 2006 and 2007, Vivend: granted specific instruments to its US resident managers and employees, with economic features similar to those
granted to non-US resident managers and employees, except that these equity instruments are settled 1n cash only The value of the cash-
settled instruments granted 1s initially estimated as of the grant date and is then re-estimated at each reporting date unt|l the payment date
and the expense 15 adjusted pro rata taking inte account the vested rights at each such reporting date All the nights for these plans were
definitively vested as of April 2010

Stock appreciation right plans

When the instruments entitle the beneficiaries thereof to receive the appreciation (n the value of the Vivend: share price, they are known as
“stock appreciation nghts” (SAR) which are the economic equivalent of stock options Under a SAR plan, the beneficiaries will receive a
cash payment upon exercise of their rights based on the Vivend) share price equal to the difference between the Vivend: share price upon
exercise of the SAR and their strike price as set at the grant date SAR expire at the end of a ten-year period The following table presents
the value of outstanding SAR plans measured as of December 31, 2013

2007 2006

Grant date April 23, Apnl 13,
Data at grant date

Strike price {in US dollars) a3 3458

Number of instruments granted (in thousands} 1,281 1,250
Data at the valuation date { December 31 2013)

Expected term {in years) 16 11

Share price {(in US dollars) %6729 2629

Expected volatility 29% 29%

Risk-free intergst rate 026% 023%

Expected dividend yield 525% 525%
Fair value of the granted option as of December 31, 2013 (in US dollars) 038 064
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Equity-settled instruments
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Stock options

Performance shares

Number of gutstanding
stock options

Weighted average strike
price of outstanding stock

Number of outstanding
performance shares

options
{in thousands) {in euros) (inthousands)
Balance as of December 31, 2011 49,907 215 2,961
Granted 2,650 137 1918
Exercised {479) 130 (981}
Cancelled (411 184 (138}
Adjusted 1739 204 124
Balance as of December 31, 2012 53,306 205 3884
Granted - na 2782
Exercised (3,362) {a) 133 {1409)
Forferted {354) 129 -
Cancelled {194) 54 {199}
Adjusted 3339 194 286
Batance as of December 31, 2013 52835 (h) 137 538 (o)
Exercisable as of December 31, 2013 47,393 202 -
Acquired as of December 31, 2013 47411 202 51=8'

na not applicable

a  The weighted average share price for Vivendi shares at the dates of exercise for the options was €16 21 {compared to £16 70 for stack

options exercised in 2012}

b The total intrinsic value of outstanding stock options was €64 mullion

¢ The weighted-average remaining penod before 1ssuing shares was 1 2 years

Regarding the grant of 50 bonus shares in 2012, the rematming number of bonus shares was 663 thousand as of December 31, 2013
{697 thousand as of December 31, 2012} During 2013, 34 thousand shares were cancelled {32 thousand shares in 2012}

Please refer to Note 19 for the potential impact on the share capital of Vivendi SA of the outstanding stock options, the perfarmance shares

and bonus shares

Information on stock options as of December 31, 2013 15 as follows

Outstanding stock options

Vested stock options

Weighted average

Range of strike prices Number Weighted average remaining Number Weighted average

strike price strike price

contractual hfe

(in thousands) (in euros) (in years) {in thousands) {in euros)
Under €15 2792 125 83 ] i24
€15-E17 12 363 168 57 12 363 168
E17-E19 10787 176 21 8147 175
€19€ 7868 20 13 7868 200
£21€23 6,699 213 43 6699 N3
€23-€75 6,099 241 23 6,099 241
E25-€27 6227 261 33 6227 261
€27 and more - - - -
52835 197 36 47,41 202

Cash-settled instruments

As of December 31, 2013, the remaiming cutstanding SAR amounted to 2,980 thousand {compared to 5,064 thousand as of
December 31, 2012) Fellowing the sale of Activiston Blizzard on October 11, 2013, the payment obligations, incurred by Vivend:, with
respect to the 1,925 thousand SAR have been transferred to Activision Blizzard Al nghts related to SAR were vested and their total intrinsic
valug amounted to $2 million As of December 31, 2013, the amount accrued for these (nstruments was €1 million {compared to €2 nillion as

of December 31, 2012)
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223 UMG long-term incentive plan

Effective January 1, 2010, UMG implemented long-term incentive arrangements under which certain key executives of UMG are awarded
phantom equity units and phantom stock appreciation rights whose value 1s intended to reflect the value of UMG These units are simply
units of account and do not represent an actual ownership interest in either UMG or Vivendi The equity units are notional grants of equity
that will be payable in cash upon settlement no later than 2015 or earlier under certain circumstances The stock appreciation nghts are
essentially options on those notional shares that provide additional cempensation tied to any increase n value of UMG over the term The
SAR's are also settled in cash only no later than 2014 or earlier under certain circumstances There 1s @ guaranteed minimum payout of
$25 mibion

Payouts under the plan generally coincide with terms of employment, but can be accelerated or reduced under certain circumstances The
values for both payouts are based upen third party valuations While the participants’ rights vest at the end of a fixed vesting period,
compensation expense IS recagnized over the vesting period as services are rendered At each closing date, the expense (s recognized based
on the portion of the vesting penod that has elapsed and the farr value of the units calculated using an appropnate grant date model in
accordance with IFAS 2

As of December 31, 2013, the amount accrued under these arrangements was €26 millan (€22 millian as of December 31, 2012) There have
been no payments made to date

Note 23 Borrowings and other financial liabilities

Note December 31 2013 December 31, 2012
{in milhons of euros) Total Long-term Short tarm Total Long-term Short-term
Bonds 231 1827 6633 1194 10888 10,188 700
Bank credit faciities {drawn confirmed) 232 2075 2014 61 2423 2326 97
Commercial paper 1ssued 232 1906 - 1906 3255 - 3,255
Bank overdrafts 143 - 143 192 - 192
Other bank borrowings - - . 625 4 591
Accrued interest to be paid 186 - 186 205 - 205
Other 73 83 20 126 BB 40
Nominal value of borrowings 12,210 8,700 3510 17.14 12634 5,080
Cumulative effect of amortized cost and reevatuation due to
hedge accounting 8 8 - {1 4 {5)
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 22 22 - 8 8 -
Dernvative financial instruments 24 26 7 19 36 21 15
Borrowings and other financial habihities 12,266 8,737 3,529 117197 12,667 5,000
231 Bonds
Interest rate (%) December Maturing during the following periods Decamber
nominal  effective Maturty 31, Ater 31,
(in mathons of evros) 2013 2014 2015 2016 017 2018 2018 2012
€750 mzthon (July 2013) 2375% 251% Jan 19 750 {a) - - - - 750
€700 melion (December 2012) 2500%  265% Jan-20 700 - - - - 100 700
$550 mthion {April 2012) 2400%  Z250% Apr-15 - (b} - - - - 420
$650 million {April 2012} 3450%  356% Jan 18 69 fc) - - 69 - 491
$B800 rmiition {Apnl 2012) 4 750% 491% Apr-22 189 (c) - - - 189 604
€1 250 mullion {January 2012} 4125% 431% Jul 17 1250 - - 1250 - 17250
€500 million (November 2011) 3875% 404% Nov-15 - id) - - - - - 500
£500 million {November 2011) 4875% 500% Nov-18 500 - - - - 500 - 500
£€1,000 rullion (July 2011) 3500%  368% Juk-15 - {d) - - - - - 1000
€1 050 rulhon {July 2011} 4750%  467% Juk-21 1050 - . - . 1050 1050
€750 mullion {March 2010} 4.000% 415% Mar-17 750 - . - 750 - 750
€700 million {December 2009} 4875%  495% De¢-19 700 - - - - - 700 700
€500 milhon {December 2009) 47250%  439% Dec 16 500 - - 500 - - - 500
€300 milhon  SFR {July 2009) 5000%  505% Jul-14 300 300 - - - - - 300
€1 120 millron (January 2009} 7750%  769% Jan-14 894 {a} 894 - - - - 894
$700 mulhon {Apnl 2008) 6625% 6 85% Apr-18 175 {0 - - - - 175 529
€700 mullron {October 2006} 4500% S47% Oct-13 (e} - - - - - - 700
Nomunel value of bonds 7827 119 - 500 2000 744 3,389 10,888

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31 2013 Vivend: /106




Tuesday, February 25, 2014
a  OnJuly 9, 2013, Vivench 1ssued a €750 miltion bond, maturing in January 2019 This transaction enabled the refinancing of the bond
1ssued in January 2009, maturing in January 2014

b A USD/EUR foreign cusrency hedge [cross-currency swap) was set up to hedge this tranche denommated in US dollar with a 1 3082
EUR/USD rate, or a €420 million counter value at maturity On November 15, 2013, Vivend) exercised the full make-whole call and early
redeemed this bond

¢ OnOctober 25, 2013, Vivend: early redeemed $1,555 million {€1,150 million) in bonds, through tender offers
- 8955 mulhon (€411 mullion) on the $650 million bend issued in April 2012, itially matunng i January 2018,
- $541 millon {400 mullion) on the $800 million bond 1ssued in Apnl 2012, imtially matuning in April 2022, and
- 3459 million {€£339 million) on the $700 million bond 1ssued in April 2008, instially maturing m Apnl 2018

d  On November 11, 2013, Vivend: early redeemed {make-whole} the full amount of these two bonds
e  This bond was redeemed in October 2013 upon its contractual matunity date
The bonds dencminated in euro are histed on the Luxembourg Stock Exchange

The bonds denominated 1n US dollar were converted into euro based on the closing rate, 1 e, 1 3730 EUR/USD as of December 31, 2013 {compared
to 13244 EUR/USD as of December 31, 2012}

Bonds 1ssued by the group contain customary provisions related to events of default, negative pledge and, nghts of payment (pan-passu ranking) In
addtion, bonds 1ssued by Vivend) SA contain an early redemption clause in case of a change :n control trigger if, as a result of any such event, the
long-term rating of Vivend) SA 1s downgraded below investment grade status (Baa3/BBB-)

232 Bank credit facilities

December Matuning during the following periods December
Maximum 3 After N

{in millicn of euros} Matunty ampunt 2013 2014 2015 26 207 2018 2018 20i2
€1 5 llian revolving facibty (March 2013) Mar 18 1500 (a) 205 205
€15 billion revohang facility (May 2012) May 17 1500 -
€1 1 llion revolving facility (January 2012) Jan 17 1100
€40 million revolving facility [January 2012) Jan 15 40 -
€5 0 illian revolang facility (May 2011}

trancha B €15 bellon [a) - - 125

trarche € €2 0 brllion May 16 2000 975 a75 - 819
€1 0 billien revoing facility (September 2010) Sep 15 1000 475 475 350
€1 2 billion revolving facility  SFR (June 2010) ib) -
GVT - BNDES 452 391 43 n n 60 51 83 406
Marog Telecorn MAD 3 billion loan Jut 14 - - - 94
Canal+ Group VSTV 7 29 18 n - - i
Drawn confumed bank credd faciites 2075 61 %3 1052 &0 56 <3 .
Undrawn confirmed bank credit facilities 5554 n 578 1036 2611 1306 6 6616
Total of group's bank cradit facilives 7829 n 1138 2,087 267 1,562 99 9,039
Commercial paper tssued {c} 190§ i 906 3255

a  OnMarch 28, 2013, Vivend: completed the early refinancing of a €1 5 billion bank credit facility matuning in May 2014 by entering into a new
bank credit facility for the same amount with a five-year matunty

b The€1 2 bilhon revolving facihity of SFR was cancelled in October 2013

¢ The commercial paper is backed to confirmed bank credit facihties it s recorded as short-term borrowing on the Consolidated Statement of
Financial Position On February 20, 2013, Vivend: increased the maximum amount authorized by the Banque de France regarding Vivendi SA's
commercial paper program from €4 to €5 billion

Vivend) SA bank credit facilities, when drawn, bear interest at floating rates

Vivend SA’s syndicated bank credit facilities (€7 1 billion as of December 31, 2013) contain customary provisions related to events of default
and covenants relating ta negative pledge, divestiture and merger transactrons In addition, at the end of each half year, Vivendi SA s
required to comply with a financial covenant of Proportionate Financial Net Debt' to Proportionate EBITDA? over a twelve-month rolling
period not exceeding 3 for the duration of the loans Non-compliance with this covenant could result in the early redemption of the facilities
if they were drawn, or their cancellation As of December 31, 2013, Vivendi SA was in compliance with these financial covenants

" As of December 31 2013, defined as Vivendr s Financial Net Debt adusted for expected proceeds faccording to the financial terms known to date) from the sale of Maroe
Telecom group

? As of Dacember 31 2013, defined as Viventh s modified EBITDA as publisted at that date (please refer to Note 3) plus dnadends recerved from unconsolidated companies
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The renewal of Vivendi SA’s confirmed bank credit facilities when they are drawn 1s contingent upon the issuer reiterating certain
representations regarding its ability to comply with its financial obligations with respect to loan contracts

The credit facilibes granted to GVT by the BNDES (€452 million as of December 31, 2013) contain a change in control trigger and are subject
to certain financial covenants pursuant to which GVT 1s required to comply at the end of each half year with at least three of the following
financial covenants (1] a ratio of equity to total assets equal to or higher than 0 40 {0 35 for the credit facilities granted in November 2011},
{n) a ratio of Financial Net Debt to EBITDA not exceeding 2 50, (1) a ratio of curent financial habibties to EBITDA not exceeding 0 45, and
(iv) a ratio of EBITDA to net financial expenses of at least 4 00 (3 50 for the credit faciltties granted in Navember 2011) As of December 31,
2013, GVT was in comphiance with its covenants

Moreover, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for €975 million, matuning in March 2016, was 1ssued in connection with Vivend!'s appeal
against the Liberty Media yudgment (please refer to Note 28} This off-balance sheet financial cammitment has no 1mpact on Vivend's net
dabt This letter of credit s guaranteed by a syndicate of fifteen international banks with which Vivend: has signed a Reimbursement Agreement
which includes an undertaking by Vivendi to reimburse the banks for any amounts paid out under the letter of credit The Reimbursement
Agreement notably contains events of default and acceleration clauses similar to those contained in Vivendi's credit facilites In certain
circumstances, these provisions could cause Vivend: te have to post cash collateral for the benefit of the banks In the same way, if one of the
fifteen banks defaults 1n respect of its obligations and 1s not able to issue a guaranteg sufficient enough to provide comfort to Bank of America,
Vivend could be caused to substitute such bank with another bank or, as a tast resort, be obligated to post cash collateral in the amount of such
bank’s participation in the letter of credit As of December 31, 2013, Vivend SA was in comphance with the terms of the letter of credit

23.3 Breakdown of the nominal value of borrowings by maturity, nature of the interest rate, and

currency
Breakdown by maturrty
i millions of euros) December 31, 2013 December 31 2012
Maturity
<1 year (a} 3510 29% 5,080 29%
Between 1 and 2 years 588 5% 2,057 12%
Between 2 and 3 years 1562 13% 2380 13%
Between 3 and 4 years 2065 17% 1 406 8%
Between 4 and 5 years 1,005 8% 2073 12%
> Byears 3,480 28% 4718 26%
Nominal value of borrowings 12,210 100% 17.114 100%
1 f—————

a  Asof December 31, 2013, short-term borrowings [with a matunity of less than one year) notably included commercial paper for €1,906 million
{compared to €3,255 million as of December 31, 2012), with a 17-day weighted-average remaning period as of December 31, 2013 as well as
Vivendi SA’s €894 millien bond, maturing in January 2014, and SFR's €300 mitlion bond, maturing 1n July 2014

As of December 31, 2013, the average "economic” term of the group's financial debt, pursuant to which all undrawn amounts an available medium-
term credit ines may be used to redeem group borrowings with the shortest term was of 4 2 years (compared to 4 4 years at year-end 2012)

Breakdown by nature of interest rate

(in millions of euros) Note December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012
Fixed mterest rate 7830 54% 11,666 6%
Floating interest rate 4,380 36% 6048 34%

Nominal value of borrowings before hedging 12,210 108% 17,114 100%

Pay-fixed nterest rate swaps 450 450

Pay-floating interest rate swaps {2 600 {1450

Net position at fixed mterest rate 242 {2.150) {1,000)

Fixed interest rate 5680 7% 10 666 60%
Floating interest rate 6530 53% 7048 40%
Nom:nal value of borrowings after hedgmg 12210 109% 12,114 100%

Please refer to Note 24 2 1 for a description of the group's interest rate risk management instruments
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Breakdown by currency

{in meltions of euros) Note Decermber 31 2013 December 31 2012
Euro - EUR 11396 93% 14,420 81%
US dollar - USD 433 4% 2,046 12%
Other {of which BRL and PLN) 381 3% 1248 7%

Nominal value of borrowings before hedging 12,210 100% 17.14 100%

Currency swaps USD 1468 1,303

Other currency swaps {198 {813} (a)

Nat total of hedging instroments 42 1.269 490
Euro - EUR 12 665 104% 14910 4%
US dollar - USD {1 035) 9% 743 4%
Other (of which BRL and PLN) 580 5% 2 061 12%

Nominal value of borrowings after hedging 12,210 100% 12,114 100%

a  Notably included a forward GBP/EUR contract for @ nominal amount af £430 milion, put into place 1n order to cover the proceeds from the
sale of certain assets of EMI Recorded Music Please refer to Note 24 2 2 for a description of the group’s foreign currency risk management

234 Credit ratings

As of February 19, 2014, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved the Financial Statements for the year ended December
31, 2013, the credit ratings of Vivend) were as follows

Rating agency Rating date: Type of debt Ratings Qutlook
Standard & Poor's July 27, 2005 (a) Long-term corporate debt BBB
Short-term corporate debt A-2 Negative (a)
Senior unsecured debt BBB
Moody's September 13, 2005 (b) Leng-term senior unsecured debt Baa? Negative {b}

Fitch Ratings December 10, 2004 Long-term senior unsecured debt BBB Stable
a  OnAugust 5, 2013, Standard & Poor's rating agency maintained Vivendi's rating and negative long-term corporate debt outlook

b On March 4, 2013, Moody's rating agency confirmed Vivend's long-term serior unsecured debt at BaaZ and revised 1ts outlook to
negative
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Note 24  Financial instruments and management of financial risks
24.1 Fair value of financial instruments

Financial instruments classified as liabilities under Yivend’'s Statement of Financial Position include bonds and bank credit facilities, other
financial habilities (including commitments to purchase non-controlling interests), as well as trade accounts payable and other non-current
liabilities As assets under Vivendi's Statement of Financial Position, they include financial assets measured at fair value and at historical
cost, trade accounts receivable and other, as well as cash and cash equivalents In addition financial instruments include dervative
instruments {assets or labilities) and assets avallable for safe

Accounting category and fair value of financial instruments

December 31, 2013 December 31, 2012 (a)
Carryin Carryin
{in mithons of euros} Note varlxgeg Fairvalue \.'arI‘l{Jeg Fair value
Assets
Cash management fmancial assets - - 30 2ot
Available-for-sale securities 360 360 197 197
Dervative financial instruments 126 126 137 137
Other financial assets at fair valve through profit or foss 5 5 15 15
Financral assets at amortized cost 208 208 202 202
Financial assets 16 699 699 852 852
Trade accounts receivable and other, at amortized cost 17 4828 4,898 6,587 6587
Cash and cash equivalents 18 1,041 1041 3,894 3,894
Liabsliies
Barrowings, at amortized cost 12218 12721 17,713 18,637
Dervative finangial mstruments 26 25 35 36
Commutments to purchase non-controlling mierests 22 27 8 8
| Borrowings and ather financial liabihtues 23 12,266 12,769 17,757 18,681
: Qther non-current habilities, at amortized cost 17 757 757 1,002 1,002
Trade accounts payable and other, at amortized cost 17 10,416 10416 14186 14,196

a  Vivend: apphed from January 1, 2013, with retrospective effect from January 1, 2012, amended IAS 19 [Employee Benefits), whose
application 1s mandatory in the European Union beginning on or after January 1, 2013 {please refer to Note 1) As a result, the 2012
Financial Statements were adjusted 1n accordance with the new standard (please refer to Note 33)

The carrying value of trade accounts receivable and other, cash and cash equivalents, and trade accounts payable i1s a reasonable
approximation of fair value, due to the short matunty of these instruments

Valuation method for financial instruments at fair value

The following tables show the fair value method of financial instruments according to the three following levels
- level 1 farr value measurement based on quoted prices 1n active markets for identical assets or liabilities,
- Level 2 fair value measurement based on observable market data {other than quoted prices included within Level 1), and

- Level 3 fair value measurement based on vaiuation techniques that use inputs for the asset or hiability that are not based on
observable market data

As a reminder, the other financial instruments at amortized cost are not included 1n the following tables
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December 31, 2013

{in millions of euros) Note Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Assets
Available-for-sate secunties 18 360 - 04 56
Derwative financial instruments 242 126 - 126 -
Other financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 5 5 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 18 1,041 1,041 -
Liabilities
Commitments to purchase non-controlling interests 22 - - 22
Derivative financial instruments 242 26 - 26

December 31 2012
{in milltons of euros) Note Total Level 1 Level 2 level 3
Assets
Cash management financial assets 16 301 kKl - -
Available-for-sale securities 16 197 - 154 43
Denvative financial instruments 242 137 . 137 -
Other financial assets at farr value through profit or Joss 15 9 - 6
Cash and cash equivalents 18 3994 3,894 -
Liabilities
Commitments to purchase non-controthing interests 8 . - 8
Dernvative financial instruments 242 36 - 36 -

Available-for-sale securities valued at therr level 2 fawr value included secunties held by UMG m Beats and Spotify for €161 million and
€143 million, respectively (€70 million and €84 million as of December 31, 2012) In 2013, the fair value of these securities was reassessed
following the entry of new investors to their capital

In 2013 and 2012, there was no transfer of financial instruments measured at fair value between level 1 and level 2 In addition, as of
December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, financial instruments measured at levet 3 fair value did not include any sigmificant amount

242 Management of financial risks and derivative financial instruments

As part of its business, Vivend 1s exposed to several types of financial nsks market nisk, credit {or counterparty) nisk, as well as hquidity nisk
Market nisks are defined as the nisks of fluctuation in future cash flows of financial instruments {receivables and payables, as described in
Note 24 1 above} that depend on the changes in financial markets For Vivendi, market nisks may therefore primanly impact interest rates
and foreign currency exchange positions, n the absence of significant investments in the markets for stocks and bonds Vivendt’s Financing
and Treasury Department centrally manages significant market risks, as well as its hquidity nsk within the group, reporting directly to
Vivendi's Cheef Financial Officer The Department has the necessary expertise, resources (notably technical resources), and nformation
systems for this purpose However, the Maroc Telecom group's cash and exposure to financial risks was managed independently The
Treasury Committee monitors the hquidity positions in all business units and the exposure to interest rate sk and foreign currency exchange
rate risk on a bi-monthly basis Short- and long-term financing activities are mainty performed at the group's headquarters and are subject to
the prior approval of the Management Board and Supervisory Board, n accordance with the Vivends Internal Regulations However, in terms
of optimizing financing operations within the group's debt management framework within the limits already approved by the Supervisery
Board, a simple not/fication 1s required

Vivend: uses various dernvative financial instruments to manage and reduce its exposure to fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency
exchange rates All \nstruments are either listed on organized markets or traded over-the-counter with highly-rated counterparties All
derwative financial instruments are used for hedging purposes and speculative hedging 15 forbidden
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Derivative financial instrument values on the Statement of Financial Position

December 31 2013 December 31 2012

{in milhions of euros) Note  Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities
Interest rate risk management 2421 8 7) 104 {10)

Pay-fixed interest rate swaps - {7} - {10)

Fay-fioating mterest rate swaps 88 - 104 -
Fareign currency risk management 2422 17 {19) 13 {26)
Other 244 21 - 20 -
Derivative financial instruments 126 {26) 137 {36}
Deduction of cuirent derivative financial instruments {17) 19 {12} 15
Non-current denvative financial instruments 109 7 125 )

2421  Interest rate sk management

Note As from the second quarter of 2013, in compliance with IFRS 5, Activision Bhizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in
Vivendt's Consolidated Statements as discontinued operations Thewr Financial Net Debt or net cash have been excluded form Vivendi's
Financial Net Debt This adiustment has been apphed {1} to all periods {2013 and 2012} and (i) to all data presented i this section to gnsure
consistency of information

Interest rate sk management instruments are used by Vivend: to reduce net exposure to interest rate fluctuations, to adjust the respective
proportion of fixed or floating interest rates in the total debt and to optimize average net financing costs I addition, Vivend!'s internal
procedures prohibit all speculative transactions

Average gross borrowings and average cost of horrowings

In 2013, average gross borrowings amounted to €16 3 tillion {compared tc €16 5 bilhon 1n 2012), of which €3 2 billion was &t fixed-rates and
€7 1 bilhion at floating rates (compared to €3 7 and €6 8 billion, respectively, in 2012} After management, the average cost of borrowings
was 3 38%, with a fixed rate ratio of 57% {compared to 3 46%, with a fixed-rate ratio of 59% in 2012)

Interest rate hedges

Interest rate nsk management instruments used by Vivendi include pay-floating and pay-tixed interest rate swaps Pay-floating swaps
effectively convert fixed rate borrowings to LIBOR and EURIBOR indexed anes Pay-fixed interest rate swaps convert floating rate borrowings
into fixed rate borrowings These instruments enable the group to manage and reduce volatility in future cash flows required for interest
payments on berrowings

As of December 31, 2013, the portfolio of Vivend:'s interest rate hedging istruments included the follpwing swaps
e apay-floating interest rate swap with a notional amount of €450 million maturing in 2017, set up in 2012,
s a pay-fixed nterest rate swap with a notional amount of €450 million, matunng 1in 2017, set wp n 2010 for €750 million
(€300 mullion was terminated early in 2012},
a pay-fixed interest rate swap with a notional amount of €1,000 million, maturing in 2016, set up in 2011,

e 3 pay-fixed interest rate swap with a notional amount of €750 million, maturing 1in 2018, set up 1n 2013 and backed by the bond
with the same notional ameunt and maturity, (ssued in July 2013, and
o 3 pay-fixed nterest rate swap with a notional amaunt of €400 mullion, matuning (n 2016, set up in 2013
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The tables below show the notional amounts of interest rate risk management instruments used by Vivendi

December 31,2013

Notiongl amounts Fair value
Total 2014 2005 0% 2017 2018 Afer Assets  Liabilites

{in milhons of eurgs) 2018
Pay fixed mierest rate swaps 450 450 - {7}
Pay floating interest rate swaps {2 600} {1 400} {450} {750} 88
Net posttion at fixed interestrate {2,150} {1,400} - fa (750) ] {7
Breakdown by accounting category of rate hedaing instruments

Cash Flow Hedge - -

Fair Value Hedge {2 150} {1 400) [750) 46 -

Economic Hedging (b} - - {al 42 N

December 31 2012
Notional amounts Fair value
After

{in millions of euros| Total 2013 2014 2015 2016 207 2017 Assets Liabilities
Pay fixed interest rate swaps 450 450 - {10}
Pay floating interest rate swaps {1,450} {1.000) {450) 104 -
Net position atfixed interest rate 1,000) {1,000} - {a) 104 {10}
Braakdown by accounting category of rate hedging instruments

Cash Flow Hedge

Fair Value Hedge {1 000) (1,000 49 .

Economic Hedging (b) - - {a) 55 {10}

a Includes pay-floating interest rate swaps for a notional amount of €450 million as well as pay-fixed swaps for a notional amount of
€450 milhon, maturing in 2017, bath of which qualified as ecenomic hedges

b The economic hedging (nstruments relate to dervative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to
1AS 39

Outstanding and average income from investments

In 2013, average cash and cash equivalents amounted to €0 9 billion {compared to €0 6 billion in 2012), bearing interest at floating rates The
average Interest income rate amounted to 2 69% in 2013 {compared to 4 62 % in 2012)

Sensitivity to changes in interest rates

As of December 31, 2013, given the relative weighting of the group’s fixed-rate and floating-rate positions, an increase of 100 basis points
in short-term interest rates {or a 100 basis points decreass} would have resulted in a €56 million increase In Interest expense {or a
€56 million decrease), compared to a €63 mullion increase/(decrease) as of December 31, 2012

2422 Foreign currency risk management

Excluding Maroc Telecom group and GVT, the group’s foreign currency nsk management 1s centralized by Vivend: SA's Financing and
Treasury Departments and primanly seeks to hedge budget exposures {80%) resulting from monetary flows generated by actwities
performed m currencies other than the euro as well as from external firm commitments {100%), primanly relating to the acquisition of
editorial content (including sports, audiovisual and film nghts} and certain capital expenditures {e g, set-top boxes), realized in currencies
other than the euro Most of the hedging instruments are foreign currency swaps or forward contracts that have a maturity of less than one
year Considering the foreign currency hedge put into place, an unfavorable and uniform euro change of 1% against all foreign currencies in
position as of December 31, 2013, would have a non-significant cumulative impact on net earnings (below €1 milion as of December 31,
2013 and December 31, 2012) In addition, the group may hedge foreign currency exposure resulting from foreign-currency denominated
financial assets and liabihties Nevertheless, due to their non-significant nature, net exposures to subsidianes’ net working capital {internal
flows of royalties as well as external purchases) are generally not hedged The relevant risks are realized at the end of each month by
transiating the sum into the functional currency of the relevant operating entities
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The principal currencies hedged by the group are the US dollar (USD) and the British pound (GBP}

In particular, in 2012 and 2013, Vivend: converted into euras following US dollar transactions

the $550 million bond sssued in Apnl 2012, by setting up a USD-EUR foreign currency hedge {cross-currency swap) with a
13082 EUR/USD rate, or a €420 milhon counter value From an accounting perspective, these USD purchases were
cansidered as cash flow hedges This hedge was unwound an Mevember 15, 2013 with the early redemption of this bond,
partial hedge of the income from the sale of 88% of Vivend's interest in Activision Blizzard through the purchase of a
contingent forward contract, conditional on the effective sale for a notional amount of $2 billion, with a 1 3368 EUR/USD
rate, or a counter value of €1,436 million This hedge. censidered as a cash flow hedge from an accounting perspective, was
unwound on October 11, 2013 at the finalization of the sale, generating a realized foreign exchange gain of €23 million

In 2012 and 2013, as part of the acquisition of EMI Recorded Music {please refer to Note 2 3), Vivend hedged the GBP foreign
exchange risk as follows

partial hedge of the acquisition price through forward purchase contracts denominated in GBP for a notional amount of
£600 mullion, with a 08144 EUR/GBP rate From an accounting perspective, these GBP purchases were considered as cash
flow hedges On October 1, 2012, this hedge was unwound for €737 miliion at the completion of the acquisition, generating a
realized foreign exchange gain of €19 mithon,

partial hedge of the income from the sale of certain EMI Recarded Music assets, i accordance with commitments made by
Vivend: to the European Comsmssion, through forward sale contracts denominated wn GBP for a notional amount of
£530 millian, with an average rate of 0 8060 EUR/GBP Fram an accounting perspective, these GBP sales were considered as
net investment hedges This hedge was unwound for a counter value of €658 million, at the completion of the sale of
Parlophone Label Group and other labels, generating a realized foreign exchange gain of €39 millan

Moreover, in 2013, to hedge against a possible depreciation of its net investment in certain subsidianies in the United Kingdom
due to an unfavorable change in GBP, Vivend: set up a hedge using put option instruments for a notional amount £692 mithon, or
€823 million From an accounting perspective, these hedge instruments were considered as net investment hedges

Finally, the intercompany loan granted by Vivend to GVT under market terms for a total amount of €1,000 million as of December 31, 2013
{fully drawn as of that date} was not subject to any forergn currency hedging in GVT's Statement of Financial Position foreign exchange
losses incurred ameunted to €186 million in 2013 and to €76 million in 2012 In January 2014, the amount of this loan was increased to
€1,126 mihon This intercompany loan s mainly amed at financing the increase mn GVT's capital expenditures program related to the
geographic expanston of 1ts telecommunication network
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The following tables present the notional amount of foreign currency nsk management instruments used by the group, the positive amounts
relate to currencies to be recewved, the negative amounts relate to currencies to be delivered

December 31, 2013

Notional amounts Farr valye
{in mullong of euros) Total Uush PLN BP Qther Assets Liatufies
Sales against the euro {1 060) (49) {105} (834} {72} 2 {10}
Purchases agamst the euro 2329 1330 21 888 90 1 7
Other - 187 [81) (4] {102) 4 (2)
1269 1,468 {165) 50 {84) 17 f19)
Breakdawn by accounting cat of foreign currency hedging mstrument
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against the euro (73) {11} {42) 7 {13} -
Purchases against the euro 85 85 - 1 n
Other 168 {75) - {93) 4 {2)
12 42 man n {106) 5 {3)
Fair Value Hedge
Sales agamst the euro {93) (38) (51) {4) - 1 {2
Purchases agamst the guro 430 432 - 18 - - {6)
Other 8 {6) {4 2 - .
357 02 57 10 2 1 8
Net Investment Hedge
Sales against the euro (823} - - (823) fa) . {8)
Purchases against the euro - - -
Other - - -
{823} - . {823) - - 8
Economic Hedging (b)
Sales agamst the euro ] - {12) {59) 1 -
Purchases against the euro 1794 813 2t B0 90 10 -
Other - 1t - - (1) -
1,723 824 9 870 20 n
December 31, 2012
Notignzl amounts Fair value
{in milhons of euros) Total Uso PLN GBpP Qther Assets Liabilities
Sales against the euro {931) {59) {162} 1586} (124) 12 {3}
Purchases against the euro 1421 1,257 37 15 12 1 (20)
Other - 105 {97) {8) (3}
430 1303 (222) {579) {12) 13 (26}
akdown by accounting ca of foreign currency hedgug instruments
Cash Flow Hedge
Sales against the guro (87) (6) (58) 8 {15) 1 {n
Purchases against the euro 448 446 (¢} - - 1 nn
Other - 92 (92) - {3}
359 532 {150) 8] {15) z {15}
Fair Value Hedge
Sales against the suro (154 (53} {98} 13) 1 (2)
Purchases agasnst the euro 456 441 - i5 . {6)
(Cther - 20 {12} {8) - - -
302 408 {110 [ - 1 {8)
Net Investment Hedge
Sales aganst the evio {575} - {575} {d) - 10
Purchases against the euro . - - -
Other - - - - -
{575} - - (575} - 10 -
Economic Hedging (b)
Sales against the euro (115} (6} (109) - -
Purchases against the euro 519 370 37 112 - {3
Qther {7) 7 - - -
404 353 i - 3 - 3}

a  Relates to the hedge of the net investment in certain subsidianes n the United Kingdom for a notional amount of GBP 6392 million
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b The economic hedging snstruments relate to denivative financial instruments which are not eligible for hedge accounting pursuant to

1AS 39

C Natably includes the hedge associated with the $550 millien bond 1ssued in Apnil 2012, with a 1 3082 EUR/USD rate, unwound on
Navember 15, 2013 for a counter-value of €420 million

d Mainly includes the hedge associated with the sale of EMI Recorded Music

24.2.3 Liquidity risk management

Contractual maturity of the group’s Financial Net Deht future cash flows

The table below shows the carrying value and the future undiscounted cash flows, as defined in the contractual matunty schedules, of

assets and liabilities that constitute Vivendr's Financial Net Debt

{in millions of euros}

Nominal value of borrowings (a)
Curnulative effect of amortized cost and regvaluation due to
hedge accounting
interest to be pawd (b)
Borrowings
Commitments to purchase non-conirolling interests
Jenvative financial instruments
Borrowings and other financial labilities

Dervative financial instruments
Cash deposits backing borrowings
Cash and cash eguivalents
Financial Net Debt

(in mithgns of euros)

Nominal value of borrowings (a)
Cumulative effect of amortized cost and reevaluation due to
hedge accounting
Interest to be paid {b)
Borrewings
Comnirments to purchase non-controfiing mierests
Denvative financial instruments
Borrowings and other financial hiabilsties

Cash management financial assets
Dervative financial instruments
Cash deposits backing borrowings
Cash and cash equivalents
Financial Net Debt

December 31 2013

Carrying Contractual matunity of cash outflows / {inflaws}
valug Total 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 After 2018
12210 12210 3510 588 1567 2,065 1005 3480
8 -
- 1,703 394 307 254 264 169 275
12218 13.913 3904 895 1,856 2328 1174 3755
2 2 4 6 12
26 32 21 4 3 4
12,266 13,967 395 899 1,863 2,339 1,174 3,767
(126) (178} (42) {34) {36} (22) {6} (36)
2) 2 1]
(1,041) {1 041) (1,041)
11,097 12,746 2840 865 1425 2317 1,168 313t
December 31, 2012
Carrying Centractual matunity of cash outflows / (inflows}
value Totat 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 After 2017
17714 17,714 5080 2057 2380 1406 2073 4718
{1 -
- 2,566 534 502 402 331 02 515
17713 20 300 5614 2559 2,182 1737 2375 5.233
8 8 4 4
36 30 18 3 3 3 3
11,157 20338 5632 2,562 2,785 1,740 2382 5237
{301) {309 (301)
(137) (156) {40 (29) (28) (28) {11} {20}
{6} (6) (6)
(3894} (3 894) (3894
13,419 15,581 1,39 2533 2,757 1,12 23N 5.217

a  Future contractual undiscounted cash flows related to the nominal value of currency borrowings are estimated based on the applicable
exchange rates as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012, respectively

b interest to be paid on floating rate borrowings (s estimated based on floating rates as of December 31, 2013 and December 31, 2012,

respectively

Moreaver, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for €975 million, maturing in March 2016, was (ssued 1n connection with Vivendi's appeal
against the Liberty Media judgment (please refer to Note 28} This off-balance sheet financial commitment has no impact on Vivendi's net

debt

Financial Report and Audited Consolidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Vivendi /116




Tuesday February 25, 2014

Group financing policy

As part of the strategic review undertaken by the Supervisory Board and Management Board, Vivend) announced in July 2013 1ts plans to
sell 1ts interests 1n Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom, and in November 2013, the group's planned demerger to form two separate
companies {1) a media group and {i} SFR, subject to information and consultation procedures with the relevant French employee
representative bodies and approval by the relevant regulatory avthonities, as well as, If appropriate, its approval by the General
Shareholders' Meeting In the meantime, Vivend: has pursued its financing policy in relation to expinng bank credit facilities or bonds Thus,
Vivend early refinanced a €15 billion bank credit faciity, matunng m May 2014 with a new bank credit faciity for the same amount,
maturing i March 2018, and 1ssued a new €750 million bond, with a coupon of 2 375%, which early refinances the €894 million residual
amount bond 1ssued in January 2009 with a coupon of 7 75%, maturing 1n January 2014

On October 11, 2013, Vivend completed the sale of 88% of its wterest w Activision Bhizzard for $8 2 bilhon (€6 tilthon) m cash Vivendi used cash
on hand to early redeem most of its US dollar-denominated bonds, as well as a portion of its euro-denominated bonds, having the shortest
matunty, for an aggregate amount of €3 billion {including $2 1 billion and €1 5 billion), erther through a tender offer in October 2013 and a
make-whale redemption in November 2013 In addition, Vivend: used the available balance to redeem drawn bank credit facilities These
transactions were as follows
¢ 72% redemption of three US dollar-denominated bonds, following a tender offer
- 3459 millign redeemed on the $700 million bond, maturing in Apr! 2018,
- 3541 million redeemed on the $800 million bond, maturing in April 2022, and
- $555 millien redeemed on the $650 million bond, maturing in January 2018,
+ early full redemption of one US dollar-denominated bond and two euro-denominated bonds
- $550 million, maturing (n April 2015,
- €500 millign, maturing in November 2015, and
- €1,000 million, matuning in July 2015

In October 2013, Vivend: also redeemed, upon its contractual matunity date, a €708 nillion bond, refinanced in December 2012, by a bond for
the same amount, maturing in January 2020, and cancelled SFR's €1 2 bullion bank credit facility

Moreaver, on November 5, 2013, Vivend: acquired the 20% non-controlling interest in Canal+ France held by Lagardere for €1,020 mullion, in
cash

Finally, on November 28, 2013, the Supervisary Board approved the group's planned demerger to form two separate entities (i} a media group
and {11} SFR Subject to mformation and consultation procedures with the relevant French employee representative bodies and approvals by
the relevant regulatory authenties, 1t could be submitted, if appropriate, to the General Shareholders' Meeting for approval on June 24,
2014 The potential impacts of this demerger on the group’s financing structure will become effective If and when a final decision to
imptement such a transaction 1s taken

As of February 19, 2014, the date of the Management Board meeting that approved Vivend's Financial Statements for the year ended
December 31, 2013
e  Vivend: SA had avallable confirmed credit facilities in the aggregate amount of €7,140 mullion, of which €600 million was drawn
Given the amount of commergial paper issued at that date, and backed to bank credit facilrties for €4,143 million, these facilities
were available for an aggregate amount of €2,397 million, and

e  Dbonds amounted to €6 9 biilion, following the redemption in January 2014 upon its contractual maturity, of the bond 1ssued in
January 2008, with a 7 75% coupon, for €894 million

Moreover, on March 4, 2013, a letter of credit for €975 million was 1ssued in connection with Vivendr’s appeal against the Liberty Media
judgment This off-balance sheet financia! commitment has no impact on Vivendi's net debt

Contractual agreements (n relation to credit facilities and letters of credit granted to Vivend: SA {notably the letter of credit 1ssued m
connection with the appeal against the Liberty Media judgment] do not inciude provisions that tie the conditions of the loan to its financial
strength ratings from rating agencies They contain customary provisions related to events of default and, at the end of each half-year,
Vivendi SA 1s notably required to comply with a financial covenant {please refer to Note 23) The credit facilities granted to group companies
ather than Vivend: SA are intended to #inance either the general needs of the borrowing subsidiary or a specific project

Group financing organization

Excluding primanly Maroc Telecom group, Vivendr SA centralizes daily cash surpluses (cash pooling) of all controlled entities (a) that are not
subject to local regulations restncting the transfer of financial assets or {b} that are not subject to other contractual agreements

Taking into account the foregoing, Vivend: considers that the cash flows generated by its operating actvities, 1ts cash and cash equivalents,
as well as the amounts available through 1ts current bank credit facilities and the letter of credit 1ssued in connection with Vivend)'s appeal
against the Liberty Media judgment wifl be sufficient to cover its operating expenses and capitaf expenditure, service its debt {including the
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redemption of borrowings), pay its income taxes and dividends. as well as to fund its financial investment projects, if any, for the next
twelve months, subject to potential transactions which may be implemented in connection with the group’s change in scope

243 Credit and investment concentration risk and counterparty risk management

Vivendi's risk management policy aims at mimmizing the concentration of its credit {bank credit facilities, bonds, and derwatives) and
Investment risks as well as counterparty nsk, as regards the setting-up of bank credit facilibes, derivatives or investments, by entering into
transactions with highly rated commercial banks only Moreover, regarding bond 1ssues, Vivend: distributes its transactions among selected
financial investors

In addition, Vivend!'s trade receivables do not represent a significant concentration of credit nsk due to 1ts broad customer base, the broad
variety of customers and markets, and the geographic diversity of 1ts business operations
24.4 Equity market risk management

As of December 31, 2013, Vivend: and 1ts subsidiares held shares in the following listed companies

+ 83 milhon Activision Blizzard common shares classified as "Assets held for sale” in the Consolidated Statement of Financial
Posttion, the value of which 1s £1,078 million as of December 31, 2013, at constant EUR/USD rate, a 10% decrease (or a 10%
increase) in Astivision Blizzard's share price would have a negative impact of €108 million {or a positive impact of €108 million) on
Vivendi’'s net income These shares ara subject to a 15-month lock-up penod, during which Vivendi cannot sell, transfer, hedge or
otherwise dispose of any Activision Blizzard shares directly or indirectly (please refer to Note 7), and

= 95 million TVN shares indirectly held by N-Vision, consolidated by Canal+ Group under the equity method (please refer to Note 15)

In addition, as of December 31, 2013, Vivend: holds call options and has granted put options on hsted or unlisted shares Vivend: 1s thus
exposed to the risk of fluctuation in their values

Note 25 Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

25.1 Adjustments

Year ended December 31

{in millions of euros) Note 2013 2012
Items related to operating activitias with no cash impact
Amortization and depreciation of intangible and tangible assets 4 5,106 3275
Change in provision, net (168) 10
Other non-cash items from EBIT {2) -
Other
Reserve accrual related to the Liberty Media Corporation litigation 1n the United States 28 - 945
Other income from EBIT 4 (88) {19)
Other charges from EBIT 4 57 236
Proceeds from sales of property plant, equipment and intangible assets 3 6 9
Adjustments 4911 4,456

252 Investing and financing activities with no cash impact

In 2013, there was no significant investing or financing activity with no cash impact

In 2012, investing and financing activities with no cash impact ameunted to €596 milhion {of which €336 mullion due to the share capital
increase {including premium) and €260 miltion due to the group’s retained earnings increase) and were manly refated to

e the grant of bonus shares to Vivendl SA shareowners by a €223 million withdrawa! from additional paid-in capital {pfease refer to
Note 19},

e Vivend) SA’s share capital increase of 22,356 thousand shares, which it paid in consideration for the contribution made by Bolloré
Media, {the free-to-air channels Direct 8 and Direct Star), representing an enterprise value of £336 millon, and

e the strategic partnership in Poland, finalzed on November 30, 2012 This transaction generated an increase In consolidated
retained earnings from equity of €260 million (€114 million related to the gain on the dilution of Cyfra+ and €131 million related to
the recognition of {TI Neowvision’s non-controlling interests at fair valug)
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Note 26  Transactions with related parties

26.1 Corporate officers

Situation of corporate officers

On June 28, 2012, the Supervisory Board terminated Mr Jean-Bernard Lévy's term of office as Chairman of the Management Board The
Supervisory Board also terminated the terms of office of the following members of the Management Board Mr Abdeslam Ahizoune, Mr
Amos Genish, Mr Lucian Grainge, and Mr Bertrand Meheut and appainted Mr Jean-Frangois Dubos as Chairman of the Management Board

Until December 31, 2013, the Management Board was composed of Mr Jean-Frangois Dubos and Mr Phileppe Capron, who left his position as a
member of the Management Board as of that date

Since January 1, 2014, the Management Board 1s composed of Mr Jean-Frangois Dubos  Mr Jean-Yves Charlier (Chairman and Chief Executwe
Officer of SFR), and Mr Amaud de Puyfontaine {Senior Executive Vice Prestdent, Media and Cantent actwvities)

Compensation of corporate officers

e The gross compensation, including benefits in kind, that the group paid in 2013, to the members of the Management Board in
office, amounted to €2 3million This amount included the fixed and variable compensation components paid to the members of
the Management Board in office 1n 2013 for their 2012 mandate Moreover, in 2013, the members in office until June 28, 2012
received the prorated variable compensation component with respect to 2012, as approved by the Supervisory Board on February
22,2013, for a total amount of €4 6 million (excluding severance payment, if any, see below)

In 2012, the total gross compensation, including benefits in kind that the group pard to the members of the Management Board in
office. amounted to €25 million This amount included the fixed compensation component of the members of the Management
Board for the duration of ther mandate (€5 mullion), the vaniable compensation component paid for thewr 2011 mandate
{€12 milhon}, as well as the severance payments paid to Mr Jean-Bernard Levy and Mr Frank Esser {a member of Vivendr's
Management Board and as SFR's Chief Executive Officer until March 26, 2012, 1 e , termination date of his term of office}

* In2012, Mr Jean-Bernard Lévy, received a severance payment of €3 9 million, approved by the General Shareholders’ Meeting
held on Apnl 30, 2013 In addiron, Mr Frank Esser's received a severance payment, with respect to the termination of its
employment contract, for €3 9 million {of which €1 7 million received in January 2013}

Mr Philippe Capron, considenng his resignation, 15 not entitled to benefit from the severance payment as included in the
amendment to 1ts employment contract which was approved by the General Shareholders’ Mesting held on April 30, 2013

The Chairman of the Management Board do not benefit from any severance payment due to his position as a Corporate Officer

o The total charge recorded by the group with respect to share-based compensation plans {performance shares, stock options, and
employee stock purchase) granted to the members of the Management Board, in office, amounted to €2 million in 2013 (compared
to €6 milhon m 2012}

s The amount of net pension plan obligations to the Management Board amounted 1o €7 3mithon as of December 31, 2013
{compared to €4 6 million for the members of the Management Board, in office as of December 31, 2092} Mr Philippe Capron lost
his pension benefit nghts with respect to the additional pension plan

s The fixed compensation paid to the Charman of the Supervisory Board amounted to £700,000 (before taxes and withholdings) in
2013 {unchanged since 2011} and the total amount of fees paid to the other members of the Supervisory Board amounted to
€1 2 million {before taxes and withholdings} with respect to 2013 {unchanged compared to 2012)

The Chapter 3 of the Annual Repoert contains a detailed description of the compensation policy and the compensation and benefits of
corporate officers of the group, in accordance with the recommendations of the AFEP-MEDEF amended in June 2013
Sale of Activision Blizzard

On October 11, 2013, Vivendi sold 88% of 1ts interest in Actwsion Blizard Mr Jean-Frangois Dubos was a member of Activision Blizzard's
Board of Directors and of its Compensation Commuttee and Mr Philippe Capron was Chairman of Activision Blizzard's Board of Directors and
of its Compensation Committee as well as a member of its Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
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26.2 Other related parties

Excluding corporate officers, Vivendi's main related parties were those companies over which the group exercises an exclusive or joint
control, and companies over which Vivend: exercises a significant influence (please refer to Note 29 for a list of i1ts main subsidianies, fully
consolidated or accounted for under the equity method}, and non-controlling interests that exercise significant influence on group affiliates
1 &, the Kingdom of Morocco, which owns 30% of Maroc Telecom group, and since November 30, 2012, TVN, which owns 32% of Canal+
Cyfrowy {a subsidiary of Canal+ Group)

Morecover, on November 5, 2013, Vivend! acquired from Lagardére Group its 20% interest in Canal+ France {please refer to Note 2) The
agreement entered nto in 2006 with Lagardére Group which gave Canal+ France the nght to broadcast their theme channels on its mult-
channe! offer, was extended once until June 30 2013 and has been extended a second time until June 30, 2016

Note 27  Contractual obligations and other commitments

Vivend|'s material contractual obligations and contingent assets and frabilities (nclude

e contracts entered into, which relate to the group's business operations, such as content commitments (please refer to Note 11 2),
contractual obligations and commercial commitments recorded in the Statement of Financial Position, including finance leases
{please refer to Note 13}, off-balance sheet operating leases and subleases and off-balance sheet commercial commitments, such as
long-term service contracts and purchase or investment commitments,

* commitments related to the group’s scope contracted through acquisitons or divestitures such as share purchase or sale
commitments, contingent assets and habihities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the divestiture or acquisition
of shares, commitments resulting from shareholders’ agreements and collateral and pledges granted to third parties over Vivendr's
assets,

e commitments related to the group’s financing borrowings 1ssued and undrawn confirmed bank credit facilities as well as the
management of interest rate, foreign currency and hquidity nsks (please refer to Notes 23 and 24}, and

& contingent assets and habilities related to itrgation in which Vivendi and/or its subsidiaries are either planuff or defendant (please
refer to Note 28)

27.1 Contractual obligations and commercial commitments

As of December 31 2013 Total as of
Total Payments due in December 31
{in milhans of euros) Note 24 2015 2018 After 2018 2012
Bomowings and other financial liabilibes 2423 13967 3925 6215 3767 20338
Content habiliues 2 2335 2 245 83 2z 2283
Future mmimum payments related to the consolidated of fi | position oms 16302 6170 6,363 3,769 n.61
Contractual content commitments nz 4293 I8 2124 56 1939
Commercial commitments 711 2209 1057 806 346 2697
Operating leases and subleases 2712 2700 454 1284 962 2735
ltems not recorded in the consolidated statement of financial posihon 9207 3629 ani 1,364 1031
Contractual obligations and commercial commitments 2550 9,799 10577 5133 32992
2211 Off balance sheet commercial commitments
Minemum future payments as of December 31 2013 Total mimtmum future
Total Due in payments as of
{in mlions ot euros) 2014 2005 2018 Ater2018 December 31 2012
Satellite transponders 686 102 345 23% 846
Investment commitments 1,078 802 154 122 1273
Other 732 265 419 48 786
Given commjtmants 2,496 1,169 98 209 2,905
Satellite transpanders {159) 197} 62) - {201)
Other {128} 115} {50} (63) {7
Received commitments {287) {112} {112) {63) {208}
Nettotal (a) 2208 1,057 BO6 36 2697

a The decrease in off balance sheet commercial commitments was mainly reiated to Maroc Telecom group, whose sale by Vivendi 1s
underway (€316 million as of December 31, 2012) please refer to Note 7 2
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2112  Off balance sheet operating leases and subleases

Minimum future leases as of December 31, 2013 Total - mimmumn future
Total Due in leases as of December
{in millions of euros) 2014 M5- 2018 After 2018 ,2012
Buildings (a} 2,695 427 1,282 986 2,633
Other 221 67 103 51 212
Leases 296 4934 1385 1037 2,845
Buildings {a) {216} (40} (101) (75) {110}
Subleases (216) {40} {101) {75 {110)
Net total 2,100 454 1,284 962 2,735
———— ——

a Mainly relates to offices and technical premises

272 Other commitments given or received relating to operations

Ref |Context Icmractenstlcs tnatura and amnunll I Expiry
(R Giventcommtnonts Raatea T e A A LT I ¥ TP e SN

Individua! nights to tralnmg fnr French employees Apprnnma:elv 1 6 mlllmn hours (unchanged compared to December 31,2012

SFA s network coverage commitments related to telecom licenses Piease refer to Note 14 -

{a) iGSM-R commitments Bank guarantee joint and several guarantees wath Synérail for a total amaunt of -
€105 milhon (compared to €92 mullion as of December 31 2012}

Obligations in connection with pensien plans and post retiremant benefits| Please refer to Note 21

{b} iOther guarantees given Cumulated amount of €156 million (compared to £190 million as of December 31,
2092}

{c) {Agreements on the digital dustnbutmn of music nghts Mimimem guaramees -
{d) |Other guarantees recewed Cumulated amount of €1 milhon {compared to €191 mitlion as of December 31
02

a  OnFebruary 18, 2010, a group compnised of SFR, Vinci and AXA {30% each) and TOF {10%) entered into a contract with Réseau Ferré
de France regarding the public-private partnership GSM-R This 15-year contract, valued at approximately €1 billion, covers the
financing, bullding, operation and mamntenance of the digital telecommunications network that enables conference mode
communications {voice and data) between tran drivers and teams on the ground It will be rolled out gradually until 2015 over
14,000 km of conventional and gh-speed ralway bines i France

b Vwend grants guarantess in various forms to financial nstitutions on behalf of its subsidiaries in the course of their operations

¢ Manly relates to commitments received by UMG from third parties in connection with agreements subject to minimum guarantees on
the digital distnbution of music nghts

d  The decrease in other guarantees received was notably related to the plan to sell Maroc Telecom group (please refer to Note 7 2)
213 Share purchase and sale commitments

In connection with the purchase or sale of aperations and financial assets, Vivendi has granted or recewved commitments to purchase or sell
secunities

On November 4, 2013, Vivendi notably committed to sell its interest in Maroc Telecom group (please refer to Note 7 2)

In connection with the sale of a majonty of Vivend:'s interest in Activision Blizzard, completed on October 11, 2013, Vivend:'s remaining
interest in Activision Blizzard (83 mutlion shares) s subject to lock-up provistons (please refer to Note 7 1)

The liquidity nghts regarding the strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, (T!, and TVN are detailed in Note 27 5 below

Furtheimore, Vivendi and 1ts subsidianies have granted or receved purchase or sale options related to shares i equity affiliates and
unconsolidated investments
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274 Contingent assets and liabilities subsequent to given or received commitments related to the

divestiture or acquisition of shares

Ret |Context Characteristics (nature and amount} Expuy
Contmgent Liabilihes ]
{a} |NBC Unwversal transaction {May 2004) and subsequent amendments Breaches of tax representations
(2005 2010) Obligation to cover the Most Favored Nation provisions and
Remedial actions 2014
) |Acqusition of Bolloré Group s channels {September 2012} Commitments undertaken 1n connection with the authonzanon of the acquisition wath
the French Compattion Authortty and 2017
the Frenth Broadeastng Authonty M5
Merger of Cyfra+ and n platforms (November 2012) Reciprocal guarantees in favor of TVN
PLN 1 billion 1n the event of a breach of any representation or warranty o covenarts and 2015
PLN 300 mllion in the event of a breach of specific reprasentation or wamanty
(¢}  fCanal+ Group s pay-TV actwvities in France (January 2007 July 207} New approvat of the acquisition of TPS and CanalSatellite subject to comphance wath injunctons ordergd byl 2017
the French Compatiton Autharity
{d} [Owvestiture of Canak Nardic (October 2003) Distribution guarantees given in favar of Canal Digital and Telenor Broadeast Holding by a former subsidiary
{e} [Dvestiture of NC Numénicable (March 2005) Spectfic guarantees capped at €241 million (including tax and social nsks) 2014
Divestiture of PSG {June 2006) Untimited specific guaranteas pail:l
Dwvestiture of UMG manufactuning and drstnbution eperatiens (May Various commitments for manufactuang and distnbution services 2018
2005)
{f} [Takeover of Neuf Cegetel (Apni 2008} Commutments undartaken in connection wrth the authorization of the take ever by tha French Minister of the | 2013
Economy Industry and Employment expired 1n 2013
{g} [Dwvestiture of Sithe (December 2000) Specific guarantess capped at $480 million .
{h} [Sale of real estate assets {June 2002) Autonomeus first demand guarantees capped at €150 million in total {tax and decennial guarantees} 2007
(1) |Early settlement of rental guarantess related 20 the last three buildings ~ {Cancellation in Ociober 2012 of guarantees of rental paymeants obltgations followang the sale of the mz2
in Germany (Navember 2007} comganies
(1) |Dwestiture of PTC shares {Decembar 2010) Commitments undertaken in aeder to end htigation over the shara ownership of PTC in Poland

{b)

(e)

(k)
n

L}

Sale of Actrasion Blizzard {October 2073}

Other contingant habilities

Contingentassets]iy

Acquisttien of Bolforé Grop s channels (September 2012) )
Acquisition of 40% of N Vision (November 2012)

Merger of Cyfra+ and TYN § n platform {November 2012}

(Acquisition of Kinowelt (Apnl 2008}
Dwvestiture of NC Numéncable (March 2005)

Acquisitian of EM) Recorded Music (September 2012)

Acquisition of Tele2 France by SFR (July 2007}

Early settlement of rental guaranteas related to the last three bunidings
n Garmany {November 2007)

Divestiture of Xfara (2003)
Cther contingent assets

Cumulated amount of £7million icompared to €10 milkon as of December 31 2012)

Corvnitments undertaken in connection with the sala (please refer te Note 7)
unlimited general guarantees and
- fiscal guarantees capped at $200 miflion under certain eircumstances

Guarantees capped at €120 millign
Guarantees made by [Tl capped at approxsmately

€28 milhon for general guarantees and

€277 muhon for specihc guarantees (including 1&x matters free and full pwnership of shares sold

{authonzations / approvals for the exer¢ise of the actity)

Reciprocal guaranteas in favor of TVN
PLN 1 billion in the event of a breach of any representation or warranty or covenants
- PLN 300 medhion in the event of a breach of speaific represensabion or warranty and
PLN 145 milhon related to Neowision s unutilized tax lossas carned forward
Specific guarantees notably on film nghts were granted by the sellers
€151 million counter-guarantzed by Qrange

Commitments relating to full pension abligations in the United Kingdom assumed by Cii and
Guaranteas relaung to losses stemming from taxes and liugation claims in particular those related to
pension obligations in the United Kingdom
Commitments on the handling and distnbuiton of audio-visual content expired in July 2012
Commitments expired 1n Dctober 2012
Pledge over the cash of the divested compames sokd and
Counter-guarantae prowded by the purchaser in the amount of €200 million
Guaranteas amount t¢ €71 mullion

Cumulated amount of €70 million {compared to €58 millkon as of December 31 2012)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the contingent assets and liabilities described above

a
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As part of the NBC Unwversal transaction which occurred in May 2004, Vivend! and General Electric (GE) gave certain reciprocal
commitments customary for this type of transaction, and Vivendi retained certain habilities relating te taxes and excluded assets
Vivendi and GE undertaok to indemnify each other against losses resulting from, among other things, any breach of their respective

representations, warranties and covenanis

Neither party will have any indemnfication obligations for losses arising as a result of any breach of representations and warranties
(1} for any individual (tem where the loss 1s less than $10 million and {11} in respect of each indwvidual item where the loss 1s equal to or
greater than $10 milhon except where the aggregate amount of all losses exceeds $325 mifhion In that event, the liable party will be
required to pay the amount of losses which exceeds $325 million, but in no event will the aggregate indemnification payable exceed

$2,088 million

In addition, Vivend: will have indemnification obligations for 50% of every US dollar of foss up to $50 million and for all losses in
excess of $50 million relating to liabihties arising out of the Most Favored Natien provisians set forth in certain contracts As part of
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the unwinding of IACI's interest in VUE on June 7, 2005, Vivendi's commitments with regard to environmental matters were amended
and Vivendi's hability 1s now subject to a de minimus exception of $10 million and a payment basket of $325 million

The representations and warranties given as part of the NBC Universal transaction other than those regarding authonzation,
capitalization and tax representations terminated on August 11, 2005 Notices of environmental claims related to remediation must be
brought by May 11, 2014 Other claims, including those related to taxes, will be subject to applicable statutes of imitations

The sale of Vivend:’s interest in NBC Universal to GE completed on January 25, 2011 did not modify these commitments

b As part of the French Competition Authanty's approval of the acquisition of the Direct 8 and Direct Star channels {renamed D8 and
D17, respectively) on July 23, 2012, Vivendr and Canal+ Group undertook certain commitments These commitments provide for
restricuons on the acquisiton of nghts for Amercan movies and telewision senes from certain American studios and for French
movies, the separate negotiation of certain rights for pay-TV and free-to-air movies and television series, limitations on the acquisition
by D8 and D17 of French catalog movies from Studiocanal, and the transfer of nghts to broadcast major sports events on free-to-air
channels through a competitive bidding process These commitments are made for a 5-year period, renewable once If the French
Competition Authority, after having performed a competitive analysis, deems 1t necessary In additon, on September 18, 2012, the
French Broadcasting Authonty (Conserl Supérieur de I'Audiovisuel) approved the acqu:sition of these channels, subject to certain
commitments relating to broadcasting, investment obligations, transfer nghts, and the retention by Canal+ Group of the D8 shares for
a mimimum period of two and a half years
On December 23, 2013 the French Council of State annulled the decision of the French Competition Authority approving the acquisition
of the D8 and D17 channels, with a postponed effect as from July 1, 2014 The French Council of State raised an 1ssue regarding an
error of judgment in relation to a specific commitment on the second and third windows for free-to-air French films On January 15,
2014, Vivend) and Canal+ Group submitted a new notification to the French Competition Authonity in respect of the acquisition of the
free-to-air channels D8 and D17 However, the B8 and D17 channels continue to broadcast their programs as the decision of the
French Council of State did not challenge the acquisition of these channels

¢ On August 30, 20086, the TPS/Canal+ Group merger was authorized, in accordance with the merger control regulations, pursuant to a
decssion of the French Miruster of Economy, Finance and Industry, subject to Vivend: and Canal+ Group complying with certam
undertakings for a maximum period of s1x years, with the exception of those commitments conceming the availability of channels and
VOD, which could not exceed five years

On October 28, 2008, the French Competition Autharity opened an enquiry regarding the implementation of certain undertakings given
by Canal+ Group in connection with the merger of CanatSatellite and TPS
On December 21, 2012, the French Council of State rejected Vivend and Canal + Group’s filed motions requesting the annulment of
the French Competition Authonty's decisions of September 20, 2011 and July 23, 2012 Under the first motion, the €30 million fine
imposed on Canal+ Group was reduced to €27 millien Under the second motion, the transaction was cleared once again, subject to
comphance with 33 injunctions
Canal+ Group has implemented a number of these injunctions, some of which since July 23, 2012 and others since October 23, 2012,
mainly focusing on
e Acquisition of movie nights
- by limiting the duration of output deals to three years, requinng separate agreements for different types of nghts {1 pay-TV
window, 2™ pay-TV window, series, etc) and prohibiting output deals for French films, and
- bydivesting its interest in Orange Cinema Series — OCS SNC or by adopting measures limiting 1ts influence on Orange Cinerna
Senies — OCS SNC (please refer to Note 27 5 below])
» Distribution of pay-TV channels
- by the distribution of a mintmum number of independent channels, the distribution of any channel holding premium nghts, and
by drafting a madel dstribution deal relating to independent channels included in the CanalSat offer,
- by the obligation to promote, In a transparent and separate manner, the distnbution of exclusive independent channels on
each owned platform serving more than 500,000 subscribers, and
- by making all sts own movie channels distributed by Canal+ Group (Cine+ channels) available to third-party distributors
{unbundling)
» Video on demand {V0OD} and subscription video on demand {SVOD)
- by separating contracts entered into for the purchase of VOD and SVOD rnights on a non-exclusive basis, and not combining
themn with rights purchased for linear distribution on pay-TV,
- by offering Studiocanal’s VOD and SV0D nights to any interested operator, and
- by forbidding exclusive distnbution deals for the benefit of Canal+ Group's VOD and SVOD offers on Internet Service Providers
platforms
These injunctions are smposed for a period of five years, renewable onge At the end of the five-year period, the French Competition
Authonity will review the competition situation to determine whether the injunctions should be kept in ptace {f market conditions have
changed sigmficantly, Canal+ Group will be able to request that these njunctions be warved or partally or totally rewised An
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independent trustee, proposed by Canal+ Group and approved by the French Competitton Authonity on September 25, 2012, will be
responsible for monitening the injunctions implementation

Moreover, Vivend: granted a counter-guarantee, in favor of TF1 and M6 to assume commitments and quarantees made by TF1 and M6
in connectton with some of the contractual content commitments and other long term obligations of TPS and other obligations
recognized in the Statement of Financial Position of TPS As of December 31, 2012, the remaining amount of these commitments was
not significant and the counter-guarantee expired on January 4, 2013

d In connection with the divestiture of Canal+ Nordic in October 2003, Canal+ Group has retained distribution guarantees given in favor
of Canal Digital and Telenor Broadcast Holding by a former subsidiary, which guarantees are covered by a counter-guarantee given by
the buyers

e  As part of the divestiture of NC Numénicable on March 31, 2005, the Canal+ Group granted specific guarantees with a €241 million
cap {meluding tax and social nisks) Specific nisks relating 1o cable networks used by NC Numéricable are included in this maximum
amount and are counter-guaranteed by Orange up to €151 million

f As part of the takeover of Neuf Cegetel, the approval from the Ministry of Economy, Industry and Employment, dated Apnt 15, 2008,
resulted in additonal commitments from Vivend: and 1ts subsidharres They address competrtor access and new market entrants to
wholesale markets on SFR’s fixed and mobile networks, acceptance on the fixed network of an independent telewision distributor if
such a player appears, as well as the availability, on a non-exclusive basis, of ADSL on eight new channels which are leaders n their
particular field {Pans Premiere, Teva, Jimmy, Ciné Cinéma Famiz, three M8 Music channels and Fun TV) All these commitments
expired in Apri 2013

g  Inconnection with the sale of 1ts 49 9% interest in Sithe to Exelon in December 2000, Vivend) granted customary representations and
guarantees Claims, other than those made in relation to foreign subsidiary commitments, are capped at $480 million In addition,
claims must exceed $15 million, except if they relate to foreign subsidianes or the divestiture of certain electrical stations to Reliant tn
february 2000 Some of these guarantees expired on December 18, 2005 Seme environmental commitments st exist and any
potential habilities related to contamination risks will sunvive for an indefinite period of time

h In connection with the sale of real estate assets in June 2002 to Nexity, Vivendi granted two autonomous first demand guarantees,
one for €40 million and one for €110 million, to several subsidianes of Nexity {Nexim 1 to 6) The guarantees are effective until June
30, 2017

I After having sold the companies carrying credit lease commitments in relation to the Berlin bulldings Lindencorso, Anthropolis and
Dianapark {the "Companies”), in November 2007, Vivendi continued to guarantee certain lease payment obligations As a result of the
early exercise by the Companies of their call options on the buldings, Vivendi's quarantees were terminated on October 5, 2012 In
return, the counter-quarantee provided by the acquirors of the Companies to Vivend (€200 million) was cancelled, as well as the
pledge over the cash of the divested companies to the benefit of Vivendi Vivend) has retained tax guarantees given at the time of the
disposal of the Companies

[ On Becember 14, 2010, Vivendi, Deutsche Telekom, Mr Solorz-Zak (Elektnm’s main shareho!der) and Elektrnim’s creditors, including
the Polish State and Elektnm's bondholders, entered into various agreements to put an end to the litigation surrounding the share
capital ownership of Polska Telefonia Cyfrowa (PTC), a mobile telecommunication operator With respect to these agreements, Vivend:
notably entered into the following commitments

» Vivend granted to Deutsche Telekom a guarantee over Carcom that was capped at €600 mll:an, which expired in August
2013,

s Vivend: committed to compensate Elektnim SA {Elektnim} for the tax consequences of the transaction, with a cap at
€20 mullion This commitment expired 1n July 2011 and the claims were settled in June 2012,

e Vivend: committed to compensate Law Debenture Trust Company {LBTC) against any recourse for damages that could be
brought against LDTC in connection with the completed transaction, for an amount up to 18 4% for the first €125 million,
46% between €125 mullion and €288 million, and 50% thereafter, and

e Vivendi committed to compensate Elektnm’s administrator for the consequences of any action for damages that may be
taken against it, in connection with the decisions that were taken to end certain procedures

k  The Share Purchase Agreement dated as of October 2, 2006 between Tele2 Europe SA and SFR contains representations and
warranties which expired on January 20, 2009 and warranties relating to claims ansing with respect to tax and social matters which
expired end of March 2012 On July 18, 2007, by way of implementation of the European Union antitrust regulation, the European
Commission approved the purchase of the fixed and internet activities of Tele2 France by SFR, subject to commitments on the handling
and distribution of audio-visual content for a five-year perod All these commitments expired on July 18, 2012

I Vivend received guarantees In respect of the repayment of amounts pard in July 2007 (€71 million), in the event of a favourable
decision of the Spanish Courts concerning Xfera's tax hitigation seeking to cancel the 2001, 2002 and 2003 radio spectrum fees These
guarantees Include a first demand bank guarantee relating to 2001 fees for an amount of €57 million
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Several guarantees given in 2013 and during prior years in connection with asset acquisitions or disposals have expired However, the time
penods or statute of limitations of certain guaraniees relating, among other things, to employees, environment and tax liabilities, in
consideration of share ownership, or given in connection with the dissolution or winding-up of certain businesses are still in effect To the
best of Vivendi's knowledge, no matenial claims for indemmification against such habilities have been made to date

In addition, Vivend: regularly delivers, at the settlement of disputes and hitigations, commitments far damages to thurd parties, which are
typical in such transactions

215 Shareholders’ agreements

Under existing shareholders’ or investors’ agreements (primanly those relating to Maroc Telecom group, and “nc+”), Vivend: holds certain
nghts {such as pre-emptive rights and prionty nghts) that give it contrel over the capital structure of consolidated companies partially owned
by minonty sharehclders Conversely, Vivendr has granted similar nights to these other shareholders in the event that it seils its interests to
third parties

In addition, pursuant to other shareholders’ agreements or the bylaws of consolidated entities, equity affiliates or unconsolidated interests, Vivends
and its subsidiaries have given or recerved certain nights (pre-emptive and other rights) entitling them to maintain their shargholder's nghts

Strategic agreements among Vivendi, Canal+ Group, Lagardére, and Lagardére Holding TV

The rights granted to Lagardére following the strategic agreements entered into on January 4, 2007, were ended on November 5, 2013,
following the acquisition by Vivend of Lagardgre Group’s 20% (nterest in Canal+ France {please refer to Note 2}

Strategic partnership among Canal+ Group, ITI, and TVN
The key hquidity nghts provided under the strategic partnership formed in November 2012 concerning television in Poland are as follows

- Atthe level of N-Vision
¢ on December 18, 2013, I exercised 1ts put option to sell a 9% interest in N-Vision to Canal+ Group, and on the basis of a
value equal to Canal+ Group's mitia! investment in N-Vision, 1 e, for a cash amount of €62 million, paid in February 2014,
e Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire ITl's remaining N-Vision shares, exercisable at any time duning the two 3-month
periods beginning February 29, 2016 and February 28, 2017, at the then-prevailing market value,
e conversely, in the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option an 1T1's imterest in N-Vision, [T has a call option
to acqure Canal+ Group’s interest (n N-Vision, exercisable at any time during the two 3-month periods beginning May 30,
2016 and May Z9, 2017, and between November 1, 2017 and December 31, 2017 and between May 1, 2018 and June 30,
2018, at the then-prevailing market value, and
e Canal+ Group and IT) each has the liquidity nght, following the above call option periods, to sell its entire interest in N-
Vision
- Atthelevel of "nc+”
e  (Canal+ Group has a call option to acquire TVN's 32% interest in "nc+" at market value, which is exercisable durtng the two
3- month pencds beginning November 30, 2015 and November 30, 2018,
s if Canal+ Group exercises 1ts call option, Canal+ Group will be required to acquire ITI's remaining interest in N-Visign, and
s in the event that Canal+ Group does not exercise its call option, TVN has hiquidity rights in the form of an Initial Public
QOffering of its interest 1n “nc+"

Shareholders’ agreement between Orange Cinema Series and Multithématiques

On February 4, 2013, the members of Orange Cinema Senes - OCS SNC” Beard of Dhrectors resigned from their positions at the request of
Muitithématiques and in order to comply with injunction 2(b} ordered by the French Competition Authonty on July 23, 2012 As a result,
Multthématiques appointed, by letter with an effective date of February 4, 2013, two independent representatives with no affiliation to
Multithématigues to the Board of Directors of Orange Cinema Series - 0CS SNC

in addition, in compliance with Article L 225-100-3 of the French Commercial Code, 1t 1s stated that some rights and abligations of Vivend
resulting from shareholders’ agreements {Maroc Telecom group, and Canal+ Cyfrowy) may be amended or terminated :n the event of a
change In contrel of Vivend! or a tender offer being made for Vivendi These shareholders’ agreements are subject to confidentiality
provisions
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276 Collaterals and pledges

As of December 31, 2013, the amount of the group’s assets that were pledged or mortgaged for the benefit of third parties was €212 millien
{compared to €209 million as of December 31, 2012} This amount primarily includes GVT's pledged assets with respect to judicial
guarantees for various liigations

{in millions of euros) December 31 2013 December 31 2012

On wtangible assets 4 8
On tangible assets 23 LY
On financial assets 177 146
On cash 8 8
Total n2 M

Moreover, as of December 31, 2013 and 2012, Vivendi did not hold any third-party guarantees in respect of any of its outstanding
receivables

Note 28 Litigation

In the normal course of its business, Vivend! 1s subject to varous lawsuits, arbitrations and governmental, administrative or other
proceedings {collectively referred to herein as “Lega! Proceedings”)

The costs which may result from these proceedings are only recognized as provisions when they are likely to be ncurred and when the
obhgation can reastnably be guantified or estimated, n which case, the amount of the provision represents Vivendi's best estimate of the
risk, provided that Vivendi may, at any tme, reassess such rnisk if events occur dunng such proceedings As of December 31, 2013, provisions
recorded by Vivend for all ¢claims and litrgations amounted to €1,379 million, compared to €1,357 mullion at December 31, 2012 (please refer
to Note 20}

To the company's knowledge, there are no Legal Proceed:ngs or any facts of an exceptional nature, including. to the company’s knowledge,
any pending or threatened proceedings in which 1t 1s a defendant, which may have or have had in the previous twelve months a significant
impact on the company's and on its group’s financial position, profit, business and property, other than those described herein

The status of proceedings disclosed hereunder 1s described as of February 19, 2014, the date of the Management Board meeting held to
approve Vivend!'s Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2013

Securities Class Action 1n the United States

Since July 18, 2002, sixteen claims have been filed aga:nst Vivend), Messrs Messier and Hannezo in the United States District Court for the
Southern District of New York and in the United States District Court for the Central District of Cahfornia On September 30, 2002, the New
York court decided to consolidate these claims under s junsdiction into a single action entitled fn re Vivend: Universal S A Securities
Litigation

The plaintiffs allege that, between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, the defendants violated certain provisions of the US Securities
Act of 1933 and US Securities Exchange Act of 1934, particularly with regard to financial communications On January 7, 2003, the plaintiffs
filed a consolidated class action suit that may benefit potential groups of shareholders

On March 22, 2007, the Court decided, concerning the procedure for certification of the potential claimants as a class {"class certification”),
that persons from the United States, France, England and the Netherlands who purchased or acquired shares or American Depositary
Receipts (ADRs) of Vivend: {formerly Vivend: Universal SA) between October 30, 2000 and August 14, 2002, could be included in the class

Following the class certification decision of March 22, 2007, a number of individual cases were filed against Vivendi on the same grounds as
the class action On December 14, 2007, the judge 1ssued an order consolidating the individual actions with the secunties class action for
purposes of discovery On March 2, 2009, the Court deconsolidated the Liberty Medta action from the class action On August 12, 2008, the
Court 1ssued an order deconsolidating the individual actions from the class action

On January 29, 2010, the jury returned s verdict |t found that 57 statements made by Vivend: between October 30, 2000 and August 14,
2002, were matenally false cr misleading and were made in violation of Section 10{b} of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 Plaintiffs had
alleged that those statements were false and misleading because they failed te disclose the existence of an alleged “liquidity nsk” which
reached its peak i December 2001 However, the jury concluded that neither Mr Jean-Marie Messier nor Mr Guillaume Hannezo were
liable for the alleged misstatements As part of its verdict, the jury found that the price of Vivendr's shares was artificially inflated on each
day of the class peried in an amount between €0 15 and €11 00 per ordinary share and $0 13 and $10 00 per ADR, depending on the date of
purchase of each ordinary share or ADR Those figures represent approximately half the amounts sought by the plaintiffs in the class action
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The jury also concluded that the inflation of the Vivendi share price fell to zero n the three weeks following the September 11, 2001,
tragedy, as well as on stock exchange holidays on the Pans or New York markets (12 days) during the class period

On June 24, 2010, the US Supreme Court, in a very ctear statement, ruled, n the Mornson v Nationat Australia Bank case, that American
secunties law only applies to “the purchase or sale of a secunity hsted on an Amencan stock exchange”, and to "the purchase or sale of any
other security :n the United States "

In a decision dated February 17, 2011 and 1ssued on February 22, 2011, the Court, in applying the “Mornson” deciston, confirmed Vivendi’s
position by dismissing the claims of all purchasers of Vivendi's ordinary shares on the Panis stock exchange and mited the case to claims of
French, American, British and Dutch purchasers of Vivendi's ADAs on the New York Stock Exchange The Court denied Vivendr's post-tral
motians challenging the jury’s verdict The Court also dechined to enter a final judgment, as had been requested by the plaintiffs, saying that
to do so would be premature and that the process of examining individual shareholder claims must take place before a final judgment couid
be 1ssued On March 8, 2011, the plaintiffs filed a petition before the Second Circuit Court of Appeals seeking to appeal the decision
rendered on February 17, 2011 On July 20, 2011, the Court of Appeals denied the petition and dismissed the clawm of purchasers who
acquired their shares on the Pans stock exchange

In a decision dated January 27, 2012 and 1ssued on February 1, 2012, the Court, in applying the Morrison decision, also dismissed the claims
of the indvidual plaintiffs who purchased ordinary shares of the company on the Panis stock exchange

On July 5, 2012, the Court denied a request by the plaintiffs to expand the class to nationalities other than those covered by the certification
decision dated March 22, 2007

The claims process commenced on December 10, 2012, with the sending of a notice to shareholders who may be part of the class
Recipients of the notice had until August 7, 2013 to file a claim form and submit documentation evidencing the vahdity of their claim These
claims are currently being processed and verified by an independent claims adminsstrator and by the parties Vivend! will then have the nght
to challenge the ments of these claims At the end of this process, which should be completed during the first half of 2014, the judge will be
able to determine the total amount of damages and enter a final judgment, thereby enabling Vivend to commence 1ts appeal

Moreover, in connection with the Halliburton case under review by the Supreme Court of the United States, Vivend filed an amicus curiae
bnef This case addresses the conditions under which class actions are certified in the United States

Vivend! believes that it has solid grounds for an appeal at the appropriate times Vivendr intends to challenge, among other i1ssues, the
plaintiffs’ theories of causation and damages and, mare generally, certain decisions made by the judge duning the conduct of the tral
Several aspects of the verdict will also be challenged

On the basis of the verdict rendered on January 29, 2010, and following an assessment of the matters set forth above, together with support
from studies conducted by companies specralizing n the calculation of class actron damages and in accordance with the accounting
principles described in Notes 13 1 (Use of Estimates) and 1 3 8 {Provisions) Vivendi made a prowsion on December 31, 2009, in an amount
of €550 million in respect of the damages that Vivend: might have to pay to plantiffs Vivendi re-examined the amount of the reserve related
to the Secunities ctass action litigation in the United States given the decision of the Distnict Court for the Southern District of New York on
February 17, 2011, which fallowed the US Supreme Court's decision on Jung 24, 2010 1n the Morrison case Using the same methodology
and the same valuation experts as in 2009, Vivend: re-examined the amount of the reserve and set 1t at 100 million as of December 31,
2010, in respect of the damages, If any, that Vivendi might have to pay solely to shareholders who have purchased ADRs in the United
States Consequently, as of December 31, 2010, Vivend: recognized a €450 million reversal of reserve

Vivend considers that this provision and the assumptions on which it 1s based may require further amendment as the proceedings progress
and, consequently, the amount of damages that Vivendi might have to pay to the plantiffs could differ from the curvent estimate As 1s
permitted by cusrent accounting standards, no details are given of the assumptions on whech this estimate is based, because their disclosure
at this stage of the proceedings could be prejudicial to Vivend

Complaint of Liberty Media Corporation

On March 28, 2003, Liberty Media Corporation and certain of its affiliates filed sw:it against Vivend and Jean-Marie Messier and Guillaume
Hannezo in the District Court for the Scuthern Distnet of New York for claims ansing out of the agreement entered 1nto by Vivendi and
Liberty Media relating to the formation of Vivend: Universal Entertainment in May 2002 The plaintiffs allege that the defendants violated
certain provisions of the US Exchange Act of 1934 and breached certain contractual representations and warranties The case had been
consohidated with the securities class acuion for pre-tnal purposes but was subsequently deconsohdated on March 2, 2009 The judge
granted Liberty Media's request that they be permitted to avail themselves of the verdict rendered by the securities class action jury with
respect to Vivend!'s hability {theory of “collateral estoppel”}

The Liberty Media jury returned 1ts verdict on June 25, 2012 It found Vivend liable to Liberty Media for making certain false or mesleading
statements and for breaching several representations and warranties contained in the parties’ agreement and awarded damages to Liberty
Medsa in the amount of €765 million Vivend: filed certain post-trial motions challenging the jury's verdict, mcluding motions requesting that
the Court set aside the jury's verdict for lack of evidence and order a new tnal
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On January 8, 2013, the Court confirmed the jury's verd:ct It also awarded Liberty Media pre-judgment interest accruing from December 16,
2001 until the date of the entry of judgment, using the average rate of return on one-year U S Treasury bills On January 17, 2013, the Court
entered a final judgment in the total amount of €945 million, including pre-judgment interest, but stayed 1ts execution while 1t considered
two pending post-trial motions, which were denred on February 12, 2013

On February 15, 2013, Vivend) filed with the Court a Notice of Appeal against the judgment awarded, for which 1t believes 1t has strong
arguments On March 13, 2013, Vivend: filed @ motion in the Second Circuit Court of Appeals requesting that the Court stay the Liberty
Media appeal until the Class Action judgment 1§ entered so that the two appeals can be heard simultaneously On Apnl 4, 2013, the Court of
Appeals 1ssued an Order granting Vivendi’s motion, agreeing to hear the Liberty Media case together with the Class Action The appeal in
the Liberty Media case 1s stayed until Vivendi can appeal from the Class Action final judgment

On the basis of the verdict rendered on June 25, 2012, and the entry of the final judgment by the Court, Vivendl mantained as of December
31, 2013, the proviston in the amount of £345 million recorded as of December 31, 2012

Trial of Vivendi's former officers in Pans

In October 2002, the financial department of the Pans Public Prosecutor’s office (Parquet de Pans) faunched an investigatron into the
publication of aftegedly false or misleading information regarding the financial situation and forecasts of the company and the publication of
allegedly untrue or naccurate financial statements for the fiscal years 2000 and 2001 Additional charges were brought in this investigation
relating to purchases by the company of its own shares between September 1, 2001 and December 31, 2001 Vivend) joined the proceedings
as a civil party

The triat took place from June 2 to June 25, 2010, before the 11th Chamber of the Pans Tnbunal of First Instance {Tribunal de Grande
Instance de Paris), following which the Public Prosecutor asked the Court to drop the charges against the defendants On January 21, 2011,
the Court rendered its judgment, in which 1t confirmed the previous recognition of Vivend: as a civil party Messis Jean Mane Messier,
Guillaume Hannezo, Edgar Bronfman Jr and Enc Licoys received suspended sentences and fines Messis Jean Mane Messier and
Gullaume Hannezo were also ordered to pay damages to shareholders who are entitled to reparation as civil parties The former Vivend)
officers as well as some cwil parties appealed the decision The appeal proceedings were held from October 28 to November 26, 2013,
before the Pans Court of Appeal The Public Prosecutor requested a 20-month suspended pnson sentence and a fine of €150,000 for Mr
Jean-Marie Messier for misuse of corporate assets and dissemination of false or misleading information, a 10-month suspended prison
sentence and a fine of €850,000 for Mr Guillaume Hannezo for insider trading, and @ 10-month suspended prison sentence and a fine of
€5 million for Mr Edgar Bronfman Jr for insider trading In the course of the trial, a number of ¢wvil parties have submitted an application to
the Panis Court of Appeal for a prionty preliminary ruling on constitutionality The application concerned the impossibility, for a civil party, to
appeal a deciston by a first instance court to drop charges Since the same question s currently pending before the Constitutional Council,
the Court of Appeal has stayed the proceedings with regard to the 1ssues relating to the dropped charges, and postponed pleadings on these
1ssues until the heanng of April 8 and 9, 2014 The Court will rule on these and the other 1ssues in a single judgment on Apnl 29, 2014

LEBW et al against Vivend:

On March 4, 2011, 26 institutional nvestors from Germany, Canada, Luxemburg, Ireland, ltaly, Sweden, Belgium and Austna filed a
complaint against Vivend: with the Panis Commercial Court seeking to obtarn damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of four
financial communications issued by Vivend! in October and December 2000, September 2001 and April 2002 Then an Apnl % and on Apnil 23,
2012, two simular complaints were filed against Vivendi the first one by @ US pension fund, the Public Employee Retirement System of Idaha
and the ather by six German and British snstitutional investors Finally, on August 8, 2012, the British Columbia Investment Management
Corporation also filed a complaint against Vivend) on the same basis The cases are currently in the pretrial stage

California State Teachers Retirement System et al against Vivendi and Jean-Marie Messier

On Apnl 27, 2012, 67 institutional foreign investors fiied a complaint against Vivendi and Jean-Marie Messier before the Pans Commercial
Court seeking damages for losses they allegedly incurred as a result of the financial communications made by Vivend and 1ts former leader,
between 2000 and 2002 On September 6, 2012, 24 new planuffs joined these proceedings, however, (n November 2012, two plantiffs
withdrew from the proceedings The case 1S currently in the pretnal stage

Actions against Activision Blizzard, Inc , 1ts Board of Directors, and Vivendi

In August 2013, a denivative action was iniiated in Los Angeles Superior Court by an individual sharehoider against Activision Blizzard, Ing
{“Activision Blizzard” or the “Company”), all of the members of its Board of Dhreciors and against Vivend: The paintfi alleges that
Actwision Blizzard's Board of Directors and Vivend: breached thew fiduciary duties by approving the dvestment of Vivendi's share ownership
in the Company The plantiff, Todd Miller, claims that the transaction would not only be disadvantageous to Activiston Blizzard but that it
would also confer a disproportionate advantage to a group of investors led by Robert Kotick and Brian Kelly, the Company’s Chief Executive
Officer and Co-Chairman of the Board, respectively, and that those breaches of fiduciary duty were aided and abetted by Vivend
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On September 11, 2013, a second derivative action based on essentially the same allegations was inibated in the Delaware Court of
Chancery by another minonity shareholder of Activision Bhizzard, Anthony Pacchia

On the same day. another minonty shareholder, Douglas Hayes, mitiated a similar act:on and also requested that the closing of the sale
transaction be enjoined pending approval of the transaction by Activision Blizzard’s shareholders On September 18, 2013, the Delaware
Court of Chancery granted the motion enjoining the closing of the transaction However, on Qctober 10, 2013, the Delaware Supreme Court
overturned this decision, allowing for the completion of the transaction The case will proceed on the menits

On November 2, 2013, the Delaware Court of Chancery consolidated the Pacchia and Hayes actions inte @ single action entitled in Re
Agtrasion Blizzard Inc Securtties Litigation A decision on whether the “Miller” case should also be consolidated into this action 1s expected
S00R

Vivendi Deutschland against FIG

Further to a claim filed by CGIS BIM {a former subsidiary of Vivends} agamst FIG to abtain the release of part of a payment remaining due
pursuant to a bulldings sale contract, FIG obtained, on May 29, 2008, the annulment of the sale following a judgment of the Berlin Court of
Appeal, which overruled a judgment rendered by the Berlin High Court CGIS BIM was ordered to repurchase the buildings and to pay
damages Vivend: delivered a guarantee so as to pursue settlement negotiations As no settlement was reached, on September 3, 2008,
CGIS BIM challenged the validity of the reasoning of the judgment On Apnl 23, 2009, the Regional Berlin Court 1ssued a decision setting
aside the judgment of the Berhn Court of Appea! dated May 29, 2008 On June 12, 2009, HG appealed that decision On December 16, 2010,
the Berlin Court of Appeal rejected FIG's appeal and confirmed the decision of the Regional Berlin Court in April 2009, which decided in CGIS
BIM's favor and confirmed the invalidity of the reasoring of the judgment and therefore overruled the order for CGIS BIM to repurchase the
bullding and pay damages and imterest This decision 1s now final In parallel, FIG filed a second claim for additional damages in the Berlin
Regional Court which was served on CGIS BIM on March 3, 2009 On June 19, 2013, the Berlin Regional Court ordered CGIS BiM to pay FIG
the sum of £3 9 million together with mterest from February 27, 2009 CGIS BIM has appealed this decision

Lagardére against Vivendi, Canal+ Group, and Canal+ France

On February 12, 2013, Lagard&re Holding TV, a 20% shareholder of Canal+ France, and Mr Domimique D'Hinnin and Mr Philippe Robert,
members of the Supervisory Board of Canal+ France, filed a complaint against Vivend, Canal+ Group and Canal+ France with the Pans
Commercial Court The Lagardére group 15 seeking nullification of the cash management agreement entered into between Canal+ France and
Canal+ Group on the grounds that 1t constitutes a related party agreement and hence, 1s seeking restitution, under penalty, from Canal+
Group, of the entire cash surplus given over by Canal+ France under the agreement The parties have agreed to the appomntment of g
mediator to help find an amicable solution to the dispute between them On June 10, 2013, the Paris Commescial Court appointed Mr René
Ricol as the mediator Following the mediation process, which ended on October 14, 2013, the different parties entered into a settlement
agreement dated November 5, 2013, which put an end to the disputes between them

Compaiiia de Aguas de Aconquija and Vivendi against the Republic of Argentina

On August 20, 2007, the International Center for Settlement of Investment Disputes ("ICSID} issued an arbitration award in favor of Vivend)
and Compafiia de Aguas de Aconquia ("CAA"), its Argentinian subsidiary, relating to a dispute that arose in 1996 regarding the water
concession 1t held between 1995 and 1997, in the Argentimian Province of Tucuman The arbitration award held that the actions of the
provincial authorities had infringed the nghts of Vivendi and its subsidiary, and were in breach of the prowisions of the France-Argentine
Bilateral Investment Protection Treaty The arbitration tnbunal awarded Vivendi and its subsidiary damages of US8105 million plus interest
and costs

On December 13, 2007, the Argentinian Government filed an application to vacate the arbitration award on the basis, among others, of an
alleged conflict of interest regarding one of the arbitrators The ICSID appointed an ad hoc committee to rule on this application

On August 10, 2010, the ICSID rejected the Argentiman Government's application and the award of August 20, 2007 became final

On October 10, 2013, Vivend! and CAA entered into a settlement agreement with the Argentine government which termunated their dispute

Claim by Centenary Holdings 11l Ltd.

Centenary Holdings Il Ltd (CH Ill}, a former Seagram subsidiary, dvested in January 2004, was placed inta hquidation in July 2005 On
January 9, 2009, the liquidator of CH Il sued a number of 1ts former directars, former auditors and Vivendi The liquidator, acting on behalf of
CH III's creditors, alleges that the defendants breached their fiducrary duties

On September 30, 2010, Vivend) and one of the former directors of CH |Il settled with the liquidator This settlement put an end to the legal
proceedings brought aganst them and assigned te Vivends all clasms filed on behalf of the creditors
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Vivend!, based on the nghts of CH lll obtained i the settlement, sued Stephen Bloch, a former director of CH 1ll, and Murray Richards, the
purchaser of CH Il The trial took place from June 12 through June 27, 2013, and on October 9 2013, the High Court in London ruled in favor
of Vivendi On October 25, 2013, Court entered a judgment requinng the defendants to pay the sum of £9,666,437

Vivendi's complaint against Orange before the European Commission for abuse of a dorminant position

On March Z, 2009, Vivend: and Free jointly filed a complaint against Orange before the European Commission {the “Commission”), for abuse
of a dominant position Vivend and Free allege that Orange imposes excessive tanffs on offers for access to its fixed network and on
telephone subscriptions In July 2009, Bouygues Telecom joined in this complaint In a letter dated February 2, 2010, the Commussion
informed the parties of Its intention to dismiss the complaint On September 17, 2010, Vivend: filed an appeal before the Court of First
Instance of the European Union in Luxemburg On Octeber 16, 2013, the Court denied Vivendr's appeal

Free against SFR

On May 21, 2012, Free filed a complaint against SFR with the Paris Commercial Court Free is challenging SFR's model of subsidizing mobile
phone purchases through what Free calls "concealed” consumer loans and claims this constitutes an unfair and deceptive trade practice On
January 15, 2013, the Court dismissed Free's claims and ordered 1t to pay to SFR €300,000 in damages for defamation and €100,000 for
costs Free appealed this decision

Orange against SFR

On August 10, 2011, Orange filed a claim against SFR before the Parns Commercial Court Orange asked the Court to compel SFR 1o stop the
averflow traffic at the point of interconnection of their respective networks On December 10, 2013, SFR was ordered to pay £22,133.512 to
Orange On January 10, 2014, SFR appealed this decision

Complaint against Qrange before the French Competition Authonty

On August 9, 2010, SFR filed a complaint before the French Competition Authonty against Orange for anti-competitive practices on the
professional mobile market This case 15 under investigation

SFR against Orange

On Aprit 24, 2012, SFR filed a complaint agamst Qrange before the Pans Commercial Court for practices constituting an abuse of its
dominant positien in the secondary residence market On February 12, 2014, the Pans Commercial Court ordered Grange to pay €51 million 1n
damages

Complaint lodged with the French Competition Authority by Orange Réumon, Orange Mayotte, and Outremer Télécom against
Société Réumonnaise dv Radrotéléphone (SRR)

Orange Réunion, Orange Mayotte and Outremer Télécom notified the French Competition Authonity about alleged unfair price discnmination
practices implemented by SRR On September 16, 2009, the French Competition Authonty imposed protective measures on SRR, pending its
decision on the ments

SRR was required to end price differences that exceed the costs borne by SRR based on the network called {off-net/on-net) The French
Competition Authority found that SBR had not fully complied with the order 1t had imposed and, on January 24, 2012, ordered SRR to pay a
fine of €2 million With regard to the proceedings on the ments, on July 31, 2013, SRR signed a statement of no contest to grievances and a
letter of commitments Accordingly, the Deputy Reporter General will propose to the College of the French Competition Authonty that the
fine incurred by SRR be reduced

following the French Competition Authority’s decision of September 16, 2009, Outremer Telecom sued SRR an June 17, 2013, before the
Pars Commercial Court for damages 1t claims to have suffered &s a result of SRR's practices On November 13, 2013, the Court stayed the
praceedings until the French Competition Authority issues its decision on the menits of the case

Complaint of Bouygues Telecom against SFR and Orange 1n connection with the call termination and mobile markets

Bouygues Telecom brought & claim before the French Competition Council against SFR and Orange for certan alleged unfair trading
practices i the call termination and mobile markets ("price scissorng”] On May 15, 2009, the French Competition Authority (the
“Authority”) resolved to postpone its decision on the 1ssue and remanded the case for further investigation On December 13, 2010, SFR was
heard on these allegations by the instructing magistrate On August 18, 2011, SFR receved a notification of grievances n which the
Autharity noted the exstence of abusive price discimuination practices On December 13, 2012, the Authonty fined SFR €66 miliion SFR has
appealed this decision The case will be argued before the Panis Court of Appeal an February 20, 2014
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Following the decision of the French Competition Authority on December 13, 2012, Bouygues Telecom, OMEA and El Telecom (NRJ Mohile)
brought a claim before the Pans Commercial Court against SFR for damages suffered They are seeking damages of €623 6 mllion,
€67 9 million and £28 6 million, respectively SFR strongly disputes the validity and the amount, which Vivend) believes cannot, in any case,
exceed €250 million in total, of these claims Pending the decision of the Paris Court of Appeal, the mediation process underway in the Paris
Commercial Court between Bouygues Telecom and SFR has been suspended

UFC against SFR

On June 7 2012, the French Federal Union of Consumers (UFC) filed a complaint against Orange before the Paris Court of First Instance
{Tribunal de Grande Instance de Pans) It alleges that the general conditions of use of SFR's La Carte offering contain abusive clauses, which
it 1s seeking to have remeved

CLCV against SFR and athers

On January 7, 2013, the French consumer protection association, CLCY {consumption, housing and qualty of ife) sued several French
telecom operators, including SFR, before the Paris Tribunat of First Instance [t 1s seeking the remova! of certain clauses that 1t considers
abusive from subscription contracts

Employee litigation ansing from the transfer of customer relations centers in Toulouse, Lyon, and Poitiers

Following the transfer of the customer relations centers located in Toulouse and Lyon to the company Infomobile, and the center in Portiers
to a subsidrary of the Bertelsmann Group, former employees of these sites filed complaints with the industrial tribunals {Conseils de
Prud'hommes} of each of these cities, claiming unfair execution of their employment contracts and fraudulent breach of Article L 1224-1 of
the French Labor Code and the legal provisions relating to dismissal on economic grounds The findings of the courts on this issue 1n 2013
were not consistent, the Court of Appeal of Toulouse sanctioned the SFR and Teleperformance groups in half of the cases while the courts
of Portiers and Lyon rendered judgments which were favorable to SFR The cases are at different stages of the appeal process

Disputes with independent distributors

SFR, like other companies that use an indirect distribution model, faces complamts by its distnbutors and, almost systematically, by its
former distnbutors These recurring disputes concern the abrupt termination of the contractual relationship, the abuse of economic
dependence andj/or requests for reclassification of a distributor as a commercial agent, and, more recently, applications for reclassification
of @ manager as a branch manager and reclassification of the employment contracts of the employees working at these points of sale as
employment contracts with SFR The French Court of Cassation rendered three judgments against SFR on the status of branch managers but
the various Courts of Appeal have decided in favor of SFR On the issue of abrupt termination of contractual relationships and the request for
reclassification of employees of the distnibutor as employees of SFR, apart from a few rare exceptions the vanous courts have ruled in favor
of SFR

Parahole Réumon

In July 2007, the group Parabole Réunion filed a legat action before the Pans Tribunal of First Instance following the termination of its nghts
to exclusively distnbute the TPS channels in Reunion Island, Mayotte, Madagascar and Mauritius Pursuant to a decision dated September
18, 2007, Canal+ Group was prohibited, under fine, from allowing the broadcast by third parties of these channels or those replacement
channels that have substituted these channels Canal+ Group appealed this decision In a rubing dated June 19, 2008, the Pans Court of
Appeal partially reversed the judgment and stated that these replacement channels were not to be granted exclusively if the channels were
made available to third parties prior to the merger with TPS Parabole Réunion was again unsuccessful in its elaims concerning the: content
of the channels in question On September 19, 2008, Parabole Réunion appealed to the French Supreme Court On November 10, 2008, the
French Supreme Court dismissed the appeal brought by Parabole Réunion In the centext of this dispute, vanous jurisdictions have taken the
opportunity to recall that in the event of the loss of the TPS Foot channel, Canal+ Group must make available to Parabole Réunion a channel
of similar attractiveness Non-compliance with this order would result in a penalty On September 24, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a claim

against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distnbution befare the enforcement magistrate of the Court of First Instance of Nanterre
{Tribunal de grande instance de Nanterre) seeking enfarcernent of this fine (a request for such enforcement having been previously rejected
by the enforcement magistrate of Nanterre, the Paris Court of Appeal and the French Supreme Court) On November 8, 2012, Parabole
Réunion expanded its claim to cover the TPS Star, Cinecinema Classic, Cult and Star channels On Apnil 9, 2013, the enforcement magistrate
dismissed in part Parabole Réumion’s claim and declared the rest inadmissible He took care to recall that Canal+ Group had no legal
obligation with respect to the content or the maintaining of programming on channels made available to Parabole Réunion Parabole Réunion
filed an appeal against this judgment

In parallel, an August 11, 2009, Parabole Réunion filed a complant aganst Canal+ Group before the Pans Trbunal of First Instance,
requesting that the Tribunal order Canal+ Group to make available a channel w:th a level of attractiveness similar to that of TPS Foot in 2006
and to pay damages
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On Apnl 26, 2012, Parabole Réunion filed a complaint against Canal+ France, Canal+ Group and Canal+ Distribution before the Pans Tribunal
of First instance asking the Tribunal to acknowledge the failure of the compamies of the Group to fulfill their contractual obligations to
Parabole Réunion and their commitments to the Ministry of Economy

These two actions have been consolidated into a single action

Action brought by the French Cempetition Authority regarding practices in the pay-TV sector

On January 8, 2009, further 1o 1ts voluntary investiganon and a complaint by Crange, the French Competition Authonty sent Vivend and
Canal+ Group a notification of allegations It alleges that Canal+ Group has abused its dominant position n certain Pay-TV markets and that
Vivend: and Canal+ Group colluded with TF1 and M6, on the one hand, and with Lagardére, on the other Vivend and Canal+ Group have
each denied these allegations

On November 16, 2010, the French Competition Authority rendered a decision in which 1t dismissed the allegations of collusion, in respect of
all parties, and certain other allegaticns, in respect of Canal+ Group The French Competition Authority requested further investigation
regarding fiber optic TV and catch-up TV, Canal+ Group's exclusive distribution nghts on channels broadcast by the group and by
iIndependent channels as well as the extension of exclusive nghts on TF1, M6 and Lagardére channels to fiber optic and catch-up TV On
October 30, 2013, the French Competition Authonty took over the investigation into these aspects of the case

Annulment of the decision authorizing the acquisition of Direct 8, Direct Star, Direct Productions, Direct Digital, and Bolloré
Intermedia

In November 2012 and January 2013, TF1 and M6 submitted to the French Council of State an action for annulment of the decisions taken by
the French Competition Authonity and the CSA {French authonty for media networks) authonzing the acquisition by Canal+ Group of Direct 8,
Direct Star, Direct Productions, Direct Digital and Belloré Intermedia

On December 23, 2013, the French Council of State annulled the French Competition Authority's decision with eftect from July 1, 2014, and
partially annulled the decision of the CSA On January 15, 2014, the transaction was re-notified to the French Competition Authortty

Canal+ Group against TF1, M6, and France Télévision

On December 9, 2013, Canal+ Group ftled a complaint with the French Cornpetition Authority against the practices of the TF1, M6 and France
T&évision groups In the onginal French-language film market Canal+ Group accused them of inserting pre-emption rights into co-production
contracts, 1n such a way as to discourage competition

Canal+ Group against TF1, and TMC Régie

On June 12, 2013, Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Régie filed a complaint with the French Competibion Authority against the practices of TF1
and TMC Régie in the television advertising market Group Canal+ SA and Canal+ Regie accused them of cross-pramotion, having a single
advertising division and refusing to promote the D8 channel during its launch

Complaints against music industry majors in the United States

Several complaints have been filed before the Federal Courts in New York and California against Universal Music Group and the other music
industry majors for alleged anti-competitive practices in the context of sales of CDs and Internet music downloads These complaints have
been consolidated before the Federal Court in New York The motion to dismiss filed by the defendants was granted by the Federal Court, on
October 9, 2008, but this decision was reversed by the Second Circuit Court of Appeals on January 13, 2010 The defendants filed a motion
for rehearing which was denied They filed a petition with the US Supreme Court which was rejected on January 10, 2011 The discovery
process is underway The Court has decided that the proceedings on class certification will be completed in the second half of 2014

Complaints against UMG regarding royalties for digital downloads

Since 2011, as has been the case with other music industry majors, several purported class action complaints have been filed against UMG
by recording artists generally seeking additional royalties for on line sales of music downloads and master ringtones UMG contests the
mernts of these actions

Koninklijke Philips Electronics agamnst UMG

On April 30, 2008, Koninklijke Philips Electronics filed suit against UMG in the District Court for the Southern District of New York claiming
breach of contract and patent infringement in connection with a hicense to manufacture COs On March 1, 2013, a jury rendered an
unfavorable verdict against UMG On August 8, 2013, the parties entered into a settlement agreement that ended this dispute
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Telefonica against Vivendi in Brazil

On May 2, 2011, TELESF, Telefonica’s Brazihan subsidiary, filed a claim against Vivend before the Civil Court of S&o0 Paulo {3° Vara Civel do
Foro Central da Comarca da Capital do Estado de Sdo Paulo) The company I1s seeking damages for having been blocked from acquinng
controt of GVYT and damages 1n the amount of 15 milhon Brazihan reals {currently approxmately 4 7 mihon eures) coresponding o the
expenses incurred by TELESP in connection with its offer for GVT At the beginning of September, 2011, Vivend: filed an objection to
Junsdiction, challenging the junisdiction of the courts of S&e Paulo to hear a case involving parties from Cuntiba This objection was
dismissed on February 14, 2012, which was confirmed on Apnl 4, 2012 by the Court of Appeals

On Apnl 30, 2013, the Court dismissed Telefonica’s clarm for lack of sufficient and concrete evidence of Vivendi's responstbility for
Telefonica's failing to acquire GVT The Court notably hughlighted the inherently nisky nature of operations in the financial markets, of which
Telefonica must have been aware Moreover, the Court dismissed Vivendi's counterclaim for compensation for the damage 1t suffered as a
result of the defamatory campaign carmed out against it by Telefortca On May 28, 2013, Telefonica appealed the Court's decision to the 5%
Chamber of Private Law of the Court of Justice of the State of Sao Paule

Dynamo against Vivendi

On August 24, 2011, the Dynamo investment funds filed a complaint for damages against Vivendi befaore the Bovespa Arbitration Chamber
{Sd0 Paulo stock exchange} According to Dynamo, a former shareholder of GVT that sold the vast majonty of its stake in the company before
November 13, 2009 {the date on which Vivend: took control of GVT), the provision in GVT's bylaws providing for an increasa n the per share
purchase price when the 15% thresheld 15 crossed (the “paison pill provision”) should aliegedly have applied to the acquisition by Vivend
Vivendi, noting that this poison pill provision was walved by a GVT General Shareholders’ Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivend)
or Telefanica, demes all of Dynamo's allegations The arbitral tnbunal has been constituted and a hearing before the Bovespa Arbitration
Chamber should be scheduled shortfy In paralle!, on February 6, 2013, Dyname filed an application with the 217 Federal Court of the capital
of the State of Rio de Janeiro to compel CVM and Bovespa to provide the arbitral tribunal with confidential information relating to the
acquisition of GVT by Vivend: This was rejected on November 7, 2013 as the Court found that only the arbitral tnbunal could make such an
application In {ate December, Dynamo requested that the arbitral tribunal submit an apphcation for the confident:al information from the
Judge

Hedging-Gniffo against Vivend

On September 4, 2012, the Hedging-Gnffo funds filed a complaint against Vivend: before the Arbitration Chamber of the Bovespa {S&o Paulo
Stock Exchange| seeking to obtain damages for losses they atlegedly incurred due to the conditions under which Vivend completed the
acquisition of GVT in 2003 On December 16, 2013, the arbitral tnbunal was constituted and the plaintiffs submitted their mitial briefs The
Hedging-Gnffo funds demanded compensation for the difference between the price at which they sold ther GVT shares on the market and
125% of the price paid by Vivendi in connection with the tender offer for the GVT shares, pursuant to the “poison pill” provision 1n GVT's
bylaws Vivend: believes that the decision taken by the Hedging-Gnffo funds to sell their GVT shares before the end of the stock market
battle that opposed Vivend: aga:nst Telefonica was their ewn decision made in the context of their management of these funds and can in
no way be attributable to Vivend, It alsa denies any application of the bylaw pravision mentioned above, as it was wawed by a GVT General
Shareholders’ Meeting in the event of an acquisition by Vivend: or Telefonica

Actions related to the ICMS tax

GVT, like all other telecommunications operators, is party in several Brazifian States to various proceedings concerning the application of the
“ICMS" tax Impostors Sober Circulagdos de Mercadoras e Prestacaos de Servigos {ICMS} s a tax on operations relating to the circulation of
goads and the supply of transport, communication and electricity services

GVT 1s notably a party to litigation in vanious Brazilian States concerning the application of the ICMS tax on voice telecommunication
services GVT argues that the ICMS tax should nat apply to monthly plans Of the 2% proceedings initiated by GVT, 19 have restlted in
decisions favorable to GVT and 12 are no lenger subject to appeal

Action related to the FUST and FUNTTEL taxes in Brazil

The Brazilian tax authonities argue that the assessment of the taxes known as “FUST” {Fundo da Universalizagdos dos Servigos de
Telecomunicagds), a federal tax to promote the supply of telecommunications services throughout the whale Brazikan terntory, including in
areas that are not economically viable, and "FUNTTEL" {Fundo para Desenvolvimento Tecnolgioco das TelecomunicagBes), a federal tax to
finance technological investments n Brazilian telecommunications services, should be based on the company's gross revenue without
deduction for pnice reductions or interconnection expenses and other taxes, which would lead to part of that sum bang subject to double
taxation GVT is challenging this interpretation and has secured 3 suspension of payment of the sums claimed by the tax authonty from the
federal judge
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Proceedings brought against telecommunications operators in Brazil regarding the application of the PIS and COFINS taxes

Several proceedings were initiated against all the telecommumications operators in Brazil, including GVT, seeking to prevent invoices from
being increased by taxes known as “PIS" (Programa de Integraggos Social} and "COFINS” (Contribuigdo para Financramento da Seguridade
Sacial}, which are federal taxes that apply to revenue from the provision of telecommunications services GVT believes that the arguments in
Its defense have a stronger basis than those of the historic operators insofar as GVT operates pursuant to a more flexible license that allows
It ta set its own tanffs

Note 29 Major consolidated entities or entities accounted under equity
method

As of December 31, 2013, approximately 630 entities were consolidated or accounted for using the equity method (compared to
approximately 630 entities as of December 31, 2012)

December 31 2013 December 31 2012

Country Accounting Voting Dwnership Accounting Voting Ownersh:p
Note Method Interest Interest. Method Interest Interest

Vivendi § A, Frence Parent company Parent company
Groupe Canal+ S.A. France 4 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Canal+ France S A [a) 2 France C 80% 80%
Société d Edition de Canal Pius (o} France M 43% 43% C A49% 5%
Muluthématiques S A S France c 100% 100% C 100% 56%
Canal+ Overseas SAS France C 100% 100% c 100% 0%
Canal+ Distribution SA S (a) France - C 100% 80%
D8 France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Studiocaral 5 A France C 100% 100% C i00% 160%
Canal+ Cyfrowy S A (¢} Polard [ 1% 51% C 51% 51%
TVN [c) 15 Poland E 49% 26% E 0% 21%
VSTV {d) Vietnam C 49% 49% C 49% 49%
Universal Mysac Group, Inc United States c 10% 100% c 100% To0%
PelyGram Helding Inc United States c 100% 100% C 100% 1a0%
UMG Recordings Inc United States [ 100% 100% C 100% 160%
Vewo 15 United States E % 47% E 50% 50%
SI1G 104 France C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Universal International Music B Y Netherlands C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Universal Entertainment GmbH Germany [ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Universal Music LLC Japan C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Universal Mussc France SA S France C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Universat Music Holdings Limited United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
EMI Group Worldwide Holding Ltd 2 United Kingdom C 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Global Village Telacom S.A Brazil c 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Global Village Telecom Lida (e) Branl - ¢ 100% 130%
POP Internet Ltda Branl c 100% 100% [ 100% 100%
Innoweb Ltda Brazl [ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
SFR Socaete Frangaise du Radiotéléphone S A France c 100% To0% c 100% 100%
Société Réumonnaise du Radiotéléphone $C § France c 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Scciété Financiére de Distribution § A France [ 100% 100% ¢ 100% 100%
SsurSSA France C 100% 100% ¢ 1060% 100%
La Poste Telecom SAS France E 4% 49% E 45% 49%
Numergy SA S 15 France E 47% 47% E 7% 47%

Other operations
See Tickets United Kingdam C 100% 100% c 100% 100%
Digitick France c 0% 100% c 100% 100%
Wengo Frence c 0% 95% C 100% 95%
Watchever Group S A France ¢ 100% 100% C 100% 100%
Watchever GmbH Germany c 100% 100% - -

Elgktnim Telekomuntkacja Poland [ 100% 106% c 100% 100%
Maroc Telecom S.A (f} ? Morocco [ §3% 53% ¢ 53% 53%
Mauntel § A Mauntana C 51% 22% C 5i% 27%
Onatel S A Burluna Faso [ 51% 27% [ 5% 2%
Gabon Telecom S A Gabon [ 51% 27% C 51% 7%
Sotelma S A Mali [ 51% 27% ¢ 51% 27%
Actwvision Bhizzard, Inc {g) 7 United States na 12% 12% [ 615% 61 5%

C Consolidated. £ Equity

a On November 5, 2013, Vivendi acquired Lagardere Group’s 20% interest in Canal+ France for €1,020 mullion in cash Thereafter, with
retroactive effect to January 1, 2013, Canal+ France S A and Canal+ Distribution S A'S were merged with and into Canal+ Group S A,
pursuant to a simplified merger
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Vivend! consolidated Société d’Edition de Canal Plus because (i} Vivendi has majonty control over the board of directars, (1) no other
shareholder or shareholder group 1s 1n a position to exercise substantive participating rights that would allow them to veto or block
decisions taken by Vivend: and {i11) Vivend assumes the majority of risks and benefits pursuant to an agreement with this company via
Canal+ Distnbution SAS Indeed, Canal+ Distribution, wholly-owned by Vivend, guarantees this company’s results in return for
exclusive commerctal nghts to 1ts subscriber base

w_n

Following the merger of Canal+ Cyfrowy {Cyfra+'s platform) with IT! Neowision {TVN's “n” platform} on November 30, 2012, Canal+
Group holds a 51% mnterest (n Canal+ Cyfrowy, which owns 100% of ITI Neovtsion and formed the new group “nc+" As Canal+ Group
has the majority on the Supervisory Board and the power to govern financial and operating policies of “nc+”, the latter 1s consolidated
by Canal+ Group

At the same tme, Canal+ Group acquired a 40% interest in N-Vision, which indirectly holds a 52% interest in TVN On December 18,
2013, IT! exercised 11s put option to sell a 3% interest in N-Vision to Canal+ Group Canal+ Group's ownershup interest in N-Vision thus
increased to 49% (please refer to Note 27)

VSTV {Vigtnam Satellite Digital Television Company Limited) 1s 4% held by Canal+ Group and 51% by VCTV, a VTV subsidiary {the
Vietnamese public television company) This company has been consohdated by Vivend) given that Canal+ Group has both operational
and financial control over it due to a general delegation that was granted by the majonity shareholder and to the company's bylaws

In 2013, Vivendi rearganized the legal chain of ownership of GVT's shares and notably merged Global Village Telecom Ltda's
operational activities with GVT's holding company Globat Village Telecom SA

On November 4, 2013, Vivendi and Etisalat entered into a definitive agreement for the sale of Vivendi's 53% interest in Maroc
Telecom group (please refer to Note 7)

On October 11, 2013, Vivend: deconsolidated Activision Blrzzard pursuant to the sale of 88% of its interest As of December 31, 2013,
Vivendi retained 83 million Activision Blizzard shares, representing 12% of Activision Blizzard's outstanding share capital This interest
was accounted for as an asset of discontinued business i Vivendr's Consolidated Financial Statement Position (please refer to Note
7

Note 30  Statutory auditors fees

Fees paid by Vivend: SA to 1ts statutory auditors and members of thetr firms in 2013 and 2012 were as follows

KPMG S A Ernst & Young et Autres

Amount Percentage Amount Percentage Total
{in millions of euros) 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Statutory audit certification, consolidated and
indwidual financial statements audit
Issuer o7 07 0% 7% 1k} D3 13% 12% 16 16
Fully consolidated subsidiarigs 42 41 60% 42% 56 51 80% 69% 98 52
Other work and services directly refated to the
statutory audit
Issuer 04 06 6% 6% - 01 - 1% 04 07
Fully consohdated subsidanes 07 27 10% 8% 1 na 1% 5% 08 3t
Subtotal 60 a1 86% 83% 66 6.5 9% 87% 126 146
Other seraces provided by the network to fully
consolidated subsidianes
Legal tax and social matters a7 12 10% 12% 03 09 5% 12% 10 21
Other 03 04 4% 5% 01 01 1% 1% 04 05
Suhtotal 10 16 14% 17% 04 10 &% 13% 14 26
Total 10 97 100% 100% 10 15 100% 100% 14.0 17.2

The 2012 fees included the non-recurring assignments undertaken by statutory auditors in relation to the transactions underway

Financial Report and Audited Consehidated Financial Statements for the Year Ended December 31, 2013

Vivend /135



Tuesday, February 25, 2014 !

Note 31  Audit exemptions for UMG subsidiaries in the United Kingdom

Vivendi S A has provided guarantees to the following UMG substdianies, incorporated in England and Wales, under the registered number
indicated, in order for them to claim exemptions from audit, with respect to fiscal year 2013, under section 479A of the UK Companies Act
2008

Name Company Number
BACKCITE LIMITED 2358972
BOILER ROOM MANAGEMENT LIMITED 67908059
CENTENARY UK LIMITED 03478918
DALMATIAN SONGS LIMITED 03506757
DECCA MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 718329
DUB DUB PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 3034298
EGW USD 8107589
EMI OVERSEAS HOLDINGS LIMITED 403200
EMI CATALOGUE INVESTMENTS HOLLAND LIMITED 3038313
EMI GROUP AMERICA FINANCE LIMITED 2415597
EMI GROUP DANISH INVESTMENTS LIMITED 2421991
EMI GROUP ELECTRONICS LIMITED 46161
EMI GROUP FINANCE DENMARK LIMITED 2472007
EMI GROUP HOLDINGS {UK) 3158108
EMI GROUP WORLDWIDE 3158106
EMIINVESTMENTS HOLLAND LIMITED 3038307
EMI RECORDED MUSIC {(CHILE) LIMITED 07934340
EMI RECORDED MUSIC HOLDINGS (ITALY) LIMITED 6420969
EMI RECORDED MUSIC HOLDINGS (UK) LIMITED 6407212
EMI RECORDS GERMANY HOLDCO LIMITED 6420927
EMIRECORDS ITALY HOLDCO LIMITED 6420934
EMI RECORDS UK HOLDCO LIMITED 5388809
EMI UK HOLDINGS 255852
EMIG 4 LIMITED 3038275
FLUM MANAGEMENT LIMITED 07908238
GLOBE PRODUCTIONS LIMITED 05433649
JAYDONE LIMITED 4631083
LOUDCLOTHING COM LIMITED 06854812
MAWLAW 388 LIMITED 3590255
RELENTLESS 2006 LIMITED 3967906
UMG! (ATW) LIMITED 05103127 ,
UNIVERSAL MUSIC {UK) HOLDINGS LIMITED 3383881 '
UNIVERSAL MUSIC ARTS & ENTERTAINMENT LIMITED 859087
UNIVERSAL MUSIC HOLDINGS (UK} LIMITED 337803
UNIVERSAL MUSIC LEISURE LIMITED 3384487
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING BL LIMITED 02037678
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING INTERNATIONAL MGEB LIMITED 02200287
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING MGB HOLDING UK LIMITED 05092413
UNIVERSAL MUSIC PUBLISHING PGM LIMITED 3771282
UNIVERSAL SRG {UB40) LIMITED 05158521
UNIVERSAL SRG (W AR ) LIMITED 05221402
UNIVERSAL SRG ARTIST SERVICES LIMITED 01830269
UNIVERSAL SRG GROUP LIMITED 002384340
UNIVERSAL SRG MUSIC PUBLISHING LIMITED 02898402
UNIVERSAL SRG STUDIOS LIMITED 03050388
UNIVERSAL/ANXIOUS MUSIC LIMITED 01862328
UNIVERSAL/DICK JAMES MUSIC LIMITED 698804
UNIVERSAL/ISLAND MUSIC LIMITED 761597
UNIVERSAL/MCA MUSIC LIMITED 410065
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC Z LIMITED 2850484
UNIVERSAL/MOMENTUM MUSIC LIMITED 1946456
VIRGIN MUSIC GROUP 2259343
VIRGIN RECORDS OVERSEAS LIMITED 335444
¥2 MUSIC GROUP LIMITED 03205625
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Note 32 Subsequent events

The main events that occurred between December 31, 2013 and February 19, 2014, the date of the Management Board meeting that
approved the financial statements for fiscal year 2013 are as follows

on January 14, 2014 Canal+ Group won the exclusive broadcasting nights to the national French Rugby Champienship “TOP 14" for
five seasans {2014-2015 te 2018-2019) These rnights refate to all of the TOP 14 matches, across all media and all ternitories,

on January 31, 2014, SFR and Bouygues Telecom entered into a strategic agreement to share a portion of their mobile access
netwaorks, and

on February 13, 2014, Vivend: entered into exclusive negotiations with Belgacom to acquire 100% of its subsidiary Telindus France
Group, a leader on the French markets of telecommunication integration and networks Once signed, the transaction will be
submitted to the French competition authonty approval

Note 33  Adjustment of comparative information

As from the second quarter of 2013 1n compliance with IFRS 5, Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group have been reported in Vivend:'s
Consolidated Statement of Earnings, Statement of Cash Flows, and Statement of Financial Position as discontinued operations In practice,
these two businesses have been reported as follows

ther contribution to each line of Vivendi's Consolidated Statement of Earnings (before non-controlling interests} has been grouped
under the line "Earnings from discontinued operations”, until thesr effective sale In accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments
have been applied to all penods presented to ensure consistency of information, and

thenr contribution to each line of Vivendr's Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows has been grouped under the hine “Cash flows
from discentinued operations” until their effective sale In accordance with IFRS 5, these adjustments have been applied to all
perrods presented to ensure consistency of information

Moreover, data published with respect to fiscal year 2012 was adjusted following the application of amended 1AS 19, whose application 15
mandatory in the European Union beginning on or atter Janvary 1, 2013 {please refer to Note 1)

As aresult, the 2012 and first quarter of 2013 Financial Statements were adjusted, as applicable
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33.1 Adjustments made to the main aggregates of the Consolidated Statement of Earnings

2012
Thiee months Three months S months ended enLr:;:;:::;er
{in mullions of euros, except per share amounts} ended March 31 ended June 30 June 30 30,
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) (as previously published} 143 1,082 2575 1259
Reclassifications related te the application of IFRS 5 for Actvision Blizzard -3 -175 - 568 182
Reclassifications related to the application of IFRS 5 for Maroc Telecom Group - 266 - 183 -449 261
Adjustments related to the application of amended 1AS 19
Sefling general and admimstrative expenses +2 +2 +4 +2
Earnings before interest and income taxes {(EBIT) (restated) 836 726 1,562 218
Earnings attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners (as previously published) 697 463 1,160 9
Adjustmenis related tg the apphication of amended (AS 19
Selling general and admimistrative expenses +2 +2 +4 +2
Other financial charges +1 1
Provision for income taxes - -
Eamings attnbutable to Yivend: SA shareowners {restated) 699 466 1,165 433
Earnings attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners par share - basic (as previously
published) 054 036 090 0.38
Earmings attnbutable to Vivends SA shareowners per share - basic {restated) L) 038 091 0.38
2012 2013
N
ine months Three months Year ended Three months
ended September  ended December 0 ber 31 ded March 31
{in millions of euros except per share amounts) 30, 3 ecember en arc
Earnings before interest and income taxes (EBIT) (as previously published) B3 (956} 2878 1178
Reclassifications related to the application of [FRS 5 for Activision Blizzard 750 378 1128 440
Reclassifications related ta the applicaton of (FRS § for Maroc Tefecom Graup T 252 962 - 266
Adjustments relaied 1o the application of amended IAS 19
Sefing general and admnistrative expenses +§ + 11 +17 na
Eamings before interast and income taxes (EBIT) {restated) 2,380 {1,525) 805 472
Earnings attnhutahle to Vivend) SA shareowners (as previously published} 1,651 {1.487) 164 534
Adjustments related to tha apphication of amended 1AS 19
Seling gengral and admimistrative expenses +6 +11 +12 na
Dther financial charges +1 - +1 na
Proviston for income taxes -3 -3 na
Eamings attnbutable to Vivendr SA shareowners (restated) 1658 {1.479) 1713 534
Earnings attnbutable to Vivend: SA shareowners per share - basic (as previously
publishad) 128 112) 013 040
Eamings attnbutabte to Vivandi SA shareowners per share - basic (restated) 1.28 112 014 040

33.2 Adjustments related to charges and income directly recognized in equity

Year ended December 31 2012

Apphication
of amended
{sm mubhons of euros) Published 14519 Restated
Earnings 9419 +15 964
Actuarial gains/{lasses) related to employee defined benefit pans net B1 (61
Itams not raclassified to profit or loss - - 61 {61}
Foreign currency translation adjustmentis (605} - 1605)
Unrealized gans/llosses) net 103 - 103
of which  Cash flow hedge mstruments 22 . 27
Net investment hedge instruments 17 17
Tax ! - i
Hedging mstruments net 40 40
Assets available for sale net 63 63
Other impacts net
ltems to be subsequently reclassified to profit or loss (502} - {502}
Charges and income diractly racogmzed i equity 1502[ - 61 {563}
Total comprehensive income 447 - 46 401
of which
Total comprehensive income attributahle to Vivend: SA shareowners (N7 - 45 (362}
Total comprehensive Income attributable 1o non-contrelling interests 764 -1 763
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33.3 Adjustments made to the Statements of Financial Position

{in millions of euros)

ASSETS

Goodwll

Non-current content assets
Other intangible assets
Property plant and equipment
Investments in equity affiliates
Non current financial assets
Deferred tax assets
Non-current assets

Inventories

Current tax receivables

Current content assets

Trade accounts recervable and other
Current financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Assets held for sale
Current assols

TOTAL ASSETS

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital

Additional paxd n capital

Treasury shares

Retained eamings and other
Vivend: SA shareowners' aquity
Non contralling interests

Total equity

Non-current provisions

Long-term borrowings and other financial habtlities
Deferred tax labiities

Qther non-current biabihities

Non-current ltabilitres

Current provisions

Short-term borrowings and other financeal liabilities
Trade accounts payable and other

Current tax payables

Liatslities associated with assets held for sale
Current liabilities

Total iabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
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December 31 20012 Applicatonof ~ December 31 2012 December 31 2017 Apphcationof — January 1st 2012
Published amended 1AS 19 Restated Published amended IAS 19 Restated
24656 - 24 6% 25029 - 5028
3 - ki 74} 2485 - 2485
5190 - 5190 4329 4329
9928 - 9926 9001 900
388 - 388 135 135
514 2% 488 394 -18 e
1400 +45 1445 140 +26 1447
45401 +19 45,420 a2m +1 42,805
738 738 85 805
819 819 542 542
1044 1044 1066 . 1086
5587 6587 6730 - 6730
364 - 364 478 - 478
3894 - 3894 3304 33
13,846 - 13,445 12,925 - 12925
667 - 667
1413 - 14113 12,925 - 12,925
59,514 +19 59,533 55,719 +11 55,730
1282 182 6860 - 6 860
827 821 8255 - 825
(25) (25} (28 - 28)
2937 140 2797 430 95 42%
18,465 -140 18325 1947 -95 19,352
79N -5 2966 2623 4 2619
2,436 - 145 729 2,0m -99 291
3094 +164 3258 1569 +110 1679
12 667 12667 12 409 12 409
991 991 728 728
1002 1002 84 B64
17,754 +164 17918 15,570 +110 15,680
m - m 585 - 586
5090 - 5080 Jam - 330
14196 - 14196 13%7 13987
kel 321 05 05
20318 - 208 18,079 - 18,079
B 6 - -
20324 - 20,324 18,079 - 18,079
38,07 +164 38,242 335649 +110 33,759
59,514 +18 59523 S5,19 +11 55,130
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33.4 Adjustments made to the Statements of Cash Flows

Year ended December 31, 2012
Reclassifications Application of

related 10 amended
{sin millions of euros) Published IFRS 5 (a) 1AS19 Restated
Operating activitres
EBIT 2878 -2090 +17 805
Ad|ustments 5199 -726 17 4 456
Including amartization and deprecration of tangiblg and intangible assets 3929 &4 3275
raserve accrual regarding the Liberty Media Corporation hirgation i the United States 945 945
ather income from EBIT 22} +3 {19}
other charges from EBIT 235 +T 235
Content investments net {289) +154 145)
Gross cash provided by operating activitres before income tax patd r77s -2.662 - 5116
Other changes in net working capital 80 21 69
Net cash provided by aperating sctvities before income tax paid 7,868 - 2,683 . 5,185
Income tax paid, net {762) +409 {353)
Nst cash provided by operating activities of continuing operations 7,106 -2274 - 48322
Net cash provided by operating activities of discontinusd operations - + 2274 - 2274
Net cash pravided by operating activittes 7,106 - B 7106
Investing activities
Capital expenditures 4518 +517 - 13 999}
Purchases of consohidated compames after acquired cash {1374} . - {1314}
Investments in equity affiliates (322) - (322)
Increase in financial assets (99} + 64 135)
Investments {6311} +581 - {5,730}
Proceeds from sales of property plant equipment and intangible assets 26 3 23
Proceeds from sales of consolidated companies atter divested cash 13 13
Disposal of equity atfiliates " "
Decrease in financial assets 215 35 190
Divestitures 265 -38 - 227
Dividends receved from equity affiliates 1 - 3
Dwvidends receved from uncensalidated companies 1 - 1
Net cash provided byfused for] investing activities of continuing operations (6.042) +543 - (5,453}
Not cash provided by/used for) invasting activities of discentinued operations - -543 - {543}
Net cash provided by/fused far) investing actiities {6.042) - - (6042}
Financing actviies
Net proceeds from 1ssuance of common shares in connection with Vivendi SA s share based
compensation plans iK1l 13
Sales/purchases) of Vivend) SA s treasury shares (18} . {18}
Davidends paid by Vivendi SA to its shareowners {1 245) - {1 245)
Qther transacuions with shareowners (229 +228 1
Dmdends paid by consolidated companies to their non contrelling interests (483} +450 (33)
Transactions with shareowners {1.844) + 578 - (1,166)
Settmg up of fong term Donowmgs and increase I other long ferm fmantal hatnhies 5853 % - 5833
Principal payment on long term barrowings and decrease in other long term financial labilities 14217) +6 - 14211}
Principal payment on short term bormowings 12619} +121 - (2,494)
QOther changes i short-term barrowings and other financial labilites 3056 248 2808
interest pad net {568) +24 (544}
Other cash items related to financial activites {98) +2 {96}
Transactions on borrowings and other financiad tabilies 1417 -121 - 1,296
Net cash provided by/lused for) finencing activitries of continuing operations 427) +557 - 130
Nat cash provided byf{used for) financing activities of discontinued operstions - - 557 . (557}
Net cash prownded byAused for) finascing activities (421) - - [[F3])
Fareign currency transfation adjustments of continuing perations L] +18 {79)
Foreign cumency translation adjustments of discontinued operations 18 - {18)
Change in cash and cash equivalents 590 - - 590
Reclassification of cash and cash equivalents from discontinued operations - . . -
Cash and cash equivalents
At begianing of the penod 3304 - - 3304
At end of the penod 3894 - - 385

a Includes Activision Blizzard and Maroc Telecom group {please refer to Note 7)
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